N

® ® 2o

e o T
h da W N = oD

OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL

Finance Committee Meeting
Agenda

February 15, 2011
Board Room
7:30 a.m.

Minutes

Architect Contract

RFP Construction Management
Construction Management Contract
Student Hire Process

Instructional Materials Recommendation
Office Supply Contract Extension
Special Ed. Transportation RFP

Field Trip/Activity Transportation RFP

. Student Fees 2011-2012

. Finance Advisory Committee Update

. Student Achievement Initiatives for ¥Y 2012 Budget
. PTAB Resolution

. Monthiy Financial Report

. Treasurer’s Report

Finance Committee Members

Co-Chairs:

Amy McCormack
John C. Allen IV

Board of Education

DLT

}im Hunter ~ FSEC Chair

Ken Florey

Robert Zummalien

Ken Florey
Lauren M. Smith
Cheryl Witham
Tim Keeley

Tim Keeley

Tim Keeley
Cheryl Witham
Cheryl Witham
Board Discussion
Cheryl Witham

information

Infermation



noday sasanseai],

sjoday eroweuty

a1epdp) 291IEWO) ATOSIADY 20UBHIL]
Aepdpy uonInNRSUo))

saInurA

U] AI0AY

[ematay] do) SIOIO A

{emauayl suj Anpqery y Axadoag

103png Areurwigaid 71 Ad

SPIg IQAOT[OY 22ATIG POOC.]
O 19png ued 2591018
21epdn HYJAUMTUIRIUO) 1500
SULITH ATHOUT

Hoday] ssaufeAn

Ply @2IAIRS [emO],

SROIAIAG BALI T,

T1-11 A JOf S19BRUO)

SpUILf I2JSUBI] 0} UOLN[0SOY
odum Sumipeaciyg

Amoog Suppng

preg Sunurig

Z10TAd spradng pur Suijyels eutg
SpIg TononNsuo.)

prgprade g

diysumo 1, pno & yred yeo
ue[JIeax ¢

Hid uolsial(g
TORIIUO) U0,

POOUP[I) AME JO UONRIOGE[[0))
reacaddy 108png pepusury

WWAUPUNLEY KJ0Jes 2J1T

18png 7107 A4 PA JO pIeog

P BLIOJIUN SURIRY TIOT - 110

Z1-T1 s2oud youn| 2214198 POO L6 “I1SICT
ZT-11 sooud youn 821AX08 POOJ 00T I1SICT
128pnyg pepusuy

HPOY |17 92UDUILIO,) OF “IOYINY

1IOT “ounf

110T ‘Aepy

1107 ‘pdy

1107 ‘Ydrrein

Spun.J AJANOY sa spuadng soyoeo)

uonepodsueilf  woday 000'CTS - 00O 0TS JO s1PRIU0)) $a1G ABrouyg prenduea ojepdpn)
dorg

: ‘ 24 N auog] soio[duyg
UonRIoSN gV .1Ld JoSPIg Z1/1 1 AL POUSIULION OF A1LOYINY ISTUOTIUDAIIIUT YINO [Emaudy suf 1yeuay] soko[dusyg

. . 11/01 _

] ] AAZ 7 A v A1
CL/1T S92 3Leptis 195PNY] PUULY DOUIULID)) 01 AJL0YImY ATOT0C ATOTVT ARHIit R
TI07 ‘Axenagoy 1107 ‘Axenuef 0107 “roquIada(g 0107 “TPQUIDAON

noday 1pny 0107 Ad
1oday seo,] % ooy
QUIAULT AN
SIEMDUOY AOURINSU]

[paouddy 108pag 110T - 0107
FNOIg “suy “uag] vakodury
SSOOY SSR[RII M

jesodoid WwoD) APy UL

1 10T - 0107 123png aalzeua],

0107 10120

0107 “Pgupudag

0107 “ysnsny

0107 ‘Amf




OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL
201 North Scoville Avenue
Qak Park, I 60302

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, January 18, 2011

A Finance Committee meeting was held on Tuesday, January 18, 2011. Co-Chair McCormack
called the meeting to order at 7:39 a.m. in the Board Room. Commiitee members present were
John C. Allen, Terry Finnegan, Dr. Ralph H. Lee (arrived at 7:50 a.m.), Amy McCormack, Dr.
Dietra D. Millard, and Sharon Patchak-Layman. Also present were Dr. Steven T. Isoye,
Superintendent; Michael Carioscio, Chief Information Officer; Philip M. Prale, Assistant
Superintendent for Curriculum and Instruction; Lauren M. Smith, Director of Human
Resources; Cheryl L. Witham, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer; and Gail Kalmerton,
Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board.

Visitors included James Paul Hunter, FSEC Chair; Doug Wiley, OPRFHS Supervisor of
Finance; Robert Zummallen, Director of Buildings and Grounds; Dale Craft, Physical
Education Division Head; Laura Pauli and Nathan Nisson of PMA; Ken Florey of Robbins,
Schwartz, Nicholas, Lifton & Taylor, Ltd.; and Rance Clouser and John Phelan, community
members.

Ms. McCormack announced that if the meeting were not adjourned by 9:30 a.m. it would be
recessed at 9:30 a.m. in order to hold the Special Board Meeting and reconvened after that time.

Approval of December 7, 2010 Finance Committee Minutes
It was the consensus of the Committee members to accept December 7, 2010 Finance Committee
minutes, as presented.

Legat Contract

Ken Florey, construction aftorney, gave an update on the negotiations of the contract with
Legat Architects. He reiterated that the District was preparing to be more transparent in its
process as it was separating the work of the architect and the construction firm, with a
construction attorney. The Board of Education will have more control over the contract and
contingencies, i.e., change orders. Because change orders are fluid, a process is necessary to
approve small changes expeditiously (currently $25,000 or less), so that the work can
continue and he hoped that the current dollar amount would be raised. ISBE suggests 10
percent of the project. A change in the Board of Education’s policy will be required. Change
orders that are more than 10 percent must go to bid. He hoped for contract resolution with
Legat soon and that a construction manager would be chosen and approved in February. He
informed the Board of Education that should it have special requirements, e.g., pursue
women or minority-owned business trades, have a successful track record in working with
diversified subcontractors, etc., it should make that known soon so that contractors can
encourage that participation. Requiring exact percentages of firms has been challenged and
found illegal. Subcontractors are hired because they are the lowest bidder.




Construction {pdate

Mr. Zummallen informed the Committee that the 2010 summer projects were nearly
completed with the exception of a few punch list items. Athletics seems happy with the
installation of the new boilers because hot water is now immediately available in the
showers and for the pools.

Ms. Patchak-Layman requested the minutes of Facilities Committee meetings on a regular
basis via email.

PMA Investment Update and CIDARS Deposit Placement Agreement

Ms. Laura Pauli (PMA representative) informed the Committee members of different options
for the investment of the District’s funds that fit its scope and its objectives, i.e., permissible
under state stature, appropriate for its investment objectives, and safe. PMA reviews 1) the
vehicles used in the District’s portfolios, e.g., banks and investment options, etc., 2} its liquidly
by doing cash flow analysis to insure that cash flow needs meet expenditures, and 3) the return
on investment.

One new investment, CDARS, is a platform that allows deposits in a lead bank to be sent to
banks within a national network (usually smaller banks) in order to utilize the FDIC
insurance. This is an opportunity to 1) look at more banks, and 2) access different portfolios
to get higher interest rates. A deposit of $1 million in the lead bank would result in the
District receiving one interest rate, even though the FDIC insurance from four different
banks would be used. CDARS owns the administrative platform and PMA works as the
intermediary to assist in finding the lead bank that sets the rate. Currently, OPRFHS has 1is
money in 99 banks. The cost for this would be 25 basis points. It was unclear as to whether
banks had to pay a fee to belong to CDARS. Placing the District’s funds in this type of
option even though all of its current deposits are guaranteed by the FDIC would eliminate 1)
any delay in retrieving its money should there be a bank failure, and 2) the stress and
inconvenience of going through a bank failure.

A second new investment option is a Term Series Pool. The District already invests in two
of the series. Each pool is unique with bank deposits within a portfolio and the District
would buy shares in the pool.

Comcast Contract

It was the consensus of the Finance Committee members to recommend to the Board of
Education that it approve the contract with Comecast at its regular January Board of
Education meeting, as presented.

M. Carioscio explained that having two providers of bandwidth in the building was positive
both in terms of cost and service.

Increasing the high school’s bandwidth is an underlying piece of technology that it must
have. Should any further discussion occur about services for the whole community, it will
help/add to that discussion. District 200 is also meeting with associate District 90 and
District 97 and talking with other districts about their computer activity.



Amendment of Lease with Konica-Minclta

It was the consensus of the Finance Committee members to recommend to the Board of
Education that it approve the amended lease with Konica-Minolta at its regular January
Board of Education meeting. The amendment of the lease will allow Konica-Minolta to
provide OPRFHS with a replacement for the DocuTech machine and provide service to it at
the same cost and for the same term.

Northshore Academic Contract

It was the consensus of the Finance Committee members to recommend to the Board of
Education that it approve the contract with Northshore Academics for supplemental
educational services at its Special Board meeting following this meeting.

As arequirement of Title I, OPRFHS is required to notify families that it will provide
outside tutoring if their children did not make AYP. OPRFHS mailed letters in the fall to
those families whose children qualify for the Free and Reduced Lunch Program, are either
freshmen or sophomores and did not make AYP about tutoring services and those providers.
Thirty-two slots have been filled and there is a waiting list of five. If a family chooses not
to follow through, the slot will be offered to the next family on the waiting list. Title I funds
are used to provide supplementary educational services, professional development, offset
some summer school costs, and a proposed reading program.

Summer School 2011 Budget and Fees

Discussion ensued about the administration’s recommendation to increase tuition by $5 and
to increase teacher stipends by $50 or a 2.25% increase for the 2011 Summer School. The
dates of Summer School would be June 16 through July 27, which is 27 days of instruction.
Some committee members wanted to consider holding steadfast on tuition and teacher
stipends and asked how OPRFHS stipends compared to other school districts.
Approximately 42 to 44 teachers teach summer school of which 10 to 15 are from other
schools. The argument given about raising the cost of tuition was because tuition not only
covers the cost of the regular offerings, but also it helps support the Special Education
portion of summer school, the 8 to 9 Program, the 9 to 10 Program, some assistance offered
to students who cannot afford summer school or are specifically targeted by counselors for
the Math Step Up Program, etc. Also the musical varies in its costs because sometimes it is
not as successful as it is hoped or is more expensive. This year there may be some
additional costs for support staff (security and clerical) as they will be paid at an hourly rate,
per the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA), and after 40 hours paid at 1 ' times their standard
hourly rate. The District was appreciative that last year there was a surplus which went into
the General Education Fund.

The Committee asked the administration to provide the Board of Education at its regular
January meeting, the hourly rates for teachers from other districts and a comparative surplus
between retaining the $180 tuition fee versus increasing it to $185.



Bid for Commodities

[t was the consensus of the majority of Finance Committee members to recommend that the
Board of Education approve the bid for commodities at its regular January Board of
Education meeting on its consent agenda.

Ms. Witham reported that OPRFHS is audited by the government and has found that the
OPRFHS Wellness Committee has stricter guidelines than the government.

Advisory Leadership Team Compeositfion
This item was tabled until the adjourned Finance Commiftee meeting on Thursday, January
20.

Authority to Commence the Amended Budget 2010/11

It was the consensus of the majority of the Finance Committee members to recommend to
the Board of Education that it approve the resolution giving authority to commence the
Amended Budget for 2010/11 at its regular January Board of Education meeting.

Authority to Commence with Tentative Budget 2011/12

It was the consensus of the majority of the Finance Committee members to recommend to the
Board of Education that it approve the resolution giving authority to commence the Budget for
2011/12 at its regular January Board of Education meeting on the consent agenda.

Further discussion would occur at the PEG meeting on January 20, 2011 about how the
Board of Education goals would be incorporated into the budget.

Ms. Witham reported that the River Forest TIF dollars ($500,000) would be included in the
amended budget. Discussion ensued about whether to put this unanticipated funding in
either the Capital Fund or the Education Fund. Ms. Witham recommended using these
dollars to begin construction prior to July 1, when the new budget would begin so as to
insure that everything could be completed before the start of the 2011-12 school year. She
added that the one-time funds should be used for one-tume expenditures. Ms. Patchak-
Layman suggested that this money could be used for pilot projects or for one-time activities
as a way to decide whether or not to include it as part of the regular budget or make
modifications. She asked if this conversation was to be part of the amended budget or the
regular budget process and suggested that this money could be used to start construction
before July 1 and then replaced or held in an escrow account for next year. Ms. Witham
stated that this is a Board of Education’s decision.

Agenda ftems
Due to the lateness of the day, Ms. McCormack asked if there were any

questions/discussions about the following agenda items. There was no discussion or
questions about these items.

1) River Forest TIF Update
2y Cicero Township Treasurer Update
3} Contracts between $10,000 - $25,000



4y Financial Reports
5) Monthly Treasurer’s Report

As such, the Financial Reports and the Monthly Treasurer’s Report will be forwarded to the
Board of Education for approval at its regular January Board of Education meeting.

Adjournment
The Finance Committee recessed at 9:27 until after PEG Meeting on January 20, 2011,



OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL
201 North Scoville Avenue
Oak Park, [T 60302

Adjourned FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
Thursday, January 20, 2011

An Adjourned Finance Committee meeting was held on Thursday, January 20, 2011, Ms
McCormack called the meeting to order at a.m. in the Board Room. Committee members
present were John C. Allen, Dr. Ralph H. Lee, Amy McCormack, Dr. Dietra D. Millard, and
Sharon Patchak-Layman. Also present were Dr. Steven T. Isoye, Superintendent; Michael
Carioscio, Chief Information Officer; Philip M. Prale, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum
and Instruction; Nathaniel L. Rouse, Principal; Lauren M. Smith, Director of Human Resources;
Cheryl L. Witham, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer; and Gail Kalmerton, Executive
Assistant/Clerk of the Board.

Visitors included Kay Foran, Community Relations and Communications Coordinator;
James Paul Hunter. FSEC Chair.

Advisory Leadership Team (ALT)

Relative to the DLT’s recommendation for the composition and the format of the ALT, Ms.
Patchak-Layman felt the process should be open (the meetings announced or posted and
minutes kept) and that it was important for not only the staff but the students as well to hear
the conversation. She asked what was it that they did not want the people to hear.

Discussion ensued about FAC’s unanimous opinion for transparence and has built in
safeguards for that to occur but it also felt that the best communication would occur in the
meetings were not open to the public. In the past when visitors have attended, some of the
committee members were uncomfortable. The Committee was also open to hearing from
others about “best practice.” The stakeholders have a different responsibility than the
Board of Education does.

Dr. Millard favored complete transparency, understood the committee’s recommendation
and wanted to provide the best opportunity for a most complete conversation. Ms.
McCormack concurred with not stifling the conversation and felt there were many checks
and balances in the model and that the conversation would be open at the Board of
Education table. Ms. Patchak-Layman stated that if it is known that the meeting is open,
then it is a known factor and suggestions can be made with that knowledge. If format is
approved as presented, it was not conducive to her understanding of the Open Meetings Act
{OMA) which says that any groups that provide advice to the Board of Education and its
documents are open to the public and the FAC model would have to be amended as it had
been approved by the Board of Education.

Dr. Lee questioned the assumptions: 1) elected officials do not and should not have the
responsibility of saying whatever; when they do so, they must accept the consequences of
having done so; 2) employees making recommendations to the Board of Education having
to do with the welfare of the district should be able to say whatever they want to say without

1



fear of the consequences, unlike Board of Education members, He beheved that anyone
wanting to influence the welfare of the District should have the opportunity to say whatever
is in the best interest of the district, and take responsibility for saying it. Having been a
teacher, he understood that some teachers fear repercussions about what is said in a Board of
Education meeting. He had done so and he had accepted the responsibility. He supported
an open process and he hoped that the committee members had the courage of those
convictions and that there were safeguards so that they do not have to suffer the
consequences.

Mr. Allen noted that the proposed format was not covered by the OMA and, thus, it legally
did not have to follow those rules. He wanted everyone to have open and free conversations
and that the model did provide transparency. This body only makes suggestions in an open
forum. He supported the proposal as presented.

This will be presented at the regular Board of Education in January for approval.

Adjournment
The Finance Committee adjourned at 12:19 a.m.



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenne o Oak Park, I1. 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education
FROM: Cheryl L. Witham
DATE: February 15, 2011
RE: Architect Contract
BACKGROUND

We have incorporated Ms. Patchak-Layman’s request to add language to section 3.2.5.1. We have
carefully reviewed Mr. Allen’s request to insure diversity in the labor contracts and have added
language to the Construction Contract.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Attorney Ken Florey will be available to explain the contracts and to answer questions.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

To approve the Architect Contract at the regular Board of Education meeting.

TEL: (708) 383-4700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708; 524-5500 FAX: (708} 434-3910



ATA Document B101™ - 2007

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect

AGREEMENT made as of the day of in the year .
(o words, indicare day, monrh and vear)

BETWEEN the Architect’s client identified as the Owner
(Name, address and other information)

and the Architect:
(Name, address and other information)

for the following Project
(Name, locarion and deiailed description)

204 ReneiatoaBlanker Aweement for off work directed by Owner ang g5 more
spesifically deseribed perprojeit on ALA 8502 - 2007,

The Cwnaer and Architect agree as follows.

ADDITIORS AND DELETIONS:
The auther of this document

. has added information

neesded for iis completion.
The author mey also have
revised the text of the
original AR andard form,
Bn Additions end Deleticns
Report that notes added
irfeormstion az well as
revisions to the standard
form texit ls zvailable from
the auther and should be
reviewsd.

This document has important
legal consequences.
Conguliation with an
attorney is engouraged with
fespect -te its conpletion
or modification.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any

portien of this RIA® Document

to ancther electronic Tile is

prohibited and constitutas s
viciation of copyright iaws

as set forth in the footer of

this documant.

®In Document BIOI™ - ZODY {formerly Bi5S1™ — 1987), Copyright @ 1874, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Archirects.
All rights reserved, WABNING: This AIR® Decumeni is protectesd by V.5. Copyright Las and International Treaties, Unauthoxined reproducnion
or diptribution of this AIA’ Dacwesnt, or any portion of it, mey result in severa eivil and criminal pemalties, and wil) be prosecuted to
the wazimin extent possible under tha law. This draft wos produced by AIN software at 14:18:51 on 01/19/2008 under Order Ho.l0803147%4_1

whick expizes on B/17/200%, and i= not for resele.
User Notes:

13386500201

1



TABLE OF ARTICLES

4 INITIAL INFORMATION

2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT’S BASIC SERVICES
4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

6 COST OF THE WORK

¥ COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

g TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

10 MISCELLANEOQUS PROVISIONS

k! COMPENSATION

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
i3 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT
EXHIBIT A INITIAL INFORMATION

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION

§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Article 1 and in ep# approved
Amendment example Exhibit A, Initial Information:

(Complete Exhibit 4, Initial Information, and incorporate it into the Agreement at Section 13.2, or state below
Initial Information such as deiails of the Project s site arnd program, Owner 's contractors and consultanis.
Architect’s consuliants, Owner's budgel jor the Cost of the Work. authorized representatives, anticipated
pracurement method, and other information relevant fo the Project }

§ 1.2 The Owner’s anticipated dates for commencement of construction and Substantial Compietion of the Work are

set forth below:
A Commencement of construction date;

Ais setoul in Ovoiers RED, or apnroved AmendmentTBE

2 Substantial Completion date:

A5 get ot in Cwner’s BPO. oraperoved AmendmentEBb

§ 1.3 The Qwner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that such
information may materially change and, (n that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the
schedule, the Architect’s services and the Architect’s compensation.

§ 4.4 The {rwner is encaging a Construction Manaper in an “at usk”™ capacity, All references in this Agrecment to
“Copractor” shall alse mean “Construstion Manager.”

ATR Docwment BLOI™ ~ 2007 {formerly B151™ - 1997} . Copyright @ 1874, 1978, 1987, 1957 and 2007 by The jwmerican IYnstitute of Architests.

ALL wights resexved. WARNING: This RIA® Doowment s protected by U.3¥. Copyright Law and Internatienal Pre ‘rias. Unauthorised raproductisn

or Aisbributien of this ATR' Docmment, or any portien of ii, may reswit in severa civil and oriminal psnaltiaes, and will ba prosecutad to 2
the masimmm ewtent possible uvnder the law, This draft was produced by ATA softwere at 14:16:51 an C1/18/2008 under ©rder No. 105603:47%4 1

which expires on 8/17/2008, and is not for resale. -

User Noten:

{1339690072G)



ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement.

§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform s services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by
architects practicing in the same or simitar locality under the same or similar circumstances_performing architectoral
services for school districts. The Architect shall perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such
professional skill and care and the orderly progress of the Project. No other provision of this Agreement {or any

document ingorporated herein, or of any document binding upon the parties) shall be effective 1o the extent that it

abridges or abrogates the standard of care set forth in this Section, regardless of the apparent specificity of the
modifving provision,

2.2 The Architect shall engage sub-consultants for portions of the Services as deemed necessary by the
Architect, All services, whether performed by the Architeet directly, or by sub-consultanis shall be performed with

the same standard of care provided in Section 2.2 of this Agreement.

2.2.2 The Architect shall perform sl Services in accordance with the professional standard of care relative to all

applicable federal and state laws, as well as rules, regulations and specifications adopted by the Nllinois State Board
of Education, the Hinois Department of Public Health, and any other agency with authority over the construgtion or

rehabilitation of schopl facilities,

§ 2.3 Prior o cominencement of services hereunder, the The-Architect shall identify a raprescn:tativc authorized o
act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the Project._. :

§ 2.4 Ixcept with the Owner’s knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect’s professional
Judgment with respect to this Project.

§2. 5 The Architect shall maintain the foEEowmg imsurance fnr the duratlon of this Agrcement %ﬁﬂy@ﬁhe

(ldentify tvpes and limils of insurance coverage, and other insurarce requirements app.’f‘cable" fo the Agreement, iff

any.)}
A General Liability

See atached Certificate of lusurance, EXHIBIT B

2 Automobite Liability
Sec pitached Certificate of Misurance, EXHIBITE =~ —
3 Workers’ Compensation

See attached Certificate of surance. EXHIBITE.

4 Professional Liability

See attached Certificaie of hrsurance. EXHIBIT G~

2.5.1 Additional Insurance requirements are found in Anticle 10 of this Agreement,

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES
§ 3.1 The Architect’s Basic Services consist of those deseribed in Article 3 and include usual and customary

structural, mechanical, and-clectrical engineering, and other services necessary for the complete desien of, and
preparation of construction documents for. the Project. Services rot set forth in Article 3 are Additional Services

§3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect’s services, consult with the Owner, research applicable design
criteria, attend Project meetings, cormnunicate with members of the Project team and report progress to the Ovwner.

AIA Document BIO1™ - 2007 {formarly BISI™ - 1997). Copyright ®© 187¢, 1978, 1827, 1587 and 2007 by The Amezican Institute of archirecis.
Bil rights reserved. WRMGEING: This AYAY Dociment is proteched by U.8. ccnymghc 1 and fneernavienal Preaties. Upswihowized reproduction

px distribuetion of this ATRY Dewument, or any portion of it, may resull in severe civil and eriminel panaltisa, snd will be prosceuted to 3
the manim=s aXtent peesible vhder the law. This draft was produced by AYA software at 14:16:53 an GL/1B/208§ under Order No.l0CO0034754 X

which expires on 8/17/2008, and is not for resale. -

User Notss: 11338650024)



§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner’s
consultants, if any The Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and
information furnished by the Owner and the Qwner’s consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice
to the Owner Jf the Architect. in the exercise of the applicable standard of care., should xeasonably have become
aware iftheArchitest-besames awareof any error, omission or inconsistency m such services or information.

§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable afier the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner’s approval a
schedule for the performance of the Architect’s services. The schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the
commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion and Final Completion of the Work as sef forth in the
Initial Information. The schedule shall include aliowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s review, for
the performance of the Owner’s consultants (if apy), and for approval of submissiens by authorities having
jurisdiction over the Project. Once approved by the Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except
for reasonable cause, be exceeded by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner’s approval, the Architect shall adjust
the schedule, if necessary as the Project proceeds until the commencement of construction.

§3.1.4 The Architect shalf not be responsible for an Owner’s directive or substitution made withmﬁ the Architect’s
approval,

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall, at appropriate times, contact the governmental authorities required to approve the
Construction Documents and the entities providing utihity services to the Project. In designing the Project, the
Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements imposed by such governmental authorities and by such
entities providing utility services._Architect shall prepare the Construction Documents m compliance with all
applicable building codes. as well as all federal. state, and local laws. As necessary. Architect shall review each

agreement between utility companies and the Qwner to confirm that the proposed utility service capacity,
cquipment. entrance location{(s) and routing path has been provided to meet the reguizements of the project desigm,

§ 3.1.7 Upon becoming aware of anv error or omission i the Construction Documents (whether during the bidding «- - - { Fermatted: Normal

ghase or_construction 1ase) Architect shall prompily perfomm the necessary professional service to issue an

.10 correct or clarify errors, emissions, or ambisuifies, Such $ervice

shal] be performed by Archltect withoul additional compensation. unless the error or omission way not the fault of
the Architect or thetr Consultants. '

§ 3.1.8 If Architect kev personnel are identified in Architect’s proposal. such personzel shall not be removed o1
replaced for services performed for the Project without Owner’s prior express written Consent.

§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner’s responsibility for filing documents
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, i any, and shall
review laws, codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect’s services,

§3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule, budget for the Cost
of the Work, Project site, and the proposed procurement or delivery method and other Initial Information, ifany.
cach in terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Praject. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1)
any inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2} other information or consulting services that may be
reasonably needed for the Project.

§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner
alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project, including the feasibility of incorporating
environmentally responsible design approaches. The Architect shall reach an vnderstanding with the Owner
regarding the requirements of the Project.

§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project’s requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present for
the Owner’s approval a preliminary design {lustrating the scale and relationship of the Praject components.

§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner’s approval of the preliminary design and comments therenpon, the Architect shall
prepare Schematic Design Documents for the Owner’s approval, The Schematic Desigin Documents shall consist of

ATR Document BLOI™ - 2807 [fommerly BLSI™ - 1997) . Copyzight ®© 1§74, 1378, IS87, 1997 and 2807 by The American Institute of Rrchizects.
A1l rights resarved. WARNING: This AFE® Dogwn'at it pretested by U.S. Copyright Law and International fxeaties. Unautherized zopreductien
on distzibution of this AIR" Documant, or any poxtion of it, may result in severa ocivwil and srimikal penalties, and will bs prosecuted te
the marimmn sxtent possible under the law. This draft wss producsd by AIA :oftware 2t 14:18:5% on 0:/18/Z0HF Under Order No.1000D33478g )
uhich expires on B/31/20508, and ir net for ressle. -
Tsar Notas:

{1333450020)



drawings and other documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and
elevations; and may include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital modeling.
Prefiminary selections of major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or

described m writing,

cho;ces and bmidmg orleniaflon, togelher with nther cons:derailons based on pragmm and dLSlhE}tIC& in davelopmg
a design that js consisten{ with the Cwner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may
obiain other environmentally responsible design services under Article 4

§3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, logether
with other censiderations based on program and aesthetics in developing a design for the Project that is consistent
with the Owner’s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work,

§ 3.2.8 The Architect shall submit to the QOwner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with
Section 6.3,

§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents fo the Owner, and request the Owner’s

approval, The Owner may approve the Schematic Design Documents subject to comments, The Architéct shall

consider and evaluate the comments for incorporation into subsequent portions of the of the Services hereunder.

§ 3.3 DESIGN BEVELOPMENT PHASE SERVICES

§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner's approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner’s wntten
authorization of any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Waerk, the Architect
shati prepare Design Development Documents for the Owner’s approval. The Design Development Documents shal
ilustrate and describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documients and shall consist of drawings
and other documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of
building systems to fix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical
and electrical systems, and such other elements as may be appropriate. The Design Development Documents shall
aiso include owlfine spectfications that identify major materials and systems and establish in general their quality
levels.

§ 3.3.2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.3.3 The Architect shall subwm it the Design Development documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any
adjustinents to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner’s approval. The Owner may approve the

Design Development Documents subject to comzments. The Architect shall consider and evaluate the Gomments for
incerporation inte subseguent portions of the Services hereunder,

§ 3.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES

§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner’s approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner’s wntten
authorization of any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect
shall prepare Construction Documents for the Owner’s approval, The Construction Docunients shall iHlustrate and
describe the further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings
and Specifications setting forth in defail the quality levels of materials and systems and other requirements for the
construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct the Work the Contractor
will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals,
which the Architect shall review 1n accordance with Section 3.6.4 .

§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate o the Construction Documents the design rcqu;remema of govemmental
suthoritics having jurisdiction over the Project. :

§3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the
development and preparation of (1} bidding and procurement information that describes the time, place and
conditions of bidding, meluding bidding or proposal forms, (2) the form of agreement between the Owner and
Contractor; and {3) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions}.
The Architect shall also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and
Specifications and may include bidding requirements and samnple forms.

RIA Document BLDI™ -« 2007 {formerly KISI™ - 1997). Copyright & 1974, X878, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institube of Architecrs.
ALY rights reserved. WRANING: Thiz RIAK” 5 by U.5. C hi Law ané Internationsl Preatics. Unsuthorized reproduction
or @istribution af this AYR" Document, or any portien of it, muy result im severe civil and criwminzl penalbics, and will be prosmcuted to
the mawimem mxtent poszible under the lmw. This draft was produced by ATR softwsre at 1473:6:51 on 21/1B/2008 under Order No 1000314799 1
whieh expires on £/17/2008, snd is not for resale. .
User Hotes:

113386500240)



§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work.

§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Qwner, advise the Owner of any adjustments
1o the cstimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner’s

approval.

§ 3.5 BIDDING OR NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES

§3.5.1 GENERAL

The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner’s
approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive
bids or negotiated proposals, (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid
or proposal, if any; and, {4} awarding and preparing contracts for consiruction.

§ 3.5.2 The Architect shall submit o Owner’s atlorneys for review and approval all agreements and conditions
prepared for publication to bidders prior te publication and advertisement for bids.

§ 3.5.2 COMPETITIVE BIDDING
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents.

§3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by

g procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to pmspectl\ic bidders,

2 distributing the Bidding Documents 1o prospective bidders, requesting their retum upon completion
of the bidding process, and maintaining a log of distribution and retrieval and of the amouats of
deposits, if any, received from and returned to prospective bidders;
organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders;
preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and
interpretations of the Bidding Documents to alf prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and
5 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequent!y documenting and distributing

the bidding results, as directed by the Gwner,

SR

§ 3.5.2.3 The Architect shali consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitations to all prospective bidders,

§3.5.3 NEGOTIATED PROPOSALS

§3.5.3.1 1t is anticipated that a¥f construction work shall be publicly bid. Where public bidding is nof required,
Architect shalf assist with nggotiated proposals. Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal reéquirements and
proposed Contract Documents.

§3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owaner in cbtaining proposals by
A procuring the reproduction of Propesal Documents for distribution (0 prospective contractors, and
requesting their return apon completion of the negotiation process,
2 organizing and parficipaling in selection interviews with prospective contracters; and
3 participating iy negetiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary
report of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner.

§3.5.3.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, and
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved substitutions to all prospective contractors,

§ 3.6 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

§3.6.1 GENERAL
§ 3.6.11 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and thc Contractor as set

forth below and in AlA Document A201™--2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction as amended.
If the Owner and Contractor modify AIA Document A201-2007 subsequent to coniract award, those modifications
shall not affect the Architect’s services under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this

Agreement.

RiR Document B1018 - 2007 (formeriy BiSI™ - 1997). Copyright @ 1874, X978, 1987, 19937 and 2087 Ly The Rmerican Iustitute of RArchitects.

AL rights reserved. WARNING: This AIE® Degument is protectsd hy U.S. Copyright Law and intexpationsl Treaties. Unauthexized zeproduction

or distribution of this ATA® Dooument, ox any pertion of it, way resule in severe civil and cximinsl penalties, and will be presecuiad Lo &
tha paximen axtent possible under the daw. This ¢raft was produced by IR scitware ab 14:16;51 on 01/:8/2008 under Order No. 1000134754 1

which expires on §/17/2068, and is nou for resele.

trex Hotes: (E3386R0020)



§3.8.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The
Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques,
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in cennection with the Work, nor shall the
Architect be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the
Contract Documenis. The Architect shall be responsibie for the Architect’s negligent acts or omissions, bui shall not
have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other
persons or entities performing portions of the Work

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.3, the Architect’s responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences
wilh the award of the Contract for Construction and ferminates on the date the Architect issues the final Certificate

for Payment.

§ 3.6,1.4 The Architect shall promptly make corrections to the Construction Documents. atno cost to the Owner, if

any errors, omissions, or ambiguities are discovered during the Construction Phase, unless theierror or omission was

not the fault of the Architect or their Consullants.

§3.8.1.3 The Architect shall conduct propress periodic review and payment review meetings which shall inciude the

Owner, the Architect. and appropriate prime confragiors, The Architeet shall record the meetings in writien meeting
minutes, which shall be distributed for review no more than two davs following each meeting. Commenis on the
published meeting minutes shall be discussed as part of the following propress review and pavment meeting: Fach
progress review and Davment mee{mg qhaii cover, ata mlmmum DIQSIEss, NEW and old busme,ss and quality

schedu i S P

s
ol

§3.6.2 EVALUATIONS OF THE WORK

§3.6.2.1 The Architect, and its sub-consultants, shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of
construction, or as otherwise required in Section 4.3.3, o become generally familiar with the progress and quality of
the portion of the Work completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in &
manner indicating that the Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents.
However, the Architect shall not be required to make exhaustive or.continuous on-sife inspectionts to check the
quality or quantity of the Work. On the basis of the sile visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner.reasonably
informed about the progress and quality of the portien of the Work completed, and report to the Ouner (1) knewn
deviations from the Contract Documents and from the most recent gpproyed construction schedule-submitted-by-the
Centracter, and (2) defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. )

§3.6.2.1.1 On the basis of Architect’s on-site consiruction observation, the Archifect shall endeavor to keep the
Owner informed of the progress and guality of the Work, and shall endeavor to guard the Odmer agamst defects and
deficiencies in the Work, The Architect shail promptly notify the Owner of any defeets or.deficiencies in the. Worlk.

ghserved by the Archifect. The Architect shall submit g field repost to the Owner for each week of site visits orfor

each site visit. whichever the Architect deems appropriate, and shall submit a copy to the Contractor.

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority and responsibility to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract
Documents, Whenever the Architect considers it nccessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to
require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or
not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision
made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise o0 a duty or responsibility of the
Architeci to the Coniractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees or other
persons or entities performing portions of the Work

§3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documenis on writien request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
shall be made in writing within any time Hmits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promplness 50 85 NoL Lo
delay the progress of construction.

§3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architeet shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings, When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect shall endeaver to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Centractor, shall not

BAIA Document BlOI™ ~ 2007 {formerly BLSI™ - 1887} . Copyright & 1974, 1978, 1987, 1887 ond 2007 by The American Instirute of Architects.
1l rights reserved. WREMERG: This AIA® Docwment is protectad by ¥.S. Copyright L& and Intarsationa) Freatios. Unautherized reproducticn

or distribution of this AIM" Document, or amy portion of it, may rmsult in mevera civil and eximinsl penaltics, and will be prosecuted to 7
the maximum cxtont possible under the law. This draft wes produced by RIA software at 14:36:51 on 03/18/72008 under Order No.100031€784 1

which espires on §/17/2008, and is mol for resale.

User Motes: (1338800020)



show partiality {o either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The
Architect’s decisions on matters relating 1o aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the
Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the OGwner and Centractor designate another persen to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, ag that
term is defined in AlA Document AZ01-2007, the Architect shall render intial decisions on Claims between-by the
Owaerand Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR

§3.6.3.9 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue ceriificates m such
amounts. The Architect’s certification for payment shall constitute a representation fo the Owner, based on the
Architeet’s evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor’s
Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, imformation and beiief, the Work has
progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of the Work s in accordance with the Contract Documents, and
that the Contractor is entitled to the amount sought in the application for payment. The foregoing representations are
subject (1) to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial
Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) to correction of minor deviations from the
Contract Documents prior to completion, and (4) to specific gualifications expressed by the Aschitect.

to commencing its Work, The schedule of values, among other thines. shall be used by the Archstect as . basis for

evaluating the applications for payment.

83 6.3.1.2 The Architect shall determine whether Contractor’s contraciual prereguisites to payment have been

satisfied for each Application for Pavment, such as submission of Certified Payrolls. submission of Schedule of
Values and submission of Lien Waivers propesly executed by Subcontractors, amoeng other things.

§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made
exhaustive or contiituous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2} reviewed constiuction
means, methods, technigues, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from
Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to
payment, of (4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of
the Confract Sum.

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Cerlificates for Payment.

§ 3.6.4 SUBMITTALS

§3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Coniractor’s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or withhold
approval. The Architect’s action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the approved subsittal
schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptaess while allowing sufficient
time in the Architect’s professional fudgment to permit adequate review

§3.6.4.2 In accordance with the Architect-approved submittal schedule, the Architeet shall review and approve or
take other appropriate action upon the Contractor™s submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data-and Samples,
but only for the Himited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept
expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals 1s not for the purpose of determining the accuracy
and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and instailation or performance of equipment
or systems, which are the Contracior’s responsibility. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety
precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods,
techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not mdlcate approval of an
assembly of which the item 15 a component.

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Coniractor to provide professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architect shall specify the
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisly. The Architect shall review shop
drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design proféssional retained by the
Contractor that bear such professional’s seal and signature when submitted to the Architeet. The Architect shall be

RIR Document B101™ - 2007 {formerly B15I™ - 1997} . Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1387, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.

ALl righte reserved. EARNEING: Thiz RIR" Pocumsnt is protocted by U.5. Copyzight Lov and Intereational ¥roatiss. Nerined Lon

or gistribution of this ATA" Dogumest, or any portion of it, may reselt in sevexs oivwil and eriminal penslties, znd will he prosesuted te a
the maningn extont possible under the law. This draft was preduced by AIN software at i4:18:51 on Bl/18/2008 uuder Oxder Ko.l0OD3147V04 %

which expires en §/17/2006, and j3 not fo; reszle.
User Nates:

(1338650020}



entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals
performed or provided by such design professionals.

§3.6.4.4 Subject to the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information
about the Contract Documents. The Architect shall set forth in the Contract Documents the requirements for requests
for information. Requests for information shall include, at & minimum, a detailed written statement that indicales the
specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The
Architect’s response to such requests shall be made in writing within any fime limits agreed upon, or otherwise with
reasonable prompiness_in compliance with the Contractors reasonable requested amount of review time for the
Architects response. . If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings andd Specifications
In respense to reguests for information.

§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall mamtain a record of submittals and copies of submittals suppiied by the Contractor_and
the Architect’s responses thereto. i accordance with the requirements of the Contract Rocuments._The Architect

shall also maintain a record of requests for information and responses thereto. and comes of the same.

§ 3.6.5 CHAKGES IN THE WORK

§3.6.5.1 The Architect may authorize minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intenf of the Contract
Documents and do not involve an adjustment 1 the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to
the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Divectives for the
Owner’s approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative {o changes in the Work.

§3.6.6 PROJECT COMPLETION

§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall conduct mspections to determine the date or datcs of Substantial Completion and the
date of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion; receive from the Contractor, review for
comnkiance with the Coniract Documents, and forward to the Owner, for the Ovwner’s review and records, writlen
warranties and related documents reguired by the Contract Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and issue a
final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection indicating the Work complies with the requirements of
the Contract Documents,However, nothing in this paragraph shall obligate the Architect to make legal :
determinations regarding the adequacy of language or signatures in the documents provided,

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect’s inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the
requuements of the Contract f)ﬂc:u'mmm and to venfy the accumcy and Lompldemss of the ;;meh hist-list created

after Substantial Completion.s
§ 3.6.6.3 When the Work s found 1o be substantially complete, the Architect shall inform the Owner ebout the

balance of the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, inclnding the amount to be refained from the
Contract Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work.

§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Gwner the following information received from the Contractor: (1)
censent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partiat release of retainage or the making of final paviment; (2)
affidavits, receipts, releases and warvers of liens or bonds indemnifving the Owner against liens; and (3) any ‘other
documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents.

§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prier to the expiration: of one year from the date of Substantial Completion,
the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility
operations and performance.

§3.6.6.6 The Architect shall periodically review the Contractor’s marked up as-built drawings io determing whet fer
the Comracmr is_recorgding mmrmahon as regmred ) ih@ Contract Documents. Be#‘e. .

shail require the Ccmtractor 1o transfer the a&bm t drawines to the Guner.

RIR Document BIOY™ - 2007 (farmerly BLSY™ - 1957} . Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Instituta of Architects.

All xights resorved. WARNING: This AVA® Document iy profncted by U.S. Copyright Law and Intarnntiomal Sreaties. Unautherized xeproduction

ox distribution of this ATE" Documsnt, or any portien of L€, may rnoult in severs eivil ond criminel pensltiss, and will be prossevted ta 9
the mmrimum axbent possible undes: the law. This draft was produced by AIA seftware at 15:16:51 on Di/18/200F under Order No.lO0D314794 3

which expires on 8/17/2605, and if not for resals. -

Yser Motes: {1IBEEHOGE0L



ARTICLE 4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Fow B e e o Tt Ted s o A et a2 o B 3. fq—r"‘; g oy o eom. snzacnd A DT N 1 T
Sedeitionnt-Gex isted-led re-pab-nehded-ir se-Servisesr-bulbanay-be-voges r-ifve-Prodest-Th
2 e il A} A By ‘ 3 T i} " 1,
Arehitoct-shali-provide-the-listed-Hddl dinvhe-tablebelovrasi
L 5 LI, R SN Jo ioto A i & : et
- snd-the-Ey provided-inr-Seetion-42
p—— . 4 g o ! M s o - - 2. e 4. i e of
Eerriearthe Arehiiectalall provide--the wrivzia-ai-Haa-toble-Belorefn-the-third
i fyncl it demadsnn tEn o comsend Frnidage it dened g Bt T Fr R s ik : Laiai
eotunmitdioatewwhotherth edeseription-ir-toeated-fr-Sectign-dedopri-an-aitached-exfibit-inanexhibit
B tozs oy Y I e T S R oY)
threhitectOn Senfion—hl-heloror e

Monp-Prohdodt webpsriified-bodepd

M&Mw%w“@eﬁﬂwm@m -

§diInser-e-deseription-of-eack-Addits & - eet-sresponsiibite-Haet
%ﬁ{i&f’—éﬁs&r"‘ s 3 shalasd osen alaad adua0 A 12t
ihed-in-an-exhibit-attached-to-tis

§ 4.% The Owner may from time 1o tme. without invalidating this Asreerment. direct changes inn the Architect’s

Services, The changes may include additions. deletions, or modifications to the Architect’s Sesvices, Upon receipt
of & Birection for Chanpe in Services, the Architect shall proceed promptly to enact the Change in Services.

Concurrendlv, the Qwner and Architect shall agree on an eouitable adivsément in the Architect’s Basis of Payment.

ATR Document BIOI™ - 2007 (formerly BISI™ - 1§97} . Copyright © 1974, 1878, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The Awmeriean Ipstiture of Anchitects.
VBRBING: This AIR® Document is protected by U.8. Copyright Law and Isternanticnal Treaties. Unouthorized xeproduction
Boewment, or any portion of it, muy resnli in Fevers civil and cximinal penslties, and will be prosesuted Lo
This draft wes produted by ATA software at 14:16:5) on 01/18/2005 under Crder Re, 1000314754 1

Rl rights reserved.
or distzibution of this AIA"
the meximm axtent poszible under the law.
which expires on &/17/2008, and iz nol for rezale.

taex Wotes: 113380656020)

10



§4.2 If the Owner issues any direction to the Archilect which the Architect deems to be a Direction for Change to

this Agreement warranting amendment to the Architect’s basis of payment on contract price, as the case may be, the
Architect shai! promptly notify the Cwner,

§ 4.3 Additional Services may be reguested by the Owner previded-after execution of #his Agreement, without
invalidating the Agreement. Except for services required due to the faull of the Architect, aity Additional Services
provided in accordance with this Section 4.3 shali entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and
an appropriate adjustment in the Architect’s schedule, ' :

§ 4.3.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the-fellovdng-Additional Services, the Architect shall nolify the Owner
with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumsiances giving rise o the need. The Architect shall not
proceed to provide the-fellewing- any amended services until the Architect receives the Owner’s written
authorizations

RIR Pocument BLOE™ - 2007 (formexly BISI™ - 1987}, Copyright © 1874, 1978, 1587, 1897 and 2007 by The Amezican Inpstitute of Richitects.
All rights reserved. UWARHING: This AIA" Document is protected by U.8. Copyright Law and Internaticonzl Tronties. Unavthorized reprodwction

op distribution of his ATAT Dagumant, ox aay poution of it, way cesull in smvare civil and criminsl ponolfias, sed will ha proseeunced to 11
the resisgm ertent pessikle under the lew. This drsft wes produced by AIA seftwaze at 14:36:55 on G1/18/2008 under Order o 1000213784 %

es en B/17/2008, snd is met for resale.

which expir

Usex Wotes! (13386900201



e s b
S PrODEEaT

§4.3.2 To aveid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services,
notify the Owner with reasonable promiptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. 1f the
Owner subseguently determines that all or parts af those services are not required, the Owner shall give prompt
written notice to the Architect, and the Owner shall have no further obligation to compensate the Architect for those
SErVICES:
A4 Reviewing a Contractor’s submittal out of sequence from the submittal SchLduIc agreed to by the
Arc%}:tecl

4 E,valualmg an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Dec;smn Maker or

5 EBvaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner ex-Centrastorand making subsequent revisions to
Instruments of Service resulting therefrom; or

B Tothe extent the Architect’s Basic Services are affected, providing Construction Phase Services 60
days after (1) the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or (2) the anticipated date of
Substantial Completion identified in Initial Information, whichever is earlier,

§ 4.3.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additionai
Services, When the Himits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner:
A Twa (2 3reviewsof cach Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of
the Coniradm
2 Twdve (]2 )vis
over the dufdll(}}‘i of the Project durmg consirucuon
3 Thres (3 ) inspections for any portion: of the Work to determine whether such portion of the
Work is substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents
A Fhree (3 }inspections for any pomon of the Work to determine finai completion

ropriate Architect’s Consuliants

srovide all site visits and inspections necessitated to resolve errors or conflicts in the

) Architect shall

Architect’s and Architect’s Consultants Construction Documents, as part.of Basic Serviceg and in
addition to the amounts identified in4.3.3.1, .2, 3. and 4.

§4.3.4 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within ime conrermplated Section 1.2,

Loy ments-of-the-date-ofthis-Agreament; through no faull of the Architect, extension of the Architect’s services

beyond that time shall be compensated as Additional Services

ARTICLE 5 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under dus Agreement, the Owner shall,_in consultation with the Architect,
provide information in a timely manner regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a
written program which shall set forth the Owner’s objectives, schedule, consiraints and criferia, including space

requirements and rclatronahxps flexibility, expandability, spccwl eqmpmcm systcms and site requ:ruments Wfﬁam
1’,4 e aita E S i1 A-I«.i f. it s £,

SENE-ECE T \,\.LPJL Fgt HieR At—»&u AT FHISET

§ 5.2 The OQwner shall,_in consultation with the Arehitect. establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget for
the Project, including (1) the budget for the Cosl of the Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner’s other costs;
and, (3} reasonable contingencies related to all of these costs. |f the Owner significantly ncreases or decreases the

- { Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman ]

- { Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman

- '[ Formatted: Font; (Default) Times New Roman

’[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman,
{_Not Beld

e e N R —

AIA Document BLOA™ « 2007 (Formerly BIS1™ - 1997} . Cepyright ®© IP7d, 1978, LSE7, 1997 and 2007 by The American Instituze of hrohitects,
ALl rights reserved. URRHING: Thiz RIA® Document is protectsd by U.§. Copyright Law and Intewsational | 'eatizs. Unauthoximed reproduction
or distributien of this ATR® Doctumsnt, or any poertion of it, may result in ssvere civil and eriminal penalties, and will be prosscuted to
the wanimm cetent pessible undar the law. Thiz draft was produced by AIA softkare at 14716:51 on 01/18/2008 under Ovder Wo.L0P0314794 %
which expires on B/1T7/2008, and is not for resaie.

User Hotes: {133E655020)

i2



Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shail notify the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall
thereafter agree in writipg to a corresponding change in the Project’s scope and quality.

§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized (o act on the Owner’s behalf with respect to the Project.
The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect’s submitials in a $imely manner in order fo avoid
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect’s services.

§5.4 At the Architecl’s request. iThe Owner shall furmish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal
limitations and utility locations for the sie of the Project, and a written legal deseription of the site. The surveys and
legal information shal! include, as applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining properly
and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments,
zoming, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect
to existing buildings, other improvements and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines,
both public and private, above and below grade, including inveris and depths. All the information on the survey shall
be referenced {o a Project benchmark.

§ 5.6 The ArchitectOwrer shall coordinate the services of [Jwner'sis-evwmn consultants with those services provided
by the Architect. Upon the Architect’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the
contracts between the Owner and the Owner’s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other
than those designated in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional Service, when
the Architect requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project.
The Owner shall require that its consultants maintain professional Liability insurance as appropriate to the services

provided.

§ 5.7 The Owner shall_upon request of the Architect. fusnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the
Contract Documents, such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests

for hazardous materials

§ 5.8 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and iteresis,

§ 5.8 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect’s Instruments of Service
Fajlure of the Owner to discover such defects, or to so notifv the Architect, shall not relieve the Architecs gfany of
its obligations hereunder. :

§ 5.10 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or when direct communications have been specially
authorized, the Owner shaif endeavor to communicate with the Contractor and the Architect”s consultants through
the Architect about matters arising out of or relating fo the Contract Documents. The Owner shali promptly notify
the Architect of any direct commurications that may affect the Architect’s services.

§ 5.11 Before executing the Contract for Construction, the Architect@remer shall coordinate the Architect’s duties
and responsibilities set forth i the Contract for Construction with the Architect’s services set Torth in this
Agreement. The Gwner shall provide the Architect a copy of the exccuied sgreement between the Ovwner and
Contractor, including the General Condttions of the Contract for Construction,

§ 5.12 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall
obligate the Contractor (o provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it Is in preparation or progress.

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK

§ 6.1 For purposes of thig Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct aff
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall inchide contractors’ general conditions costs,
overbead and profit. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the Architect, the costs of the land,

AIR Doewment B101™ - 2067 (formerly BLSI®™ - 1897} . Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Rrchitacts.
ALL rights reserved. VRRNING: THiz AYW Document is protacted by U.S. Copyright Daw and Interaatiens] Teeatios. Unanthorized wspr. fwotien

ox distribution of this MIA" Dosument, or any portien of {t, mmy roswht i severm civilk and criminal penaltiss, and will be prosecuted te L3
the mmcimen axtent porsible undar tha luw. This drafc was produced by RIA software &t 14:16:51 on G1/1B/2008 undsr Order Mo, 1000314784 1

which expires on B/LT/206B, and is not for resala. -

User Notes:

11338E20020)



rights-of-way, financing, contingencies for changes in the Work or other costs that are the responsibiiity of the
Crwmer.

§6.2 The Cwner's budget for the Cost of the Work wiil be established in cach approved Amendment jssucdis
providedin-TnitieHnformation, and may be adjusted throughout the Project as required under Sections 5. 2-6-4-and
&5 Evaluations of the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work
and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared by the Architect, represent the Architect’s judgment as a
design professional. It s recognized, however, that neither the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of
labor, materials or equipment; the Contractor’s methods of determinng bid prices; ot competitive bidding, market or
negotiating conditions, Accordmgly, the Architect cannot and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated
prices will not vary from the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work
or evaluation prepared or agreed to by the Architects, except as provided elsewhere in the Article,

§6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Construction ManagerAwehitest shall be permitted o include
contingencies for design, bidding and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems
and types of construction are to be included in the Contract Documents, to make reasonable adjustments in the
program and scope of the Project; and to include in the Contract Documents alternate bids as may be necessary to
adjust the estimated Cost of the Work to meet the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work. The Construction
Manager’sArehitectis estimate of the Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or similar conceptual
estimating technigues. #&M%&w%%w%@%&@@%mﬁmw&%%ﬁ%ﬁ@%%%
servicesub-an-tdditionsi-ServceunderAriieted-

& 641 the- mm%%m%&mmwmmﬁ%@wmwmwm

Censtruchon Deonmrents-te-the- 03 et ners-hudvetforthe-Cost-ofthe
Werk-shall-bo adiusted-terefleet chongesin the-penernklovelof prices-in-the-sppliceblo-construetion-market

£6:5 Woteny-time the-Architect’s estimate-ofthe-Cost-of the-Werlcexeseds-the Dvmer s budget for the Cost-ofth
S pele—the-derehiteet MM%W&W&M%&@WM}EM&%&& ﬁ%ﬁs&;ﬁ-aﬂéw

budget-forthe-Costotthe Wadiand the Quwner shalk-cosperaie-with-the-Aschiteet-in-mualing-sueh-adiusimenty;
fo s il Tl Ta 40 £ 11 3ok H-, ] o) . Y ; 2l
S th CREEG forth se-afthe-Worle at-the-conclusion-of the-Consrestion Booumentz-Phos
Farvicas MH@(M&M&WMEW&@FWMWM&MW
spoa Lad. ] 1-« 3 than oo
ai ritter-approvel-ofan-mereage-in-the-t forth af-th
'} § Y ikl
S erminate--eccordenes-with-Section
4 Tz siman sy tho A wold emonas d-. ¢ Lt sk |
A—in-gan rwvith-the-dorchiteetrevise-the-Projoct-program-seope-or-quekit-asregquired-to-reduce
o oot A shn RETncl: e
the-Cestafi i

B ipplement-nay-othermubusliy-acceptable-aliernative:

55T 1 the Ouenerchosses-to-proceed-under-Section-6:6-4- the Architestwithoutadditionat-eommpensations shall
medify-the Construstion-Dosuments-as-necessery-te-somphvdtir the-Bvmer’s- budget-forthe-Cast-of the Werleat the
conclusen-afthe-Construciton DocumentsPhase-Sepviees-or the-budgeteg-adjusted-vader-Section-6-6-1-The
Arahiteet’s-medification-of the Construstion Desumenis-shall-be-the-limit of the-Arehiteet sresponstbilit-underthia
Axticle &

ARTICLET COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

§7 1 The Ardmect warrants that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or we gt o the
i 15 the copyright owner of such mformanon or has permission from the Lopyrig!}t owner
(0 transmit such mfc&mmtaori for its use on the Pro;ecl If the - =+t Architect intend ! to transnut Instruments of
Service or anty other information or documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor fo establish necessary
protocols governing such transmissions,

§7.2 %%MWMWMM@MMMMWWW

reonlotome et 2 o abnnilne o i a Sti tha Deoioet s tebes frad abbient
culatorsreguirements-or-forsimiles purposes-in-connechen-with-the- Projectis-notio-bevonstrued-us-pulbl
e sation-eitiereserved-righis-ef the-Architect-and-the-Arehitect s sonsultants:_Provided that the Ovwner is o

AIM Document BIOV® ~ 2007 (fermerly B1SI™ -~ 1897) . Copyright © 1874, 19768, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The hmezican Institute of Architects,
A1l rights geserved. WRENING: This ALL® Dowwwent is protoctsd by .8, Copyright Law and Intemnatiopal Treaties. Unsuthorized repzoducticn
or distribution of this ATR® Docummme, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and eximinal pesslties, and will be prosecuted to
this draft was produced by ATA software at 14:16:51 on 0L/L8/2005 under Order Ne.l0D03349%4 3

14

the moximun extent pessible under the law.
which expites on 8/17/2008, and is not for resale.

Uger Moteas! [233ER00Z20}



in_defaull upder this Apreement. all studies. reporis. drawings. specifications. and other documents, whether in

hardeopy or electronic form, prepared by Architect as part of the Services shell be deemed propertv of Gvner,

- '{Formatted: Font: Not Italic

e

N The architeet shall remove from the electronic versions of the documents the titie block.

Professional seals, Professional stamp and signatures on sl electronic versions of the Construcfion Bocuments
provided to Owner as Owner’s properiy:

2 The Architect shall maintain rishis to use imited images for marketing and promotional purposes,  _ - {Format:eﬁ: Font: Mot Italic

§- KM@W%WWWMWMW hc-aaaﬁewi@&*&ﬂ-%%we
Arehiteer s-instrumentsef Servecseleland

14
ok Ses-of eoRStEHebRE 4 R PG u.m

gma%@w@mmmﬁmmmﬁwm%mmmmmm
Instrumentsof Service-shall-be-at-the-Ovarer’s-sele-risk-end-witheut-Habihiv-te-the-Architeet-and the-Arehitest’s
eonsultants:

ARTICLE B CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
§ 8.1 GENERAL

ATR Document BLOL™ - 2007 (fermerly BiS1% - 1997). Copyright ® 1%74, 3978, 1887, 1999 and 7007 by The American Institute of Archibects.
ALl rights reserved. WARNING: This IR Document is protested by U.5. Copyright Lew and Interpational Prsatics. Unnuthonized reproductisn

or distribution of this AZN Documsat, or any portion of it, may result im severs civil and crimingl ponaities, and will be prosscuted te LD
the paximues extent possible under the law. This draft wes produced by AIR seftware at 14:16:51 on 01/73R/Z006 under Order No 1580324734 1

which expires on B/17/20084, and is aot for resale.

User Botes: (13386390026



§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Archzlect s-‘a—aﬁ-mmg“endeavor to resolve ciaims, disputes and other matters in question
between them by mediation, sdsehuntessthe-parnesnrotuelly-agrec-atherwisershall-be-administered-by-the
WW&WMW%&%&W&—W&%@%MM&%
he-date-oftheApresment—A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the
Agreemcnt and fied with thc ers‘cm or enmy admmistermg tm I116dlatl0i’§ mm%memﬂmﬂgﬁl

§8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location s mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

§83 ARB!TRATlON

mp-dehvered-to-the-otherprty-to-this
f@ftfaﬂeﬂm At the Agreement of the Crvmier and

Archntcclﬁe%e— all claims, dzsoutes and other matiers in guestion between any of the Architect, Owner, Contractor,

Suhcontractor or any material supplier arising out of, or relating to, agreements to which two or more of said parties
are bound, or the Contract Documents or the breach thereof, except with respect o the Architect's decisions on
matters relating to aesthetic effect. shail be decided by arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association then obtaming at the time of filing. as modified herein
unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. In any such arbitration, the arbitrator shall make Separate findings as to
Hiability and the amount of damages with respect to each party to the arbifration 10 the extent anv hability or -
responsibility for damages exists.All parties which have an interest in the dispute shall be joined as parties to the
arbitration. The Architect’s sub-consuliant agreements shall reguire such joinder. The arbitrator shall have
authority ¢ decide all issues between the parties including but not limited to procedural matters. claims for extras,
delay and Howdated damages, matters involving defects in the Work, right 1o payment, whether matiers decided by
the Architect involve aesthetic effect and whether the necessary procedures for arbitration have been followed. The

foregoing agreement (o arbitrate and any other agreement 1o arbitrate with an additional person or persons, duly
consented to by the parties. shall be specifically enforceable under the prevailing arbitration law. - The award
rendered by the arbitrator shall be final, and judement may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in

any couré having jurisdiction thereof

9.3.7 The demand for arbitration shall be made within a reasonable time after the claim, dispute or other mater in
question has arisen. and in no event shall it be made after the date when institution of lecal or eguitable proceedings

based on such claim, dispute or other matier in guestion would be baired by an applicable statute of limifstions.

1887 end 2087 by The Rmerican Instiiuie of Architeets.

AIN Pocument B1OY™ — 2007 {Fermarly BISI™ - 1997}. Copyright @ 1874, 1978, 1987,
tnavthorized reproduceisn

811 rights reserved, WARRMNING: Tiis BZIAY Noocument 1s protectsd by U.S. Copywieght Taw and Yaternational Treaties.
or distribution of this RIR® Docoment, ox any portlon of it, may result in severs civil and criminal pennliies, and will be presecuted to
the meximen extent peasible under the law, This drafr was produced by MIA solftware at J4:15:51 on 01/1B/2008 under Order ¥o. 3000334754 1
which expires on B/17/2008, and is not o resaie.
tlser Notes:

i6

(133806200203



8 8.3,3 Al pariies shall carry on heir respeciive obligations, and perform their duties during any arbairation
proceedings,

thn foi]owmg shail am)lv.

(a) Promptly upon the empaneling of the arbitraior, the arbitvator shall direct all parties to set forth in

writing and to serve upon each other party a detailed statement of its contentions of fact and iaw.

[§:)] Al parties to the arbitration shall be entitted to reasonable discovery procedures o be sstablished
by the arbitrator

{c) The arbitration shall be commenced and conducted as expeditiousty as pessible consistent with

affording reasonable discovery as provided herein, Similarly, the scope of discovery, and the extent of proceedings

hereunder relating to discovery, shall be consistent with the parties' intent that the arbitration be conducted as
expeditiously as possible,

§8,3.5  Inthe event ofany litigation or arbitration between the parties hereunder. 2l reasunable attornevs' fees and
other costs incurred shall be awarded to the prevailing party.

Adirs k) ity ahali-ma fadask dands 10 o an oA oy Fina Azt ad: fodn, % 5
additional-persen-orentity-shetl-not-constitute-consent-to-arbitration-of-any-eletm-dispuie-or-oth :

g - ] " sl A 15, 4 N

& vaeiid-fockiteet grant-lo-ay-Persen-of
MHM@WMWWWMMM

ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 9.1 if the Owner fails (o make payments fo the Architect in accordance with this Agrcczm,nt such failure shall be
considered substantial nenperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect’s option, ‘cause for suspension
of performance of services under this Agreement. 1f the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give
seven days’ written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of
services. Before resuming services, the Architect shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses

RIR Pocument BIGI™ - 2007 (foxmeszly BiS1™ - 1597} . Copyright @ 197¢, 1978, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
Rll rights raserved, WARNING: This AE Doowmont is pretocted hy U.5. Copy t Law and Tsterpational Tresties, Unauthomired roprodustion
or distribution of this #IA" Docwmmant, or any pexitien of it, mey f@sult in sevare civil apd criminsl panadtios, and will he prosedted to
the mawimm extont possible under the law, This draft was produced by ATA seftware at 14:16:51 on 01/18/2008 under Order Ne 1000324794 3
which sxpirss on B/37/2008, and is Aot fer resale. -
yser Notes:

(1338650020}



ncurred in the imterruption and resumption of the Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaring
services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior e notice of
such suspension. When-If the Owner’s suspension was for copvenience rather than for cause, when the Project 1s
resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for ERpEnses incurred in the interruption and restmption of the
Architect’s services. The Architect’s fees for the remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably

adjusted.

§9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cunaulative days Tor reasons other than the fault of the
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ writlen notice

§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ wrilten notice should the other party
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party mitiating
the termination.

§9.5 The Cwner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days” written notice to the Architect for the
Owner’s convenience and without cavse.

§9.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect. the Architect shall be compensated for services

performf_d pl’l{)i’ to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due, aﬂd-&l—l—}-em‘}m&m—%epeﬁses—fﬁ

Agreement-areset-forth-in-Artiele Tand SeetionH-9-

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS
§10.1 This Agrccmmt shall be governed b) thc faw ofthL State of] mms ﬁ%&ewehereﬂae—llmjeei-ﬁ—k—)ea%ed-

AM%MMF@@%H%S@%W Fxcluswc Venue for resolm;on ofaii chsnuies shall liein ~Cook Counly
Hlinois,

§10.2 Terms m this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA Document AZ01-2007, General
Conditions of the Centract for Construction, as amended and included in the Construction Documents.

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, therr agents, successors, assigns and legal
representatives fo this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the
written consent of the other, except that the Ovwner may assign this Agreement (o & lender providing financing for
the Project if the lender agrees fo assume the Owaer’s rights and obligations under this Agreement.

§ 16.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior o the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests
the Architect (o execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the
Architect for review at feast 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or
congents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement.

§10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual refationship with or a cause of action in favor
of a third party against either the Owner or Architect._There are no third party bepeficiaries to'this Agreement.

§10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery,
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposuze of persons to, hazardous materials'or toxic substances in any

form at the Project site.

ALA Document BAIOIY -~ 2D07 {formerly B15I® . 1997) ., Copykight @ 1974, 1876, 1987, 1387 and 2007 by The Americes Institute of ARrehitects.

A1l rights reserved, WRRNING: This AIA Documsnt is protected by U.S. Cepyright Law and Intesnational Traaties. Unauthorized repreduction

or dsstribution of this AIAT Document, oz any pertion of it, may resnli in sevare civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosssuted te i8
the maximm extent possible under the law. This dreft was produced by AIA seftware at 14:16:51 on £1/18/2008 under Order Ho.lO0G314784 1

which expires on B/17/200B, and i3 not for ressle.

Ysar Notes: 11338620020)



§10.7 The Architect shall have the right t¢ include photographic or arfistic representations of the design of the
Project among the Archifect’s promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonabie
acoess to the completed Project to make such representations, However, the Architect’s materials shail not include
the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of
the speuﬁc mfonnauon LOHSIdCI‘Cd by the Owner to be umﬁdcm;ai or pmpnctary %@%e%&h&l—]—ﬁ%&%e

§10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated by the other party as “confidential” or
“business proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it
to any other person except to {1) its employees, {2} those who need to know the content of such information in order
to perform services or construction solely and exclusively for the Project, or (3} its consultants and contractors
whose contracts inciude samilar restrictions on the use of confidential information

§ 0.8 The Architect shall submit valid ceriificates of insurance and. if reguested. policies, in form and substance

satisfactory to Ovmer evidencing the effectiveness of the insurance policies along with origing! copies of the
amendatory riders 1o any such policies 10 Owner for Owner's approval before Architect commenges the performance

of any services hereunder.

§10.10 The Architect hereby agrees to maintain fhe nsurance described in Article 2 herein during the duratipn the
performance of all Services. [f the Architect fails to furnish and maintain the specified insurance, the Owner may

ferminate the Agreement,

§ 19,11 Architect shall include the QOwner as additional insured by causing amendatory riders or endersements o be
attached to the Commercial General Liability insurance policies described in this Agreement.” The insurance
coverage afforded under the Commercial General Liability policies shall be primary 1o any insurance carried
independently by the Indemnitees (as identified in Section 10.12 below). Said amendatory riders or endorsements
shall indicate that as respects the Indemnitees. there shall be severability of interests under said insurance policies
for coverages provided under said insurance policies,

§10.12 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect hereby agrees o indemnify and hold the Qwner, iis
directors, members, officers, agents, and emplovees (collectively the "Indemnitees” harmless from ail losses
claims, {iabilities, injuries. damages and expenses, including reasonable attornevs’ fees. that the Indemnitees may |

incur 1o the extent anising cut of the negligent performance or breach of performance by the Architect of its duties
angd obligations under or pursuant to this Agreement, ’

§90.13 Time is of the essence of this Agreement,

| Formatted: Indent; First line: 0"
| Formateed: Font: 10 pt
| Formatted: Font: 10 pt

. Formatted: Indent: Fifst line: G'

AYA Dooument BlOT™ - 2007 (formerly BL5X™ - 1897}, Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1887, 1887 and 2007 by The American Instirute of Architents.

AL rights resexved. WHARNING: This AZA" Docuwsnt is protected ky U.§. Copyr ght hew and International Treaties. Ynauthorired mepreduction

or distribution of this ATA’ Document, or any pextisn of it, may mesult in swwers civil and oriwinal penalties, snd will be prosacuted fo iz
the mmuimwn eftent pessible under the Law. This draft wes produced by AIA soffware 4% 14:36:52 on 0L/38/2006 undesr Oyder Mo 3006314784 3%

which expires on B/17/2008, and is not for resale.

User Notos! 11338650020}



ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION
§11.1 For the Architect’s Basic Services described under Articie 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as

follows:

{lasert amrouni of, or basis for, compensation. )

gy e {Formatted: Font: Halic

e o o e { Formatted: Pattern: Clear {Yellow)

§11.3 For il Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.3,
the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: ’
(Insert amount of or basis for, compensation. )

wuirpetion-Cest-Compensation s"lléﬁ,be_é‘:"&mhﬁ.‘hed by mutoad soreernent in wiiting betwesn the
{, praar 16 begsnning any additional Services.

§ 11.5 Where compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or percentage of the Cost of the Work;
the compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows:

Schematic Design Phase fificenn  percent ( %)
Design Development Phase swenty  percent %)
Censtruction Documents forty  percent { %)
Phase )

Bidding or Negotiation Phase fiye  percent { %)
Construction Phase tewenty  percent { %)
Total Basic Compensation onehundred  percent { G Yo}

§ 11,6 When compensation is based on a percentage of the Cost of the Work and any portions of the Project dre
deleted or otherwise not consirucled, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the exten|
services are performed on those portions, in accordance with the schedule set forth in Section 11.5 based on (1) the
lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, or (2) if no such bid or preposal is received, the most recent estimate of
the Cost of the Waork for sech portions of the Project. The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance
with this Agreement for all services performed whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced.

§ 11.7 The hourdy bilting rates for services of the Architect and the Architect’s consultants, if any. are set forth
below. The rates shall be adjusted in zcoordance with the Architect’s and Architect’s consultants’ normal review

prachices.
{Ifapplicable. attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

Fourly billing rates for Architectural Services for the duration of this Agreement shail be in accordance with
Architects” hilting rates indicated op EXHIBIT D

AT Document BiOI™ - 2007 (formeriy BL5I™ - 199%) . Copyright © 1874, 1676, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Tnasitune of Rrehitects.

Ail rights resesxved. WRENING: This RIA® Document is protected by U.3. Copyxight Law and Intarnatienal Treaties. Unanthorized reproduction

or gistribution of this AT’ Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe eivil and criminal penalties, and will be presecuted to 20
the mewimem extast pessible wndeyr the law, This draflt was produced by ATa softwsre ot 14:16:51 on 03/18/2008 updey ocder Neo. 1000314754 1

which expires on #/11/2008, znd is not for resale.
User Netes:

{133E&20G20)



Employee or Category Rate

§11.8 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
§11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and imclude
expenses incurred by the Architect and the Archifect’s consultants directly related to the Project, as follows:

1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence,

2 longdistance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web
sites, and exiranets;
Fees paid for securing approval of avthorities having jurisdiction over the Project;
Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents;
Postage, handling and delivery,
Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner,
Rendenngs, models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by
the Owner,
Architect’s & hannbd B RO FOE SRR REVR PR
e th prensc of addlilonal insurance cov(’:rdgc or hmlts lfthc Dwnu requcsts such

insurance in excess of that normatly carried by the i Architect’s consultants; |

8 Al taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses;
A0 Site office expenses; and
A1 Other similar Project-related expenditures gutherized in.adyance by the Owner.

No R W

o

§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the
Architect’s consultants plus e {00 yof the expenses incurred.

mhmm%mmmmmmmwmmm@mms
follows:

§ 11.10 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT
§11.10.1 An initial paymentofizerg  {$ 0} shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the
minimum payment under this Agreement. 1t shall be credited to the Gwrer’s account m the final invoice.

§11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthiy in proportion to services performed.
Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect’s mnvoice. The Architect’s invoice shall be
submitted in a format acceptable 1o the Qwner, and shall show sufficient information to allow the Owner'io
determine the propriety thereof. Ata minimum, each invoice shall sfale services completed dering the bithing
period, amount due for Services performed during the billing period, amount previously paid. and agreed contract
balance remaining. The Architect shall be paid in the trme Denods set forth in the Local Government Prompt

: 2, oyt g i
Payment Act. Arsounts-unpaid——{ Ydays-afterthesnvoice-date-shat-bear-interest-at-the rale-entered-belowror

W&M%WWEWWMWWW
MW*&%W&WW&WWH

§ 11.10.4 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Additional Services, and services performed on
the basis of hourly rates shall be avatlable to the Owner at mutually convenient times

RIR Document BIOL™ - 2007 (formarly B1S1™ - 1887} . Copyright @ 1874, 19¥8, 1§87 1987 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects.
AI) rights resepved. WARNING: whis ATA" Dooumsnt is protocted by U.S. Copyright Lav snd Intersational Txeaties. Unznthorizwd raproduction

ar distribution of this RIA" Document, wr amy portioen of it, may result ln severe oivil and epiminal poncltias, znd will be prosuonted to 21
the mayimum extent possible wnder the low. ‘fhis draf: was produced by ALA scftwars at Ld:16:5) on 0L/1E/ZCUE undex Order No. 1000314784 1

which expires on B/I7/Z20CG%, and is not for resale

User Wotes: (1338690520)



§ 11.19.5 Ovwner reserves the right 10 recover from the Architect sfl or 2 portion of the costs associated with change

orders issued Lo correct erzars gr work omitted in the construction documents prepared by the Architect.
Consequential damages meluding anv delay damages suffered by Qener, or which Ovwner may be liable, dus to

errors and omissions may be inchided in the recovery. In the case of omissions. Architect shall not be responsible
for the direct cost of the construction contractor’s Work fo implement omitted Work to the extent that Architect
demonstrates that, but for the omission. the cost of the omitted Work would have been fully included in the
construction contractor’s bid, Nothing in this paragraph (11,10.5} is intended to provide Gwner or Architect with
causes of action. defenses or measures of damages that it would not otherwise posses under apniicable law,

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows:

Mane,

ARTICLE 43 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

§13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, ither written or oral. This Agreement may be
amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Architect.

§13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below:
4 AlA Document BIOT¥-2007, Standard Torm Agreement Between Owner and Architect

%—M%ﬁﬁm%m%%%%ﬁwmmm%wﬁm

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

CWNER ARCHITECT
{Signature) (Signature)
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and Iit!ej.

- - - Formated; Font; (Default) Times New Roman |
) “[fownatbed: Font: (Default) Times New Roman }

ATn Document BLOI¥ - 2007 (formerliy B151™ — 1987) . Copyright ¢ 1374, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architests.

All righta reserved. VARNING: This ATH® Dovument is protected by U.5, Copyright Law and International ¥reaties. Upantherized xeproductjon

or distribetion of this RIAT Doowespt, ox sny portian of it, may result in sovers civil and crfminal pemalties, and will ke prosecuted to 22
the maximn estent possible under the law, This drsft was produced by ATA software at 1£:16:31 on 03/28/2008 under Oider No. 1008314754 1

@hich expires on §/17/2088, and is not for resale.
user Notes:

(133BE20020)



Oak Park and River Forest High School
Construction Projects Long Range Plan

Revised 12/14/10+z

Commen

C¥hipet /&

pemenst um covshrecetron, oS Y
DUbstantrad Compled o

Pricing reflects replacement in kind for press box. No allowance

2/11/3011 2:15 PM Ch\Ducuments and Settings\tkeelev\Local Settings\Temparary internet

es\Content.Cutiook\ZM7VI98\Master plan for summer 2011 revised 12-14-10

- ion, Fekat-Booths-and-Fead Mai : ,G00.00 | . ) .
48)2011-2012 Press Box renovation, * ® aintenance o&M £0,000.00 inttuded for ticket booths or fencing. No elevator included.
2§2011-2012 Code upgrades Elevator new building - from 2010 Maintenance Q&M 84,000.00 |Pricing based on quote received by OPRFE.
. Does not incude rooms 173/174 which were completed in 2010
i -18 343:474, 774, 340,396,4. N ) . -
5220112052 o0 e AL8 393:174,384,342,273, 274, 340,396,421 asbestos tle worn needs 1 o 65 140,000.00 |Assurnes 25% floct fill; 9,000 sf tile. 184 and 212 were eliminated
replaced. Replace with Fritztile. . )
from this years life safety due to future plans
LSITEM A-10: All 4th floor rooms that need ceiling and light replacement. Corefite pendants in classrooms; recessed indisect lights in
Locations: Rooms 407, 408, 408, 410, 411, 413, 415, 417, 421, 423, 424, £25 !
5312011-2012 L e T T T LT . iiife Safet LS 444,629.00 |corridors; new diffusers. Added cost for additi . Mural
4254, 426, 427, 4274, 428, 429, 430, 431, 433, 435, 437, 438, 439, 440, 472, 473, ¥ 9 o Y additionat rooms. Murals
474 475,476, 417, 478, 481, 482
53A 20112012 New HVAC to rooms: 4198, 420, 421, 423, 424, 425, 4254, Maintenance Q&M 177,000.00 iNeed scope description and estimate.
LS fTEM A-11: All 3rd floor rooms that need ceiling and light replacement. Corelite pendants In ¢lassrooms; recessed indirect lights in_
5412011-2012 Locations: Rooms 309,-3360; 311, 313, 315, 320, 321,326, 329, 330, 331, 333, Life Safety LS 225,000.00 [corridors; new diffusers. Added cost for additional rooms. Save
335,337, 39G, 351, 355, existing cabinets in 390 and 391 that were on life safety to
ESITEM A-127 All 2nd floor rooms that need ceifing and light replacerment. . Corelite pendants in classrooms; recessed indirect lights in
11-2012 f L ]
55120 Locations: Rooms 328, 230, 231, 233, 235, 239,290,201 Life Safety > 200000 1 ridors; new diffusers.
- Budgeted for $180K per year for 5 years plus fees and GC's. Need
LS ITEM S P-5. -5.2, P-5.3, P-5.4 {ph. : - iding - £ . : .
56-2011 2011-2012 . .m 5L, P5 . i tphase 2J: 1907-1962 building - replace Life Safety LS 216,000.00 ito define scope for each year to be within budget parameters,
domestic hot water piping - (mains that support 2012 bathroom work) N
Narth boys and girls bathrooms only
LSITEM P-&: {ah 2Hreph iary-drains- @ 1507 -1894-{pha seph . . .
D 11 k: based tual field ¢
57]20112012  |3rdane-dshflons Replace 8" waste on DP2.1and P2.1 excluded from 2010 |Life Safety Ls 48,900,00 a_w..__ﬂ_mm_ oading dock; pricing based on actual field camera
work .
2nd floor corridor Ashestos abatement to Fritztile. Location: 2nd floor - East-
58i2011-2012 West corridor in 1907 Building; North-South corridor from Room 229 - 239; Maintenance O&M 188,000.00
MNorth-South corridor from Room 215 - Stairs.
61§2011-2012 Air handlers 4: #2, 2. 4 and 53 Maintenance 0&n 847,000.00 {Pricing based on bids from 2010,
6312011-2012 LS item A-1% 2nd fioor hallways, 67 ad ngs and lights tife Safety is 651,000.00 jincludes 41,000 SF
Sub-total 3,152,625.00
Contingengy {use 10%)

315,262.90




Oak Park and River Forest High School

Construction Projects Long Range Plan
Revised 12/14/1Crz

o

.

,,Tm\m

2/11/2011 7115 PM C\Documents and Settingsitheeley\local Settings\Temparary Internet Files\Content. Quthook\ZMIVIOBIAMaster plan for summer 2011 revised 12-14-10



Insurance

ACORD

CERTIF!CATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE i

T ORYE T

WAUKEGAR AL 9085

TS CERACATE [ Sk K X HATTER O oy
R O e L AT i
e VFICATE DOEE KDY mm\ ey on

INSURERS A FOROING EOVERAGE Hae r

IHEURED

LEGAT SRCNTEETS, b
3K EH
pridbicitendien

COVERAGES

R e VAR L )
o R o Y R Ry S ghee o
3 o e e

EBEOISEST e Bundm . [
g
izzour e
i e d
ey g 1
s .t
pacenwe  gasil
e i
EBPREst ssant e

DS Co s L0
ElarvePis 1k Y |
it s :
IR i

T

Ui ABED BV FELAL PROVISONS

GERCRPTION OF OPERATDNELGCA;

R ICATE NGB

EAAPLE GERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE™

Areanion:

i
A G e

B Wost

"ACDRE 3L (1031105} Corfama

T ACDRE CORPORA HER THE

é

ACORD, CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANGCE

P
%illis nf 3llireis, inc,
93 Hacker Drive

Cb;‘taga 1L EOROE

THIS CERTFIGATE 15 (SSULD AS A MATTER OF INFORMATRON
ONLY AND CONFERS HO RiGHTS UPON THE

HOLBER
| ALTER THE COVERAGE 4

1 INSURTAS AFFORDING COVE!

T manesvov,
! 4/27/2010

THIS CERTIFICATE DOES HOT AMEND, EXTEND OR
AGE AFFGRDED BY THE SOLICIE:

PTeTy

(13

e rien Anua ey, Insgy

LONEANY. ... N

Legat Erehizeshe, 1 Eaiy i
My Pete Kpupczak e 7
Horkh Chagel Streec s S—
Woukegan 1L BG0BE-41LT juusanltin !
e :

e
IFaimrucn

ooz
e s

M .
0 N

§ sumaos Y. Easrcie

e Enkog
g e

ST

AERETATE

T

NASERML G020

0/ 26200

Afza /2813

R

TERTEIAL PRomEAers

CERTIFICATE HOLOER

ANCELLATION

SAMPLE CER O IPSURARCE

ACGRD 35 70atr0s)

G ACORDGIRPORATH

Exhibur B
Cchbir &

Insuronce Coverage and Limits
These sample Certificates of Insurance
summarize the insurance coverage and
limifs carried by Legat Architects.

Summary Coverage

Professional Liobility
$2 Millien Each Claim
$4 Million Aggregate

General Liability
$2 Million General Agaregate
$2 Million Each Occurrence

Automobile Liability
Million Combined Single Limit

Excess/Umbrella Liobility
$5 Million Each Occurrence

Workers Compensation and
Employers” Liability
$500,000 Each Accident




Danpie D

Billing Rates

FIRM NAME ROLE
legat Architects Architects/Planners
Classification Hourly Rate
Principals $200.00
Staff Architects $180.00
Associotes $115.00
Intern $75.00
Clerical $55.00
AMSCQO Engineering MEP Engineering
Clossification Hourly Rate
Principals $167.50

Project Engineer $155.00
Engineer/Designer  $150.00

Drofsman $75.00
Clerical $75.00
Larson Engineering Structural Engineering
Classification Hourly Rate
Officer $195.00
Principal $167.00
Associate $155.00

Project Manager $124.00
Project Engineer $108.00
Design Engineer $100.00
ELT $92.00
CADD Technician $77.00

Pekron Consulting, Inc. Environmental Engineering
Classificotion Hourly Rote
Project Designer $85.00

Project Managment  $65.00

Sample Anaysis
- Polarized Light Microscopy $15.00/sample
- Phase Contrast Microscopy $15.00/sample
- Transmission Electron Microscopy $125.00/sample

WRCHITECTS



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenne e Qak Park, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Robert Zummallen

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: RFP Construction Management Contract
BACKGROUND

Over the last 18 years, the school district has worked under the concept of a design build team to
perform as the architect and construction management firm for all construction projects. The District
has chosen to separate these services into two categories; [) design criteria provided by an
architectural company and 2) a professional construction service provided by a construction
management company.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

A selection committee, which consisted of Nate Rouse, Principal; Robert Zummallen, Director of
Building and Grounds; Jack Lanenga, former Assistant Superintendant of Operations, current
Director of Student Information Services and Ed Kras, Asst. Director of Building and Grounds,
reviewed RFP’s from construction management firms. The committee chose the following as the top
three to be interviewed; Henry Bros Co., Gilbane Bldg. Co. and James McHugh Construction Co.
{See attached interview scores and cost spreadsheet).

The commitiee is recommending that the Board of Education accept Henry Bros Company as the
Construction Management Firm based on their proposal and responses given during the interview

process. Henry Bros has worked on several school projects including the new Lincoln Way West
High School ($94,000,000.00) and Lincoln Way North High School ($90,000,000.00).

RECOMMENDATIONS

To accept Henry Bros Company as the Construction Management Firm at the February 15" Special
Board of Education meeting.

TEL: (708} 383-6700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-5500 FAX: (708} 434-3910



Construction Management Interview Scores

February 9, 2011 Henry Bros Gilbane VicHugh
Qualifications 10 10 10
General Experience 10 9 8
Similar Projects 10 10 10
Skills of Personnel 10 9 9
Performance Data 9 10 9
Worl Load 10 9 9
Cost Factors 10 7 3
References 10 10 10
Totals 79 74 71
Proposal S 301,387.00 | S 394,970.00 S 401,914.00




Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue o Oak Park, 1L 6(302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Cheryl L. Witham

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Construction Management Contract
BACKGROUND

Provided is a draft copy of the proposed Construction Management Contract.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Attorney Ken Florey will be present at the meeting to explain the contract and answer questions.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

None at this time

TEL: (708) 383-0760 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-5500 FAX: (708} 434-3910



AIA Document A134™ — 2009

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction
Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the
Cost of the Work Plus a Fee without a Guaranteed Maximum
Price

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The suthor of this document

AGREEMENT made as of the « » day of « » inthe year« »

(In words, indicate day, month and year.} tLnor
- M . has added information
nesded for its completion.
BETWEEN the Qwaer: The auther may alse have

revised the ftext of the
criginal AR sztanderd form.
An Additions end Deletioens
Report that notes added
Infermation as well as
revisions fo the standard
form text is svailable from

(Name, legal status and address)

@ R N
@ »

and the Construction Manager: the suthor and should be
(Name, legal status and address) reviewed.
This document bas important
€ Ne B legal consequences,
o« BN Consultation with an
attorney is enccuraged wiih
. . . ) respect to its completion
for the following Project or madification.
i . . T
tName and address or Tocation) AR Document AZ01™-2007,

General Conditicns of the
Contract for Construchtion,

«Project Namey
e is adopted in this document

1i Renovatien :
R by reference. Do not use
. . with other general
The Archrtect: senditions unless this

(Name, legal stotus and address) doourent is modified,

The Owner's Designiated Representative:
(Name, address and other fnformation)

The Construction Manager’'s Designaled Representative:

{Name, address and other information) ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
rtion of this RIX Bocument
to anot i

« w ] iectronic file is
prohibited and constitutes &

o viglation of copyright laws

@ o as set forth in the footer of

. this document.

€N

“«

“or

RIb Document AL34™ - 2609 {farmerly AL31™0mc - 3063) . Copyright o 1404, 106% and 2009 by The merican Instizuce of Architects, All rights

reserved, WaRNING! This AIA’ Hocuman protecied by U, 8. Copyright Law and Internztional Tresties. Vnawthorized reproduction or 1

may raswit in severs civil and criminal penalities, and will ba prosecuted to the

distribution of this AIA' Documsnt, or mny pornion of
maximmam esitekt possible under the low. This draftrwas produced by RLA seftware st 11:
expires on 9B/1E/2010, and is not for resale

dsar Motes:

1:37 on 1Z/17/2009 under Oxder Neo.S5§£1266106_1 which

(1646537284



The Architect’s Designated Representative:
{Name, address and other information)

The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows.

ATh bDoovment B134™ - 2005 (formerly AI31®Mec ~ 2003). Copyright & 1834, 2003 and ZOCH by The American Institute of Architects. A1l rights
reserved. WRBWING: This A¥a% Doewmsnt is protecied by U.S. Copyright kaw and Intermational Txeaties, Umanthorixed rop:tydustion or
distribution of this RIA’ Docummnt, or any porthon of it, may restlt in sovers civil ond eriminal powsities, snd will he prosccuted to the
manimom extent pessible under the Jaw. Thiz draft was produced by AIA softwaie er 11:33:37 on 12411/ R008 under Crder No.GR46IZ861D 1 which
expizes on GB/lE/2010, and is not for resals.

Usar Notes! (1486530284}




TABLE OF ARTICLES

i GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

3 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
5 COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

& COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE

7 PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

8 INSURANCE AND BONDS

9 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

10 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
11 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
12 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 1 GENERAE PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 The Contract Documents

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and ofher
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to the execution of this Agreement, other documents
listed in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract
.md are as fully a parf of lhe Contract as if attached to this Agrcem&m or repeated herein. %@w&h@«@wy&m

22 -A-ene-revisionsprepered-by Lh A h,t t-ated fmm }nx‘ by th f‘v RS d 5 “’e d .“S ; 7 ”’.2,“‘ The
Contract represents the entire and infegrated agreement between the parfies hereto and supersedes prior negotiations,
representations or agreements, either written or oral. If anything in the other Centract Documents, other than a

Modification, is inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shali govern.

§ 1.2 Relationship of the Parties

The Construction Manager accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement and
covenants with the Owner to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Construction Manager’s skill and
judgment in furthering the interests of the Owner; to furnish efficient construction adm inistration, management
services and supervision; fo furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform the
Work in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the Owner’s interests. The Ovimer agrees to furnish
or approve, in a timely manner, information required by the Construction Manager and to make payments to the
Construction Manager in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

& 1401 The Construction Manager has been engaged fo provide professional construction management services
hecause of jis character, expertise, experience, education. depth of experienced personnel. and qualifications in
dealing with projects of similar scope, complexity, and magnitude,

§ 1.3 General Conditions

For the Preconstruction Phase, AIA Document A201™-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction,
shall apply only as specifically provided in this Agreement. For the Construction Phase, the general conditions of the

contract shall be as set forth in an amended A201- 2007 which document isatiached herefo and mcorporated gs

amended hercin by reference. The term “Contractor” as used in A201-2007 shall mean the Construction Manager.

ATA Documant A134™ - 200§ {(formerly RIIMWoMe - 2OGR} . Copyright O 1994, 2003 and 200% by The American Institute of Azchitects. All rights
raserved, WARNING: This AYR” bDocwmsnt is protestad by U.5. Copyright Lav and KFaterasticnal Treaties. Upanthopiged repreduction or

disteibution of this AIR® Document, oz any poktlom of it, way result in sevese civil and crimizal penalties, and will bo proscouted ta the 3
waniram exbont possible wader the law. This drait wes produced by AIA seftware ar 11:31:137 on 12/37/2008 urder Order No.8546126610 1 whick
expires on 0B/1E/20190, and is not foxn resale.

Usex Hotes: 1164653728 4)



£ 44 Contrant- S Gantract Fime-and-Changes-in-the ek
2

g Tl d S dn the aatiaonl Sleat ol abe W3 le el dadivad. fta. Soot i Liagotdap £ daseaotioen T

eb3 ORIFGCT-UH PG et e =0ut sl P e CHOH- O -t ONErECHGR-ASEREEET S
Aafinad fn Q ¢ ) S SV ) enot Tane e so.t) 1 i el elaz ey pastl srped ol iz b e th,
SEHREE W DESHS D - R GET- IR R TR O PORS G- 0T R - RCrEG I S A0 R AR C- 3G We TR AR Ot T al
Comrpat-iont £y fartommtind ¢ Lpabzes o d" £l 1 1z YRaEN Ty tha Faitand y . Ast]

ST RET- R OOER SR FOT-SUHRANRT RPEReR e e F-AG- Q8 Y i L o A S e = T TG TER

Seotion-0-B-o L ANA-Document-AI0+-2007 - The Contract- Trne-shalt-be-measuredfrom-the dete e commencament

efthe Construction-Phase-as-established pursuentie-Seeten-2d-l-2-of thisAgreement-Changes i-the-Workshell
& At © o S dond thin A graaea nnt med o bysindestioln Lot B901 O0T 3L - thm Lol i et

be-pevernadby 5208 this-Agreement ahd-net-by-Aotiele-F-084201 2007 howeven-the-Contract-Hme
has-been-established-inacesrdanoewith-Seetion 2 2-4-5ArtieleT-of-A201-2007 shall-control adiusments-to-the
Contrpat-Time

ARTICLE 2 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

& 20,1 The Construction Manager shall perform the services described in this Asreement, The Construction
Manager’s Preconstruction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Sections 2.1 and 2.2. The Construction Manager’s
Construction Phase responsibilities are set forth fn Section 2.3. The Owner and Censtruction Manager may agreeyis
consulintion-witr the-Arehiteet; for the Construction Phase to commence prior to completion of the Preconstruction
Phase, in which case, both phases will proceed concurrently, The Construction Manager shall identify a
representative authorized to act on behalf of the Construction Manager with respect fe ihe Project.

§2.0.2 The Consiruction Manager shall desipnate an authorized representative who shall have express autherity
gyanted by the Construction Manager ta_bind the Construction Manager with respect 1o all matters reouiring the
Construction Manager's aporoval or authorization, Consiruction Manager’s representative shail have the avthority to
make representations on behalf of the Construction Manager concerning estimates and schedules, construction

budgets, changes in the Work, and ail other matters related to this Apgreement,

§2.8.3  In addition to the other responsibilities set out below for pre-construction and bidding phases, the
Construction Magpager shall also perform the following tasks relative to Minoritv Owned Business Enterprises

{MBE) and Female Owned Business Enterprises (FBEY:

ai_ The Construction manager will advise the Owner as_io potential aliernatives for increasings-
participation on the Project by MBE and FBE firms,

b) If any of the alternatives are selected by the Owner. the Construction Manager will coordinate the
planned use of increased MBE/FBE and labor goals throughout design, bidding. and construction
phases,

¢)__The Construction Manager will coordinate with the Project team (in the design phase) to recommend
and review split bid packages, the divisions of work and how MBE/FBE firms and the labor force can

meet the needs of those bid packages Constructability of the project must not be compromised in the

attainmentofthesegoals, L ____..
d) _Construction Manager will ensure that the Insiructions to Bidders and Bid Form shall reguire bidders
to identify all MBE/FBE firms which the bidder contacted in order to solicit sub-bids.

§ 2.1 Preconstruction Phase
§2.1.% The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program {if snv), schedule
and construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other

§ 2.1.2 Consultation

The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Architect and Owner to discuss such
matters as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. The Construction Manager shalf advise
the Owner and the Architect on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, and buflding systems
and equipment. The Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations consistent with the Project
requirements to the Owner and Architect on constructabitity; availability of materials and labor, time requirements
for procurement, installation and construction; and factors related to construction cost inchiding, but not limited to,
costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost reductions,

§ 2.1.3 When Project requirements in Section 3.1 1 have been sufficiently identified, the Construction Manager shall
prepare and periodically update a Project schedule for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s aceeptance. The
Construction Manager shall obtain the Architect’s approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the
performance of the Architect’s services, The Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction
Manager’s services, the Architect’s services, other Owner consultants’ services, and the Owner’s responsibilities

Formatied: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, ¢, .. + Startat: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.5" + Indent at:
0.75"

R {Formatted: Font color: Auto

AIR Document BL3GW - 2069 (formerly AL3I™CMc -~ 2003). Copyzight @ 1994, 2003 and 2005 by The Emericen Instituce of Architects. ALl rights

resexved. WAINING: This AIE Documant is protected by U.$. Copyright Law and International Treatics. Unautherized cepreduction ox
distribution of this RIA® Potuwsnt, o any powbien of it, msy sesull in severe i
maximam urtent possible onder the igw., This araft was produced by ATR scfinare ac
expires on OB/LE/2019, and is not for resale.

Uzer Hotas:

13446537204}

1] and eriminal penalties, =nd will be proseonted to the
132137 on 1E/17/2005 under order No.5S4612661G_1 which

4



and identify items that could affect the Project’s timely completion The updated Project schedule shali include the
following: submissien-ofthe-Cantrel-Eatimmate; the-components of the Work; times of commencement and
completion required of each Subcontractor; ordering and delivery of products, ncluding those that must be ordered
well in advance of construction; and the occupancy requirements of the Owner. All project schedules (including
updates) shall be a Critical Path Method {CPM) schedules,

§2.0.2.0 The Construciion Manager shall sssist the Gwner and Architect in preparing Construction Contracts and
advise the Owner on the accepiability of sub-tier subconfraginrs and material sunnliers proposed by Subconiraciors.
The Construction Manager shall subimit for review and approval to Crwner. or iis attorneys if desionated by Owner,
all aprecments and conditions prepared for submission to bidders prior to relesse of bidding information,

§ 2.14 Phased Construction

The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations with regard to accelerated or fast-track schedubing,
procurement, or phased construction. The Construction Manager shall take into consideration cost reductions, cost
information, constructability, provisions for temporary facilities and procurement and construction scheduling

issues.

§2.1.5 Preliminary Cost Estimates . o
§2.1.5.1 Based on the pretiminary design and other design criteria prepared by the Architect, the Constraction
Manager shall prepare preliminary estimates of the Cost of the Work or the cost of program requirements using area,
volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques for the Architect’s review and Owner’s approval. Ifthe
Architect or Construction Manager suggest alternative materials and systems, the Construction, Managerishall
provide cost evaluations of those allernative materials and systems.

§2.1.5.2 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and
Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update, at appropriate intervals agreed o by
the Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, estimates of the Cost of the Work of increasing detail and,
refinement and allowing for the further development of the design unuil such time as the Construction Manager
sybmits a Control Estimate for the Work, pursuant to Section 2.2, Such estimates shall be provided for the
Architeet’s review and the Owner’s approval. The Construction Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect
when estimates of the Cest of the Work exceed the latest approved Project budge! and make recemmendations for

corrective actton.

§ 2.1.6 Subcontractors and Suppliers
The Construction Manager shall develop bidders™ interest in the Project.

§2.4.6.0 Owner is a public entity bound by 110 1LCS 805/3-27.1 and is required to publicly bid all-
construction contracts and all construction contracts shall be awarded to the lowest tesponsible respangive

bidder. Onee the lowest resnonsible responsive multiple prime trade bidders. (hereinafier referred to as
"Subcontractors”) are identified, Owner shall assien the trade contracts to Construction Manager,

The trade contracts shall incorporaie substantially the following provisions:

Though this Contract has been awarded by the Owner after advertisempent for bids..upon award.of the
Contract by the Owner, the Owner shall be deemed to have assipned and set gver portions of its rights
and interest in this Apreement to [Canstruction Manager], which is identified herein as

the Contractor,

By submitting its bid, the Contractor shall be deemed to have consented to the aforesaid assignment
and to have agreed 1o become an assigned subcontractor to the Contractor, ’

Upon assicnment. the Subconiractor shall become a subcontractor of the Contractor pursuant to this
Acreemnent. and. excent as identified within this Agreement and as provided by taw, will no longer
have any richts under the contract against the Gwner, but all of its rights under’this Agreement shall
be against the Contragior. :

§2.1.6.2_ Construction Manager shall prepare all bid invitations, instructions to bidders, and gencral and
supplementary conditions,  Drawings and technicel specifications shall be provided by the Architect.  During

AR Document AL34™ - 2009 {fermerly AL3I™CMe - 2003). Copyright & 1284, Z003 snd 200§ by The American Iretizufe of Archilects. RE} rights
reserved. WARWING: Wiiz ATR® Document is protected by U.§. Copyright Law and Interaational Treatims. Unauthorized raproduction ar

distribution of this RIA® Document, or auy portiown of iT, miy result in savers oivil and eximinsl penaltiaz, snd will be prosecutod te the
i otent possible under the lew. This draft was prodused by ATA software at :1:31:37 on 12/17/2602 under Ordes No.ES46326610_1 which
expires on 0B/16/2018, and is neot for resele,

Yser Kotes: 11446537280)

5



preparation_of the Construction Documenis by _the Architect. the Construction Mansger shall review said
Construction Diocuments to ensure consistency with the bid documents prepared by the Construction Manager,

§2.1.6.2.1 Construction Menager will ensure that the Instructions io Bidders require the bidders to contacl at least
three MBE/EFBE firms in order to solicit bids, oz in the alternative. 10 explain on the Bid Form why three firms could
not be contacted  Additionally, Construction Manager will ensure that the Bid Form saaH provide space for the
bidder o identify the firms contacted, or explanation why firms were not contacted.

82.1.6.3  Prior to_advertisemeni for bids. Consiruction Manager shall provide all contracior or subeontract
apreements to the Owner’s attorneys for review and comment.

§2.3.6.4 Construction Manager shall conduct pre-bid meetings with interesied bidders i accordance with publicly
anncunced scheduled meetings.

§ 2,565 The Owner shall receive bids, prepare bid analyses and make recommendations g the Owner for the
Owner's award of contracts or rejection of bids.

& 2.1.6.6 The Subcontract documents prepered by Construction Manager shall reguire {ull corapliance \mth ith ail state
and laca} faws, .

§ 2.4.7 The Construction Manager shall prepare, for the Architect’s review and the Owner™s acceptance, &
procurement schedule for items that must be ordered well in advance of construction. The Construction Manager
shalt expedite and coordinate the ordering and delivery of materials that must be ordered well in advance of
construction. If the Cwner agrees to procure any ilems prior to the Qwaersaporeval-of-the-Centret
Estimategdvertisement for bids, the Owner shali procure lhc items on lcnm and condatmns dcceptabie to the

Constraction Manager. L};}e—r—ﬁhﬁ—@%ﬂw«@

F3? it coy the Congteaotisn- A-inanetzetiaaddane
HRESE e T RSB NRNA S ST BRE- SEFRCHON-MAGRAEE B

them.

g EA)
11 ¢k 3 . slaliter
3s

§ 2.1.8 Extent of Responsibility .
The Construction Manager shall exercise reasonable care in preparing schedules and estimates. Fhe-Constraction
YIILENALY bkl 122 om0 et Tlots, % Aok {!x

Managerh eF-EEEIReHWaTTAR-OT SRRTatH: imates-and-sehedulesHncluding-the-Controt-ishmetoan
stimatod-dote of Substonsie-Coemplotien eptasprovided-in-Seetien2b4-5-The Construction Manager s not
required to ascertain that the Drawings and Specifications are in accordance wnh applicable laws, statutes,

ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Construction Manager shall
promptly report fo the Architect and Owner any nencontormity discovered by or made known to the Construction

Manager a5 a request for information in such form as the Architect may require.

§ 2.1.9 Notices and Compliance with Laws
The Construction Manager shall comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rulcs and regulations, and

lawful orders of public authorities appheable to its performance under this Contract, and with equal employment
opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by gevemnmental and quasi governmental authorities
for inclusion in the Contract Documents.

2241 PERMITS

The Construction Manaser shall assist the Cwner in obtaining building pennits and special permits for permanent
improvements. except for permils required to be obtained directly by the various Subcontractors. The Construttion
Manager shall verify_that the Owner has paid applicable fees and assessments. The Conglruction Manager shall

assist the Owner and Architect in conpection with the Owner's responsibility for filing documents reguired for the
approvals of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project,

§ 2.2 Control Estimate
§2.2.1 Atthe comgfencm of the Construction Documents b\f the Architect and hefore advertisement for bids, e-time

K"” by, £l o O A tha {2 o | S s malentiom siply sbhn A walice ]
ta-bepumaily-agresd-upenby-the Ovperand-the- ConstrustionMeneger and-n newerhrthe-frehitest-the

Construction Manager shall prepare a Control Estimate for the Owner’s review and acceptance. The Control
Estimate shall be the sum of the Construction Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the Work and the Construction

AIR Document AL3L™ - 2008 (formerly Al3I™CMc — 2003) . Copyright & 19%¢, 2002 and 3009 by The Awerican Instivete of Archivects. ALl wights
reserved. WARNING: #his BIA° Document is protectad by U.8. Copyright law and Intemhatienal freasties. Unauthosized ropweduction or
dictribution of this ATA® Domument, or any portion of i€, moy result in severs civil and criminal panaibies, and will he prosecuted to the
mazimmm extent possikie under the law. This drafc was preduced by RIR softyware 4t 11:31:37 en 12/17/2607 under Order Ho. $946126610 1 which
ekpires on 08/36/2010, and is not for ressle.

User Hotes: (144£539264)

&



Manager’s Fee and shall include those items set forth in Section 2.2.4 below. When the Control Estimate 13
acceptable to the Owner, the Owner shall,_upon request by the Construciion Manager, acknowledge # i writing,

§ 2.2.2 The Construction Manager shall develop and implement a detailed system of cost control that will provide the
Owner and Architect with timely information as to the anticipated total Cost of the Work. The cost control system
shail compare the Control Estimate with the actual cost for activities in progress and estimates for uncompteted lasks
and proposed changes. This information shall be reported o the Owner, in writing, no fater than the Construction
Manager’s first Application for Payment and shall be revised and submitted with each Application for Payment.

§ 2.2.3 To the extent that the Drawings and Specifications are anticipated to require further development by the
Architect, the Construction Manager shall provide in the Control Estimate for such further development consistent
with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable therefrom. Such further development does not include
changes in scope, systems, kinds and quality of materials, finishes or equipment, ali of which, if required, shall be
ingorporated in a revised Control Estimate by mutual agreenzent of the parties.

§ 2.2.4 The Control Estimate shall include

A alist of the Drawings and Specifications, including all Addenda thereto, and the Conditions of the
Contract;

2 alist of the clarifications and assumptions made by the Construction Manager in the preparation of
the Control Estimate, including assumptions under Section 2.2.3, to supplement the information
provided by the Owner and contained in the Drawings and Specifications,

3 astatement of the estimated Cost of the Work organized by trade categories or systems, allowances,
and the Construction Manager’s Fee;

4 the anticipated date of Substantial Completion upon which the Control Estimate 1s based, and a
schedule for the issuance dates of the Constraction Documents upon which the anticipated Substantial
Completion date relies; and

5 a statement as 1o whether or not the duration from the stated date of commencement of the
Construction Phase to the estimated date of Substantial Completion shall become the Confract Time
and be subject to the provisions of Article § of A201-2007.

§ 2.2.5 The Owner shall authonize the Architect to incorporafe the agreed-upor assamptions and clarifxcat}ens
contained in the Control Estimate. The Owner shait promptly furnish those revised Drawings and Specifications to
the Construction Manager as they are revised. The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner and Architect of
any inconsistencies between the Control Estimate and the revised Drawings and Specifications.

applicable portion thereof) from the Jowest bona fide bid for the respective 1}0mon of the Work covered by that

portion of the Control Estimate, the Construction Manager shall:
5} If the Owner chooses fo accepi the bid, compensate the Qwner for additional design cos(s to modim a- - -
the scope of Work to bring the cost materially within the cost set oui in the Control Estimate; and .-
by Negotiate respective chanee orders with the respective Subcontractors to incorporate the aforesaid
desion changes, at no additional charge (g the Owner, or

¢} Ifthe Owner chonses to reject all bids and re-bid, compensate e Owner for addltlonai deszgn COSIS 10
modify the scope of work for re-bidding: and

di _Administrate re-bid of the affected portions of Work at no additional charge to the Owner.

§ 2.3 Construction Phase
§2.3.1 General
§2.3.1.1 For purposes of Section 8.1.2 of A201-2007, the date of commencenment of the Work shall mean the date of

commencemeni of the Construction Phase.

§2.3.1.2 The Construction Phase shall commence upen the Owner’s WM—@%&%@W@M{H&%&@H&&@W&

issuance of a Notice to Proceedwhichever GPE-SREHEF,

11978

HASHE-SPY-COF-E-B!

1, bt ol - ok
2]

gy, 3 + a, Tt oot i 3 Vit
A a Priesto-eommencement-of-the-Constrastion-Phaser the-Construshen-hanagat

retrbursed-as-part-of the Costofthe-Wers

Formatbed: Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Styler &, b, ¢, .. + Startat: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.5" + Indlent al:
0.75"

AYA Dacument ALl34Y - 290% {fummxly RI31™CMe - 2003) . Copyright & 16%4, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. BRI righes
reserved. WANHIRG: This AT Documant in protested by U.s. Copyright Law emd Int tional Treatics. Unsutherized reproduction @ °
Aistzibution of this ATAY Doctumant, ox any porkion of it, may wesult ik sevexe oivil and criminal pesalties, and will he prosscnted o the
maxinmm axtent peasible under whe iaw. This drafr was produced by AR software ot $1:31:37 on 12/37/2009 under Srder No. 6266128610 3 which
expirss on UG/LE/20L0, and iz not for resele.
Usar notes:

(1498537284)

7



§ 2.3.2 Administration

§2.3.2.1 All trade Work shall be performed by Subcontractors, as gssigned as set forth elsewhere in this Agreemen,
If the Construction Manager has reasonable gbiection to any Spbeontractor who is congidered the lowest
responsive bidder. it shall be the burden of Construction Manager to present demonstrative evidence that the
bidder is not resnonsiblc The Construction Manager shall not “self perform” any trade Work Thosepertens-efthe
Worlthatthe Construction-Monaserdoes noteustomastly perform-with-the-Censtruetion Mareger's own-personnel

AR

shall-be-performed-undersubsontrasts-or by-other-approphat agwemeﬂégmﬂ%m@eﬂ&mzeﬁem—lv&&m@e%&

O3 paoar fany £ 4 £ ) Sy ;h‘ e ok Lon (7 g yad e T nopesbhall t» 3
nerFay-designaie-spesifie persensHom-whemrer-entifies fromewhieh 4 wetien-hianagershall i
bida-Fhe Constructon-bt r-shal-obtaf-bidefrom-Sub uimwmﬂﬁm—“ﬁiﬁp#m?%i&{eﬁmw
fabrioated-aspecially-for theWexlc and shall-deliver such bidsto-the-Aechitost-The-Ovener shatl-thon-determinerwith

L ;
the-advice ofthe Consts -l :mge%aﬁé—&h@ Aﬂ%ﬂeﬁt—wmeh—éié&w&kbe WML@@%%%%&@&F
12PN 1 T i samened stk < A E b Lo b Ed bus
shallnot-be-required-to-contrast-with-anyoneto-whem-the-Censtruetien-] porhesreasenable objestion:
oy " " 3 .

£2.5.2.5 Subeentracts-or-ather-agreoments-shell-confornr to the apphivable payment provisisns-of this-Agreement;
and-shaibnotbeewarded-on-th ba.,iw‘i ostpligs-a-feevathout-the-prior-consent-of the-Ovmer-Hthe Subeontractis
avarded stpliga-foe-b the-Constractionidan shath-srovidetathe Eube %%&M&@W&G
awarded-on-a cost-phis-o-foe-basis-the Construstion-Managershath-providetnthe Subse :

5 s o Pt Jat. b vl do o, Saabs the L 211, o rd o the £ = otio
receive-tho-seme-audit rights with repard 4o-the-Subsontractoras-the- Owner receives with regard-o-the-Genstruetion
Manager-in-Section-b-H-belews

£ 2.3.2.3 Subconiracis or other agreements shall conforin to the appliceble pavment provisiens of s Agreement,
and shall not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee,

et sor-arwriting of-such

5 1 11 EAPp P £

+ BESETEHE e PO O

e
Fog-tooeCHan

&
rabats 1oy a nonfi
SHRERP-aREIIoTHY

& 2.3.2.4 If the Construction Manager recommends a specific bidder that may be considered & “related party”
according o Section 6,10, then the Construction Manager shall promptly potify the Owner in writing of such
relaticnshin and notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, according fo Section 6.10.2.

§2.3.2.5 The Construction Manager shall prepare and reeularly update no less than once per month a Construction
Schedule utilizing a Crigeal Path Method (CPM), or other Owner pre-anproved scheduling method. which
incornorates the activities of e Subcontractors on the Project, including activity sequences and durations
sllocation of Inbor and materials, processing of shop drawings, Product Dats and Samples and delivery of products
requiring long fead time and procurement, Additionally, the schedule shall be in accordance with applicable Sections
of AZ01™—2007. as amended. including the OQwner's oceupancy reguirements.

§ 2.2.2.6 The Construction Manager shall develop a system of cost control for the Work, including regular
monitoting of actual costs for activities in progress and estimates for uncompleted tasks and proposed changes. The
Construction Manager shall identify variances between actual and estimated costs and repot the variances 1o the
Orwner and Architect and shall provide this information in its monthly yeports o the Qwner and Architect. in

accordance with Segtion 2.3.2.7 above,

52,327 In collaboration with the Architect the Construction Manager shall establish and implement procedures for
exnediting the processing and spproval of Shop Drawines, Product Data, Semples and other submittéls - The
Construction Manager shall review all Shop Drawings, Prodoct Data. Samples and other submilials from the
Subcontractors for apparent compliance with subconteact requirements. The Construction Manager shall fransmit to
the Architect those submitials which have been reviewed by the Construgtion Manager. The Construction Manager's
actions shall be taken with such reasonable prompiness as to cause ne delay in the Work or in the activities of the
Crwner or Contractors. The Construction Manager shall receive and process all other subrvinitals required by the
Construction Documents, including certified pavrolls, work plans, safety_plans. periodic schedule updates, and thie

232701 The Construction Manager shall create and maintain a Jog of all submittals showmg ai a minimum, the
dates of submiital, review, and return. disposition, and description,

§ 2.3.284 The Construction Manager shail schedule and conduct meetings to discuss such matters as provedures,
progress, coordination, scheduling, and status of the Work. The Construction Manager shall prepare and promptly
distribute minutes to the Owner and Architect,

AIR Document R134W - 200§ [fommerly AIZI™CMc — 2003). Copyright & 1984, 20602 snd 200Y Hy The American Instiiule of Rechiteccs.
ressrved, WARNING: This AIR® Docwment is pxotected by U.8. Cepywight Lav and Toternational Tr digs. L ized tion om
distributien of this AIA
msnivam extent possible under the law.
expires on $8/15/2010, ard is not for zesale.
User Notes:

All rights

Secument, or smy portion of it, may revelt in sovexs civil and criminal penalties, sud will be prossouted bo the
Phis drafs was produced by AIA sofiware at 11:31:37 on 12/37/200% under Order No.824g226650_1 which

(1956537084

8



AE L] o : il il Camdrah-atis L v T o g

ddabE-Upor-the-Dumers-epprovel-eb-th rob-batineate the-Constrachon-Manaper-shal-propare-ana-Jubreit-d
the Ol A firehi H Fodile farthe Sarc andanbmitinl sabeduledn it Soott

tha-Gwnerar Wteoh-a-consireetionschedule-for-th lean Brnitiel-seheduien-secordanes-wth-Hoston

§2.3.2.96 The Construction Manager shall record the progress of the Project On a monthly basis, or otherwise as
agreed to by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall submit wrilten progress repotts to the Owner and Architect,
showing percentages of completion and other information required by the Owner. The Construction Manager shall
also keep, and make available to the Owner and Architect, a daily log containing a record for cach day of weather,
portions of the Work in progress, number of workers on sife, identification of equipment on site, problems that
might affect progress of the Work, accidents, injuries, and other information required by the Owner.

§ 2.4 Professional Services
Section 3.12.10 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.

& 2.5 Hazardous Materials

Section 10.3 of A201-2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases,  Construction Manager
shall provide immediate written notice to the Owner aud Architect if the Construction Manager discovers the
existence. of any and ali hazardous materfal. including. but not limited to any lead or lead based material ang
ashestos, ashestos-related products including the extent and location of same, Construction Mgnager shall not be
rcsnonsxble for the removal, encapsulation, fransporiation or disposal of any hazardous mdie{_]mglw

S ale

b \ - N
Seatign-L023 rmm 2007 shef-appli-ia-both-the-Presenstruetion-and-Censtruetion- Phases:

¥

§2.6 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER STAFFING Construction Manager shall  staff the Proieet.
Construction Manager shall mpinain one competent full-time superintendent at the Project siie to coordinate and
provide supervision of the Work and progress of the Subconiractors on the Project who shall devote full-time to the
Projest and who, so long as they remain in the employ of Construction Manager or any subsidiary or affiliate
shereof. shall be removed from the Proiect exgest with the prior written consent of the Owmer. B any such
individual is no longer emploved on the Project pursuant $o this paragraph, Construction Mandger s shall proposg o
Owner the names of other individuals as substitutes, Mo person shall be employed on the Profect a3 th whom Owner
has_reasonable objection. If Qwner notifies Construction Manager that it has reasonable objection to any such
individual, Construction Manager shall remove such person fom the Project and propose substilutes to Ovmer for

Owner's approval,

§2.7 CONTRACTOR INSURANCE AND SURETY DOCUMENTS  Constroction Mapager shall secure
Certificates of Insurance, as well as Performance and Pavment Bonds. for each of the Subcontractors immediately
upon award of the Contract and verify conformance of same with the Contract Documents prior te. allé_wim;r the
Subcontraciors onto the Site. Insurance of Subecontractors shalf name Gwner, Construction Manager. and  Archieci
as "Additional Insureds”. Copies of same shail be transmitted fo the Owner and Architect before Subconiramors

may comnience work on the project,

£2.8 SCHEDULE

£2.8.1 Time is of the essence of this contract. Construction Manager, with the Qwner's approval shall establish the
Consiruction Schedule,  Ti is the dutv of the Construction Manager to schedule, segquence and coordinate the
performance, of the Subcentraciors on the Project so that completion shall be in accordance with the Construction

Schedule,

§2.8.2  The Conpstruction Schedule shall commenge with the notice to proceed, and, shall schedule the
Qubcontractors’ Work using a Crijeal Path Method or other scheduling methodolosy aperoved by CQwner,
Construction Manaser shall update_the Project Construction Schedule on 3 monthly bagis to show cwrent and
forecasted prooress and completion, A copy of each schedule shall be transmitied to the Crwner, Architect and each
Subcontracior, Additionally, Construgtion Manager shall develop a look-shead schedile for_discussion at each
weekly construction coordination meeting, The weekly look-ahead shalf, at & minimum, show the schiedule for tie

past week and upeoming two weeks.

ATR Docwmant R134™ - 2005 (fozmerly ALII™CMs - 2003). Copyright © 1994, 2003 and 200% by The mmerican Instivuts of Architects, A1l rights
reserved. WARNING: Phis RIA‘ bocumant is protected by U.5. Copyright bsw and International Tresties. Unauthenissd roprodustion ox

distribution of this Ara’ Document, or any portisn of it, tmy xesult in severe civil and eximinsl penalties, and will ke prosecuted to the 9
mAzimmw extent pessible under the Law. This draft was produced by ATA scftware at 11:32:37 en 12/1%/200¢ under Order vo.8¥461266310 1 vhich
expixes on O8/16/2010, and is aot for resale,

User Hotes: (:496537284)



£2.8.3 a monthly Project Schedule update indicates thal the previously approved Project construction schedule
may not be met, the Construction Manager shall recommend corrective action & the (hwmer,

£2,9 COST RECORDS Consiruction Manager shall verify and mainiain in accordance with generally acvested
acoounting principles detailed cost accounting vecords on suthorized work performed on the basis of unit Cosis.
sctual costs for lzbor and materials and other bases showing il costs, and shall maintaim and transipit to Owner all
ceceints, invoices, purchase orders, cangeled checks, bills of lading and other docyments and svidence of payment
or indebtedness 1o support such records as Owner_mav reguest.  Construction Manager shall audit, vertfv and
cecommend approval of all Change Qrders submitted by Subeontractors. Construction Manager shail afford the

Owner access o these records and preserve them for 2 period of three (31 years afier final payvinent.

§3.90 CONTRACT CLARIFICATIONS

$2.40.1 The Construction Manager shall wansmit to the Architect requests for interprefstions. information. gr
clarification of the meaning and intent of the Drawings and Specifications, and assist in the resolution of guestions

that may arise.

§ 2.18.2 The Construction Manager shall create and maintain a log of all requests showing, at & minimum, 8
description of the reguest, date of submission, response and date of response.

§ 2,11 SUBCONTRTACTOR CHANGE ORDERS

$2.40.1 _Without invalidating this Agreement of any Subconiract, and without nofice fo any respective surety
Owner may_make changes to the Subcontractor coniracts. The Consteuction Manager shall review reguests for
chanoes. assist in negotiating Subganiractors' proposals, submit recommendations to the Architect and Cwner and.,
if they are accepted. prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Irectives which incomorate the
modifications to the Documents, For each change which is anticipated fo be paid by lump sum Construition
Manager shail prepare a detailed estimate for the respective Change Order gr Qonstruction Change Directive
initiated. Construction Manager shall compare the detajled valye estimate with the submittal of the Snheoniracior,
Construction Manager shall_require that each Subconiractor submit_such invoices, purchase -grders, labor and
inaterial records, and schedule analvses as is necessary o verify the accuracy of the Change Cirder or Construction
Change Directive _price and/or _schedule  adiustment.  Construction  Manager shali _submit g "detailed
recommendation for the Qwper's review and approval for each Change Order or Construction Change Diregtive,
Construction Manager_shall systematicallv_maintaip all documentation _supporting_each change and upon
comnletion of the project turn over such documentation fo the Qwner. For the purposes of this paragraph, it is
anticinated that only changes in which schedule consideragons allow the change order price to be apreed prior i
the performance of the change ordey work will be paid Tump sum. It is further anticipated that changes in_which
the chanas order price must be agresd after the change order work is completed will_be paid time and material

reimbursable,

§2.11.2 The Constryction Manager shall create and maintain & log of all requests for changes showing. at a
minimum. date of submission, description of reguest. requested chance in contract nrice, requesied change in
confract time, and disposition. .

8 7.11.3 The Construction Manager shall create and maintain a fog of all approved change orders showing, al &
minimup, dates of approyal. deseription. reason for change, agrged price of change, and agreed chenge of confract

fime.

§52.32 CLAIMS

§2,42.1 The Construction Manager shall assist the Owner and Architect in the revigw, evaliiation and documentation
of Claims. The Qwner shall provide a writien recommendation ta the Owner suggesting the proper disposition of
each claim. Construction Manager shall require that each Subcontracior submit such invoices, puichase orders,
labor and material records. and schedule analyses as is necessary to verify the accuracy &f the Claim_cost and
schedule fmpact. Construction Mavager shall submit a defafled recommendation for the Owmer's review and

approval for exch Clamm,

ATA Docwnent AL34™ - 200¢% (fowmerly ALIZIMOMe - 2003). Copyrighr & 1864, 2003 and 2008 oy The American Institure of Architects. Ril rights
rescrwed. WHRNING: Thisz AIR® is cocted by U,B. Copymig 't Law and Intornational Treaties. Ul hoyitad tion o
distrikution of this HER® Dosument, or any porbion of i, may wesult in ssvere civil and crfuinal penaltias, and will bhe prosecuted to the
maximam sxtest pessible ender tha law., This draft was procuced by AR softwars &t 10:33:37 on 1E/17/Z00% under Order No.AE46125630_1 which
cxpires aon DB/16/7010, and iz not fox cesale.

Usar Notes: {144E6537284}

10



§ 4.12.2 The Construction Manpager shall ereate and maintain 3 log of all Claims showing. at a mindmym, dete of
submission, description of clafm, demanded change in contract price, demanded change in contract time, gnd
disposition.

§2.13 EOUITABLE EXTENSION OF TIME AMD NO DAMAGE FOR DELAY To the exient that
Construction Manager’s Services are delaved by the Owner or causes not under control of Construction Manager
the Contragt Time shall be equitably extgnded.  Such extension of the Contragt Time shall be Construction

Manager’s sole and exclusive remedy.

approve and coordinate the safetv orograms developed by each of the Subcontraciors: Neither the Owmer,
Construction Manager, nor the Architect is responsible for Site Safety. The individual subcontracts shall provide
that the subcontractors are solely responsible for the means and methods of prosecuting theil respective work, The
foreoning shall not relieve Subcontractors of their responsibility for site safety for their work and the work

performed by their persorned,

§2.185 QUALETY CONTROL

& 2151 Construction Manager shall Inspect the Work of Subconiractors for defects and Seficiencies inthe Work in
crder 1o assure compliance with the requirements of the Costract Documents. As appropr: we. the Construction
fdanager shall have suthority. upon written anthorization frpm the Ovmer. to require additional inspeetion of testing
of the Woik in sccordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not such Work is fabricated,
installed or completed. The Construction Manager. in consultation with the Architect and (wner, mav reject Work
which does net conform to the requirements of the Contract Doguments, ’

£2.i52 The Construction Manager shall assist the Cwner in obtaining from the respongible Su_bcantraém_;

correction of all nortions of the project which do_not comply with the Contract Documents or do not Conferm with
eood workmanlike performance. o T

current set of acourate As Buih Drawings and Specifications clearlv marked o show reported actual chanpes during
construction, Construction Manager shall ansmit a copy of all As Built drawings and specifications to Architéet
for the preparation of final As Built Documents. _Constraction Matager shall periodicallv {not less than monthiy}
review Subeoniractors” data o verify that they are recording information sufficient 10 allow preparation of the Ag

$2.17 SUBMISSION OF PROJECT BOCUMENTS Prior to final payment at the completion ol ihe Proiget, the
Construction Manaser shall inventory and turn over ig the Cwner one copy of the following: Record/As Buill
Dirawines and Specifications prepared by the Architect, the daily Jog. progress reports project manual, fleld orders
change orders. reguests for changes, requests for information. claims, Subcontfactor pay applications
communications. submittals, and sl other Construciion Documents. ; !

£718 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE TRAINING AND MANUALS Consiruction Mansger shall
arrange and schedule onerating and maintenance fraining on mechanical, electrical and other systems for Owner's
nersonnel by factory awthorized representatives commencing upon start-up and the cominissioning of each-gvstem
nrior to substantial completion. Construction Manager shall receive all operating and mairieniance manyals from
Subconiractors. and. alone with the Architect, shall review for completeness, clarity. and conformance with the
respective contraci doguments.  After all operations and maintenanes manuals are received and approved, buti no
later than turnover of operations to Owner personngl. Construction Manaper shail transmi{_all approved operatigns

and maintenance manuals fo the Owner,

' - { Formatted: Font: Bold

§ 2,50 PERFORMANGE AND PAYMENT BONDS Construction Manager shal! obtain payment and performancebondsin -7 { Formatead: Fort. Bo

Formatted: Font: {Default) Times New Roman,
Not Bold

‘f Formatted: Normal

ATR Document R134™ ~ 2003 (fommarly AL31™mde — 2003}, Gopvright O 1854, 2003 apd 2005 hy The hperican Imstitute of Architects. RIL rights
reserved, WAMNING: This AIA° Docwwsnt is protected by ©B.§. Gopyright bLaw and Intersational T:'aties. Unautherizsd reproduntion or

distribution of this AIA® Docmment, o any portion of &b, may Tesult in severe civil and erimdnsl ponaltias, and will be prostguted Lo the i1
i wntent possible undse the law. This draft wes produced by ATA softwsre atx 11r31:37 on 12/37/2005 under Ordes No. 6248126610 1 which
expires on 08/16/2010, and iz not for resals,
Yser Hotes:

accordance with Artiele 11 ofthe Genersl Conditigns. .
. {

11496539284

L SPPP N S,



ARTICLE 3 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 3.1 Information and Services Required of the Cwner

§ 3.4.1 The QOwner shall provide information with reasonable promptness, regarding requirements for and limitations
o the Projeci-netedinge W%Wam-wm%uwmmw }&‘ﬂ%wé&%%%ﬁﬁﬁ&mﬁﬂﬁé@?%ﬁ&

mmeluding-sehedule spuce-regquiremente-and relationahips-fexibilitp-and-expandabilityspoatel-equprmentoysiems
sustainebilitend sie roguirements.

5354 Priorto-the Ownersapprovabefthe Control 'sux,.m‘w, Fihi-seven-deys-of reserving-the Swners-written
] ind rat razeered Taa s Lloeniom ”)’7 1 Bion fen INTEN T A L 3 Az ity f!“n LI AT

ackn smertrequired-by-Seetion the-Seonatreetion-bMeregerrany-roguestiwriting-that th Hef

w&d@%@%&&%&e—w@eneﬁha%e—@we%m&%ﬁ reneiat-arrangemenis-to-falfill the Gwner s-ebligations
underthe-Centrast-—Thereafterthe Construction-Managermay-enty-roquest-such evidenee-i-tl) the Owner failate
sake-payments-to-the Construehion-Manageras-the-Contraer-Doeamenis-require; (2-}-&65%%&- inrthe-Werk
meteria-ehongesthe-Contruet-Sumor 3 the Construction-Manageridentifies-in-writing-e-reasenable coneern
regavding-the-Owners-ability-to-make-paymentwhen-due—The-Cwner sha%%«ﬁammhﬁ&e#efﬁém&eﬁémeﬁ
prosedentio-commencement-or-continuation-o Fthe- Wer-or thepertisn-efthe-Weds e footed bya-matenial-ehange:
Afier-the-Dwmerforaishes-the-swidencerthe- Dvwaer-shall- not-meteralhyvarysueh-financiel-arrongements-wathow

prier-notice-to-the Construstion-Monagerand-Arehiteet:

§3.1.3 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the
budget for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1.1, {2} the Cwner’s other costs, and (3} reasonable
contingencies related 1o all of these costs. If the Owner s%mfcanliy increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for
the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall notify the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect,
in consultation with the Construction Manager, shali thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the budget for the
Cast of the Work or i the Praject’s scope and guality.

§ 3.1.4 Structural and Environmentat Tests, Surveys and Reporis. During the Preconstruction Phase, when reguested
by the Construction Manager, the Owner shall furnish the following information or services with reasonable
prompiness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and relevant
to the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness afler recetving the
Construction Manager’s writien request for such information or services. The Construction Manager shall be entitfed
to refy on the accuracy of information and services furnished by the Ovwner but shall exercise proper precautions
refating to the safe performance of the Work.

§ 3.1.4.1 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law and as otherwise agreed to by the
parties, such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous

materials.

§ 3.1.4.2 The Gwner shall furmish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limilations and wility locations
for the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjeining property and structures; desxgsnated wetlands;
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and
contours of the site; Jocations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements
and trees; and information concerning 2vailable utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark,

§ 3.1.4.3 The Ovwner, when such services are requested, shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may
nclude but are not limited to fest borings, test pils, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests,
evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, meludmg
necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations.

§ 3.1.44 During the Construction Phase, the Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by
the Contract Documents with reasonable prompiness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services
under the Cwner’s control and relevant to the Construction Manager's performance of the Work with reasonabie
prompiness afler receiving the Construction Manager’s written request for such information or services,

§ 3.2 Owner's Designated Representative
Tire Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Owner with respect fo the Project. The
Owner’s representative shall render decisions promptly and furnish information expeditiously, so as to avoid

AIA Document H134% - 2009 {formerly RL31™CMc - 2003). Copyright % )19%9, 2003 and 2053 by The hmerican Institute of hrchivests. RL1 rights
resexved, MARNING: This 2In7 Docuwent is protectad by U, Copyright Law and Internstionzl Trestiss. Uneautherized reproduction or

isteibution of this BXA” Documsnt, or any pextion of it, may result in severe eivil and sriminsl penslties, and will be prosscuted to the 12
manimam extent pessible uedes the law, This draft was produceg by AIR software ap :1:31:37 on :2/17/200% under Order No. §346126510_1 which
expires on 08/16/2830, and is net for resale.
User Botes:

{144€537289)



unreasonable delay in the services or Work of the Construction Manager. Except as otherwise provided in Sectien
42,1 of A201-2007, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” mieans the Owner or the
Owner’s authorized representative.

§3.2.1 Legal Requirements. The Owner shall furnish all legal, msurance and accounting services, including auditing
services, that may be reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests

§d-3-Archilest
TheOwner-shallrelainan-Architect toprovide serviees-duticsand-respenstbiitiesss-desestbad A Dosument
B 1@31“—29&%%&&&&—?%—9%%@-%1%%{ Bf*wwﬁf@wm%aﬁém%ﬁtee{mme%ad#ﬂﬁ &ﬂyﬁé@%’é’;@ﬁﬁéjﬁ%@&%*ﬁ

raguested-oy-thi asirsetion-Mepngerthet are-necessary-forthe-lreeonatruetion-and %ueﬁe{}é—hﬁse-&ew-ee%
wnder-this-Agreament—he Cumershell prowvideth nalFeston-kian py-of he wtad-apraoment

Ww&h&@wm#é%h&%hﬁ%%&w%@mq@dmmm&aﬁmmr

ARTICLE 4 COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR-PRECONSTRUGTHON BHASE BERISES

§ 4.1 Compensation

§ 4.1.1 Forthe Gonstroetion-Munnger’s Preconstruetion-Lhase-serviess£Fhe Owner shall compensate the
Construction Manager as follows:

‘The Construction Manager will be compensated for sl items depicted on the Cost Assigniment (attachcd‘herﬁzto as
Attachment ) as being included in “CM Fee,” “CM Reimbursable,” and “Direct Cost of the Work.” The portions
of Constructior ; b ealel and paid az Tollows

3. Edrect Cost of the Work as enummerated in Article 6 herein, IDirect Cosi of Work includes work performed
by trade contractors, Construction Manager shall be comgenqated for the Direct Cost of Work ona

moathly basis. No mafk-up will be allowed on the Dhrect Cost of Work,

B dAd-Forthe-Conaly H Is-Preconstcuction Phase-services-deseribed-in-Sections- Tob-and 23

WWH@%&MWWW%MM@WM&%WWWW
G

g}@%ﬂh@-@%ﬁ@@ﬂM%%MLW@WWWHW%M%W@HMH& S
compensation-for-Proconstrustion-Phase-serviees-shall be-equitably-adiusted-

§4.1.4-Compensation-based-en Dirsct Borsennol Expense ineludes the-direct salasies-of the Construction-Mannger'a
personnel-providing Preconstruetion-Phase-servicesandtho Construction-Menogers-costu-for the mandalory and
emawﬁmwﬁmmﬁ%mﬁmmm é&wm&e&h&%&%&%@wﬁme

sxa il

tentea balidaig ., 5, = e

£ oy \'E wlans .
BERSHHS HISUTEREE SO ICRYEROHAAYS; etions-emploves-retirament plansandsimilarconts a‘é-re»i-?

§ 4.2 Payments
§4.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed.

§ 4.2.2 Payments are due and pavable vpen-thirty days following presentation of the Construction Manager™s
invoice, unless Owmer properly obiecis to the invoice. or portion thereof within said thirty davs..AlLinteresion
improperty paid invoices shall be calculated in accordance with the Hlinois Local Governmient Prompt Pavment
Act —Ameustsuapaidc-Cirsrrdavs-efier-tha-fnveise-date shall-bear-interest-at-the-rale-entered-belovior-bthe

pr

@

+ Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 +

Numbering Style: 1, 2,3, ..+ Startat: 1 +
alignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Tab
after: 0.5 + Indent at; 0.5"

h { Formatted: Tab stops: Notat 0.5"

ATh Document ALIS™ - 2009 (fume:,ly R131™CHe - 2003) . Copyright © 19%4, 2002 and 200% by The American Institute of Architests. Rl xights

reserved. WRRNING: This MA Docwment iz protected by U.8. Copyright Lav and Internatienal Freatiecs. Unausherized repreductian ox

distribution of this DIA® Demusnt, o any portion of it, may reswlt in severe civil snd crimisal pepalties, and will be peosscutad &0 the
This draft was produced by REIA softwage st 11:31:37 on 12/17/2005 under Ordsr Mo, 65461766156 1 whielk

manimm extent possible uadsx tha law.
expires on 08/1€/2010, and i norv for resale.
User Retes:

11446537284)

13



y ! £ rtesrevpilinm-fom dim men i T
absence thereataithelegalunie proveiing from-time-to-Hime et the principal plaes-of businesse

(Insert rate of monthly or anmial interest agreed upon.)

e Yt
ARTICLE 5 SOMPENSATION FOR-CONSTRUCTION FHASE SEIMCES

F"i“ $ha oo 1. s T B ovimm e e o, i'—‘H-. 35 | PRIV P 3 IO AP : b e S C 4 VPR far 1] sk
§8.4 Fortho-Construeonhionager s performance-of selcas-deseribedn-Seetion2-3the alseth-pay-th
é@?ﬁﬁi&ﬁ%mﬁ—m&we{,@ﬁ%fﬁ%&k}&%m funds-forthe-enstruation-Maneger s pertormes fthe
Eeysatorrod . Foaa EAT] 3 Nt o g SETerls au AdedTend fe 6 . R AN R %) 3 M L4 :
“animet-The-Contreet-Sum-is-the-Gost-of the Work ax-defined-in-Seation -6 b b-plus-the- Constraction-]
£ 544 The-ConstructionManager s-Hees

) 7. o 1, T3S et o thhape, ;a7 el Fars gl 53 A
{State-wlump-swmiperceriage el osi-of-the-Worlorother-provision-for-determiningthe-Construction-Manager
£oe:)
o
& 852 The-methed ol adjustment-of the-Construction-Menager s-Feeforchenges-in-the Worle:
]

§53 Limitatonsif any-on-a-Subcontractors-overhead-and-profit for inerenses-in-the-sest-elits-partienof the

ey
%é%&%%mﬁw@ewm%mg%m—eﬁip nishel-rot d-sir-pereent-n-Yop-ofth
-] 4, rdd ot ik £ 2k 12 :

standard-ratepafd-stihe-plase-of the Projeet:
%@%UW&P&W

L) o Atz flao ferso e i, T b3, o aafoioly ol i :, LA iz, bla )
Haemtif-ana-siatethownit-prioor-uiate-the-guantity-Hmitatioms-ifamy—te-whish-themit pries-will-be-applicable:

e Helts-and-Hnitations Brlop-per-Hnit (50000

4 5.3 Changes in the Work
5531 The Qwner may. without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the

Contract consisting of additions, deletions or ether revisions. The Owner shall issue such changes in wiiting: The
Architect mmay make minor changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4 of AIA Pocument A201-2007, General
Conditions of the Contract for Construction, The Construction Manager shall be entitled to anequitable adiustment
in the Coniract Time as a result of changes m the Work, '

& 532 Adusiments to the Construction Manager's compensation on account of changes in the Work -may be
determined by any of the inethods {isted in Section 7.3.3 of AIA Document A201-2007, General Conditions of the

Contract for Construction.

§ 535 If no specific provision is made in Section 5.1.2 for adjustment of the Construction Manager's Fee in the case
of chanees in the Work, or if the extent of such changes is such. in the ageregate. that application of the adjustment
provisions of Section 5.1.2 will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Construction Manager, the Construction
Manager's Fee shall be equitablv adjusted on the same basis that was used to establish the Fee for the original Work
and the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be adiusted aceordingly,

&.8.2 Ghanges in-the Werk

mehe%wmw{wwm Wemmmm@mﬂeemwe
Clonir r- Adiir 3 1 P £ ,\.{'\ Jaoiloi RS PN o
nirast consisting dittensdeletions-er-others R Ovener-shell-issue-sush-chenpestn-vritng-The

KIA Docwnant R134™ ~ 2009 (formerly A13i%Mc - 20033 . Copyright & 1894, #0083 and 2005 by The American Instituis of Architocts. All rights
veserved . VARNING: This ATH" Decumsnt if protacted by U.5. Copyright Lew and Intarhational Treatiss. Unsuthorized roproduction or

Zintribmbion of ihis ATA® Documant, of avy portiom of it, may Toswlt in sevems civil and criminal panslties, and will be prosscsted to the 14
maxiium eXtent possibie unden the law. This draft wes produced by AIA software at 31:31:37 on 32/17/2609 under Order Ne.§3¢€12881C 3 which
expirass on 88/16/7010, and i= not for zesals.

Usar Notes! {1466537284)



Bon 0 P 1Y naa ps gy b I saa_i R PO PR o den ez JiA P | Vi olam . .
ibe-Cont hve-aearesulb-of-changes-tn-th sle-Fhe-Censtruction-Moanager-sheth-ineorperate-al-changesin
21 s T N : S "~ :
the-Werk and-Contaet-Trmeas-Separate-eniries- irthe- Control-Estimate:
B & 5y h Py 3 i g Fo i 4] 1 AT sk an 3h L 33
5 &3 % tnerensed-eoste-for-the-femoe-cotforth-in-Seetions 6-1-through -6 that-result-frem-changes-n-the-Were shalt
become part-oithe Costof the Werlcand-the Constructien-hensger’s-Fee shall be-adjusted-as provided-in-Section
z e a {0, % 1 e & 15, L et 3 Iy e ;. o,
55823 H the-Construction-Mansger receives-any-Bravdnas-Speetiicationsmicrpretations-sr-tastruetionsfrom-th
Ohyenm o A b inty maeo - ‘qt LT3 N) P o ko iz gae, e iz oagmbEny 21 el ot
ner-ar-faehitest-wikich-pra-meansistentwith-the-Conlrast SISO wiers-unantibipated-conditions;
RO N i nls s si el I 3 iy a SlAPY : H
aiy-etvihichwill result in-a-significent charge-is the Gest-of the Werk-or estimated-dote-oF Subniantiah- Complation
iy ey e inen S e} Foos TC PR S N 3 badnmamas oball thop matifi: oo hare pad f makiaod
mpu“ son-weit-the-Contrat Botimate the Conslmetien-bansger shall- promptby-notify-dh ner-and-Arohit
i1, ol claall oo el saiel th 43 A %% Lrgmie] tha £ trenir, B rt w3 et s Sy g
inwiriting-and-shatbnetpre vith-the g s nitl-the-Censtueten Mensgerreoebns further writen

instreetensirem-the Owmerand-Architest

Tt P J i P~ i1 s PRy P! P ans
Skd-H-nespesifie-prevision-ismede-n-Section-S--foradivstment o the Construchion-Manager s Fee tn-the-ease
of-changes-ta-the-Werlg-er-if-the-enient-of-sueh hm rpes-is-giehrin-the-nggregat ,‘J"M appHeation-ofth wjdﬁmeﬁ-é
T oReY 48 : £330 il NI Lzl st totha ) £ 4 o R Ao £ o e T 43
istons-of-Sectien will-eanse-substantiah-ineguity-te-the Ovwmeror-Genstruction-Manaper-th tepetion

M&gﬁg&p—a—i:e@«MW&MyMwMEMMWWWM%&@MM@ML%&

ARTICLE 6 BHRECT COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE

§ 6.1 Costs to Be Reimbursed
§ 6.1.1 The ters “Direct Cost of Work” or "Cost of the Wark” shall mean the Construction Bdenager's

{,am pensation for the proper performance of trade Subcomracts assisned to Constructmn Manag Wy aﬁer Qub

§ guenn Lo then
rattih-aot .u&u PR TR SEREAT - PEE-AE-E e o

exeept-with-prior-consent of-the- Owner The Costef the Werk shat-inelude-only-the-ftema-set-forth-m-Sestiens &4

1 gl Ao M I laea gfth

Tyt
tREFFOIECE

§6.1.2 Where any cost is subject to the Owner’s prior approval, the Construction Manager shall obtain this approval
prior to incurring the cost.

[+ NS L. i sl = 1 et g o nandd b tha L0 e, A e sfomema th .
A -Weges-of conptraction-werkers-girectly-ermpleyad-by-the-Construstion-1 orm-the-construction
{ H AT 2 A 0 Yralbs

£ihe Wosk-at-the-site-of-vwith-the Ovwaner's-prier-approvah-at-off-sie-workehops

L2 ages-orsalarien ot the- Construction Managsr’s-supervsorsondadmint ve-personnehwhen-stetioned-at
the-siteath-the-Gwner's-priorapprovak

(EAFTIR R S TR ELE Y| £ha, 1 o Jozges, £ b T ond A i (O Jfaz :
At iris-intended-that-the-wages-orsalarier-of-certalnpersonmel stationed at the-Const naipe
r il Ao [} I T Y R Y. e (‘ulma Y oade. St opadidis fae L 4 Lt 5k N PP o )

7 R uJ_,- PR T E I Gimd G L) AR R L 7 S = L S e e T i PR E L

gl el 7, e 2P Lre A7 f-!wb,. Fagats ileod & iEE 7. ) ¢, I mgede ) .
rhotherfor-all-arenly-parof theltime-avd the vetes-atwhich-thetv-me-witl-be-charg the- Mok,

&Gt Wages nnd salosies-of-the Construetion-Mansger's supetvisory-eradmimistative-porsotinelengaged-at
%mwm}m@wmw&mﬁﬁgﬁwﬁﬁmr%mmww%w@ﬁm

L o S0
i

LU RIS PR 4k 241 s ey
Fabp-Dt uux_-,- TOPERaE BEoN- ST e - HN e TOgHTOR- 2O

=) by,
FOGEHFOE-TOT Y

§.6:24 Costopaid-or-ineurred-by-the Constraetion-Manager-for-lanes insurance: eontsibutions  assessments-and
%MW%%%WWW%W%%@WWMVWW

eﬁmﬁ_@eﬁ . anciek dan Aianl oo d boalil b helid e o ) Yed arpal
fis-sueh-pe-sick-legvemedical-ana-neathroeneiis, REHGAYE-VASAHORI SRE-PONBIONRS PROVIGEE-SHER
4. soned o va indmnineac dnolvdad fn dhe 0 PP & ROV dor-Sactio 3 tho k. . 7
SES-AFE-OR WEESs-HRE-eRReS-Rel e el SF-eFn SRR DEetons PeUER <

BE25 Benusesrprofitsharing neentive-compensation-and-any-other-diseroHanary {amﬁ&%ﬁm{mﬁﬁm@
by-the-Gonstroetion-Menagerer-paid-to-omy-Bubesntracter orvendorwith-the-Owners prior-approvek:

§ 6.2 Subcontract Costs
Pavinenis made by the Censtruction Manager o Subcontraciors and sunpliers in accordance with the reguirsments

of the subcontracts shall be reimbursed. In turn, reimbursements from Subcontractors shall be credited 10 the
Cwner Paymentsmade-by-the-Construction-Managerte-Subsonizactor-in-aecerdanse with the-requiteinenis-of the
spbeontraeti:

AIA Docwrent AL34™ - 2E0S {formerly BLI1™CMc ~ 2003} . Copyright & 1594, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of hrchitects. Ril rights
resnrved. WARNING: ¥his AIR' Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Intarnatiensd 1tier. Uneathord tion ox
Aistribution of this AYA" Document, or any portien of it, WAy resudt in severe mivil and criminal pesaltiss, and will ha prosecubed be tha
panimum axtent possible wnder the Iaw. This dxaft was produced by AL sofrware at §1:31:37 en 12/17/2009 undel Order Ne.88S51Z8610_31 which
expizes on 98/16/2610, and i3 net for resale.
Usor Notes:

11498537284}

15



§%M%ﬁ%@%&%ﬁ&%ﬁ@%@&%%@%@é%mh&%§w%mw
§ 544 Coms-neluding transpertasion-and stomperef muteriolo-and-equipment-inoorpotated- o5 ¢ be-ineorpernied-in
she-completed-construction:

R(‘A’)F‘ o e tnern oo shned dan sk Ay © TN, 2 U T W e " T, oo 1l -;i!r!- i3] £
Ad-Gestrelmeteniels-deseribed-in-thepr ing Seation-6-4-ioxeess of those astarlly-mstelied 4o atowor
ol nub* woste shd-spatlepeUnused enesss materialor i any-shell become-the Grumer™s preperty- -athe
mpletion-of the Warl-er at the-Suneris-option; shell bre-g0id by-the-ConstructionManagerfopy-prounts reatized
Fl

Frormguah-salershal-bo-creditetd-to-the Gumerasa-deduetion-Fronrthe-Cost-of-the Worle

@é%@%sf@m%mam%ﬂm%%wjﬁmwmm%wa

6:5.9-Costsof transporiationstoragerinstalintion et _dismenttingandremoval-of tnateriels sapplies

Wmﬁahﬁeswmub;;x.J Fi-SEHE RS u“d hand-tosienetcusiomarily-owned by-construction-workers-thet-are
s AL d'E 2 Db 3™ el A yon thy 1 Joom 1% A ook £

provid metruetion-Mansgerat the-siie and-fully-eensumed in the performance-oT-th~wone t3-6f

tourint sy By oo bt L sxdlton e ok ot dralles A sl o binsad
materialsrsupplies; temporary-aeilities; machinerysquipment-and-teole-thet-are not-fuliy SORNUMEE SAM-BE RS
a-the cosi-orvalue-of the flem-at the time-itHis rst-used-on-the Project-site-Jess-thealue-of-the-Hem-whenit BRE
1 . At il Beoinot ot Llocte & i . Daddx e A barr 23 hﬂs{‘!n- LW all ﬁa'l‘}"
longerused-at the Prejest stier-Costs for-lemsnot-fully consumed by te-Construchion-Menager-sntsm

saset-vaboe:

1 slez
BSHSRGT RBEE

ided-by-the-Construetiontanaper ot the-siie-and-eosts-et-transportation;

s ok A.th \? gy fan aldo stoen  EEod El oyt B A, . 3 1
ey d-the poarehase paea-of-any comparabletiem-Rales-of-Consty Manag ped-equip
quaniiies ment-shall besubieetio-the- Ovmeris-priorapproval

§6.5.4 Coste-of document reproductionsfaesinrHe-tronsmissions sndleng-distance-telephonscalls-postageond
1 Al RO ik Jemrs arn 23 thon o e £ 1 (e £ih, i Exay
pareel-debiveneherges-telepheneserviee ot the site-and-reasonable petty-cash-sxpondes ol the-prifrasiae:
BER Tl k1 dmtln I Labo L0 ey 'y LR 3 lavn tws ko da s
5 Thet-portien-ot-the perser-ofthe-Constructon-Maneger s Supervisory-or- et b
\ 1 11N 1 Airalrose kit a A LS ot
porsermeh-tneurred-whiletraveting-in-discharge-of-duti nnectedwith-the-Werk
§8.5.4-Costsof materials-and-equipment soiiably-stored £ ihe site-at-amutuaiby-seeeptrble-lesatien; subjeet-to-th
Eramerls-priorapprovel-
§ 6.6 Miscellaneous Reimbursabie Costs
W&Mmﬂwmﬂéﬁ -?e-atmﬁeé by-the Contraet-Dosumenis-that-ean-be-direet]
flarstad £ Salfinsura selae B0l or atpetinl cae capate o 45 wiired haoy ;
atiributed-te-this- CentraetSelf-nsuran sither-full-or partial-anrewntis-ef the-eoveragas roguired by the-foontr
pa Y £, JET TN T i X 2 i
Bosumentswith-the-Ownerls priorapproval
§6.6.2 Setesuse-or-similarlones-irapesed by o gevernment ertherity-thatarerelated-to-the-Weorlcand forwhiehth

§6.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and inspections for which the
Construction Manager is required by the Contract Documents to pay

§ 6.6.4 Pecs of laboratories for tesis required by the Contrac: Documents, except those related to defeétive or
nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded by Section 13.5.3 of AIA Document AZ01-2007 or by
other provisions of the Contract Documents, and which do not {al} within the scope of Section 6.7.3.

REEDR ATTFY .t oyt ik £ i A“S{ o, Araad fxipod Tz vb i by o,
R T A e T e e T S L TEL-O-f ymu HAF-GOMHERTPFS FProaner o Ay SiHract
Y P T Y oL o el G i iy o ds wipshba mriaina i ol
EEUERET It B FERE-SOHS-OF-SBi - TO TN E PRS- PareRT AEMS GRS S atisls S \.fuu ey

%h&-@eﬂﬂ-&&l—@%ﬁiﬁ@ﬁ%‘&“&ﬂé—wmﬁﬁﬂé@ﬂﬁ ﬁ%e@ﬂmmeg&}jﬁég%ﬁhﬁg&mﬁ—ﬁ&% “enstructien-bianager

'F@'ﬂﬁ‘i’l‘ 5 3o dn ara st H 4 t3 £ L 3 stk tha O LT H e%%
5 gé S-SR S BT ARG PAVIACRE- G i tHeptentsred PR e VIO I EAREY i

£1 i3 #'eﬁ o3 ot 1 Lokl Looamelnded-dn-the solaslntine !« f’n ey pndid e
costs-oflegat-def tudEments-and-settlements-shelbpotbe-included-in-the calevlation-oi-the-Construshien
S ] T o . 3 P 3 PERaary 9 3 ‘ .
Menegers-Fee- such-rovaltios-foosand-eosts setuded-by-the-last-sentenes-of Bestion 3.17uf”" Todument
AT YT o PR Pt of FRENTT> Ik £73 E; booa okl igas o tmaladod fe tles o S B o]
AM-200F -or-atherprovisions-efthe-Contraet Documentsthen-they shelnotbe-neludea-in-tne-Cost-6in
7 :

ATA Document ALIS™ - 200F (faunazly A131™CHe - 2003} . Copyrighs & 1594, 2081 and 2009 by The Amerizarn Institute of mrohitects. AlL rights
reserved, WARNFRG: This ALR® Daocument is protectad Dy U.S. Copymight Law and Fnternational fresties. Unauthoriged reproduction or

dintributien of this AIA' Document, o any portien of if, may vesult in sever: civil sod criminsl pemaleies, and will he proseouted bo the
romxizmnn eitent possible under the Lavw. his draft was produced by ATA software 2t 11:3 $37 on 12/17/2009 under Order Mo, £226126810 3 which
expites on DB/16/2D10, and ia not far resale.

User Hotes: 11946537284}

16



A Al A P Jemrgenn ko : £ {.gof s i s 1 o, de_an i S on f ) 1o b
i i R el R AR e e £ P -5 PRST-appreves

i G- TSI S S ST SGUTRINER- BHE-S '

Gef-Brepstiy-tost-forcanses-ather than-the-Censtrustien-Mensgers-neghpence-or fadlure-to- Rl spesifio

w&&@m&b#ﬁw%&ea&m&%em@m

meéa&%mﬁmc%m%m&m %ﬁ%mﬁﬁémga&eﬁ%ﬁ—&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%&%ﬁeﬁﬁﬁﬁg&@m@wf%%%w&wm @WH@?
and-ConstructionManagarrreasonably-inearred-by-the- Construction-Meneper sfler the-enesution-ef this-Agreerment
iﬁ—ﬁee—;aWM-WM&WW%&@WWW%&%WWWW%WWM&

5 6:8:5-Bubjeatta-the-Bwner's-prisr-approvel-expenses-ineurred-in-acesrdance with-the-Censtruction-fMansges
W;Wﬁmmmm%fwmmmWﬁqwmwmem@%
persannelrequired-for the Werk:

§ 6.7 Other Costs and Emergencies
§6.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and 1o the extent. approved by C hange Grder with the
Ovmer. Othercoste-inenred-in-theperformaneeofthe Wor L and to-the edentappreved inadveneeinwriing by

Hie-Llwmner:

§6.7.2 Costs incurred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting
the safety of persons and property, as provided in Section 10.4 of AIA Docuoment A201-2007.

§ 6.7.3 Cosis of repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by the Construction Manager,
Subcontractors or suppliers, previded that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not caused by negligence or
faiture to fulfilt a specific responsibility of the Construction Manager and only to the extent that the cost of epairior
correction is not recovered by the Construction Manager from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors, suppliers; or
others

§6.7.4 The costs described in Sections 6.1 through 6.7 shall be included in the Cost of the Work notwithstanding any
provision of ALA Document A201-2007 or other Conditions of the Contract which may reguire the Construction
Manager to pay such costs, unless such costs are excluded by the provisions of Section 6.8,

5 5.8 Costs Hetto-Be Relmbussed
5684 The Cost-of the Wereshallnot-melude-the-fems-Hstod-belew:

-Salaries-and-other compensation-of the Construchion Manager s personnelstattoned-at-the:
Geﬁﬁ%%ﬂ&ﬁ%@%@ﬂ%&&pﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%@@ﬁ&%%%mﬂ#mm@«mp%ﬁwﬁy
providedin-Sectien-bul-or-atmay-be-provided-in-Aetiele-14s

Hmwwmimwehwwﬁaﬁwmww%@emwemﬂ%@

#—Oerhead-and-genorab-enpentes-enseptas-may-be-anprossiy-ineiuded-in-Sestions-6- Hthrough 67
b The-ConsirostionManagerscapital expenses-ineludingrterest on-the Construetion-Manager’s
capiatemploved-for-the-Werly

w—hneept-asprovided-n-Section-6&:7-3-of this-Agreement-costs-due-to-theneghgeneeor Fribure-ofthe
Ceonstruetion-Maneger-Subeontraciors-and supphiers-eranyons-direstly-erindivecth-amployed-byany
of thewrer-for-whoese-asty-any-ef them-may-bo-Hable-to-fulfilba spreifie responsibilifrofthe Contractt

£ Lay-post-aoi-spectically-snd-enpreshy-deeribed-in-Bestions-G--throush-6-Frand

R Castefor-sorvices-ineurred-duringthe-Proconsiructen Phase:

§ 6.9 Discounts, Rebates and Refunds

§ 6.9.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Construction Manager shall acerue {0 the Owner 4
before making the payment, the Construction Manager included them in an Application for Payment and received
payment from the Owner, or (2} the Owner has deposited funds with the Construction Manager with which o make
payments, otherwise, cash discounts shail accrue to the Consiraction Manager. Trade discounts, rebates, refunds and

RIA Document AL3IGY - 2009 {formarly Al31%Me - 2003}, Copyright © 1584, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institwte of Rrchitects. RIL rights
reserved WARHING: This AYA" nNosuwmsnt 55 protected by U.8. Copyright Law ond Intermational Prenties. Unamuthorized repredustien or
Docwmmant, or eny porticn of it, may result in sovers civil and eximinzl peonalties, and will be prosscuted to cha

Qiseribution of this ATA"
produced by AIR scftware at 11:31:37 on 12/37/2005 under Ordsr No, B245126610_ 1 which

maxirmm entent possible vader the law. This draft wes
axpires on DE/1E/2010, and is net for resale.

User Rotes: (14965372647

17



amounts received from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Construction
Manager shall make provisions so that they can be obtained.

§ 6.8.2 Amounts that accrue to the Owner in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.9.1 shall be credited to the
Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.

é}@%@»ﬁ%m@aﬂgima%s%
f"iﬁ'ir £ 4o G0 kg LI o bttt adn g EE ooy o Frrz e raae EX PR @i
rpurposes-ofSection 610 the termr-Yrelated-pariy™shatbmean-a perentsubaidinms-affiliote-oroth

ﬁakﬁy»hwm@e@m%&ﬁh@%mﬁﬁﬁ@m%%&h%@m&&a%%&%&m entite-ti-which-ary
Sy

=4, felanld EE A N A £ Wﬁa{s A > e £.5
FESHEROEDT-HI- O IMERaECment Anp» i ag 231 ST TR B RSB TRErEsT- R & SRR L

the-agaregator Grany-persen-orentiy-whiel hmm@h%t&eeﬂ%%b@bwﬂbﬁs@%@w»ﬁ{&e@w%eﬁm
Masager-Fhe-term-“related-paryineludes sny-merber of the-dmmediste-omily ofanvepursen-identified-abeve:

£ B e, o It

by HSTFRE TR QEE-B-FEIRLE

o=

1) to-bereimby i et AeHeA-HEEVeER
FRE-EB 5t e-b imbursed-aris e FaRGIeHGHR 2t

parys-the Conshuetond ﬁﬁ&gﬁ—&hﬁ%ﬁ@%W&h&@Wﬁ%@Hh&%ﬁeﬁﬁﬁaMeﬂ@ﬁ%&ﬁW&d%m%ﬁﬁﬁ
mm%mwwaﬁtmmmmﬂﬁ%m%mdmm@mhﬂmﬁ

agRated-o meurred-H-the-Gwnerafler such-potifientionsavthorizes ti. - propesed-ransaction: then-the

Mmaiéﬁmmée&m&mb»m 4 rueton-Manag . te-Shderk,

4 g It tho valas Slanbs o ot I Lo n A g

equipmentgoeds-or-serviee-frony-thevela qw‘,,umuw ntpetorracesrding-te-the-terms-of Seelions-252-1
i 34 B 1,4"1'1’)1 [EATATON T Frgle i 1 .-- nfi-\ i oot tha Tamatrmaets oy cemgcriag UL PXTI) 7N
32 2and S wefilate etz on,th nstruction Mensger-shidh-prosure-th i
i Gm‘és—vfhew%&meﬁc%e%ﬁ&

s M M T e N S A'?'!’)'!

Srni oo B

§ 6.11 Accounting Records

The Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed records and accounts refated to the cost of the Work and
exercise such controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract and to substantiate
al! costs incurred. The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the OQwner. The Owner and the
Owner’s auditors shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access 10, and shall be
permitted o audit and copy, the Consiruction Manager’s records and accounts, inchuding complete documentation
supporting accounting entries, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracis, Subconiracter’s
proposals, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating 1o this Contract. The Constraction
Manager shall preserve these records for a period of thres years after final payment, or for such longer period as may

be required by law.

SERVICEE

ARTICLE7 PAYMENTSFE

§ 7.1 Progress Payments
§7.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitied to the Architect by the Construction Manager and

Certificates for Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the
Contract Sum o the Construction Manager as provided below and elsewhere mn the Contract Documents.

§ 7.4.1.4.The Owner shall withhold from each pavment, except Final Paviment. ten percent of Consiniction
Manager’s Fee a5 refeniion. Al of retention shall be paid as parf of Final Payiment ’

§7,4.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shali be one calendar month ending en the last day of
the month, or as follows;

& 7.1.3 Upon regeipt of & properly submitied Application for payment. payment shall be made 85 provided in the
Hlinois Local Government Prompt Payment Act Frevided-that-em-Appheation-for- Payment-is-received-by-the
%&%@kﬂ%&%w&m&hﬂwmﬁﬂf%eﬁ%é—m&wwh&uﬂﬁﬂ@—pmmf “the-gertifled-bmount-te-the
Construction-Menagernetlater-than-the-w—y-day-ef the--w-month-Han-AppHeation-for Paymentisreseived-by-the
it fror-th Lication-dutefined-abover prnent shalbbe-mede-by-the-Oumernot-tater-thantirfri—-Hdays

e Bt - rRE-a B et oe

afier-the-Arehitestresetven-the-Apphesten-fer Payment:

Federal state or local laws may reguire payment within a ceriain peviod of time.
v req P P

744 With-sech-Apphication-for-Payment-the- Construction-Marsgor-shat-sabmitpayroiiarpatty-sash-accetinisy
roceipted-invoiser-orinvoicss-with-eheskvouchers-attached -and-pry-other evidence required-by-the-Oamer-or

AIM Document R134% - 2009 (forwerly R131%CMe - 2003}, Copyright © 1994, 2003 and Z50% hy The Americen Institute of Archivests. A1 rights
reserved. WARNING: This AYA" Document is protected by U, S. Capyright Law and Intessztional T . Unauthorized reproduction ox
distribuiien of this AIR” Desusent, or sny portion of it, may reauvlt inm scvere «ivil snd eriminel penalibios, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the iaw. This draft was produced by AIR software ot 13:31:37 on 12/17/200% undes Order Heo 8546136510 3 which
sxpires Gn D8/16/2016, and is not for resale.
User Hotes:

18

{1418530285)



Arehitwetto-demensirate-that-ennh .L;‘c\.x monts-already-ade-biy-the-Gonstrustion-hMunsger or-aseaunt fthe-Cast
fihe-Wercagual-or d-progress-peyinets-already tved-by-the-Censtruction-Managertess that-poriien-of
%%a@a@:—@&ymeﬂ%s%wa“ to-the-Constraetes-Manager s Feerplospayrotis-for-the peried rod-by-the-presen
AopheptionforPayment

§7.1.5 Each Applicarion for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the

Construction Manager in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of valoes shall allogaie the entire

Cost of the Waork, excent that the Construction Manager’s Fee and items to be refmbursed shalf be shown as single
separate itemns, The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supoorted by such data 1o subsiantiate {fs

accuracy as the Architect may require, This schedule, unless obiected 1o by the Architect shall be used as a basi
reviewing the Construction Manager’s Apnlications for Pavinent. i%pﬁ?mﬁ&*@ﬂs#@&{wm@m@w the-Gostef

the-Worlaetually-ineurred by-the Construstion-Manuper hrough-the-end-ef-the-pes isred-by *ziaeqﬁf leation
F & ¥ J
Lo Ik i o oy gy dnrady tleo @ Ko o fgnsy 1 It v AE 3 2 ey
se-Payment-snd-forwhich-the-Construstion-Manager hus-made-erdnt i mpke-getuel-peyment priorto-the-newt
AppHeationforPayment

§7.1.6 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end
of the period covered by the Application for Pavment. The percentage of completion shall be the percentage of that
pemon oi the Work which has actually been Lompleled SMW&%&F&MW@%MHWD%MM

Mm@@%eém%wemé%k
. -
anegersteertess-ratainage-afi-v-pereent Lim»-Y6-The-Copstruchiontanager’s
Ftln RS c-i A g 2o 2l x5, P | otk I
tofth deseribed-in-the-proceding & atthe-rale-steted-in
ten-hinnager’s-Fee-do-stated-as-a-Hred sum-in-that Section-an-amount-that-bears the
o £ L otlam B 4, N Yoo dey il ;. Tapfeln (oot Aol
as-the-Cost-afts rir-bears-te-areasonableestimate ofthe-probable Costofih
poroentt Y4)-from-that-postion-of-the- Wasrl thot the-Consiraction-Manag
i " [ TR L L VT
4 Subltractthe-eparepmie-of provious payments-made by-the-Owaes;
& aclat 1 boatefoll 1 F nrany awmeda Aol tha Flan, L Tk f1 ) Sl N A J
- S u‘u,m..,.uu..,, ay—indioated-by-th ructionManager-in-the-documantatibnreguired b
. L - ) S .
SeeienTt-d-erresulting-Fom-errors-subsequentiy-g Fod-by MWM%%WWWM
@—%amwﬁmmw%wmmmﬁmwm%m%w@m%mﬁm
P TS RE TN S d I,
prevdded-in-the-Coniret-Desnments:
%?%&he@awef—&ﬁé%ﬁm&ﬁe rshat-age 3 iy tlsd dure-fi tevennd
Hon-d shatagrec-upen-thi-amutpably-seeeplablepr far-reviev it
k| + I sl (530 gl g tn £ o LT Sl ek E A th
epprovel-of-payments-to-Bubcontractersand-fithey se-efreteinege-held-on-Subeovirastsrand-th
Construetien-tdanamer-shatl-eneoute subeonbasis-in-ceesrdance with-those-GEreorments:

& 7.1.8 The Owner and Construction Manager shall agree upon (1) a mutusily acceptable precedure for _mx}'icw and
avnroval of pavments to Subcontractors and (2) the perceniage of retainage held on Construction Manager's Fee and
‘Subcontracis and the Ccnstmcﬁ o Manager siaall executs szzbcomracts n accc&rdance with ii’;ose sgreements, The

L Eeg

and from each Subcomracmr Annllcaixon for ?avment and such resention sha” be v aad as naﬁ 01 Final Pavment,

§ 7,48 Except with the Owner’s prior approval. the Construction Manager shall not make advance payments io

suppliers for materials or equinment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

§ 7,130 In takine action on the Construction Manager’s Applications for Payinent, the Architect shall be entitled o
rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information furpished by the Construction Manager and ‘shall not be
deemed g reoresent that the Architect has made » detailed examination, sudit or arithioetic verification-of-the
documentation submitted in accordance with Section 7.1.4 or other sunporting data: that the Architect has made
exhaustive of continuous on-site inspections: or fhat the Archiiect has made exaniinations & as¢eriain how or for
what purposes the Construction Manager has used ampounts previously paid on account of ihe {ontract_Such
examinations, audits and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Drwmer's auditors acting

in the sole interest of the Gwoer,

57141 CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S PAYMENT APPLICATIONS
&7.1.01.1 Construction Manager shall submit monthly Applications for Payment in a format aceeptable 1o the . { Field Code Changed

Owner, The statements shall be fully detailed so as to allow the Qwner to determine the proprigty of the statement,

ATR Document ALIS™ < 2009 {fexmerly ALII™cMa - 2003}, Copyright & 1B5d, 2003 and 2409 by The i\mar:mn Institure of Architects. A1) rights

razerved. ARAING: Yhis AIA Documant Ls protected by U.8, Copyzighl Law snd Intermationsl T Unavthovized 3 %
diptribution of this RIA® Docwment, or ahy portien of it, may zesuli in severs oivil and criminal :m:mimes, snd will Be prosecuted to the 1s

rnnimn exCant possibls under tho Law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 13:31:37 on 12/27/2009 under ordey No.§346126630_1 which
espires on 08/16/2010, and is not for ressle.
Usar Rotes: 11446337284}




At o tminimuny monthly staternents shafl detail the amount due for the current peried. subcontragtor costs agreed
ehanoe orders or modifications, nrevious amounts billed, reimbursable expenses. and balance of contract
outstanding,

§ 7.2 Final Payment

57,21 Final payment. constituting the entire unpaid baltance of the Coniract Sum shall be magde by the Chwner to the
Construction Manager when

he O Consiwciion Manager haa fully mrtormed the Contract gxgent for the C ()HSiI‘EJCﬂOl‘l Mana_ggL

satisty other requirements, if any, which extend beyond {mai payment.

2 {he Consiruction Manager has submitted a final accounting for the Cost of the Work and a final
Application for Paviment, and

3 g final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect,

The Owner’s final pavment fo the Construction Manager shall be made no later than 30 days after the igsuance of
the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, oz a3 follows:

L.z
48 Exceptwith-the-Owperis-priorapprovel-the Construstion Marag r shalnetmake advance-paymenisie
Suﬁﬁi}emquﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁeﬁi—ww have-notboen-delivered-and-slered-at s

. H M s, So ooy
WM; ing-action-on-the Construction Managers-Apphieations-for-Paym ..f., th meha%ee%ﬂ%ﬁrﬁ-b@weﬂﬁﬂed%a
pals pve 4o £ tionn fieaachiad fer tlho £ .t DA, pad 1 2
rely-en-the-nesuraey-end completeness-of the informationfurished-by the- Constrostion-Manager Ant-Shan ROUY
& ”‘\“ srosent that theArehitest hosnade o deipiled mmination; sudit or arithmetieverification £y
; B g ; ; o : ; X
doeumentation-submitied-in-aeeerdan 1h-Sestioni-4-or-others -that the-Arehitect-hos-made
axchoust eentinnons on-site-inspestions: or- thet-the-Architeet-hosnade exsntinabionsto-8 staip-hevw-orfor
I 1 oo 1 i B, i oo v PErec Y rebonmon i | SV Bl aal
what-purpeses-the-Construction Mansger has-wsedamounis-previsushy-paid-on-aecounterie-Gonimetwusn
5 i : Aite 3 ey 3 HENES sl Bues dlen Y . T3 Y £ sed Tony dhv Ohe S ALk s e
mrinations, andits and-verifieatiens i required-by-the Gwaerwih-beperrormet oyt waer s-auditersacting
i L., Tt il L)
ir-the-sole-interest-of-the-Cramer
§%§m&&@a§meﬁ%
sF 34X 1 s i 7 19 " sl daela EA g & Jao bl E Fer tona th
&L A Linal-payment-constituting the-entire-unpaid-balenee o the-Gontract- by shad-be-mase-oy-th ner-te-th
Geﬁs-&mw&%&ager—wh@ﬁ
i . L £ o N : e s
4——the-Construetion N has-fully-performed-the Contraetoxceptfor th astrueton-Manegerss
responsbilib-te-cerrest Worle-as provideddn-Beetion B2 of AL D0 wment-AR0200%andHe
3. £ Tyrenng ol apdaink A L 2 Lieond pmnumn et
setiohy-ather-reguirementsrifanyrwhish-outend-beyond-final-peyinent;
S the CenstructionMeneger-has submitted-a-final sccounting for-the Costofthe Wores ve-a-Frnal

hpphicationfor-Payment-ond

Fhe-Ovmsrsfinal poymentie-the-Constrotion-ban er shall-be-mede se-lotershen-30-davs-efer-dhe dosuance-of
tha-frcht 1o Eenl Cariifante foe Iainnant ar oc follown :
re-Architost s Snal-Cortifionte for Payment-or as-fotloy

oSy

Fio i ey IR o S PO 2 1 aendd £ L I ki Sty B £ e 3 bA 7o Frank g,
§Fbd The-Sueners-auditors with reviev-and seport-in wirtitig- o7 e nstruetion-Manager s-finskaceatntng

woithin30-days-after-deliveryofthe finala ing-te-th %%MWM&H&@@F“B&EW&H}

£ sengthe-Ownerls-sudiers-repertte-be-subst ," d-by-the-ConstenetionMenager’s-Bnel-accounting:
and-provided-the-other-sonditions-oi-Seetion-T-2-Hinve-been-metrthehuechitoet il withinseven-daysafterroeeipt
the-wriians Fthe-Gwiners-auditors; )\L s-rsue-to-the-Dwaera ﬁﬂ%@“&%‘flﬁﬂ%@-ﬁ&?@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ#%w—p’y‘%@

ot Bor:
o omntois LA PETIA NP B A1 Lrpri e gy nf tla b S‘F
ho-Construetisnhannger-ornotfy-the-Censtruetion-Manager-and-Svmer-n-witing o- - rnitect “grensonst
withholding a-eortificato-ne-provided-in-Seetion 0.5 ol the-Adb - Document AOE-H00T Fhe tmne-pertods-siaied-in
thig-Beetion supersode-these-stated-in Seetion-Sod-ef the-ATA-Bosunent- 42042067 refritoet-is-not
respensiblefor-verifring-the necurasy-ef the-Censtruetion-Monegers-fmal-accounting:

s IE L, 2o guscdae ho Contai kY ic. x sntnied-by-ih £ e Blneameiesfined

§fedrgr - e ey -GSO -Teport- It AR {is SR SRt PR EOR-BNRES T
EETNPS 1 L 1 IS0 P W ) Aora sl B A PP S 3 I P k30 tlad4

aeeouRHREtS-BeTesS-INaR SHHREE- oY1 SRS ReHOR- P ARA R RS- TORS RS i ann o it oUronthua

Ta Do aLagm - 706% (fomerly ALITSCHe - 20033 . Lepyright @ 1995, 2003 and 2008 by The American Tostitute of prchitects. Al zights
reserved. WARNING: Yhis ATA" Document iz protected by U.§. Copyxight Law and Intersstionnd Presties. Umatthorized Leproduction ex

Aebribution of this ATA" Document, ee any portion of it, may result in severm civil snd crimipal pensdties, and will bs prosscuted to the
maximen sktont pessible undez vhe law. Ihiy draft way Lroduced by AIA seftware at 11:33:37 on 12/17/200% under Order Ko, B92€326610 1 uhich
expives on 0B/16/2G10, end is not Tor resale.

Yser Notes: (344 E037264)

20



reguest-mediationof the disputed-amevatwitheut seeking sn-initiel- doctmenpuriubiitto-tecten b EaAZG]
2007A-regquest-for-medistion shet-be-made by-the Construetion-Monager within 30 deys-afierthe-Constenston
M Fads a. M meba 2o £y . bt e b o :
Innegersrecsiptofa-copy-of the-Architoet’s fingl Corlificnte forPayment Fathwe to-reguestmedieton-withinthis
F-day-peried-shell-resultin the-substentisted-amountveported-by the-Drener-auditers becoming binding-on th
[l = z EOW TS Dmpnds frmnl Tpdiopey od tho, dioeaatoed IR TP e 11 ral f ey
netruetion-Mansger-Pending-o-fnel reselutionettbe dispuied-emeuntth nes-shatl payp-tho- Construction
14 th, EWPELY s frad b 1n 3. 7, vend £ ifionta £
PMepagerthe-amoevnt-certified-in-the-Arehiteets-fnal Cortificatetor Paymeont
- i, 5 : : > ; o Sl
St ent-to-final-payment-and-ot-the-Gwner s reguestthe Censiruetion Menaper1neus-e0u deseribod
OO ey Ful ek #oouznbirded oy fomet s FA datrefinvg . 1o U lpygria £l g, clhnfl
in-Beption--lond notereladed by-Section-6:8-to-correst-delective- er-noneontormmng -Worniih resshal)
ieadarpene Hhefoanalroatiioas B y sal " fha A Y ) e T 15 Ink i s o "
ieaburse the-Construstion-Manaper-such-cests-and the Censtruction-Menagers appHenble-thersts-on-the-sam
Lupoee bE nsesds tr e b 1 s . Fpnadtoal
basis ar-ifmelr-costs-had-bearr-ineumred-priov-te-finsl payraent

ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE AND BONDS

For all phases of the Project, the Construction Manager and the Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance, and
the Construction Manager shall provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of AIA Document AR01-2087.
@m&éﬁmgmw%%mym@ﬁmmw%ﬁmmk%sﬁéwewé
A20F-20073

Type-ctnsuranst-or- Band Hesit o Lability-er Bond-Amoust{58,00)

ARTICLE ¢ DISPUTE RESOLUTION o :

§9.4 Any Claim between the Cwner and Construction Manager shal} be resolved in accordance with the provisions
et forth in this Article @ and Article 15 of A201-2007. However, for Claims arising from or relating to the
Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services, o decision by the Tnitial Decision Maker shall be required
as a condition precedent to mediation or binding dispute resolution, and Section 9.3 of thus Agreement shall not

apply.

§ 9.2 For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by mediation pursuant to Section 15 3 of ALA Document A201-
2007, the method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:

(Check the appropriaie box. If the Chener and Construction Manager do not select a method of Binding dispute
resolution below, or do not subsequently agree inriting o a binding dispute resolution method other than
litigation. Claims will be reselved by liligation in a court of competent jurisdiction. }

[« »] Arbitration pursuant 10 Section 15.4 of AIA Docoment A201-2007
[« »] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[«;J’;{ » | Other: (Specifyi

T b ot 23k g Feutan i Flaosias hdnk T ta, & 5 15 0 " A TA o NS TN I AT W
Fhe-Arehitestwill-sarve-as-the-tambol on-Malerpursuast-to-Seationt rieeumeit } g
e PP TSP 2oy ey | P R B NP OO I TN W Pt arg-{ansiEy trone fHan, szl ik, .
Sodma-arising from-of to-the-onsty Manager-s-Construstion-hase-gerviesss the-paries
eppont-betovanother-individueh net-a-party-to-the- g t-to-gerve-as-the-Indtial-Deeision-Maler
e I S Iod; " : . A .. .
FHfthe-particamutiaiy-aree—inseri-the-nmueraddresi-and ather-coniaet-information-of the-hniviel- Deciatonhekes
if-other-than-the-Arekitect) ‘
e

ARTICLE 10 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSICN
§ 10.1 Termination Prior fo Owner's Approval of the Contro} Estimate
§ 10.1.1 Priorte-the Gvmers-appreval-of the-Contrel-Hotimater thellie Owner may terminate this Agreement upon

not fess than seven days® written notice (o the Construction Manager for the Owner’s convenience and without cause

ATIA Docutent AL34™ - 2009 (formexly AL3I™CMc - 2003) . Copyright & 1984, 2003 and 2005 by The mmerican institute of Architects. ALl xights
teserved, WINETHG; This ATA® Doowment is protectad by ¥.S. Copyright Law and Yntermatienal Prentiss. Unautherized zoproduction ox
distribution cf this A4’ Docusant, of any portion of i, may result ip sovews eivil and criminal ponalties, and will be prosecuted to the
maximum extent possible under the lauw. This draft was produced by AIR software atb 11:33:37 on 12/17/200% under Order Wo.G6¥48136810_%1 wnich
expires on DE/LE/201D, and 15 not for resals.

User Hotes: (1446537284}

21



and the Construction Managar may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the
{(hmer, for the reasons set forth in Section 14.1.1 of A201-2007

§10,1.2 In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1 1, the Construction Manager shall be
equitably compensated for Preconstruction Phase services performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination. In no
avent shall the Construction Manager’s compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in

Section 4.1,

§ 10.1.3 In the even{ of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 101 1, after the comumencement of the
Construction Phase-butprierte-the Owner’s-epprovel-of the-Control-istimate, the Owner shall pay to the
Construction Manager under Section 10.1.2 an amount calculated as foliows, which amount shall be in addition to
any compensation paid to the Construction Manager under Section 10.1 2
. Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date of tenmination,
2 Add the Construction Manager’s Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work 1o the date of termination
at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum m that
Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time
of termination bears (o a reascnable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;

and
3 Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner for Construction Phase services.

The Owner shall also pay the Construction Manager fair compensation, either by purchase or rental at the election of
the Owner, for any equipment owned by the Construction Manager which the Owner elects to retain and which is
nol otherwise included in the Cost of the Work under Section 10.1.3.1. To the extent that the Owner eleets to take
legal assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (including rental agreements), the Construction Manager shall,
as a condition of receiving the payments referred to in this Article 10, execute and detiver all such papers and take
all such steps, mcluding the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Construction
Manager, as the Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the righis and benefits of the
Construction Manager under such subcontracts or purchase orders. AH Subcentracts, purchase orders and renfal
agreements entered into by the Construction Manager will contain provisions allowing for assignment to the Owner

as described above.

if the Owner accepts assignment of subcontracts, purchase orders or rental agreements as described above, the
Owner will reimburse or indenmify the Construction Manager for all costs arising under the subcontract, purchase
order or rental agreement if those costs would have been reimbursable as Cost of the Work 1f the contract had not
been terminated. If the Owner chooses not to accept assigament of any subcontract, purchase order or rental
agreement thal would have constituted a Cost of the Work had this agreement not been terminated, the Construction
Manager will ferminate the subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement and the Owner will pay the Construction
Manager the costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager because of such termination,

§ 10.2 Termination Subsequentio the Owrer's- Approval- ol the Contrel Bstimatelor Cause

§10.2.1 The Qwmer may terminate dis Agreement for Cause for the veasons, and in the manner set out in:Section
14.2 af the General Conditions %emmwammwmmwmm

NAAW\C‘ 1 14,1144 ’} pmd.td.0d JA’WH ’H’\I’\’T ’TI i o hatinla T8 a4" AT
Bt P 2 [ S § FEIQTE- T Of-not

£
ety e s L Dk s o 7 aE Dty PEEHORE-OF

2067 WW%&WMS&MHQ%

E48:32 In-the-event-ef sueh-termination-by-the Ovnertheameurt paveble-te-the-Coansiruetion-Manager-shathnat
encesd-the-amount-the Construction-Manager-would-huve-becn-entided-to-recebve-pursuant-to-Bestienst0-+-2and
10:3-3-of this-Agrecrents-less-any-compenseten-thetmur-besvarded-to-the- Dvmer pursuent-io-Arttele &

§%%Mm&aah%wm%w&ym€eﬁmmw%emmw%mwwm

M&-« o PAYIRY thn O ot AT WA % X0 W -4 Cabin o 3l thoo o piey st

wagersheth-be-m-aceerd vith-testions-t0ubat-and-i-bod-ol- thes-Arproementexeephihet the-Consirnetien

MenagersLee-shail-be-saleulated-as-iftheVWordc-had-been-fulby-campleted-by-the-Construetion-Meneger-netudine &
=} o o

reasevable-estimate-of-the-Cost-of the-Werkfor Worle notsctusly-completed:

%Wﬁ%%&%&@m%%%ﬁ%&%@memﬁmfmew@e@%&emw
ARDI-2007-the-Gwnee may terminate this-Aereement-forserveniensesoprovided-n-Seatlentidr hewevei-the
rwner-shel-then-enly-pey-he-Consiruetion-Manager-an-umount-ealeulated-as-follows:

Copyright € 1999, 2003 and 20035 by The Americen Instirute of Rrehitects. All cights

ATA Document RII4™ -~ 2008 {farme:‘ly ALIISCMe - 2003} .
abionnl Trastias. B ad tion ax

reserved. WARNING: This RI?‘ Documest is provected by U.S5. Copyright hLaw and Inte:
distributien of thisz AXA" Docwmant, or any partion of it, may rorwlt ir severe ciwil and eximinal ponaities, and will be prosecuted to the

maxium extant pessikle uader the law. fhis drafs was produced by RIA seitware ab 13:31:37 on 12/17/200% under Order Mo 6346376816 i which
expires on 881672014, and is not for resasle.
Usex Notes: {1986330284)

22



—TFekethe Costof the- Wodeinourred-by-the Construstisnanager to-the-deto-eftermination:
Fv %é@iﬁ-@@ﬂ&mfc{mm&m@r &lﬁuwﬁﬁ%%%%%ﬁm&%mgm&mmﬁ

L. pai Q@ kN ] RS LN ) Ty Ao, B 1o, . el T
ai-therote-atateddn-Seetion-S-lb-ar-ifth vatraction-denager’s-Foeds-stated-as-a-fined-gum-nr-the
2 wa-ameuntthat-beass the &&mw&ﬁ@%@{ﬁﬁﬁm@éﬁﬁm—?ﬁ@ﬂﬁ—{%ﬂ—@%{ﬁ—meﬁfﬁéﬁﬁh@%rm

i PR sansessakl 5 CaEa = Llo £ £.2% LS TN EeY 3 s

termipation-bears-ie-a-repsenable estimpte-of the probeble Costef th seupon-iiscempletion:

end
d-——Subtract-the-aagrepete-of previous pavments-mode bpe-the Cwaer:

§ 10.3 Suspension
'}"hc Work may be susrscmded fer a mri(}d of thiriv (30) days bry Lhe Owncr as Dr(wided m AQO"% W—QOGT‘ wiihout an

‘\Aanammcm sereices cmd General Conditions shall be cmmabiv ad;usted‘

Fhe-Work-may-besuspended-by-the Owaeraspravided-in-tArticlo-L e fAbA Document-A2041- 2007 -Tn-such-case;
the-Control-Batimateend-Contraet Fime shell-be-inereased-so-provided-in-Beetiont4-3 oA TA-Dosament- A0
2007-except-that the-term“profit™ shell be understond-to-mean-the- Construction- Monnger's-Feens-deseribed-in
Seetions-S-tand- S et dhis Apresment

ARTICLE 11 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS
§ 11,4 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in A201-2007

5 *W 2 Noti’zing c,cmtalned in ihis A,qreement shail create a contractual reiationshin wiih or a cause of ae'f;ion'in favor

and agrﬁ:e ihat the gblipations of the Construetion Manr_gGr are Soieiv for the benefit of ti’ze Owner and not mtended
in any respect to benefit the Architect, S8ubcontractors, or any other third parties.

5113 In case of conflict between this Agrecment and any other document incorporated or referenced herein, this
Agreement shall prevail. followed by the General Conditions, supplementary conditions, Owner’s reguest for
qualifications or proposal from Construction Manager, the drawings and specifications, and Const_ructéoﬁ'Mar@gg;ﬁ

proposal,

8184 The Construction Manager shall endeavor o keep the project free from mechanic’s liens. In the eveni that
the Owner is rﬁquimd o withhold mONGY PUrsAnt 16 & notice of lien or lien mgginst public funds due o fdﬁ.ﬁi ofthe

mc:iudmg AROMEYS, ‘fecs. The Construction Manager shall ensure that a snrmiar DIOVISION IS 11Cor] porateé Into.the
Subcontracts. In the event that liens are placed on the funds for this Project due to Construction Manager's fault, the
Construction Manager shall indemnify the Owner for all resulting costs incurred due to the Hen, including aticrneys’
fees. Construction Manager shall assure that similar language protecting the Owner and Construction Maneger is
inciuded in the subcontract documents. ) ‘ ’

§11.8 Construction Manager acknowledges that this is a public works project govemed by the [linois
Prevailing Wage Act_ Construction Manager shall pay ifs laborers if any and assure the Owner that
Subeontractors shall pay its laborers not less than the established prevailing rate of wages, 820 1ECS 130/1 er
seq. _Construction Manager shall comply with all reporting requirements of the Iliinois Prevailing Wage
Act. Similarly, the Construction Manager shall assure that all Subceniraciors and sub-tier subcontraciors
comply with the reporiing reguirements of the Hiinois Prevailing Wage Act,

§ 11.6 Constryciion Manager represents that it has in place 2 Sexual Harassment Poliey in aceordance with the
illinois Human Rights Act and shall assure the Owner that Trade Contraciors shall have. iy place z Sexus!
Harassment Policy prior to commencement of work on the Project, 775 1LCS 3/1-105,

§ 1.7 Consiruction Manager represents that it does not discriminate in iis hiring practices based upon race. color
religion, sex, marital status, national origin or ancestry. age. physical or mental handicap inrelated to ability. or
an unfavorable discharge from military service.  Construction Manager shall assure the Owner that Trade
Coniraciors shall_not discriminate as set forth in this paragraph, 773 ILCS 5/2-1053; 44 14, Admin,_Code

Bection 750 e seq.

§ 11.8 Construction Manager represents that it is in conformance with the Drug Free Workplace Act. 30 1LCS
S80/1 et seg,

AIA Dosument AI34Y - 2009 (formerly ALILPGMc - 2003} . Copyright (3 1584, 20G3 and 205% by 9he American Institvte of Architects. A1l yights
rescrved. WARFING: This »Ih° Documsnt iz protected by V.5, Copyright Law and International ¥reaties, Unauthorized xeproduction or

distribubion of this arXt’ Document, ox any portion of it, mey result in severs civil and erimina} penslties, and will be presecvted to the 23
manitom exteat peseibls under the law. This draft was produced by AIR softwire &t 31:31:37 on 12/17/2009 under Order Wo.684612681C L which
expires on 08/i8/301%, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

[19¢€537204)



§31.% Construction Manager certifies 1t is not barred from contraciing as a result of bid ripeing or bid rotation,
LCB 333 E-LL

§ 11.102 Ownership and Use of Documents
Section 1.5 of A201-2007 shafl apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.

§ 11,113 Governing Law

This Acreement shali be governed by the law of the State of Hiinois SeetionI33-TA20+-2007 sheli pply-te-both
the Preeonstrieion-and- ConstruetionBhases:

§ 11.124 Assignment

‘The Owner and Constroction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, eucuas%ors assigng and legal
representatives to this Agreement. Excent for the assianiment of the Subcontracts to Consiruction Manages, neither
the Owrer nor the Construction Manager shal! assign this Agreement withowt the wriften consent of the other,
Fxcept as nrovided in Scction 13.2.2 of A201-2007. neither party to the Contract shall assign o the Contract as g
whole without written consent of the other. I either party aticmpts to make such an gssignment without such
consent. that party shall nevertheless remain iega v rf:snonqible {or ail obligations under the Contraet.

The QwecrandConsraeton-MManager-respeetively-bind-th mﬁM@&ﬂw&g@W&ﬂ%@&ﬁgﬁ&&ﬁé%@a}
representatives-fo-thisAursementNeither the- Bwaer ner the Constru :,m“ tenpoershell-nssign-this-Agreement
seithout the-weitten-consentof the-other; pi-that-th “,'r; FERAY-GIHER éﬁv@g%ﬁﬂﬁ&@ﬂ&ﬁd%«pﬁm&mg
finaneing-forth ij i the-Jenderagrees-to-assume-th HIET Slighﬁﬂﬁdwiﬁaﬂﬁﬁﬂ‘ﬂﬁéﬁf%hﬁmﬂ&ﬁ%

= redoed [T I’l’)’? FA’?01 b ZaT A A T €2 L bl i EE 2N 1 4
= uyu B PTOVIERE IR eCHOR+ e RERCE Pm L)‘ iaas: aRtraek-anah-as Frne o ORraeTa5 &

el )3 J: oy i ERRL VP ST TEY Iy
velrotewithout- W&&e&%ﬁ’i&ﬁ%—ﬁ%ﬁh@ﬂﬁiﬁ?“m spary-atiompis-io-make-such-prASsigatentWIORE S

R 2 Jocr 1l Inad 3 ] L A 1ol Aaom o aanad 2 £ ey
ongent-tnat-part-Sadn-Ti FHISI eSS PO R RS R - FEIPORBIOTE T6T S-S TI-HREOF- T a8

§ 11.135 Other provisions.

« Nogg »

ARTICLE 12 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT

§12.1 This Agreement represcnu the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction
Manager and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement
may be amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Construction Manager

§12.2 The following documesnts comprise the Agreement:
ALA Document A134-2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Cwner and Construction
Manager as Constructor where the basis of pavment is the Cost of the Work Plusa Fee witha

Guaranteed Maximom Price
2 AlA Document A201-2007. General Conditions of the Conract for Construction, as amended and

attached hereto.
S Al A Document-4 342000, Standard Rosm-of Agroenrent Bebween-Ownerand-Honstes ey
o H )

MW{;_&_SN 1o -k tho b Cal 5 b A3t Nh ke Ty PevR 2y

a: lenstehetorwhers-the basd peyment-is-the-Cestofth PePhus-ad fhewta
Cuaraniecd-Mexiraum-Prce
LA TN 5 LA 300 -'mr\'?r LA o cdass - d'ﬁ_ o

¥ Ackh-DocumentA3 04 L-General-Sonditions-elthe-Contrast-for- Gonstraetion

3 LAY Ty L A ML 0T Hi 13 3, L Tarhalage o £ 1 = b Finld

x AdArBecsment B 2007 Dightet Date-Protocol-Brhibi-iFeempleted the-follewnang
ey

A AR BT 000 TRakds I Py WSO W S TN LT 52 I I N, T 1 23, - th,

o I -Deenmment- B2 O-Building Infermatien-hedeling Protosc ExhibityFeompletedrar-the
L

A Other-destments:
"1l

7 e ) A } i 4
o e A e f Y Ly e G i ey o S
T R J d-JI F /’

Gy

AIR Document AL34% ~ 2008 (Fformexly RLIL™CHMe ~ 2003) . Copyright @ 35%&, 2003 snd 2009 by 'The American Institute of Architects. Al rights
ceserved, WARRING: iis AIZ® Doowment is protocted by U.5. Copyeight baw and Intermational Treaties. Unauthorized pepredustion ox

dintribusion of this RIA® Posument, of mny pestion of it, may wesult in severe civil and cyiminal pemalties, snd will be prozecuted to the
saismsn ewbent possible under the iaw. This dreft was produced by RTR seftwmre st 11:31:37 on 12/37/2002 under Drder No.$%46126830_31 which
expires on 0B/1E/E010, svg is mot fer resale.

Ysex Notes: (14485372849)

24



This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above.

"OWNER (Signature) CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Signanire}
& « we »
(Printed nawe and title} (Printed name and iitle)

Ton Doeament AL3&™ — 2009 (formerly A1JNTEMo - 2003). Copyright & 1824, 2003 and 200Y by The American Institute of Architscts. A1l rights
resorved. HERWING: Thiy ATA* DPooument is pretectad by U.5. copyright Law and International ¥ ies. I Lorizad ducticn ot
distoibutios of fhis AIR® Dosvmsnt, or vy woxtion of it, pay Tasult in pevers ciwdl wnd cziminal penalvies, aed will be prosscutsd to the
mewimuw srtent possible under the law. This drafr was produced by RIA seltwaie at 13:33:37 on 12/01/20905 under Order Mo, S%45126€10_1 which
expires on NE/16/2010, and 1= not For resale.
User Notes:

{1449653728¢)

25



AIA Document A201" - 2007

General Conditions of the Contract for Construction

for the following PROJECT:
(Name ard location or address)
2011 Bensvation

THE OWNER:
(Name and address

201 Nerth Seile
Ok Parte_Hliinoss 50307

THE ARCHITECT:

(Name and address)
Lega Architests

2013 Senng Boed, Surte 17
Qul Brook, IHinots 60523

3

TABLE OF ARTICLES

i GENERAL PROVISIONS

2 OWNER

3 CONTRACTOR

4 ARCHITECT

5 SUBCONTRACTORS

6 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS
7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

8 TIME

g PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

10 PROTECTION QF PERSCNS AND PRCPERTY
11 INSURANCE AND BONDS
12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

13 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document

: hzs sdded information

needed for its completion.
The authcr may also have
revised the texti of the
original AlA standaxrd form.
An Additions end Delerions
Repart that notes zdded
information as well as
revisions to the standard
form text is svallable from
the author and should be
reviewsad.

This document has important
legal consequences.
Consultation with an
attorney is entouraged with
respect to its completicn
or wmodification.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
portioen of Lhis BIR® Document
to another electronic file is
proiiibited and censtitutes a
viclation of copyright laws
as set forth in the footer of
this document.

Al Document R201™ - 2007, Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 37, 1951, 1988, 1961, 1963, 1BE6, 970, 187&, 1987, 1957 and 2007 hy The

Mmerican Institute of Architects. ALl wights reserved.

WARNTHG: This AIA’ Document is proatected by U.8. Copyright Law and Internabtional

Troatiss. Unauthorized repraduction oz distributien of this AIN Document. or any powtien of it. mey ressit in severe civil ond crinminel

peralties, and ¥ill be prosecoted to the MAxumim extont passiblo under the law. This draft was prodeced by ATA software =t 14:15:10 on
01/18/2080 undes Drder No.18€0314752_ 1 which expires on 3/17/2008, and is not for ressie.

TUeer Hotas: 139231800800



4 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT

15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

RIA Document RIOI™ - 2007, Copyright © 1811, 1933, 1818, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 196k, 3963, L1966, 1$70, 1876, 1387, 1987 and 2007 by The
Famerican Instirtute of Architects, ALl rights reserved. WARNING: Yhis ATA® Docweent iz protocted by U.5. Copynight Law and Inteznational
Pranties. Upabthexized roproduckion or distributien of this AXRY Decwesnt, of any portien of it, mey roselt in sovexs oivil and eximimal 2

penalties, snd will be prosscuted to the mayimum axtent possible under the law. This draft wes produced by RIA software at 14:13:10 on
0171872068 urder Order No. 1000714744 3 which expires on B/17/2008, and is net for resals.
1352587503

Uszer Notes:



INDEX
{Numbers and Topics in Bold are Section Headings)

Acceptance of Nunconforming Work
966,993,123

Acceptance of Waork

966,982 993, %10.1,9103,123

Access to Work

316,621, 128

Accident Prevention

10

Acts and Omissions
32,332,3128,318,423,83.1,851,10.25,
1028, 13.4.2, 13,71, 141,152

Addenda

111, 3011

Additional Costs, Claims for

374,375 61.1,7375,103,15.1.4
Additional Inspections and Testing

942 983 1221, 135

Additional Insured

1114

Additienal Time, Claims for
124,374,375 3102, 832, 1515
Administration of the Contract
31.3,4.2,54,95

Advertisement or Invitation to Bid

111

Aesthetic Effect

4213

Allowances

38,738

Albrisk Insurance

1139, 113,11

Applications fer Payment
425,739,92,93,94,95.1,963,971,9.10,
113

Approvals

2.3.1,222,24 313,3.102,3.12.8,3.12.9,3.12.10,
427 932 1351

Arbitration

83.1,11.3.10, 153,11, 1532, 154
ARCHITECT

4

Avrchitect, Definition of

4.1.1

Architect, Extent of Authoriy
24.1,312.7.41,42,52,63.1, 712,737, 74,
92.1,931,94,95 963,98 9101, 9103, 12.1,
12.2.1,13.5.1,13.52, 1422, 1424, 1513, 15.2.1
Architect, Limitations of Authority and
Responsibility

2.1.1,3.124,3 128, 31210, 41.2,42.1, 422,
423,426,427,4210,4212,42.13, 521,741,
442,953 964,i513,152

Architect’s Additional Services and Expenses

241, 183.11,1221,13.52,1353, 1424
Architect’s Administration of the Contract
3.13,42,374,152,94.1,95

Architect’s Approvais
24.1,3.13,351,3102,427

Architect’s Authorily to Reject Work

351,426, 12,12, 12211

Architect’s Copyright

117,18

Architect’s Decisiens

174,426,427 4211,4212,4213,42.14,
631,737,739, 8153, 831,921,941,85,984,
90.1,1352, 152,153

Architect’s Inspections

174,422,425,942 983,992, 9101, 135
Architect’s Instructions
324,331,426,427,1352

Architect’s Interpretations

42101,4212

Archifect’s Project Representative

4240

Architect’s Relationship with Contractor
112,15,313,322,323,324,33.1,342, 351,
3.74,375392,3.93,3.10, 311,312, 3.16, 3 18,
4.1.2,413,42,52,622,7,831,92,93,94,95,
97,98, 99,1026 103, 11.3.7, 12,1342, 135,
15.2

Architect’s Relationship with Subcontractors
112,423,424,426,963,964,1137
Architect’s Representations

9.4.2,951,910.1

Architect’s Site Visits
3.74,422,429,942,951,992,9101,135
Asbestos

1031

Attorneys’ Fees

318.1,9102,1033

Award of Separate Contracts

6.1.1,612 '

Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for
Portions of the Work '

52

Basic Definitions

1.1

Bidding Requirements

114,521, 1140

Binding Dispute Resolution

ST, 1139, 11300, 1301, 1525, 15261, 15351,
15.3.2, 1541 )

Beiler and Machinery Insurance

11.3.2 :

Bonds, Lien

7.374,9102,9.103

Bonds, Performance, and Payment
73.74,96.7,9103, 1139, 114

Building Permit

371

MR Doscument AZ0I™ - 2007, Copyright © 1931, 1915, IS18, 1825, 1837, 1961, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1570, 1976, 3967, 1597 and 2007 by The
fpmepican institute of Architects. Al zights reserved. WRRHING: Fhis WER Deoument it proteated by U.5. Copyright Law and Intexhational
Yrestims. Usautherized ceproduction oo distribution of this BIA’ Dooumsnt, ox any portien of it, may reswlt in severs oivil and cximinal
pepalties, and will e proseented to the maimum entent pessible wnder tha Law. This draft was produced by RIA seftware ab 14:13:20 on
G3/1E/200E under Croer No, 3000314784 ] which expires on B/17/2008, and is nat for resale.

Tser Hotes: {3923870603)



Capitalization

1.3

Certificate of Substantial Completion

083,984 985

Certificates for Payment

421,425 429,933, 94 95,961,966 871,
9.101,9.103,141.1.3,1424, 1513

Certificates of Inspection, Testing or Approval
13.5.4

Certificates of Insurance

9102, 11.13

Change Orders
1.1.1,241,342,374,3.823,311.1,312.8, 428,
523,712 71.3,7.2,732,736,739, 7310,
£3.1,93.1.1,9103, 1032, 11.3.1.2, 1134, 1139,
12.12,15.1.3

Change Orders, Definition of

TR

CHANGES IN THE WORK

229,311,428 7,721, 731,74, 741,83 1,
93.1.1,11.39

Claims, Definition of

15,101

CLATMS AND DISPUTES
324,61.1,631,735,933,5104,1033,15,
54

Claims and Timely Assertion of Claims

1541

Chaimns for Additional Cost
324,374,61.1,7.39,103.2,15.1.4

Claims for Additional Time
324,3746.1.1,832, 1032 1515

Coneealed or Upknown Conditions, Claims for
3.7.4

Claims for Damages
324,318,61.1,833,951967 10331111
1135 1137, 14.1.3, 1424, 1516

Claims Subject to Arbitration

1531, 1541

Cleaning Up

3.15,63

Commencement of the Work, Conditions Relating to
22.1,322,341,37.1,3.101,3.126,521,523,
622,812 822 831,111, 1131, 1136, 1141,
15.1.4

Commencement of the Work, Definition of

8.1.2

Communications Facilitating Contract
Administration

39.1,4.2.4

Completion, Conditions Relating to
34.1,311,315,422 429,82,94298, 661,
410,122,137, 1412

COMPLETION, PAYMENTS AND

9

Completion, Substantial
429,81.1,81.3,823,942,98991, 9103,
122,137

Compliance with Laws
16.1,323,36,37,31210,3.13, 411,964,
1622, 111,113,131, 13.4, 13,51, 13.5.2, §3.6,
1411, 14213 1528, 1542, 1543

Concealed or Unknown Conditions

374,428 831,103

Conditions of the Contract

1LE1, 611,614

Consent, Written
3.4.2,3.74,3128,3.142,4.1.2,93.2, 985,991,
0.102,9103, 1131, 132, 1342, 15442
Consolidation or Joinder

15.4.4

CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER CR BY
SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

1.14,6

Construction Change Divective, Definition of
7.3.1

Ceonstraction Change Directives
1.1.4,3.42,3128 428, 711,712,713, 73,
G311

Construction Schedules, Contractor’s
319,312.1,3.122,613,151.52

Contingent Assignment of Subcontracis
54,14222

Continuing Contract Performance

15.1.3

Contract, Definition of

1.1.2

CONTRACT, TERMINATION OR
SUSPENSION OF THE

5411,1135, 14

Contract Administration

31.3,4,94,95

Contract Award and Execution, Conditions Relating
o

371, 3.010,52,61, 1113, 11.3.6, 11 41
Contract Documents, The .

1.1

Contract Documents, Copies Furnished and Use of
152,22553

Contract Documents, Definition of

LL1

Contract Sum

3.74,38,523,72,73,74, 91,942, 9514,
06.7,9.7,1032, 1131, 1424, 1432, 15.1.4,
1525

Contract Sum, Definition of

9.1

Contract Time
3.7.4,3.753102,523,72.1.3,73.1,735,74,
811,821, 83.1,951,871, 1032 12.1.1,14.3.2,
15.1.5.1, 1525

Contract Time, Definttion of

8.1.1

CONTRACTOR

3

Cantractor, Definition of

ATA Document AZ01™ - 2007. Copyright @ 1$%i, 1915, 1918, 3825, 1637, .
WRXMENG: 'his ATZ® Document $n protacted by U.8. Copyright Law and Internztiennl

hmericans Testitete of Archirects. AL rights reservad,

1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 31987, 1887 and 2007 by The

prosties. Unavthorized reproduction or distwibution af this ATA® Doewent, or ony portion of it, may zesult in severe civil and criminal
penaltion, and will be proseouted to the maximon extent possible upder the law. This draft was produced by AIA sefiware ot 14315120 on

0:/18/2088 under Ozder No.lG0031:79%¢ 1 which sspizes on B/17/203¢,

Ugey Notes:

end iz nab for resasle.

{3921870B05}



3.1,6.1.2

Contractor’s Construction Schedules
3.16,3.12.1,3.122,6.13,15152

Contractor’s Employees
332,343,381,39,3.182,423,426,102,103,
P11, 1037, 1400, 1421 0,

Contractor's Liability Insurance

111

Contractor’s Relationship with Separate Contractors
and Qwner’s Forces
3.12.5,3.142,424,6,11.3.7,12.12, 1224
Contractor’s Relationship with Subconfractors
122,332,3.181,3.182,5,962,867,9.102,
Ph312,103.7, 1138

Contractor’s Relationship with the Archilect
1.1.2,1.5,3.1.3,3.2.2,3.23,3.24,33.1, 342,351,
374, 3.10,3.11,312,316,3.18,413,42,52,
622, 7,83.1,92,63 94,0597, 98 99,1026,
10.3,113 7,12, 135, 1512, 1521

Contractor’s Representations
32.1.322,351,3.126,62.2,82.1,533,582
Contractor’s Responsibility for Those Performing the
Work

3.3.2,3.18,53.4,6.1.3,62,951, 1028
Contractor’s Review of Contract Bocuments

32

Contractor’s Right to Stop the Work

9.7

Contractor’s Right to Terminate the Contract
14.1,151.6

Contractor’s Submittals
330,3.11,3.124,427,521,523,92,93, 982,
983,99.1,9102,9103,11.1.3, 1142
Contractor’s Superintendent

396 1026

Contractor’s Supervision and Construction
Procedures
12.2.33,34,31210,422,427,613,6124,
713,735, 737,82, 10,12, 14,1513
Contractual Liability Insurance

LIER 112

Coordination and Correlation
12,32.1,3.3.1,310,3126,613,621

Copies Furnished of Drawings and Specifications
15,2253 14

Copyrights

15, 3.17

Correction of Werk

23,24,5.73,942 982,983,99.1,12.1.2,12.2
Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents
1.2

Cost, Definition of

1.3.7

Costs

24.1,3.24,3.73,382,3.152,542, 611,623,
73.3.3,737,7.38 7.3.9,9.102, 1032, 10.3.6,
11.3,12.12,122.1, 1224, 135, 14

Cuiting and Patching

334,625

Damage to Construction of Owner or Separate
Contractors

314.2,62.4, 102,12, 1025104 4111, 113,
12.2.4

Damage to the Work
3.14.2,991,10212,102.5 1041,1131,1224
Damages, Claims for

3.2.4,3.18,61.1,833, 951,967, 1033, 1111,
11.3.5,11.37,14.1.3, 1424, 15,16

Damages for Dejay
6.1.1,833,9516,97,1032

Date of Commencement of the Work, Definition of
8.1.2

Date of Substantial Completion, Definition of
8.1.3

Bay, Definition of

8.1.4

Decisions of the Architect

374,426,427 4211,42.12,42.13, 152,63,
737.739,81.3,831,921,94 051,984,991,
13.52, 1422, 1424, 151,152

Decisions to Withhold Certification
94.1,9.597 14.1.13

Defective or Nonconforming Work, Acceptance,
Rejection and Correction of
23.1,2.41,351,426,625,951,952 966,
982,993,9.104,12.21

Defective Work, Definition of

3.5.1

Definitions

1,200,301, 351, 3.02.1, 3022, 3,123, 41,
1500, 51,612,721, 73,1, 81,591,981
Defays and Extensions of Timse
32.374,523,7.2.1,73.1,741,83,951,97.1,
10.3.2, 1041, 1432, 151.5, 1525

Disputes

631,759, 151,152

Documents and Samples at the Site

3.11

Drawings, Definition of

1.1.5

Drawings and Specifications, Use and Orwnership of
31

Effective Date of Insurance

822, 1142

Emergencies

164, 14112, 1514

Employees, Contractor’s
33.2,343,3.81,39,3.182,423,426,102,
1033, 15111, 1137, 141, 14211

Equipment, Labor, Materials or
1.1.3,1.16,34,351,382,3.83,3.12, 31311,
3.151,426,427,521,621,737,932,93.3,
9.51.3,9.102, 1021, 1024, 14.2.1.1, 142,12
Execution and Progress of the Work

IR Document A20I™ - 2007, Copyright © 1931, 1915, 1918, 1825, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1863, 1966, 1870, 1576, 1987, 1697 and 2007 by The
Emericsn Tnstitute of Architects. All rights reserved. WIRNING: Thin 232" Documant iz protescted by U.5. Copyright Lov and Interaational
yyantiss. Unantherized reproduction ez distyibubion of this 233° Docummnt, or any pestiom of iv, may result in ceveke oivil and cxindual
ponzliims, apd will be progecnbed e the metimms exient possikle under the law. This draft vas producéd by hIh software at 34:15:18 on

G1/18/2606 under order No.l0803147%4 1 which sxpires on B/37/2008, and s not for resale.

User Notes:

{3GZIBTOEOS)



11.3,0.21,122,223,225,31,331,34.1, 351
371,38 0 03.12,314,42,622,7.1.3,735,82
951,691, 102 103,122,142, 1431, 1513
Extensions of Time
32.4,374,523,721,73, 741,851,971
10321041, 143, 1515, 1525
Fatture of Payment
9513,9.7,9102,136, 14113, 14212
Faulty Work
(See Defective or Nonconforming Work)
Final Completion and Finai Payment
421,429 982,910, {1.1.2, 1113, 1131, 1135,
12.3.1,14.2.4,14.43
Financial Arrangements, Owner’s
221,1322, 14014
Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance
A RN
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1
Governing Law
13.1
Giuarantees {See Warranty)
Hazavdous Materials
10.2.4, 16.3
Identification of Subcontractors and Suppliers
521
Indemnification
3.17.1,3.18,9.10.2, 1033, 10351036, 11312,
i1.3.7
Information and Services Required of the Owaer
2.0.2,22,32.2,3124,3.12.10,61 3,614,625,
96.1,9.64,992,9103,1033, 1121, 14,1351,
1352, 14 1.1.4, 14.1.4,15.13
Initial Decision
152
Initial Decision Maker, Definition of
118
Initial Decision Maker, Decisions
142.2,1424, 1521, 1522, 1523, 1524, 15235
Initia} Decision Maker, Extent of Authority
1422, 1424, 1503, 1521, 1522, 1523, 1524,
1525
Injury or Damage to Person or Property
10.2.8, 10.4.1
Inspections
1.3,3.33,3.7.1,422,426,425,942, 9853,
5.92,9101, 1221, 135
Instructions (¢ Bidders
[N
Instructions to the Contractor
324,331,381,521,7,822,12, 1352
Instrumeants of Service, Definition of
LL7
insurance
181,61.1,737,932,984,991, 9102 11
insurance, Bmier and Machinery
11.3.2
Insurance, Contractor’s Liability

i1

[nsurance, Fffective Date of

822, 1112

Insurance, Loss of Use

1133

insurance, Owner's Liabiity

112

Enserance, Property

1025113

Insurance, Stored Materials

332, 114.14

INSURANCE AN BONDS

11

Insurance Companies, Consent to Partial Occupancy

991,114,105

Insurance Companics, Settlement with

11410

Intent of the Contract Documents
1,427,42.12,4213, 7.4

Interest

13.6

Interpretation

123, 14,41 1,51,612, 1511

Interpretations, Written

4211,42.12,15.1.4

Judgment on Final Award

13.42

Labor and Materials, Equipment

1.1.3,1.16,34,351,3.82, 3.83,3.]

42.6,427,521,621,737,932,93.

¢.16.2,10.2.1, §0.2.4 42 T.1,1420.2

Labor Disputes

83.1

Laws and Regulations

1.5,323,36,37, 31210, 3.13.1,41.1,564, 681,

1022, 1111, 113, 13,11, 134, 1351, 1352,

1361, 14,1528, 154

lLiens )

2.12,933,9102,9.104, 1528

Limitations, Statutes of

1225 137, 15411

Limitations of Liability

23.1,3.22,351,3.12.10,3.17.1, 3181, 4 .26,

42.7,4212,622 042,964,967, 1025,103.3,

11.1.2,11.2.1,11.3.7, 1225, 1342

Limitations of Time

2,313,315,
3,9515,

212,22, 24 322 310,3.11,3.125, 3151, 427,
52,531 62473’74,8 2,921,931,
9'5394]9596971989 G.10, 1113,
11315, 1136, 113,10, 122, 135,137, 14, 15

Loss of Use Insurance

11.33

Material Suppliers
15,312.1,424,426,52.1,93,942, 96,9103
Materials, Fazardous

10.2.4, 10,3

Matenials, Labor, Equipment and

ATA Document AZOI™ - 2007. Copyright ® 1913, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 151, 1956, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1667 and 2007 by The
American Isetitute of Architects, ALl rights ressrved. WRRNING: This AIX' Docwment iz petasted by U.S. Copyright Law snd Inturnational
rreatics. Unauthorized reprodudtion or distzibmtion of this LIA® Document, or any portion of it, way result in severe oivil and criminal
panaitias, wné will ba prossouted te the manimum oxtent posaikle wider the law. This draft vas produced by RIA soltware i 14:15:10 en
01/18/2008 wnder Gzder Ho.1008314734_1 wkich expires on 8/17/2008, and is not for resale.

User Notes:

13521870803



113,116, 1.51,34.1,3.51,3.82,383, 312,
3.13.1,3.151,426,427,521,621,737,932,
$3.3,951.3,9102, 10212, 1024, 142141,
14212

Means, Methods, Technigues, Sequences and
Procedures of Construction
33.1,314210,422,427,642

Mechanic’s Lien

212, 1528

Mediation

83.1,103.5 1036, 1521, 1525, 1526, 1583,
154.1

Minor Changes in the Work

1.1.1,3.128, 428 71,74

MISCELELANEQOUS PROVISIONS

13

Modifications, Definition of

1.1.¥

Modifications to the Contract

101, 1.1.2,3.11,412,421,523, 7,831,871,
16.3.2, 11.3.1

Mistual Responsibility

6.2

Monconforming Work, Acceptance of
966,993,123

Noncenforming Work, Rejection and Correction of
2.3.1,241,351,426,624,951,982,593,
9104, 12.2.1

Notice
22.4,231,241,324,331.372,3129,52.1,
071,9.10,1022, 11.13,11.4.6, 12221, 133,
1351,13.52, 141,142, 1528 1541

Notice, Written
2.3.1,241,331,392,3129,312.10,52.1,971,
$.10, 1022, 103, 11.1.3, 11,36, 12221, 13.3, 14,
1528, 1541

Motice of Claims

3.7.4,4.5,1028,15.1.2,15.4

Notice of Testing and Inspections

1351,13.52

Observations, Contractor’s

32,374

Qccupancy

222,966,98 11.3.1.5

Orders, Written

1.1.1,23,392,7, 822 1139, 121, 12221,
1352, 1431

OWNRER

2

Owaer, Definition of

2.1.1

Owner, Information and Services Requized of the
2.1.2,22,322,312.10,61.3,6.14, 625,932,
561,964 692 6103, 1033 1121, 113, 13.51,
1352, 14.1.1.4, 1414, 1513

Owner’s Authority
15,211,231,241,342,381,3.1210,3.1472,
4.12,413,424,429,521,524, 541,611,631,

721,731,822 831,631,932,95.1,964,
99.1,9102, 1032, 1113, 1133, 11310, 12.2.2,
1231,13.22, 143,144, 1527

Owner's Financial Capability

2241322, 14114

Owaer’s Liability Insurance

11.2

Owaner's Loss of Use Insurance

11.3.3

Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors
1.1.2,52,53,54,964,9102, 1422

Cwner's Right to Carry Oat the Work
24,1422

Owner’s Right te Clean Up

6.3

Owaer’s Right to Perferm Construction and te
Award Separate Contracts

6.1

Owner's Right to Stop the Work

13

Crwner’s Right to Suspend the Work

143 ’ :
Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract

142

Owaership and Use of Drawings, Specifications
and Other Instruments of Service

L1116, 117, 8.5,22.5,3.22, 3,811, 3470,
4.2.12,53.1

Partial Occupancy or Hse

066,89 11315

Patching, Cutting and

3.14,62.5

Patents

317

Payment, Applications for
4725,739,921,93,94,095,963,971,985
9101, 14.2.3, 1424, 1443

Payment, Certificates for
42.5,429,933,9.4,95961,966 97.1,910.1,
9.10.3,13.7,14.1.1.3, 1424

Payment, Failure of ]
9513,97,9102,136,141.13, 14212
Payment, Final :
421,429, 982 910, 11E2, 1113, 1141, 1145,
1231, 13,7, 1424, 1443

Payment Bond, Performance Bond and
7374,967,9103,11.49 11.4

Payments, Progress

9.3, 96,985, 9103, 136, 1423, 1513
PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

4

Payments to Subcontractors
542,9513,962,963,964,967,11.48,
14212

PCB

1034

Performance Bond and Payment Bond
73.74,967 9103, 1149, 11.4

AIA Document RI0I™ - 2007. Copysight © 1811, 191§, 1818, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 19€3, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1567, 1597 and 2007 by The
American Tostitute of Archirvecza. All rights reserved. WARBIHNG: ®hin ATA® Document iz preteeted by U.§. Copyright Law ang Intesnaticnzl
rrenties. Uneuthorised reprodaction ez distribution of thiz AIA" Docuwent, or mny portion of it, wmsy rasult in sovers eivil and eriminal

panslties, apd will ba proseew

User Hotas:

ted to the maximimm extent possihle wnder the lew. This draft was predoced by AR sofrware at 14:315:10 on
G1/16/2008 under Order ¥o.i000314794 1 which expires on Bf17/2008, ane i5 not for resals.

(3921870603)



Permits, Fees, Nofices and Compliance with Laws
2212,3.7,3.13,7.3.74,10.2.2

PERSONS ARD PROPERTY, PROTECTION
OF

18

Polychlorinated Biphenyl

1031

Product Data, Definition of

3.12.2

Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings
311,332,427

Progress and Completion

422,82 98,991, 1414, 1513

Progress Payments

G3,9.6,985 9103,136, 1423 1513
Project, Definition of the

1.1.4

Project Representatives

4210

Property Insurance

10.2.5, 113

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
11

Regulations and Laws

1.5,323,36,37 31210,3.13,4.1.1,964,991,
1022, 110, 114, 13,5, 13.4, 1351, 13,52, 136, 14,
1528, 154

Rejection of Work

351,426, 1221

Reteases and Waivers of Liens

§.10.2

Representations

321,351,3.126,62.2, 821,933,942, 951,
59826101

Representatives
210,311,39.41.1,421,422,42.10,5 1.1,
5.1.2,13.2.0

Responsibility for Those Performing the Work
332,318, 423.531,613,62,63,951,10
Retainage

9.3.1,96.2,985,99.1, 9102, 9103

Review of Contract Docements and Field
Conditions by Contractor

3.2,3.127,6.43

Review of Contractor’s Submitials by Owner and
Architect
3101,3.0102,3.11,312,42,52,613,92,982
Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and
Samples by Contractor

342

Rights and Remedies
1.1.2,23,24,351,3.74,3.152,426,435,53, 54,
6.1,63,731,83,951,97,1025,103, 1222,
12.2.4, 13,4, 14, 15.4

Royaities, Patents and Copyrights

Safety of Persons and Property

10.2, 104

Safety Precantions and Programs
33,422,427 531,181, 102104
Samples, Definition of

3323

Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Bata and
311,302,427

Samples at the Site, Documents and

3.11

Schedule of Values

9.2,9.3.1

Schedules, Construction .
14.1.2,3.10,3.12.1,3.122,6.1.3, 15152
Separate Contracts and Contractors
1.1.4,3125,3.142, 424,427 6 831,1147,
12.12

Shop Drawings, Definition of

3.12.1 ' .
Stop Drawings, Preduct Bata and Samples
311,342,427

Site, Use of

313,611 621

Site Inspections

3.2.2,3.3.3,3.7.1, 3.7.4,4.2, 942, 9.10.1, 13.5
Site Visits, Architect’s
374,422,429,942,951,952,9101,135
Special Inspections and Testing

426 12.21,135

Specifications, Definition of the

i1.6

Specifications, The

PELREG 122, 15,311, 3.12.10,3.17,42.14
Statute of Limitations

137,154,111

Stopping the Work

23,97,103, 141

Stored Materials

621,932 10212, 1024, 11414
Subeontractor, Definition of

511

SUBCONTRACTORS

5

Subcontractors, Work by
122,3.32,3121,423,523,53,54,93.12,
9.6.7

Subcontractual Relations
53,54,93.12,96,910, 1021, 1147 1148,
14,1, 1421

Submittals
310,311,3.12,427,52.1,523,737,92,93,
98,991,9102,9103,11.13

Submittal Schedule

310.2,312.5,427

Subrogation, Waivers of

317 6.1.1,11.45,11.3.7

Rules and Notices for Arbitration Substantizl Completion

i54.]

ATK Dogument AZOL™ - 2007, Copyright © 1911, 175, 1018, 3975, 1957, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 3970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by *ue
American I.stitute of Architects. ALl rights xiserved. TBRNEEG: This RIA” Docwment iz protected by U.S5. Copyright Low and Interpstional 8

#zeatios. Unzuthorized reprodueticn or distribution of this AYAY Bosument, or any portion of it, may raswlt in severs civil and oriminal
penalties, and will be prosoouted to the maximwm cxtant poszible undmr the law. This drafy was preduced by AIA soffwars at 14:15:10 on
01/318/2008 under Crder We 1000314794 1 which espives om 8/17/2000, and is not for resale.

User Notes: {38213706GC3)



429 811, 813,823,042 989591, 9105,
12.2,13.7

Substantial Completion, Definttion of

9.8.1

Substitution of Subcontractors

523,524

Substitution of Architect

413

Substitutions of Materials

342,351,738

Sub-subcontractor, Definition of

512

Subsurface Conditions

3.7.4

Successors and Assigns

13.2

Superintendent

3.9, 1026

Supervision and Construction Procedures
122,3.3,34,31210,422,427,6.13,624,
713,737,822, 831,942, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.3
Surety
54.12,6859102,9103,1422.1527
Surety, Consent of

9.10.2,9.10.3

Surveys

223

Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
14.3

Suspension of the Work

542,143

Suspension or Termination of the Contract
S411,1149, 14

Taxes

3.6,3821,7374

Fermization by the Contractor

14.1,15.1.6

Termination by the Owaoer for Cause
S411, 42,1516

Termination by the Owner for Convenience
144

Fermination of the Archiect

4.1.3

Termination of the Contractor

1422

TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE
CONTRACT

14

Tests and [nspections
3.13,333,422,426,429,942,983,992,
9.10.1,103.2, 11411, 1221, 138

TiME

§

Time, Delays and Exteasions of
324,374,523,721,731,741,83,951, 971,
100321041, 1432, 15.1.5, 1525

Time Limits

21.2,22,24,322.310,3.11,3.12.5,3.15.1,4.2,
44,4552 53,54,624,73,74,82 62, 931,
933,941,95,96,97,98,99,910,11.1.3,
P4 15 11406, 11.410,122 135 137, 14,1512,
154

Time Limits on Claims

374,102.813.7, 1512

Title to Work

932,933

Transmission of Data in Digital Form

1.6

UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF
WORK

12

Uncovering of Work

121 _

Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown
374,831,103 o
Unit Prices

7332734

Use of Documents

LHE, 15,225 31426, 53

Use of Site

3.13,61.1,62.1

Values, Schedule of

9.2,2.3.1

Waiver of Claims by the Architect

1342

Waiver of Claims by the Contractor
9105,1147,1342 1516

Waiver of Claims by the Owner .
99.3.9.103,9104, 1143, 1145, 1147, 1222},
1342, 1424, 15106

Waiver of Consequential Damages

14.2.4,15.1.6

Waiver of Liens

9.10.2,9.10.4

Waivers of Subrogation

6.11,11.45 11.3.7

Warranty .
3.5,42.9,933,984,991,9104,12.22 1371
Weather Delays

15152

Work, Definition of

1.1.3

Written Consent

152,342 374 3128, 3.142,41.2,932, 985,
99.4,9102,9.10.3, 1141, 132, 1342, 15442
Written Interpretations

42114212

Written Notice

23,2433 136 3129 312:10,521,822,97,
9.10,1022, 103, 11.1.3,11.46,122.2, 1224, 13.3,
14, 1541 :

Written Orders

1.1.1,23,39,7,822, 1149, 121,122 1352,
14.3.4,15.1.2

AIA Document AZOT™ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1BIB, 1925, 1937, 105%, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1066, 1970, 1§76, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The
American InsUitute of Architects. ALl rights reserved, VRARNING: This ATA® Document is protected by U.S. Copysight Law and Intarnstional
mreaties. Unauthorizod raproduction or diztwibution of this BIA® Doctment, or any partion of it, may result in sovers aivil and epiminal
ponsltiss, and Will ho prosecubad to the HMaXimwm extont pessible under $he law. This draft was produced by AIR softwsre at 14:15:10 on

01/18/204¢ under Order No.l20031¢794 1 which expires om B/17/008, and is not for resale.

User Notes:

(3521870503



ARTICLE1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS

§1.1.1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Conlract Documents arc enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the
Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other
Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, othiey dneuments included
in the Project Manual other documents histed in the Agreement and Modifications issued after execution of the
Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Comract signed by both pdmes or(2) a Change Order,
- o-Construeton-Chenge-Divestive-a b e wrtlen-order-tore-irinerchangeia- the ¥orh-1ssued by the Architect.

%—Sﬁ&—kﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁm&%ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁeﬂﬂ%% -Contrmet-Dosunenis-de-pet-nchude-theadvertisementor
mv%aﬁ@ﬁe%iﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬂ-&&%ﬁé%m%aﬁéwmmw;ﬁﬁm-%yﬁe&%mﬂﬁm&em

tdo £, 2 dracl I3 salod 'E-gnf
ot T TS

3k i
FESSrHRE SIS i iRl s S 0y (ssgalbiatiant GO PrOPeIGs-OF POFIORE-6T BRTRE R0

regairements-

§1.1.2 THE CONTRACT

The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the thrc and mtegrated
agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negetiations, representations or agreements, either written
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be
construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the
Arcintect’s consultants, (2} between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Ohwner
and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Cwaer and the
Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

§1.1.3 THE WORK

The term “Work” means all of the Contracios’s obligations under the Contract Documents, including the
construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and
includes all other labor, materials, equipment and services provided or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the
Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.

§1.1.4 THE PROJECT
The Project 1s the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Decuments may be the whele

or a part and which may include construction by the Gwner and by separate contractors.

§1.1.5 THE DRAWINGS
The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and
dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules and diagrams

§ 1.1.6 THE SPECIFICATIONS
Fhe Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials,
equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.

§1.1.7 INSTRUMENTS COF SERVICE

Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now knows or later developed, of the
tangibie and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect”s consultants under their
respective professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limmifation, studies,
surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.1.8 INITIAL DECISION MAKER
The Initial Decision Maker_if anv. 1s the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in

accordance with Section 15.2. andcertifi-termunation-efthe-AgreementunderSeetion4-2 22

§ 1.2 CORRELATION AND INTENT OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

§1.2.1 The mtent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and
sompletion of the Work by the Contracior, The Conlract Documents are complementary, and what is required by
one shall be as binding as if required by ali; performance by the Contractor shall be required only fo the extent
consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the
indicated results.

AIA Document A201™ - 2007, Copyright © 19311, 334, 191§, 1925, 1637, 1851, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 3970, 1976, 1937, 1957 and 2007 by The
pmericso lastitute of Architecks. A1l rights reserved. VARMING: This ASA® Docuwment &5 protected by U.5. Copyxight law sud fnternational
Uneuthorized reproduction ox distribution of this AYR® Docwmant, or amy pertion of £t, may result in severs civil and crimismal

Yreastias.
This ¢draflt was produced by AYR sofiwsre at 14:15:10 on

penaliies, and will be presecuted to the maxinnm exteni possibls undew the lLaw.
GL/1E/2608 under Ordes Wo.100031:794 3 which expires on 3/17/2008, and is not for resalo.

User HOTGS: (3521870903

10



§ 1.2,2 Organization of the Specifications inte divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not
control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be
performed by any trade.

§1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated m the Contract Docaments, words that have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings

- {Formathed: Font: Bold

§ 1.3 CAPITALIZATION
Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of
numbered articles or (3) the fitles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.

§ 1.4 INTERPRETATION
1n the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any™ and
articles such as “the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in

another is not intended to affect the interpretatton of either statement.

§ 1.5 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE

§1.51 m%hmmmmmm%mmwmmwmmm
Mﬁeﬂ%@ee%ee—meﬁém@—ﬁﬂmw and-Speeificationsrand-withretain-all a-lpw-giatoiory-ane
othor-reserved-rights;-meluding-eopyrighta-The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or
eguipment suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or distnbution to
meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with this Project is not to be construed as
publication in derogation of the Owner's the-frehitoot’s-or-Arehileet's-consultanta’reserved rights.

§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subconiractors and material or equipment suppliers are authorized to nse
and reproduce the Instruments of Service provided to them solely and exclusively for execution of the Work, All
copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if any, shown en the Instruments of Service.
The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers may not use the
Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to this Project outside the scope of the Work without the
specific written consent of the Owner, s-Architest-and the-Architeet sconsultants:

thwwwmm £Eer gther-intormat d 2 digital-fors
struments-of Servoo-orany-other-infor 61 rentatien-in-digial-formy
#ha, o i L ndn oty 1 L rreb-trnm s toorae e alonn h i al %

Y- SNAT - SRGRAYVET-TO-SHB DT I SET-PTE SOOI SRR TFaT S5 $HS-RHTeRE

provided-in-the-Aereement-orthe Contrast-Dosumenis:

ARTICLE 2 OWNER

§ 2.1 GENERAL

§ 2.1.1 The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreerent and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. Fhe Unless provided in the Agroeement, the Owmner shall designate in
writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the
Owner’s approval or authorization. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2 1, the Architect does not have such
authority. The term “Owner” means the Owner or the Owner’s authonized representative.

§-242- The-Owner-shal-forpish-te- @e%ﬁwﬁhwﬁwmmmwwwwﬁewmmw

el el + Jao &2 & 1 e L o EANEwS 1. 14 P ST 1s
b3l YRR e eV ARt TOT S LOMPasier- o Svaaiie - g ROTES- OO oot reshanies Her At
L3 Latl o Teaad 3, X! m) Loteido Ia, e Iyiods dinn Preatood do L .
HUGITRETON-Shtr et R e e AL I S PP e - e Ge -5+ 7
antins 4 1 Aetbra L) 43
IS S R v R e Y T wAerginterest-therery:

§-2:-NFORMATION-AND SEMACES REQUIRED-QF !
MWWWM%MMW%@MW&*H&W
sepsensbie-evidenesthat the-Owner-has-made-financial evangements-to-ful filh- the Owner’s obligations-under-the

BTA Dooument AR0I™ - 2007. Copyright & 1913, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1953, 1968, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1870, 1976, 1987, I%97? and 2007 by Che
mmerican Institste of Archiects. ALl rights resexved. NRENINE: Mhis AIL® Documsnt is protected by U.5. Copyright haw and Internztional

23 ien or dis bt oE this AIA® Documest, of any pertion of it, may resalt jn savere ecivil apd eximinel 1
0 on

Froatios.
panaliies, emd will be prosseuted to the meximwn extent ponsible under the lew. This drafl was produced by AIA sofitwere at 14

01/16/2008 under Order W¥e.300G314784 1 which expires on §/37/8C08, and is not for resale.
Tfser Notas:

13B21BTGEO3)



Contract-Fherealior-the Contraciormey-enby-reguestsuch-evidense - the- Owner fails to-m

Gaﬂéf&e%@m&%w@m%ma—gemm%s—mqu {2 )p-change-in-the Woerematenally-changes-the Contraet-Suni-6¢-(3)

the-Condrestoridemitfier-m-writinga-reasonable-coneern- mg&rdﬁﬂg—m@wmﬂ%{h{ﬁmmymeﬁﬂxmm
£ 4 S el

%e@w&eﬁhﬁ%ﬁsﬁﬂ%&»@ﬁehwsée&ee—&s—a—e%@ﬁ%{%pm@d—eﬁw&fsmmwmm“ Fopriinnatsn-efthe Werlcar
he-Werk-ath y-a-materiahchenge~Ader-the Owner-furnishestheevideneer the-Goner-shullnot

1
PAe-HOTRet-Oi-ht i

mraterialby-vary such-finenciel-arrengementsvithout prior-notice-to-the- Contrastor:

ie. 2. £
¥

S PEEReRE- {0 HY

§ 2.2.2 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents,
including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements,
assessments and charges required for mnstrmhon use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent
changes in existing facilities. | I : ! !

§2.2.3 The Owner shal] fumish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and usitity locations for
the site of the Project, and « Jegal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of
information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the
Work.

§& 2.2.4 The Owner shall fumish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with
reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner's controf
and relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness afler receiving the
Contractor’s writlen request for such information or services.

§ 2.2.5 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shail furnish to the Contractor one copy of
the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions parsuant to Section 1.5.2,

§ 2.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK

1 the Coniractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as
required by Scction 12 2 or repeatedly fails to carry oul Work in accordance with the Coniract Documents, the
Owner may issue 2 writien order to the Contractor to stap the Work, or any portion thereof, witil the cause for such
order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner 10 stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part
of the Qwner to exercise this right for the bcneﬂt of the C ontractor of any other person or entity, except to the extent

rcqmrcd by Section 6 1.3

§ 2.4 OWNER'S RIGHT TC CARRY CUT THE WORK
Tf the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents o1 sz
s i bl e, and fails within a §y giess-day period after receipt of writien notice from the Owner to
commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may,
without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, correct such deficiencies, In such case an appropriate -
Change Order shall be issned deducting from payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the reasonable cost of
correcting such deficiencies, tncluding Owner’s expensesfz’zzciuding atforneys’ fees and conseguential or ingidental
gxpenses) and compensation for the Architect’s additional services made necessary by such defau It, negl et or
failure. Sueh-netion-by-the- Owmer snd-amounts-cherged-to-the-Contrastor-are-both-subjestto-prier epproval-ofthe
Arehitest—1f paviments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor
shall pay the difference to the Owner within thirty (303 days affer request.

- - { Formatted: Font: Bold
‘[Format.ted Tab stops; Notar G.5"
! Formatted: Jusnfued Tab stops: Not at 0 5

S SO

ATIA Document R2UL™ - 2007, Copyright & 1513, 1915, 1ei®, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, X961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1076, 1§87, 1997 and 2007 by The
rmerican Institube of Arenitects. ALL zights reserved. HANNING: This AIA’ Documsyt is protected by U.§. Copyright Lew and International
Preaties, Upanthorized repreduetion or distribution of this ATA" Pocumsnt, or ony portion of it, way xosult in severs civil arnd eximinal i2
ponaliics, and will bo prosecuted to the maxitum eutent possible ender the law. Thiy draft was producec by AGA yoftware at i4:15:18 on
CR/1B/260E wnder Order No. 1086314794 1 which expires on BAL%/2808, and is nor for resale,

User Notes: (3220870803



ARTICLE 3 CONTRACTCR

§ 3.1 GENERAL

§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully Hicensed, if required in the
Jjurisdiciion where the Project is focated. The Contractor shall designate m wnifing a representative who shal] have
express authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract, The term “Contractor™ means
the Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative._The Confractor is an mdenencicm contracior. and shall
not be desmed an agent of the Crwner for any reason

§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in siyict accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the Work in strict accordance with the Contract
Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests,
inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Coatractor.

§ 3.2 REVIEW OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND FIELD CONDITIONS BY CONTRACTOR
§ 32145 ¥

YN ui i ot 1\\ U Conliuciar v
o fues Visied the s, iwu\mr.. senerptl fanntice wish ol condstions s ler which

FFesent
roprgseniation tho thy Cor
e Work 1510 he peddormedd, cesrelanted persons] observations wiil reduirenionts of the Cornet Bocum

s satisfied isel] e o the nowre o Jocation of e sorls, (e generd snad Joesi condstiors, 0 glugding 1ose b

Lavcess Cinclud e mariid o totd festriviion 18 goeeess b rananertidon, disposel, st hand b
Covlebilin of)

stvh pin stenl vomghtions ol e cround, e ol

dhor water, elevliie povees . roads g uncerhinmiies vl weather, soonnd waier nihie

er. ey eid onantiy o evisting vordiines (o he
es peeded prict we gnd during te proseeution of the work and 4!

enveintored, the chareier of caquspment and 1o
gt which ean v ooy war it the wark or 1B gast thereed gy this Coptrsa say Ssione By ihy

Coniretes o oyt el s ith gl e aecdlable infummation coneorning thesy conditivns will notrelies ¢ the

arioss with vespoet e s Contr

Contrwtor from gy o

§3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the
Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as
the information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.2.3, shall take field measurements of any existing
conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These
obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the
purpose of discovering latent errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the
Contracter shall promptly report to the Architect any patent errors, meonsistencies of omissions dissevered by of
mradetmewn-to-the- Contracter-as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It s,
recognized that the Contractor’s review is made in the Conlractor’s capacily as a contractor and not as & licensed
design professional, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 3.2.3 The Contractor is not required to ascertain. that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable
laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor
shall promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as &
request for information in such form as the Architect may reguire.

§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the
Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or
3.2 3, the Contractor shalt mzke Claims as provided in Article 15. if the Contractor fails to perform the obligations
of Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Gwner as would have been
avoided If the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those obligations, the
Contractor shall not be lable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, inconsistencies or
emissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between ficld measurements or conditions and the Contract
Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules
and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities. ‘

ATA Document A201% - 2007. cCopyright © 1511, 1§15, 1918, 1825, 1937, 1951, 1958, 39861, 1963, 196€, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1957 and 2007 by The
American Inatitute of hrchitects. ALY rights reserved. ARWING: Thiz RIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright haw and Intermetionsi
Yrentios, Unauthorised reproduckion or distribution of this ATA® Document, or any portion of ik, may result in sovere civil and criminal 13
ponalties, and uill be procscuted to the maximem extent possible undsz the law. This draft was produced by AIA software at 34:15:10 on
01/18/200% under Order No.100Y3147%& 1 which expires on 8/17/2008, andt is not for resale.

User Notos: 135231870203



§ 3.3 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES

§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The
Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methody, techniques,
sequences and procedures and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Centract, unless the Contract
Documents give other specific instractions concerning these matters. If the Contract Documents give specific
instructions concerning construction means, methods, lechnigues, sequences or procedures, the Contracter shall
evaluate the jobsite safety thercol and, except as stated below, shall be fully and solety responsible for the jobsile
safety of such means, methods, technigues, sequences or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means,
methods, technigues, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely written notice to the
Owner and Architest and shall not proceed with that portion of the Work without further written mstructions from
the Architect. If the Comtractor is then instructed to proceed with the required means, methods, technigues,
seguences or procedures without acceptance of changes proposed by the Contractor, the Owner shalf be sclety
responsible for any loss or damage arising solely from those Owner-required means, methods, techniques, sequences
of procedures.

§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees,
Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or
on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors

§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that
such portions are I proper condition [0 recetve subsequent Work.

§ 3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS

§ 3.4, Uniess otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor,
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other
facthities and services necessary for proper exccution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or pemianent
and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.

§3.4.2 Except in the case of mimor changes in the Work authorized by the Architect in accordanée with Sections
3.12.8 or 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the
Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive.

§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly
skifled in tasks assigned to them.

AIR Document AZ0I™ - 20807. Copyright & 191%, 1615, 1918, 1%25, 1837, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1876, 1§87, 1897 and 2007 by The
pmerican Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: Thim ATA® Dotumsnt ip provected by U.S5. Copyright Law and Internationsl
Tyoaties. Unsnthorizsd reprodustion or distribution of this ATR" Documsnt, or zoy poxtion of it, may result in savere civil and criminal i4
penalties, snd will bs prosocutsd to the mecimun sutent possible uwnder the law. This draft was produced by AIA softwars at 14:15:10 on
01/18/2008 undsr Grder Ko.lDOOJ147%4 1 which expires om 8/17/2008, 2nd is net for rssale.

User Netes: (2921670603



§ 3.5 WARRANTY

The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract wilf
be of good quality and new unless fiw Contract Documents require or permit otherwise, The Contractor further
warrants that the Work will ! i 1+ conform to the requirements of the Contract
Documents and wnll be free from deiects —ek&%p%%&?ﬁhefeﬁi—iﬁ—ﬁéc guatiteof the-Werethe Contraet
Decumentsrequire-or-permit: Work, materials, or equipment not conforming fo these requirements may be
considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations
to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal
wear and tear and normal usage. ¥ required by the Architect, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to
the kind and quality of materials and equipment.

§ 3.6 TAXES
The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are

legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely sch&duicd
o go into effect.

§ 3.7 PERMITS, FEES, NOTICES, AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

§3.7.% Unless otherwisc provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building
permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper
execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after exccution of the Contract and legally
required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded.

§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and fawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.

§ 3.7.3 if the Contractor performs Work e i contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and reguiations, or lawful orders of pubiic authorities, the Centractor shall assume appropriate responsibility
for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.

§3.7.4 Conccaled or Unknown Coaditions. If the Contractor encounters conditiens at ihe site that are (1)
subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract
Documents or (2) unknewn physical conditions of an unusual nature, that differ materiatly from those ordinanly
found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall prompily provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions
are disturbed and in no event later than 21 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly
mv(tshgate such conditions and, if the Architect determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or
decrease in the Contracior’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, wili recommend an
equitable adjustment in the Contract Sum or Condract Time, or both. If the Architect detcrminés that the conditions
at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the
terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner and Contractor in writing, stating the
reasons. if either party disputes the Architect’s determination or recommendation, that party may proceed as
provided i Article 15

§ 3.7.5 [f, in the course of the Work, the Contracier encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial
markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not mdicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately
suspend any operations that would affect them and shall rotify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such
notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization reguired to resume
the operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but
shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests fdr adpustments in the
Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in

Article 15,

{mmm%%a%&waﬂw d-is-tho-TenraotBeotmanie- ieme
eovered-by-aliowances-shell-be-supplied-for-such-amounts-and-by-such-persons-or-entities-as-the- Bvwner-may-dirseh

AIR DBecumant R201™ -~ 2007,
Proaties.

03/18/2008 under Qrder Mo, IDGG3IL4754 1 which expires on 81742098, end is noT for resale.
User Netes:

copyxight © 1831, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1S58, 1961, 1963, 196€, 19270, 1876, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
Mmerican Institute of Architests. A1l rights reserved, WRRRING: This ATA° Document is protected by U.$. Copyright Law and Intexznpetional
Unaulborized reproduction ox distribution of this AIR" Docwment, oF any povtien of it, wmay resulit in scvese civil and criminsl
penalties, and will be prosesdbed to the marimum extent possible undex the law. This draft wsz produced by ALR software at 14:35:18 an

{392XE70803)



but-the-Contractershell be ired-te-ampley-persens aiitier-to-whom-the Contractor-has-reaset

ehiestien:

&3E5 tnlens-otherwise-provided-inthe-Centraet Beeuments;

F——allowancessholl-cover-the-cost-to-the Contraeterofmaterialssnd equwipment-delivered at-the sie-and
atb-reguired-taxes;-less-apphicable trade discounts;

a——Contaetor s costsfor-enlesding and-handHnpat-the-site-leborinstalletien-cestsevorhead profitand
other-enpenses-contemplated-for stated-allowance amownisshall- besncluded-sndhe Contraet-Sum-but
petarie-alowenses-and

Be—henever casts-are mere-thanor-less-then-allewenees; the-ertreet-Sum-shall-be-adiusted necurdingly
by-Change-Order-The- M{@M@&%HWMMT&%MW&&M

apd th 11, ) Santing, (? In.Jl"“l 1 Moyt 5 »nin
£ VRGP 2R 0R

CHEE- NG IS B OWERCE UNAST - Ee Y SRS COREEEOI-5 o

Frofazhal
5383 Materiols ond-equipment voderatrallovance-shall- be-selested-by-the- Ovamer with-rensenable prompiness:

§ 3.9 SUPERINTENDENT
§ 3.9 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be 1n attendance
af the Project sile during performance of the Work_on site. The superintendent shall represent the Contrdctor and

camm umcatlons gwcn o tha supmn!endcm shall bc as bmdmg as il glvcn to the Contracmr i ;

§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Owner
through the Archifect the name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. The Architect may reply within 14
days to the Contractor in writing stating { 1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasonable objection to the
proposed superintendent or (2 that the Architect requires additional time fo review, Failure of the Architect to reply
within the 14 day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection

§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed supermlendént‘ to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and umely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent,
which shall not unreasonahly be withheld or defayed.

§ 3.10 CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULES

§3.10.1 The Contracior, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shali prepare and submit for the Owner’s and
Architeet’s information a Contractor’s eonstruction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall nof exceed time limits
current under the Condract Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the
Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Centract Documents, and shall
provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work.

% 3 10.5. ]1 The Eontractor 5 comtructiou schedules sha” be in a bar chart format, and Qhai deplcﬁ W

§ 3.18.1,2 No jess than once per month, the Congracter shall submit an updated construction schedule. The updated . - [ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman ]
construction schedule shall depict actual start and completion dates for work commenced and, if appropriaie, work
complsted. Additionallv, the updated construction _sc_hgcl_ul_c§ shall depict updated estimates ofanticipated - - { Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman }

commencement and completion dates for aliu upcoming work,

o ereq u;gljgvs of. cerhfxcaﬁon of the Contractor’s application for payment,

§ 3.10.2 The Contractor shall prepare a submittal schedule, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafier
as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, and shall submit the schedule(s} for the Architect’s approval,

ATA Document AZ01™ - 2007, Copyright ® 1911, 1915, 181&, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1§70, 1876, 1987, 18957 and 2007 by Ths
mmericsn Institute of Architecks. ALL rights reserved. WARNING: This BIR' Poowment iz protected by U.$. Copyright Law asd Interhational
frestiss. Unauthorized reprodustion or distribution of this AIRY Document, ox amy portion of i, may result in savero civil and cximinal ig
penalties, snd will be p to the i axtent possible undar the Law. This draft was produced by IR softeare at 14:15:10 on
01/18/2008 undsr Order No.L00031¢784 1 which expires on 0/17/2008, and is not for zesale.

vser Hotes:

{3921875603)



The Architect’s approval shall not unreasonably be delayed or withheld, The submittal schedule shall (13 be
coordinated with the Contractor’s construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review
submittals, If the Coniéractor fails to submit a submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase
in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of submittals.

§3.10.3 The Contractor shalt per!orm the Work in gcneral au,ordance with the most recent schcdulcs subm:tted to
the Owner and Archﬂecl bl . Haiie

. : : : FS Ehc Chwner sha!i {}L entitled 10
rely on Comramor s sehedules for goordination of its NISe ac’avmes as well a8 ‘lhe aciz\rmc 5 of other confractors
working at the Project site or on the Proiect,

§ 3.11 BOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE

The Contractor shati maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change
Orders and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate feld chauges and selections made
during Lonslructi()n and one cepy of dpproved Shop Drawings ?mduct Data, Samples and similar rccguired

shali be dc wcred to the Archltecl for submittal to the Owner upon compielmn of the Work asa rccord of the Work
as constructed.

§3.11.1 The Conwvactor will make the Record Documents avetlable for inspection by the Architect upon reasanable
notice,_Adeguaie maiptenance of the Record Documents shall be a prerequisite 1o certification of the Contractor’s
application for pavment.

§ 1.12 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA AND SAMPLES
§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules and other data speciaily prepared for the Work by the
Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcentractor, manufacturer, supplier or distributor to illustrate some portion of

the Work.

§ 3.12.2 Product Data are {ilustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams and
other information furnished by the Contractor fo illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.

§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples thal illustrate materials, equipment or workmanship and establish standards
by which the Work will be judged.

§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is
to demonstrate the way by which the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design
concept expressed i the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents
require submittals. The Contragtor shall submit Product Data for all squipment and materidls incorporated i the
finished work. Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informationat submittals upon
which the Architect 18 not expected fo take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents.
Submittals that are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action

§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shali review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve and submit to the
Architect Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submitials required by the Contract Decuments in
accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal
schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no defay in the Work or in the activities of
the Owner or of separate contractors.

§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals, the Coniractor represents to
the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified
materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related therefo, or will do so and (3) checked and
coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract

Documents,

§ 3.42.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Centract Documents reguire submittal
and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals until the respective submittal has been
approved by the Architect.

AIA Document A2GI¥ - 2007. Copyright & 1911, 1915, 1§18, 1§25, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 2997 and 2007 by The
Rmerican Institute of Architechs. ALl rights reserved. WARNING: This ATR’ Document is protected by ¥.S. Copyright Law and Internntienral
Pyeastios. Upauthorired r ion ax dimtributicn of this AIA” Decumsut, ox any pertien of it, may wesult is severe civil and eriminal 17
pogaltics, and will ba peesccuted e the maiimum eittont possible endex the lew. This draft was produced by AIR software ab 14:15:10 on
01/18/2008 under Crder Na. 1000314724 3 which expires on B/I7/2060%, and is wot for yesale.

User Notes: (3LZ1870803)



§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of
responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect
fn writing of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific
deviation as a minor change in the Work, of (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued
authorizing the deviation, The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop
Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect’s approval thereof.

§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in wrifing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data,
Samples or similar subinittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals, In the
absence of such written notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required o provide professional services that constitute the practice of
architecture or engineering uniess such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of
the Work or unless the Contractor needs (e provide such services in order to carry ot the Contractor’s
responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. The Contracter shalt not be
required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law. 1f professional design services or
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of the
Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria
that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a
property licensed design professional, whose signature and seal shail appear on all drawings, calculations,
specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings
and other submittals refated to the Work designed or certifled by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear
such professional’s written approval when submitted to the Architeet. The Owner and the Architect shail be entitled
to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals performed or
provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Archilect have specified to the Contractor ali
performance and destgn criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12. 10, the Architect will
review, approve or take other appropriate aciion on submitals only for the limited purpose of checking for
condormance with information given and the design concepf expressed in the Contract Documents. The Costractor
shall not be responsible for the adeguacy of the performance and design criteria specified in the Contract
Documents,

§3.43USE OF SITE

The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rales and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably

encumber the site with materials or equipment

§ 3.14 CUTTING AND PATCHING : )
§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsibie for cutting, fitting or patching required to complete the Work or to make
its parts fit together properly, All areas requiring cutting, fitting and patching shall be restored to the condition
existing prior to the cutting, fitting and patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents.

§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially compieted
construction of the Owner or separate contractors by cutting, patching or otherwise aliering such construction, or by
excavation. The Contractor shalf not cut or otherwise alter such construction by the Owner or a separate contractor
except with written consent of the Owner and of such separate contractor; such consent shall nof be unreasonably
withheld. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold from the Owner or & separale contracter the Contractor’s
consent to cutiing or otherwise altering the Work.

§ 3.15 CLEANING UP
§ 3.15.1 The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste matertals or

rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. Af completion of the Woerk, the Contractor shall remove waste
materials. rubbish, the Coniractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus matertals from and about
the Project. ! B Ik 3 R PP T i T s

. S P

AIR Document AZOL™ - 2007. Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1818, 1825, 1947,
netitute of Archirects. AL rights resascved. URNING: :

navthorized ion or di

CLA38 /2008 under Crder Me 1000314754 1 whielh expires on 871772008, and is act for resaie.
User Notes:

1951, 1958, 1561, 1§63, 1966, 1975, 3976, 1947, 1997 and 200T by The
is AR Docuwent is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internatienal
thution of this A¥A* BDocument, ox any portion of i, way result in severa civil and criminal
ponalties, and will ba prosacuted te the moximu extent possible wnder the law. This draft wes preduced by AIA softwaxe at 14:I15:10 on

PEOZLIBTNE03)

18



§3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to ¢lean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and Owner
shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor,

§ 3.16 ACCESS TC WORK
The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever

located

§ 3.17 ROYALTIES, PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS

The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for mfringement
of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect hanmless from loss on account thereof, but
shall not be responsible for such defense or loss when a particular design, process or product of a particular
manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyrightiviolations are
contained in Drawings, Specifications or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect: However, if the
Contractor has reason to beheve that the required design, process or product is an infringement of & copyright or a
patent, the Contractor shall be responsible for such loss uniess such information is promptly Iurmshcd to the
Architect.

§ 3.18 INDEMNIFICATION

§ 3.48.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner
Archilect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages,
losses and expenses mciudmg but not Himited to attomeys fees ansmg out of or resultmg from pcrfonnance of the
Work, prev ¢ ; :
6Hﬁ-iﬂjﬁi’} +a-or-destruetion-of .w,gib}e-;}mpe}%y—ée&heﬂh&ﬂ«ehe%ﬂﬁtﬂe}ﬂ—bm only Lo the extent caused by {hc
acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or
anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense 18
caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obhigation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce
other rights or obligations of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in thls Sectmn
3.18.

§ 3.18.2 In claims agamnst any person or entity mdempified under this Section 3,18 by an employee of the Contracior,
a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anvone for whose acts they may be liable, the
indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be imited by a imitation en amount or type of damages,
compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or & Subcontraclor under workers’ compensation acts,
disabilsty benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

ARTICLE4 ARCHITECT

§ 4.1 GENERAL

§ 4.1.1 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture or an entity tawfully practicing -
architecture in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Docaments as if singular in number.

§$%WWWW&W%&MM%%M%%%M%M&W%W
shall-net-be-resirictedrmedified orextended-without-weitien consent o £ the Qumer-Contrastor-and-Arohitest

Gonsent-shall-netbe-nnreasanably-vithheld:
%@Mﬂweﬁw}@ymeﬁmﬂh&&mhﬁee@ﬁ Wm%%@n%q%ﬁ%ﬁ%w&ﬂﬁeﬁ%
T

o 0 2 ol bimats Az, totus-underthe-fon ot 3n

the-Coriraeter-Nas e TeRSONEH - OB EeHBR-BRE-WRESE5 i

S

et}
]
3

g

e

Frehitest:

§ 4.2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT

§4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Doeumems and will be
an Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Archifect issues the final Certificate For Payment.
The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract
Documents.

§4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed
with the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portien of the Work completed,

RIN Docwment A2G1™ - 2607. Copywight & 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1961, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
Amsrican Institute of Architects A1l rights reserved. WRENING: This ATE" Document us protected by U.S5. Copyright Law and Intarnstional
Preatims. Unanthenized reproduction or distzibution of this ATA" Docwsant, or any portion of ik, may result in severe eivil ang crimbnak 1S
popaliies, and will ho prosecuted ta he maximum entent possible under the law, This draft was produced by AIA software at 14:15:10 on
01/18/2509 under Grder Ho.1000314784_) which expizes on 8/17/2008, and is net for resale.

User Botes: (3921870803)



and to determine in general if the Work observed s being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when
fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to
make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will
not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for, the construction means, metheds, technigues, sequences or
procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the
Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract Documents, except as provided in Section 3.3.1

§4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed abowt the progress and
quality o the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract
Documents and from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and
deficiencies abserved in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the
Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, The Architect will not have centrol over or’
charge of and will not be responsible for acts or emissions of the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work,

§4.2.4 COMMUNICATIONS FACILITATING CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

Exeept as otherwise provided in the Contract Documenis or when direct communications have been specially
authorized, the Owner and Contracior shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about
matlers arising out of or refating to the Contract. Communications by and with the Architeet’s consultants shall be
through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and material suppliers shall be through the
Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner. )

§4.2.5 Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review
and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will 1ssue Certificates for Payment in such amouniis.

§4.2.6 The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Docaments. Whenever the.
Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect wilt have authonty to require inspection or testing of the

Work ir accordance with Sections 13.5.2 and 13.5.3, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed.

However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made m good faith esther to exercise or not to
exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors,
material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entitzes performing portions of the
Work

§4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the hmited purpose of checking for conformance
with information given and the design concept expressed m the Contract Documents, The Architest’s action will be
taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved
submittal schedule, with reasonable prompiness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional
judgment to permit adequate review. Review of such submitials is not conducted for the purpose of detérmining the
accuracy and completencss of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for
stallation or performance of eqiipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as
required by the Contract Documents. The Architect’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the
Contractor of the obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5 and 3.12. The Archuiect’s review shall not constitute approval
of safety precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architeet, of any construction means, methods,
techaigues, sequences or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an
assembly of which the item 1s a2 component,

§4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may authorize minor
changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4, The Architect will investigate and make determinations and
recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7 4.

§4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections 1o determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date
of final compietion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 8.8, receive and forward 1o the
Owner, for the Owner's review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and
agsembled by the Contractor pursuan{ te Section 9. 10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant o Section

$.10.

RIR Document AZ0I™ - 2007. Copyright © 3§11, 1915, 3613, 1525, 1937, 1851, 1858, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1§Y0, 1576, 3967, 1997 and 2007 by The
Bmerican Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WRRNIKG! This RXA® Document is protected by U.5. Copyright Law and Intexmational
Freatics. Uneuthorised repzoduction or distribuvien of thiz AL3" Doowment, ox any portion of it, may zesult in severe civil and oriminal
i draft was preduced by ALA softwars ab 124:15:10 on

ponsltics, and will be prosecuted to tha maximem extent possible uader the Iaw. 7h
02/18/2068 upder order ®o.iG00I14784 1 which expizes on 8/17/2008, and is net for ressls.
User Wotes:

(3F21872603)

20



§ 4.2.10 11 the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more project representatives 10 assist in
carrying out the Architect’s responsibitities at the site. The duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of
such project representatives shail be as set forth in an exhibit to be incorporated in the Contract Documents,

§4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests
will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.

§ 4.212 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably mferable
from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations
and decisions, the Architect will endeavor {o secure faithfisl performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not
show partiality to either and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith

§4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if congistent with the mient
expressed in the Contract Docwmnents.

§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The
Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with
reasonable promptness, If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and
Specifications in response to the requests for information._I{ requested by the Architect. all reguests for information
shall be submitted to the Avchitect in a fopmal accepiable to the Architect,

ARTICLE 5 SUBCONTRACTORS

§ 5.1 DEFINITIONS

§5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perfonm a portion of the
Work at the site. The term “Subcoatractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in
number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontracior. The term “Subcontractor”
does not include a separate contractor or subcontractors of & separate contractor.

§5.1.2 A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with 2 Subcontracior to
perform a portion of the Work at the site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is referred 1o throughout the Contract
Documents a3 if singuiar in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-
subcontractor,

§ 5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF THE WORK

§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Docoments or the bidding requirements, the Contractor, as soon as
practicable after award of the Contract, shall furnish in writing to the Gwner through the Architect the names of
persons or entities (including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special desigin)
proposed for each principal portion of the Work. The Architect may reply within 14 days t6 the Contractor -
writing stating (1) whether the Owner or the Architect has reasenable objection to any such proposed person or..
entity or (2) that the Architect requires additional time for review. Failure of the Owner or Architect to reply within
the 14 day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made
reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the
Contractor has made reasonable objection.

§ 5.2.3 If the Gwner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entify proposed by the Contractor, the
Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the proposed but
rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Centract Time shall
be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such ehange, and an appropriate Change Order
shall be issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract
Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change uirless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsrvely
in submitting names as required.

§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substituie a Subcontractor, person or entity previously selected if the Owner or
Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.

RIA Document AZOL™ - 2007, Copyright ® 1911, 1815, 1518, 1825, 1937, 1951, 1558, 1§61, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1876, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
Emerican Instivets of Rrehitects. ALl rights reserved. WRRWING: This AYA Document is protocted by 4.5, Copyright Law and Intexnstional
Uranties. Unanthonised reprodustien or distribution of this AIA® Document, o any porction af it, way resuwlt in severs ciwil and crimismal 21
penalties, and will be prosacutsd to the maximum extent posvible wnder the law. This drafe was preduced by AIA software #f 14:13:10 on
01/18/2065 undex order ¥o.10C031475¢ 1 which expires om 8/17/2008, and iz not for resale.

User Notes: I3521B7CE03)



§ 5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS

By appropriate agreement, written where legally required for validity, the Contractor shall require each
Subcontractor, 1o the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by
terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities,
including the responsibility for safety of the Subcontractor’s Work, which the Contractor, by these Documents,
assumes toward the Owner and Architect, Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the
Owner and Architect under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor
so that subcontracting thereof will noet prejudice such rights, and shall allew te the Subcontractor, uniess specifically
provided otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the
Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, has against the Owner, Where appropriate, the
Contractor shall require each Subconiractor to enter info similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors, The
Contractor shail make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the exegution of the subcontract agreement,
copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the
Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may
be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of
such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subconiractors,

§ 5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS )
§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agresment for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided

that
A ass:g:nmem is effective only after temuination of the Contract by the Owner et
des 130 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notlfylné, thc
Subcontmctor and Contractor in writing, and
.2 assighment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, 1f any, obligated under bond relating to the

Contract,

When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Qwner assumes the Contractor’s rights and
obligations under the subcontract

ARTIiCLE 8 CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS

§ 6. OWNER’S RIGHT TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION AND TO AWARD SEPARATE CONTRACTS :
§6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s
own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other construction or
operations on the site, snderCenditions-efthi ie-thege-ineluding-these

e-ontract-identical-er-substantiaiby-similar i
portienerelaied-to-tnsuranes-and-waiver efsubrogation—If the Contractor claims that defay or additional cost'is
involved because of such action by the Owner, the Contractor shall make such Claim as provided in Article 15,

§6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations
on the site, the term “Contractor” in the Contract Documents i each case shall mean the Contractor who executes

each separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.

§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Crwner’s own forces and ef each separate
coniractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contracter shall participate with
other separate contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any
revisions to the construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction
schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner until

subsequently revised.

AYA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright © IS, 1513, 1518, 152%, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1¥63, 1965, 1970, 1876, 1PB7, 1587 and 2007 by The
Pmerican Instizure of Architects. A1l rights reserved. WARNING: This RIA® Documant iz protected by U.5. Copyright Iaw and Intercationad
¥reaties. Unsuthorized reproduction or distzibution of this RIA® Nocument, ox any pertion of it, may reswit ib severe civil and eriminal

panalties, tnd will be prosecuted to the maximea oxtenmt pessible nndor the law.

Usar Notes:

This drafi was produced by ATA software at 14:15:10 o
01/38/2008 under Order No.1G983147094 1 which expires on B/27/2808, and i5 noT fok ressle.

(3821870803}

22



§6.2 MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY

§6.2.1 The Confractor shall afford the Owner and separate contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activitics, and shall connect and coordinate the
Contractor’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.

§6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper exectition or results upon construction or operations by
the Owner or a separate confractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly
report to the Architect apparent discrepancies or defects in such other construction that would render it unsuitable
for such proper execution and results. Failure of the Contractor s0 to report shall constitute an acknowledgment that
the Owner’s or separate contractor’s completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the
Contracter’'s Work, except as 1o defects not then reasonably discoverable,

§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a separate contractor
because of the Conlraclor’e delays, inmpropcrly 1imed aclivities or defecliw: censl‘ruction Ahf:r natively tha

rcsponsublu to the Contraclor “for costs lhe Contrdctor incurs because ofa separate confractor’s delays, |mpr0pcrly
timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction. _For the purposes of facilitating this Section, the
{_ontractor and separate contractors shall be deemed third party beneficiaries to each other’s respectwe cmumcts

§ 6.2.4 The Contracter shall prompily remedy damage the Contractor wrongfuily causes to completed or partially
completed construction or to property of the Owner, separate contractoers as provided in Sectien 10.2.5,

§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each separate contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are
described for the Contractor in Section 3. (4 ’

§ 6.3 OWNER'S RIGHT TO CLEAN UP

If a dispute arises among the Contractor, separate contractors and the Owner as to the respoﬂsnblllty under their
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste matertals and rubbish, the .
Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible.

ARTICLE 7 CHANGES IN THE WORK

§7.1 GENERAL

§ 7.4.1 The Owner may. without imvalidating e Coptraet and withou notice 1o the surety. dirget changes i the
Work, Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the
Con{ract by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to ti
limitations stated n this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents. :

§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor and Architect; a Construction
Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the
Contracter; an order for a miner change in the Work may be issued by the Archutect alone.

§7.4.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Dccmﬁents, and the
Contractor shall proceed promptly, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction Change Directive
or order for a minor change i the Work.

& 714 Motwithsianding any other provision to the conbary in the Contract Documenis. upen recei of 3 direetion |
lor Chanee. the Contracior shall immediately implenient the Change mie the Work.

& 145 No Chonee Order shall be aporoved unleas preceded by written direction for Chanpee s provided by the
Cwner or Architeet, This requirement cannet be waived, LThere shall be ne implicit or constristive change order,

§ 7.2 CHANGE ORDERS
§ 7.2 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor and

Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following:

[ Formatted: Font; (Default) Times New Roman |

Formatted: Font, {Default) Times New Roman,
Mot Bold

AIA Docwnent AI0L™ - 2007. Copyrigbt @ 1511, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1§51, 155B, 1961, 1863, 1§6C, 1970, 1376, 1887, 1§97 and 2007 by The
American Institute of Architests. hll zights resexved, WARNING: ¥bds ALL' “jeumant s procected hy U.5. Copyright Law and Tntarsstiona)
Iroaties, Umat ad. en or distibubion of thiz AIX" Documsnt, ox any porticn of it, may rwsult in sovess civil and criminal
puaskties, and will be prossoutsd ta the maximon oxtont possible under the lsw. This draft was produred by A¥A soffware at 14:15:10 on
01/10/7008 under Order No. 1000314724 1 which expires on B/17/2098, and is nov for resals.
User Notes:

(3521870903

23



4 The change n the Work,
2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and
3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

= = ( Formatteds AA Body Text Indented

)

& 7.2.2 No payment for change in the Work shall be made until such chanee has been memoriatized inan executed - - . { Formatted: ATA Body Text Indented, Indent:
Hanging: 0.5"

Change Order gnd the Change has been naplemented mio the Work Panial pavinenis on parbatly

)

shall be paid stindarly as partial pavments on base contract work.

mmplemented changes

Pl permened e Todiow ine snarhupe o chunees onders, Sddinoral i
tesis st e snhinied s ae Jagll

ds vt net be afloveed A3 chinge veder ey !
gen o they il not b res ievved Iy thie Architeet op Chaner, Provide 1p cnind am T nmmiﬁc\.
Paaler e und vosts, Jahor siies, and amy other suhsiantiating Jas o explain

P fted srarb o o Clhamge Dindoss

Addnie Chenee Orders 08,
Diedociiy e L hange rder: 3%

§ 7.3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES

§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and
Archstect, directing a change m the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract
Time, or both. The Gwner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes
i the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions, the
Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.

§7.3.2 A Construction Chanve Dérective shaEE be uqed in the absence oftotal as_reemenl on lhc terms of a Change

APy ing pavrent,

§7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment i the Contract Sum, the adjostment shali be
based on one of the following methods:
A Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to
permit evalaation,
.2 Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;
3 Costto be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutoally acceptable fixed or
percentage fee; or
4 Asprovided in Section 7.3.7.

§ 7.3.4 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequemly agreed upon, and il quantities originally
contemplated are materially changed {i.e., by more than 25%} na proposed Change Order or Construction Change
Directive, se-thateppheation-of such-unit prices-te-quentities-of Wercpropesed-witl cause-subsiantia-fnequityto-the
Ovmerer-Contracter-the applicable unit prices shatimay be eguitably adjusted.

§7.3.5 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the cha:&ge n
the Work involved and adwvise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, i any,
provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or
Contract Time.

§7.3.8 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith,

including .idjustmf:m n Contract Sum and (.oniract Time or the method for determining them. %aeh—a—zﬁxwr shath
be-effective invmediatelyandshall-hevecorded-as-a Change Grder

§ 7.3.7 if' the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum,
the Architect shall determine the methed and the adjustment on the basts of reasonable expendimrcs and savings of
those performing the Work atiribufable (o the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an
amount for everhead and profit tas sinted 1p 872 \13&Wﬂ%ﬁeﬁweﬁm%w%wx%ﬁﬂeﬁ%&%ﬁ—feﬁ%m
the-Agreement:—-Fednonublemreut-_In such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and
present, in such form as the Architect may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting

AIA Document A201™ - 2007. Copyzight © 1911, 1915, 1938, 1525, 1337, 1951, 1958, 1861, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1978, 1887, 1997 and 2807 by The
Bmerican Tastitute of Rrchitocts. ALl rights reserved. WARNING: this AYA® Decuwsnt is protectad by U.S. Copyright Law and International
vreatiss. Unsutherised reprodustion or disteibution of this ATA® Docwmant, or smy porticn of it, may rasult in severs civil mnd exininal 24
petialties, snd will be prossouted to the maisams entent possible snder the law. This draft was produced by ALk softvars 2t 14115:10 on
D1/18/2608 wnder Order No,:0GO314794 1 which expires on B/17/2088. and is not for resals.

User Notes: (392:1B756603)



data Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.7 shail be
fimited to the following:
A4 Costs of labor, including social security, old age and unemployment insurance, fringe benefits
required by agreement or custom, and workers® compensation insurance;
2 Cosis of materials, supplies and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or
consumed;
3 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the
Contractor or others;
4 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use or similar taxes relaled to
the Work; and
5 Additional costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attnbutable to the change.

§7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a
net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and
credits covering related Work or substitutions are involved i a change, the allowance for overhead and profif shall
be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with respeet to that change.

&E30-Pepding-fnak-deternination ef the tetel costofe-Construsiion-Chenge- Qipee%e—t-e—&-i%—é %e&—ﬂ%—é—eﬂ%e%er

L wament-for- Wask rnletod unden e £ et Lo i L 1 Fenze Bonst i cura
mey-reguest-payment-fo ampleted-under-the-Congtruetion-Change-Direetive-i-Apphentions-for Rayment.
The-frchitest-wibmake an-intesin-determpinationfor-purposes-ef-menthly-certification-for payment-for-those-sesis
&Mﬁﬁﬂﬁy{@w&yﬁwmmmaﬂ%@%ﬂ%mmﬁm ts-prefessional-fudpmentta-b

teet s interi Lo t] cbivist (e G i
m@%@%&%@wmmmwwmﬁmmmﬁ%

§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the
adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such
agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare 2 Change Order. Change Orders may be
issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.

§ 7.4 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK

The Architect has authority to order minor changes i the Work not imvelving adjustment 1 In. the Contract Sum or
extension of the Contract Time and not inconsistent with the intent of the Centract Documents. Such chaniges will be
affected by written order signed by the Architect and shall be binding on the Owner and Contractor

ARTICLE B TIME
§ 8.1 DEFINITIONS
§8,1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, ailotied in

the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.
§ 8.4.2 The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.
§8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8,

§8.1.4 The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specificaily
defined.

§ 8.2 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION _
§8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement
the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performmg the Work.

§ 8.2.2 The Coniractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or insiruction of the Owner in'wriling, prematurely
conumence cperations on the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of msurance requived by Article 11 to be
furnished by the Contractor and Cwner. The date of commencement of the Work shall not. be changed by the
effective date of such insurance. .

§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shali proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Conipletion
and Final Completion within the Contract Time._Unless provided elsewhere in the Coptiattl DDocuents, Fnal
Completion shalf be completed within thirne (303 davs follewing Subsienual Completion,

AIA Document A201% - 2007. Copyright @ 1§11, 1915, 1618, 1525, 1937, 1851, 1858, 1961, 1963, 1966, L5870, 1§76, 1961, 1997 and 2007 by Ihe
pmerican Institute of Archifects. ALl rights resepved. VARNING: This RIA® Doctment is pretsctad by U.S. Copyright Law and Internationzl
Presties. Upnautherized reproduction or gistributicr of fhis AIA° Documsnt, ox amy portien of it, mey result in severe civil and criminal 25
ponaities, and will be d to the axtent pessibis wnder the law, This dreffit war produced by AIR software av :14:35:10 on
91/14/7008 under Order Wo.100033478¢ 1 which expires on #/17/2008, and is net for resale,

Usex Nokes:

{39226708D3)



§8.3 DELAYS AND EXTENSIONS OF TiME

§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an act or neglect of
the Owner or Architect, or of an employee of either, or of a separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by
changes ordered in the Work; or by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualiies or other
causes beyond the Contractor’s control; or by delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and arbitration; or
by other causes that the Architect determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change
Order for such reasonable time as the Architeet may determine

§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shat! be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.
§ 8.3.3 This-Beetion-S-3-doesnet prechude ressvery-ef damagesTor-deley-by-erher-pasty-upder-other provisions-of

the-Ceontract-Decursants: Extension of Contract Time pursuant to this Article shall be the Contractor’s sole and
exclusive remedy for delay.

8 8.3.4 Extension of Contract Time resulting from Changes in the Work shall be negotiated into respective Change
Grders. Whenever the Contractor seeks an adjustment in the Contract Time as part of a Claim’or Change. Order, the

Contractor shall justify the request with proper. reference to the approved construction schedules, Al executed

Change Orders shall be deemed {o include adiustments in the Contract Time. if any, sesultine from the waderlying
Change in the Work,

§8.3.5 In { ; t ; Ve Haony, i Contractor
shall relmburse the Ovmer for all Archltcct‘s fees far additional services necessﬁased by Contractor s failure to

achieve Substantial Completion within the time established in the Agreement and for more than one inspection for
each Substantial Completion and Final Completion.

ARTICLE & PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION

§9.1 CONTRACT SUN
The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustiments, is the total amount payable b\i

the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Werk under the Contract Documents.

§9.2 SCHEDULE OF VALUES

Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit to the
Architect, before the first Apphication for Payment, a schedule of values allocating the entire Contract Sum to the
various portions of the Work and prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate #s accuracy as
the Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as 2 basis for reviewing
the Contractor’s Applications for Payment._As such, approval of the schedule of values (and re\nsmns thereto) shiail

be an abselute prereguisite to certification of the applications for payment.

§9.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT

§9.3.1 Avloasi-ton-duys-befors-the date-oatablished-for eash-progress poyment-the-The Contrattor shall submit to the
Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under

Section 9.2., for completed portions of the Work, Such application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by
such data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment as the Qwiier or Architect may require, such as copies of
requisitions from Subcontractors and material suppliers, and shali reﬂact remmage if pmwded for m lhe C‘omract
Documents. 50 5 i yedin B . ;

§9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such apphications may inctude requests for payment o1l account oﬁ changes in

the Work that have been properly authorized by Gopsirvetion-Change Directives—or-biy-interhmn dy SraInat fthe

Avehitectbutnotyetineladedn-Change Orders.

§9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portiens of the Work for which the
Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or material sopplier, uniess such Work has been performed by
others whom the Contractor intends fo pay.

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Confract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and
equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subseguent incorperation in the Work If approved in advance

RAIR Document AZDI™ - 2007, Copysight @ 1813, 1925, 1916, 1925, 1937, 195%, 1958, 1961, 1963, 3966, 1870, 1576, 1987, 1867 and 2007 by The
Mnericen Institute of Anchivects. A1) rights reserved. WARNING: This ATR™ Decuwsnt is protected by U.s. Cepyright Law and Tnternational
Prentias. Unauthorized tion or distribution of this ATA" Doctmont, or any portion of it, may xesult in severs civil and criminal 26
penalties, and will be prosecuted te the pedcimmn extent possible undarx the law, This drsft was produced kY AZA softuware at 14:15:15 on
031/18/2008 under Order No.1000314794_1 which expires op B/L7/2009, 2nd is noet for resals.
Usor Hotes:

13821870303



by the Owner, payment may simifarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location
agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon
comphance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Gwner’s titfe to such
materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall incjude the costs of applicable
insurance, storage and transportation to the site for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Cwner
no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for
Payment all Worl for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the
Ohaner shall, te the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information and belief, be free and clear of Hens, claims,
security interests or encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcentractors, material suppliers, or other persons or
entities making a claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work,

£9.3.4 All Anplications for Payment shall be accompanied by lien waivers from the Contractor and applicable
Subcontracters, The lien walvers -vhen taken together. shall equal the sum due under the respective Application for

Payment

9.3.5 All Applications for Paviment shall be accompanied by the Contractor’s and Subcontraciors’ certified
pavrolls as required by the [llinois Prevailing Wage Act. :

£9.2 6 Submission of properly executed hen waivers and the certified payrolls shall be absolﬁte prerequisites to
certification of the respective Application for Payment,

§ 9.4 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT

§9.4.1 The Architect will, within seven days affer receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, cither issue
to the Owner a Certificate for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor, for such amount as the Architect determines
is properly due, or netify the Contractor and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for withholding
certification in whole or m part as provided i Section 9.5.1

§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect.ta the Owner,
based on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that, to the
best of the Architect’s knowledge, mformation and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated and that
the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subiect to
an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of
subsequent tests and ingpections, 1o correction of miner deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion
and fo specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. The issuance of 2 Certiticate for Payment will further
constitute a representation that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, the issuance
of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made exhaustive or confinuous on-
site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2} reviewed construction means, methods, lechniques,
sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcentractors and material suppliers
and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Countractor’s right to payment, or (4} made examination to
ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.

§9.5 DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD CERTIFICATION
§9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, for falluee of the Contracior fo
satisty prereguisites expressly set forth in the Contract Procuments and/or 1o the extent reasonably necessary to
protect the Owner, i in the Architect’s cpinton the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot be
made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the
Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised
amount, the Architect will promptly 1ssue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able t¢
make such representations to the Owner, The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of
subsequently discovered evidence, may nublify the whele or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, o
such extent as may be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor
is responsible, including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of

3 defective Work not remedied; .

2 third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims unless

security aceepiable to the Owner 15 provided by the Contractor,

BIA Document RZOI™ - 2007. Copyright & 1931}, 151%, 1918, 192%, 1937, 19%5%, 2958, 1361, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2064 by The
Bmerican Institule of Archirects. AL rights reserved, RRRHING: This AL’ Dooumsnt is protected by U.8. Coepyright Law and lanternational
Proatias. Unsubhorized roproduction or distribution of this AXR Decumant, or any portion of it, may zesult in sovers civil And oriminad 27
papalties, and will be prosoented to the maxisum sxtant pessible under the law. This drafr wigs produced by AIA sofikaze at 14:15:15 on
01/28/2008 under Order Ko, 1G00314164 L which expizes on E/LT/2808, and is net for resale,

Usex Motaes: (3221870803)



.3 failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors er for labor, materials or
equipment;

4 reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum,

5 damage to the Owner or a separate contractor;

& reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the
unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay,

or
T repeated failure (o carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§9.5.2 When the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be'made for amounts
previously withheld

§ 9.5.3 if the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option,
issue joint checks to the Contractor and 10 any Subconfractor or material or equipment suppliefs to whom the
Contractor failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suifably delivered. If the
Owner makes payments by joint check, the Qwner shall notify the Architect and the Architect will reflect such
payment on the next Certificate for Payment. :

! Formatted: Justified, Tab stops: Net at 0.5"

§9.6 PROGRESS PAYMENTS
§9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and
within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notifly the Architect.

§9.6.2 The Contractor shai! pay each Subcontractor no kater than seven days after receipt of payment from the
Owner the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to
the Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by 'apprq'priale
agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subgoniractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a simflar

manner,

§9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages &f
completion or amounts apphed for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Orwiner on
account of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor.

§9.6.4 The Owner has the nght to request wrilten evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid
Subcontractors and material and equipment suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractos for subcontracted
Work. If the Contractor fails to fumish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact
Subcontractors to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an
obligation to pay or (o see to the payment of money to a Subcontractor, except as may ctherwise be required by law

§9.6.5 Contractor payments (o material and equipment suppliers shall be treated In a manner similar 1o that provided
in Sections 962,963 and 9.6.4

§9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the
Cwner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§9.6.7 Uniess the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum,
payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors and supphiers shall be held by
the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both, under
contract with the Costractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require
money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, shall create any
fiduciary lability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust or shall entitie any person or entity
to an award of punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.

AIR Document K201M - 2007, Copyright © 1911, 1915, 3818, 1825, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1961, 1963, 1866, 1970, 1976, 1587, 1957 and 2007 by The
mericen Imstitute of Architects. ALl rights reserved. WARNING: This AXA® Documsnt ;% protoctsd by U.S5. 'Jopywight Law and Internntional

tion ox distribution of this MIN' Docwnmont, or sny porbien of L, may reswlt in severe @vil and oriminal 28
This draft was protiuced by AIR sefrware at 14:15:10 on

rreaties. Unsuthorized
penaities, and will be prowecuted te the maximwm sxtant passible under the law.
01/1B/2008 under Crder Ho.ldDDIi4794_3 whicn expires on 8/17/2094, asnd is not for ressle.

Vser Wotes: (3%21070803)



§ 9.7 FAILURE OF PAYMENT

1f the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days afier
receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days
after the date established in the Contract Documents the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding
dispuie resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days™ written notice fo the Owner and Architect,
stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended
appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shut-
down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.

§ 9.8 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof
1s sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the
Wark for its infended use. i il ) il Ty i

{

§9.8.2 When the Contracter considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept
separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of
ftents to be completed or corrected prior to final payment (the “Punchlist™. Failure to include an item on such list
does not alter the respensibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Centract Documents.

§ ©.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or
designated portion thereof is substantially complete, f the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not
included on the Congractor’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Dociiments so
that the Owner can occupy or uftlize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor
shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification
by the Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to

determine Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a
Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion, shall establish
responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and
insurance, and shall fix the time within which the Contractor shali finish all items on the list accompanying the
Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shali commence on the date of Substantial Completion
ol the Work or designated porttion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantiai Completion.

§ 9.8.5 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Cwner and Contractor for their written
acceptance of responsibilities assigned lo them in such Certificate. Upon such acceptance and consent of surety, if

?gnna;;sa_d:_ Justified

ATR Document AR01™ -~ 2007,
Pronties.
panalties, and will be prosecuted o fhe mAkimuw extent pospible undsr the law. This dreft was produced by ALA softwaze at 14:15:10 en
D1/:6/200F under Order No. 2000314784 1 which expires on B/37/2008, and is not for resale.
User Wotes:

Copyright @ 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 3837, 3851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1876, 1987, 1997 and #087 by The
Rmerican Institute of Archiresbs. ALl rights resarved. WARNING: Phiz ATA® Document is protucted by ¥.S. Copyright %aw and Interana:’enal
Unagethorized roproduction ox distribubion of this ALAY Docwwent, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and eriwdnai

{3%21670803)

29



any, the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to such Work or designated portion thereof gg
the Agreement. Such payment shall be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents.

53,86 Upon Subsiantial Completion, via this Contract, the Contractor and L_t_gglxcablc Subcontractors (viathe .- f Formatted: Font: {Default) Times New Roman }

! vendor and manuf. BE_QF_H_EE, - { Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman ]

y-through provi qiongs}m}gsm 1 di
arrantice shall be submitied to the Architect prior to submis

Marsiaciurers

Payment.
. - [ Pormatteds Font: Not Beld ]
1aresguislte o Su_bstanuai Lommgil_gﬂ_. " +{ Formatted: Font: (Default; Times New Roman }
a._ All Record Documenis e Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + !
b, All Operaticns and Maintepance Manuals (3 copies in 3-ring binders) Numbering Style: a, b, ¢, ... + Startat: 1 +

Al Manufacturers’ warranties i Afignment: Left + Aligned at: 0.5" + Indent at:
- 0.75"

§ 9.9 PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE
§9.8.1 The Owner may occupy or use any compleled or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when
such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such cccupancy or use is consented
to by the msurer as required under Section 11.3.1.5 and authorized by public authorities having junisdiction over the
Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided
the Owner and Contractor have accepted in writing the respensibilities assigned to each of thein for paviments,
retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utibities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in
writing concering the period for correction of the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract
Documents. When the Contractor considers a portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and
submit a list lo the Architect as provided under Section 9 8 2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use
shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the Work shall be determined by written ayef_mcnt
between the Owner and Contractor or, f no agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect.

§9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor and Architect shall jointly inspect
the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to detenmine and record the condition of the

Work.

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion of portions of the Work shall not
constitute acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents

§9.10 FINAL COMPLETION AND FINAL PAYMENT

§9.10.% All Work depicted on the Contractor’s Punchlist and fhereatter identified 1n the Architeet’s inspection shall
be completed within shiny days of issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion. Upon receipt of the
Confractot’s written notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of a final
Appiication Tor Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection and, when the Architect finds the Work
acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect wiil promptly issue a final
Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, and on the basis
of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with ferms and
conditions of the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found 1o be due the Contractor and noted m the
final Certificate is due and pavable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further
representation that conditions listed in Section 9.10.2 as precedent fo the Contractor’s being entitled to final payment

have been fulfilled.

§9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due untit the Confractor submits
to the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebledness connected
with the Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered {less amounis
withheld by Owner} have been paid or otherwise satisfied, {2} a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the
Coniract Documents to remain i force after final payment is currently in effect and will not be canceled or allowed
to expire until at least 30 days’ prior written notice has been given to the Owner, (3) a written statement that the
Coentractor knows of no substantial reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by
the Contract Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment and (3), if required by the Cwner, other data
establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, releases and waivers of liens, claims, secerily

RIA Document AZDI™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1818, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1576, 1887, 1897 and 2007 by The
Eeericsn Institure of Architacks. All rights reservad. WRRNING: %his ATRY Document is protectad by U.5. Copyright Lav and Intornational
Fresties, Unsuthozized ropmeduction or dfstyibution of this 213" Document, oF any portion of it, may reswlt in seveza civil and criminal 30
penalties, and will be prosseuted to tha soyximum extont posaible under the jaw. This draft was preduced by AXh saftware at 14:15:10 on
G1/18/2008 under Ozder No. 3000314784 1 which expives on 8/17/2008, and is not for ressle.

User Notes: 132218708031



interests or encumbrances arising ouf of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the
Owner. If 2 Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a
bond satisfactory to the Owner fo indemnify the Owner against such lien, If such lien remains unsatisfied afler
payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Cwner all money that the Owner may be compelied to pay
discharging such lien, including all costs and reasonable atiorneys’ fees.

§9.16.3 If, after Substantial Compietion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault
of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting tinal completion, and the Archifect so confirms, the
Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the
Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted, Jess reteption.
If the remaming balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract
Docaments, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of surety to payment of the balance due for that
portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitied by the Contracior to the Avchitect prior ie
certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment,
except that it shall not constitute a waiver of claims.

§8:40.4 Thewaldngof finchpayment-shalconstitie-a-vatver-of- Sletma by the- Ovwher sweptihonsarising from
Ao epe-Claima-sceuriy-interesicorencumbrances-arising-ovt-of the-Contract-and-unsettled:

g—%w&mﬁ%%fﬁa%wﬁﬁ%mﬁwmﬁwm—&mﬁ&e@emw
A—terms-ofapecielwarranties-required-by-the Contraet-Becurment

§8.16.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcentractor or material suppiiér shall cpn_s_ii_fute a
waiver of claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and gpecifically identified by that payee as
unsettled at the time of final Application for Payment.

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§10.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS
The Conlractor shaii be iy responsible fer mmat!ng, mamtamancr and supervismg a I safety precauhons and

§ 10.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY
§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall fake reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection w0
prevent damage, injury or loss to

4 employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;

.2 the Work and materrals and equpment to be meorporated theremn, whether in storage on or off the
site, under care, custody or control of the Contractor or the Contractor’s Subcontra'ctors or Sub-
subcontractors; and

3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavcmenls
roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or repiacement inthe course
of construction.

§10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices reguired by applicable laws, statutes, orda’nanées; codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authoritics bearing on safety of persons or property or their
protection from damage, injury or loss.

§10.2.3 The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Contract,
reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings sgainst hazards,
promulgating safety regulations and notifying owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities,

§10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment or unusual methods are
necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under
supervision of properly qualified personnel. :

§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall prompily remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property
insurance reguired by the Contract Documents) o property referred to in Sections 102.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in
whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed
by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under

RIA Docwnent AZDI™ - 2007. Copyright © 1811, 1815, 1518, 1925, 1937, 1951, 3958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1976, 1976, 1947, 1897 and 2007 by The
.meriean Institute of Architects. Adl rights reserved. URRNING: This RIL® Doctwent is protected by U.5. Copyxight Daw and Intarnational
“reotims. Unauthorized reprodection or Gistzibwtion of this RTA" Decumsnt, or =hy pertios of it, may mesult in savexs civil and eximinal 31
ponalties, and will be pr to Tha i antont pesaible undar the law. This draft was produced by RYA sofrwere at 14:15:30 on
D11BF2003 under Order Mo, 1000314794 1 which expizea on B/17/2008, end is pot for resae,
Uaar Notes:

1302IETOBRSS,



Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or {oss attribitable (0 acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or
anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anvone for whose acts either of them may be liable,
and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Confractor are in
addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.18.

§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor's organization at the site whose duty
shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise
designated by the Contractor in writing to the Cwner and Architect.

§10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or
create an unsafe condition.

& At HILRY-BR DAMAGETO-PERSON GIPROPERTY

I sl e e e

P o i
Heitherpartrseffesnir-ordaman

TP P PAPRRT T al | sty
G- ST G- T maf.m.)s ERR

£

her for bk ogepetesueh para s el ; o , :
theps hegenots-suchparty-is-Tesalh : iR Btde A e ehether oF-hat
irnred—shal-be-gtven-to-the-stherparty ...mfwxe{ﬁeﬁbé&ﬁm&ﬂa%ﬂweecim@m}‘wda%%&ma.eﬁ','.—"ﬂieﬂatiae
xn‘ﬁ‘:H provide-suificient-dataibto-enable-the-stherporb-te-favestis mutter
§ 10.3 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

§10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Ccm:ract Docaments
regarding hazardous materials. H the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance pot addressed in the
Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadeguate (o prevent foreseeable bodily mjury orideath
to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl
{PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shali, upon recognizing the condition; immediately
stop Work in the affected area and report the condition to the Owner and Architect 1 wniting.

§10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s written notice, the Cwner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory
{0 verify the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such
material or substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Uniess otherwise required by the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall famish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications
of persons or entities who are (e perform tests verifying the presence or absence of such material or substance or
whao are to perform the task of removal or safe containment of such matenial or substance. The Contractor and the
Architect will promptly reply to the Owner m writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection lo the
persens or entities proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity
proposed by the Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no
reasonable objection. When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall
resume upon written agreemert of the Owner and Contractor, By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be
extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased in the amount of the Contractor's reasonable
additional costs of shut-down, delay and start-up. )

§10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitied by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmiess the Contractor,
Subcontractors, Architect, Architect’s consuitants and agents and employees of any of them from and against
claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys” fees, arising out of or resulting from
performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or
death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss or
expense is attributable 1o bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or te injury to or destruction of tangible property
{other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss or expense s due to the fauit or neghigence
of the party seeking indemnity. )

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for materials or substances the Contractor brings
to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents, The Owner shall be
responsible for materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, excopt to the bxtent of the Contractor’s
fault or neghigence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.

§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall indemnify the Owner for fhe cost and expense the Owner incurs {1} for remediation of
a material or substance the Contractor brings fo the site and negligently handles, or {2) where the Contractor fails to
perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the exfent that the cost and expense are due © the Owner's

fault or negligence.

AIA Document AZOI™ - 2007. Copyright @ 2913, 1915, 1918, 1325, 3937, 2931, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1876, 1987, 1987 and 2607 by The
Emerican Instizure of Architects. ALY rights reserved. WARNING: Y¥his AYA® Doeument is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internatiomal
Tresties. Unautherized repreductien or distribution of this AFR® Documant, or any portion of ik, may result in savers civil and ariminal 32
penalties, and will be to the ! extent possible under the Iaw. This draft was produced by ATR software &t 14:15:10 on
$1/38/2606 unde: Order Mo 3000314794 % whieh expives on &/17/200%, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

13421870801



§10.3.6 if, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held Liable by a government ageney for
the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the
Contract Documents, the Owner shall indemnify the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby mcurred.

§10.4 EMERGENCIES

in an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to
prevent threatened damage, injury or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contracior
o account of an emergency shall be delermined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.

ARTICLE 11 INSURANCE AXD BONDS
§ 411 CONTRACTOR'S LIABILITY INSURANCE
§ 11.4.1 The Contractor shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do
busingss in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located such insurance as will protect the Contractor from claims
set forth below which may arise out of or result from the Contractor’s operations and completed operations under
the Contract and for which the Contraclor may be legally hable, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by
a Subceontractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of
them may be liable: )
4 Claims under workers™ compensation, disability benefit and other similar employee benefit acts that
are applicable to the Werk to be performed; o
2 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the
Contractor’s employees; '
3 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or discase, or death of any person other than
the Contractor’s employees;
A Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage;
.5 Claims for damages, other than to the Woik itself, because of mjury to or destruction of tangible
property, inchuding loss of use resulling therefrom,
6 Claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person or property damage arising out of
ownership, maintenance or use of a motor vehicle;
Claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of completed operations; and
& Claims involving contractual liability insurance applicable to the Contractor’s obligations under
Section 3,18

—~

§ 11.1.2 The insurance required by Section 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than {imits of liability specified in the
Contract Documenis or required by law, whichever coverage s greater. Coverages, whether written on an
accurrence or claims-made basis, shafl be maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the
Work until the date of final payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after final payment,
and, with respect to the Confractor’s completed operations coverage, until the expiration of the period for correction
of Worlk or for such other period for maintenance of completed operations coverage as specified in the Contract
Documents.

§ 11.1.3 Certificates of insurance acceptable to the Owner shall be fited with the Owner prior to commencement of
the Work and thereafter upon renewal or replacement of each required policy of insurance. These certificates and the
insurance policies required by this Section 111 shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under the policies
witl not be canceled or allowed (o expire until at least 30 days’ prior written nofice has been given o the Owner. An
additional certificate evidencing continuation of lability coverage, including coverage for completed operations,
shall be submitied with the final Application for Payment as reguired by Seciion 9.10.2 and thereafler upon renewal
or replacement of such coverage until the expiration of the time required by Section 11 1.2, Information conceming
reduction of coverage on account of revised limniis or claims paid under the General Aggregale, or both, shall be
furnished by the Contractor with reasonable promptness.

§ 11.1.4 The Contraclor shall cause the commercial liability coverage required by the Contract Documents to include
{1} the Owner, the Architect and the Architect’s Consultants as additional insureds for claims caused i whole or in
part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or amissions during the Contractor’s operations; and {2) the Owner as an
additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Contractor’s negligent acts or omisstons during the
Coniractor’s completed operations. The applicable policies shall be endorsed fo indicate that thev are primary as
respects the additional insureds, and not conributory with anv other insurance available 1o the addifional insureds.

RIS Docament A201™ — 2007. Copyright @& 1911, 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 3951, 185§, 1261, 1963, 1966, 1870, 1976, 1987, 1967 and 2007 by Tho
American Institute of Archibects. BRIl rights reserved. VARNING: This ATA" Documsnt is pretecte,! by U.S. Copyright Low and Intexnational
Proatiss. Unenthorized roproedustion or distribution of this AIR" Docusmht, or any portion of it, may result im severe civil and cximinal
pepaities, ond will ba proseeuted to the maximnm oxtent possible undex the lav, This draft was produced by AXR softwaze at 14:1%:10 en
C1/1B/2006 whder Order No. 3000314794 1 uhjch expires on 8/17/2006, and is not for resaie.

User Notas: (2821870803

33



811.1.5 Contractor shal] maimtain. at its own expense, the following Insurance coverages pn an Goeurrente hasis
msuring the Contractor, its emplovees and agents. and the Indemnitees ag reguived in Section 3.18 herein which
insurance shall be placed with insurance companies rated at Jeast “A” “XIV” by Best's Key Rating Guide and shall
mcorporate @ provision reguiring the giving of written notice o Owner at Jeast thirty (30} days sricr to the
cancellation or pon-renewal of any such policies.

§i1,1.6,1  Contractor’s Liability Insurance
The Contracior shall not commence Work under this Contract until all insurance reguired herein is obtained
and approved by the Owner, nor shall the Contracter sllow anv Subcontractor te commerice any_portion of the

Work,

§11.1.6.2  Commercial General Liability Insurance (including limited form contractuat liability and completed
operations, explosion, collapse and underground hazards). covering personal injury. bodily injury and property
damages i the amount of One Million Dollars per occurzence and Two Million Doliars aggregate

{$1.000.000/%2.000.000) covering personal injury, bodily injury and property damage.

11,163 Automobile Liability Insurance. including hired and non-owed vehicles, if amy, in the ampunt of One
Million Dollars (51,000,000} covering personal injury, bodily infury and property damage.

§1L.1.6.4  Workmen's Compensation Insurance in the amount of the statutory maximum with an _Erﬁniover’s
Liabiiity coverage of at least Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500.000). :

§11.1.6.5 Failure of either the Architect or Owner to demand Certificates of Insurance_and/or policies shall not
constitute a waiver of the contractor's responsibility_hereunder.  Nor shall review and/or approval by either the
Owner or Architect in anv way relieve Contractor of its respensibitity for furnishing sufficient amounts and
coverages of insurance.  Said endorsements or amendatory riders shall indicate that as respects said additional
insureds, there shall be severability of interests under said insurance policies. The Certificates and amendatory
riders or endorsements shall clearly indicate the specific coverage (including contractual fiability for thé Contractor's
obligation under 3.18) and shall contain provision reguiring the giving of written notice to Qwner at least thirty (30)
days prior to the canceliation, non-renewal or material modification of anv such policies, as ﬁ:v;denced by return
receipt of inited States Certified Mail,

§11.1.6.6 Under no_circumstances shall the Contractor be relieved of providing insurance as required by this

Contract, If inspection of Cerfificates by Owner would reasonably reveal any deficiencies in coverage as réquired

by this Contract. Coniractor shall not be relieved of its obligation to prove insurance coverages as reguired herein
and mavy not assert anv defense of waiver, acquiescence, estoppel, or otherwise by the failure of Owner or its agents
to object {o the form of the Certificate, Policies or other documents provided b that the
Contractor complied with the provisions of this Contract regarding insurance coverage,

§11.1.7 Contractor shall alse protect the Owner by specificallv incorporating this Article 11 into svery subconiract
entered into and also requiring that every Subcontractor inmmc}r&le this paragraph 1nto every sub-subcontrach 1t

enters into, Notwithstanding this requirement. this Article 11 is deemed incorporated into every subcontfact md
sub-subcontract via such document’s flow-through nrovisions,

11.3.4.8 Liahility of Contractor or Subcontractor is not Imited by purchase of insyrance. Nothing contained in thes- - - J{ Formatted: Justified

insurance requireipents of the Contract Documents is to he construed as limiting the Liability of the Contractor, the
iiabilitv of anv Subcontractor of any tier, or the liability of the Architect, or either of their respective insurance
carriers. Cwner does not. in any way. represent that the coverases or limils of insurance specified is sufficient or
adeqguate to protect the Owner, Contractor, Architect, or any Subeontractosr’s interest or tiabilities, but are.merelv
minimums.The oblisation of the Contractor and every Subcontracior of any ter to purchuse insurance shall not. in
any way, Hmit their chligations to the Qwner in the event that the Owner should suffer an Injury or loss in gxecess of
the amount recoverable dirough insurance. or anv loss aor portion of the loss which is not covered by either the
Architect’s. Contractor's er anv Subcontractor’s insurance. :

§ 11.2 OWNER'S LIABILITY INSURANCE
‘The Owner shall be responaible for purchasing and maintaining the Ovwner’s usual lizbility msurance

AIX Document AZDY™ - 2007. Copyright © 1933, 1915, 1938, 1525, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1§66, 21970, 1976, 1987, 1987 and 2007 by Ths
mmerican Instituts of Archibacts. ALl rights reserved. UWARNING: This ATA® Pocwment in protected by U.S. Copyright Daw and Imbarnational
Treatias, Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this A¥AT Docwmsnt, ox aay portion of it, may result in sevore civil and criminal 34
ponaltiss, and will ba prosecuted to the maximum ewtent possible undex the law. This draft Was produced by AIA softusre ar 14:315:30 en
01/19/200% under Order Bo.)1500329784 1 which expires on B/17/2508, azd is nob for resele.

Usar Hotes:

{3821870803)



§ 11,3 PROPERTY INSURANCE

§ 11.3.1 Unless otherwise provided, the Construction Manager©@wwer shall purchase and maintain, in a company or
companies lawfilly authonized o do business in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located, property insurance
written on & builder’s risk “all-risk™ or equivalent policy form in the amount of the initial Contract Sum, plus value
of subsequent Contract Modifications and cost of materials supplied or installed by others, comprising total value for
the entire Project at the site on a replacement cost basis without optional deductibles, Such property msurance shall
be maintained, uniess otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or otherwise agreed in writing by all persons
and entities who are beneficiaries of such insurance, unti! final payment has been made as provided in Section 9.10
or until no person or entity other than the Gwner has an insurable interest in the property required by this Section
11.3 to be covered, whichever is later. This insurance shall include interests of the Owner, the Contractor,
Subcontractors and Sub-subcontractors in the Project

§ 11.3.1.1 Property insurance shall be on an “all-risk™ or equivalent policy form and shall include, without limitation,
insurance against the perils of fire (with extended coverage) and physical Joss or damage including, without
duplication of coverage, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, collapse, carthquake, flood, windstorm, falsework,
testing and startup, temporary buildings and debris removal including demolition occasioned by enforcement of any
applicable legal requirements, and shall cover reasenabie compensation for Architect’s, Ownel and Contractor’s
services and expenses required as a result of such insured loss. :

§11.3.1.3 If the property insurance requires deductibles, the Contragtor or Construction Manager, as the case may

be, Owpes shall pay costs not covered because of such deductibles.

§ 11.3.4.4 This property insurance shall cover portions of the Work stored off the site, and also portions of the Work
0 transit

§ 11.3.1.5 Partial occupancy or use in accordance with Section 9.9 shall not commence until the insurance company
or companies providing property insurance have consented to such partial eccupancy or use by endersement or
otherwise. The Owner and the Contractor shall take reasonable steps o obtain consent of the insurance company of
companies and shall, without muiual written consent, take no action with respect 10 parliai occupaney or use that
would cause canccllallon japse or reduction of insurance. . .

§ 11.3.2 BOILER AND MACHINERY INSURANCE

The Crwner shall purchase and maintain boiler and machinery insurance required by the Contract Documents or by
law, which shall specifically cover such insured objects during installation and until final acceptance by the Owner;
this insurance shall mclude interests of the Owner, Contractor, Subconiractors and Sub-subcentractors in: the Work,

and the Owner and Contractor shall be named insureds.

§ 11.3.3 LOSS OF USE INSURANCE

The Owner, at the Cwner’s option, may purchase and maintain such insurance as will insure the Owner against loss
of use of the Owner’s property due to fire or other hazards, however caused. The Owner waives all rights of action
against the Contractor for loss of use of the Owner’s property, meluding consequential losses due to fire or other
hazards however caused.

fol £.5 Lm 3 h.A A%%ﬁmﬁm
Spectar =2 S EEOe1

TR are-f oty £k

alf by
t paiisd SR FeG TG

§ 11.3.5 If during the Project consiruction period the Owner isures properties, real or personal or both, at or adjacent
to the site by property insurance under pelicies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment
property insurance is o be provided on the completed Project through a policy o policies other than these insuring

AZAR Document A20i% - 2087, Cepyright © 1911, 1§15, 193§, 1825, 1837, 1981, 1958, 1861, 163, 1566, 1970, 1376, 1987, 1597 and 2007 oy Tha
American Fnstitube of Arehitects. ALl rights reservad. WARNING: Yhis RTAY Dooument is protscted by U.%. Copyright Law and Internatienal
Rreaties. Unanthorized reproductiomn or distzibuticn of this ATa* Documant, of nmy porties of i¥, may rasuli in sovere civil and eriminal 35
penalties, and will be prosweuted to the mawimum extaph possible under the law, This draft was produced by ARIR software at 34:15:1% on
01/18/2008 under order Wo. 1005314764 1 which expires on 8/17/2008, and is not for resale.

User Hotes: (3521870503



the Project during the construction period, the Owner shall watve all rights in accordance with the terms of Section
11.3.7 for damages caused by fire or other causes of Joss covered by this separate property insurance. Al separate
policies shall provide this waiver of subrogation by endorsement or otherwise,

§ 11.3.6 Before an exposure to loss may occur, the Owner shall file with the Contractor a copy of each policy that
includes insurance coverages required by this Section 11.3. Each policy shall contain all generally apphicable
conditions, definitions, exclusions and endorsements related to this Project. Each policy shall contain a provision
that the policy wiil not be canceled or allowed to expire, and that its fimits will not be reduced,; until at least 30 davs’
prior written notice has been given to the Contractor.

§ 11.3.7 WAIVERS OF SUBRDGATEON

pfe-;—}eﬂy—éﬂﬁmgeé The Owner and Cantractor shall not waive rights of subrogation.

§ 11.3.8 A loss insured under the-Bwner-s-preperty-insurance shall be adjusted by the Construction Manager@vwmer
as fiduciary and made payable to the Construction Manager©wser as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests
may appear, subject to requirements of any applicabie mortgagee clause and of Section 11.3.10. The Coatractor
shall pay_the Qwner and/or Subcentractors their just shares of insurance proceeds received by the Contractor, and by
appropriate agreements, written where legally required for validity, shall require Subcontractors to make paym ents
to their Sub-subcontractors in sim#ar manner

o bl b, £ S heei tdeo (Tt o B 4t P £
Tt ¥ 2% 1

§ 11.3.10 The Construction Manaper©@wser as fiduciary shall have power to adjust and settle a joss with insurers
unless one of the parties in interest shall objest in writing within five days after occurrence of loss fo the
Construction Manager s@wmers exercise of this power; if such objection s made, the dispute shail be resolved m
the manner selected by the Owner and Contractor as the method of binding dispute reselution in the Agreement. If
the Owner and Contractor have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute reselution, the Construction
Manager@wser as fiduciary shall make settlernent with insurers or, in the case of a dispute over distribation of
insurance proceeds, i accordance with the divections of the arbitrators.

§ 11 4 PERFORMANCE SOND AND PAYMENT BOND

. . e v ) . : £
FRGHHFe A HA-E Atrpet-Bosmnents-on-the-daterof-eneaulton-o+-H Hfr
G

§ 11.4.42 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment
of ebligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall
authorize a copy to be furnished.

RIR Document A201™ - 2007. Copyright @ 1811, 1915, 1$18, 1§25, 1937, 1951, 1858, 1961, 1863, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
American Instituse of Archizscts. AL rights reserved. WARNING! This ATA’ bocument 33 protocted by U, 5. Copyright Law and Intesnational
T ies. U horized reproduction on distribution of this AIA® Doswesnt, or any portion of it, may result in severe civii and erimisal
pornitios, and will ba prosecuted to the mawimum sxient pospible under the law. his draft wss producsd by AIR soitware st 14:13110 en
01/1E/2008 under Order No.l1000334754 I which sxpires on B/17/2008, and is nob for resale.
Uaer Hotes:

(3EZIRTDECS

36



§11.4.2 Contractor. within ten (10) davs afier receivins netice of the award. shall furnish a performance bond and a
navment bond m the full amount of the Contract gerecing fo perform the Work and fulfill all obligations in
accordance with all of the provisions of the Contract Decuments wath a surety rated nof less than A, VI by Best’s

Insurance Guide Key,

§ 11,43 If at any time. the Owner shall become reasenably dissatisfied with any surety oy sureties then upon the
bonds, or for any other regson such bonds shall cease to be adeguate security for the Owner, Contractor shall, within

five (5) days after notice to do so, substitute an acceptable bond in such form and sum and signed by such other
sureties as may be satisfactory to the Qwner. No further payment shall be deemed due nor shall be made untif the

new surelies shall have gualified.

§ 11.4.¢ The Performance Bond and Paymen: Bond shall be executed in conformity with American Institute of
Architects. Doc_ A312. Said bond forms shall be deemed modified to the extent to be consisient with this Article
11.4. A certified copy of the Power of Attorney from the surely company stating that the person executing the bond
is duly authorized by the surety 1o execute the bond, shall accompany the bond, :

§ 11.4.5 Whenever the Contractor shall be and is declared by the Owmer to be in default under the Contract. the

surety of the Contractor shall be responsible to compensate the Owner for the following costs ncurred by the Cwner

as they result from the default: 1) any and all extra work. 2) additional Architect costs, 3} accounting costs, 4) lepal

costs and reasonable atforneys’ fees. 5) {esting, consulting, and other engineering costs. 6) any other costs ncurred

resulting from the default. Notwithstanding, the performance bond surety’s pavinent obligation shall not exceed the
penal sum of the bond. ) :

§ 15.4.6 1 shall be the duty of the Surety 10 give an unequivocal notice i writing fo Ovmner within ter (10) days
after receint of a Declaration of Default and netice of termination of the Agreement of the Surety’s election either to
remedy_the default or defaults promptly or fo perform the remaining Work promptly or fo pay te Owner costs as
herein provided, time being of the essence. In sajd Notice of Election, the Surety shall indicate, the date on which
the remedv or performance will commence and it shail then be the duty of the Surety fo give prompt notice in
writing to Owner_immediately upon completion of (a) the remedy and/or correction of each default, (b).dié 'remegi_y
and/or_correction of each item of condemned Work, (c) the furnishing of each omiited item.of Work. and {d} the
performance of the Contract,  The Surety shall not assert solvency of its principal or its principal’s-denial of default
as justification for its failure fo give nofice of election or for is failure o promptly remedy the default of perform the
Contract. If the surety reasonably requires additional time fo investigate the declaration of default, it shall within the
aforesaid ten (10} davs so notifv the Owner, In such case. the Owmner may, without prejudice 1o iis rights vnder the
perfermancs bond, continue construction of the Work, and charge the costs of such Work to the Surety.. Upon
completion of its investigation, which shall be completed as otherwise set forth in the bond or herein, or 1n any event
nol in excess of & reasonable time. the Surety may exercise its rights otherwise held berein ard gnder thie bond,

§ 11.4.8 In the event the said Surety shall fail to act promptiy as hereinbefore provided. then Owner mav eause ten
(10) davs notice of such failure to be given, both fo said principal and Surety, and that at the expiration of suid ten
{10} davs. the obligee shall have the authonity to cause said Work to be done, and when the same Is completed and
the cost thereof guantified. the said prineipal and Surety shall hereby agree to pay any excess in the post of said

Work above the agreed price to be paid under said Contract, but not exceeding the penal sum of the bond:

§ 1E4.9 As the Work is completed by g completing contactor in accordance with the ferms of the Contract
Dyocuments. fo the extent that any portion of the Contract Price remains owing after setoff. Owner shall pay
completing contractor in_accordance with the Schedule of Values as certified by the Architect, and upon the
completion of the Work pursuant to the Agreement, if any funds remain due on said Contract, the same shall be paid

o said Suretv,

8 11.4.18 In case of anv conflict between anv provision of the performance bond and the Contract Documents, the
provisions of the Copfract Documents shall prevail,

§ 11.4.17 Anv provisions confained within the bonds creating a prereguisile or condition precedent for Gwmer not
otherwise required herein these General Conditions, or abrogating Owner's rights or remedies otherwise available i
contract, law, or equity, are void.

BIR Document R2DI™ -~ 2007. Copyright @ 191%, 1%15, 1838, 1925, 1937, 1§81, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1866, 157C, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
VRRNYRG: this 24" Document is protascted by ¥.S. Copyright Lasr and Internzeionsl
Trantiss. Unauthorired repreduction or distyibution of thia ALA" Document, o any potion of it, may result in asvere civil snd criminal
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maxieem satent pessible undew the law. This draft was produced by AYA softwars ai 14:15:3D on

Emerican Iastituts of Architects., All rights xeserved.

Q1/38/5008 under Créder No.l0G0314794 1 which axpirss on EJ17/2008, and is not fox resale,
Uacy Notes:

{322LET0EOT)

37



% 35.4.13 In the event the Surety shail make anyv assignment for the benefit of creditors or commit any act ofs— - - {Formam: Justified

hankrupicy, or if it shail be declared bankrupt, or if it shall file s velunlary petition in bankruptcy, or shall in the
opinion of the Qwner be insolvent. the Contractor agrees forthwith upon request of the Owner to furnish and
maintain other corporate surety with respect jo said bonds satisfactory to the Owner,

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK

§12.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK

§12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the : -2z - o7 Architect’s request or to requirements
SpeCiﬁLﬂ”y expressed in the Contract Documents, i nrust, 1f1equeslcd in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for
the « .0 v Architect’s examination and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract

Time.

§12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the '+ ;v Architect has not specifically requested to
examine priof Lo its being covered, the V100 o Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered
by the Contractor If such Work 15 in accordance with the Contract Documents, costs of uncovering and replacement
shall, by appropriate Change Order, be at the Owner’s expense. If such Work is not 1n accordance with the Contract
Documents, such costs and the cost of correction shall be at the Contractor’s expense unless the condition was
caused by the Owner or a separate contractor in which event the Owner shall be responsible for paynient of such

COSLS.

§ 12.2 CORRECTION OF WORK

§12.2.4 BEFORE OR AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or faiting to conform to the requirements of
the Contract Documents, whether discovered before or afier Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated,
instailed or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost
of uncovering and replacement, and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary
thereby, shali be at the Contractor's expense.

§ 12.2.2 AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

§12.2.2.1 In addition to the Coniractor’s obligations under Section 3.3, if, within one vear after the date of
Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties
established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of an applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents,
any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor
shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so unless the Owner has previousty
given the Contractor a written gnecific acceptance of such condition, The Owner shall give such notice promptly
after discovery of the condition, During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner Tails to notify the
Contractor and give the Contractor an opportunity to make the cotrection, the Owner waives the rights to require
correction by the Contractor and to makce a claim for breach of warranty, If the Contractor fails to correct
nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during that period afier receipt of notice from the Owner or
Architect, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 2.4,

§ 12.2.2.2 The one-vear period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first
performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual
completion of that portion of the Work.

§12.2.2.3 The one-vear period for correction of Work shall net be extended on the specific defective work by
corrective Work performed by the Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2_ for a pericd of one vear ﬁ‘om the time of

completion of the corrective work.

§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remoave from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the
requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Coniractor nor accepled by the Owner

§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction, whether completed ot
partially compileted, of the Owner or separate contractors caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work
that is not i aceordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.

§12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed {6 establish a period of limitation with respect to
other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one~year period for

AIBR Documant RI61™ - 2007. Copyright © 3911, 1915, 1$1B, 1§23, 1937, 1551, 1858, 1861, 3963, 1966, 1¥70, 1976, 1987, 1897 and 2007 by The
American Ipstitute of hrohitects. RLL rights reserved. WARMING: This AYR’ Document is protectod by U.%5. Copyright Law and Internstional
Treaties. Unanihorized xopredustion or distribution of this ATA® Docummnt, ox any portion of §b, way result in sevare civil and cziwipal 38
panalties, and wili ba px‘nsseutﬂd to tha maximum extent pessible under the law. This dra®t was produced by AIA soltware ar 14:15:10 an
01/16/2008 under Order Ne.iDD0314794 3 which erxpires on 2/17/200%, and is nov fo: resale.

Tsor Hotes: {3SZLETO0EQY)



correction of Work as described in Section 122 2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct
the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents
may be sought o be enferced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the
Contractor’s Hability with respect to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work

13LaF
§ 12.3 ACCEPTANCE OF NONCONFORMING WORK

If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the
Owner may do so instead of requiring s removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as
appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or st final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 13 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
§ 13.1 GOVERNING LAW AND YENUE
The Contract shail be governed by the law of the State of [ilinois. Exciugive venue for any dispute resclution

proceeding shall be Couk County, [llinois, Fesewhere-the-Prejeet-in-docated-except-hat-+-thep ries-have-selected
T o potlan oo athad of biodiay i 5 Tyata iho Epdoral Axboteadiom A ad aloll £ ‘. 15 4.
sebitrationai-the-methed-af-binding dispuie-reselutiony- the Federal-Avbitrationfretshall-govern-Seohen-t54;

IR Docwment AZ01™ - 2007. Copyright ® 1911, 115, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1851, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 3970, 1§76, 1987, 3897 and 2007 by The
mmericen Institute of Architscts. A1 rights resorved. UWARKING: This ATRY Dooumsnt L5 protectsd by U.§. Copyeight haw and International
Traaties. UD hopdred Son or distzihmbion of this ATAY Document, or any portisn of if, may xosult in sevare civil ond eximinal 39
ponalties, and will be prosecuted to the manimwm sitent possible under the law. This drafc was preduced by AIA softwars at 14:35:10 on
©1/316/2006 under Order to.10662347%e 1 which sxpires on 8/17/2008, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(3521870803)



| Formatted: AIA Body Text Indented, pon't W

| keep with next, Don't keep lines together, Tab |
| stops: 0.5", Left

Ih Dooument AZDI™ - RGG7. Capysight © 1811, 1915, 1936, 1325, 1537, 1861, 1958, 1861, 1963, 18§46, 1970, 1974, 1987, 1987 and 2007 by The
Tmerican Tnstituce os Brehitests. ALL rights reserved. WERHING: ¥his ATE" Decument is protosted by U.S. Copyright Law and Intounationsl
Pronties. Dnaubhorized reproduction of distrimtion of this AIE" Peewseht, of Any portion of it, may mewult in severs civil and eziminal 40
ponsltiss, and will be proscouted to tha mewimem outent ppssihle undes the lau. This draft way produced by AIR sofiWere at 14:15:10 on

GL/18/2508 under Srder No.1G00314784 1 which sxpires on 8/17/200E, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(392187¢B03)



| Formatted: Font: Not Boid

ATA Dogument A201™ — 2007. Cepyright & 1911, 1815, 1918, 1925, 3937, 185, 1938, 1961, 1983, 1866, 1970, 1878, 1987, 18%7 and 2007 by The
Mmevican Tasriture of Rrchitects. AlL rights clverved. WBRNING: @his ATA Dogument it preteoted by U.5. Copymight Law and Intemnational
Poaniies. Unawthorized reproductics or distzibution of this RIAS Doewmsnt, or Any pertion of it, may result in sovore civil and criminal 43
wonaliies, and wil} be prosacuted beo the matimmm sxtent possikle bnder thae law. This drafc was produced by RIR software st 14:1%:10 @0
B1/18/2000 wnder Order He 1000314794 1 which sxpires on E/17/2908, and is mot fur resale.

User Netes! {38218T08C3)



§13.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

§13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, sucoessors, assigns and fegal
representatives to covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided
in Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shal} assign any obligation, riphts. or intgrest in this Contract the

Conirast-asa-whelew Lie-sther. If either party attempts to make such an assignment

sily pemidct 10 37
FeeTras i T T OH-AH PR eR-CONEGT - O o BAET

without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remamn legaily responsible for alt obligations under the Contract.

A2 % Tho Ohwmera sl et 1 ot the Contrack e the &ty g lendersravidi PRI
132 9 Tho Cramer oy withoutconsent-of the-Centretor-assign-the Contrast-to-a-lender pravicing consithehon
MQWPW%EW&M@#%MWM&%M&WT

et LIS e AELE Loeilitnts o
Fhe-Contractor-shatt wie-all-consents-reasenahiy-required-todeeititate-such-aasigRment: :

§ £3.3 WRITTEN NOTICE

Written notice shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person to the individual, to a member of the
firm or entity, or t an officer of the corporation for which it was intended. or if delivered al, or sent by registered or
certified mail or by courier service providing prool of delivery to, the last business address known to the party

giving notice.

§ 13.4 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES _
§ 13.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of dutics, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available

by law.

§13.4.2 No action or faflure to act by the Owner, Architect or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty
afforded them under the Contract, nor shalt such action or failure ta act constitute approval of or acquiescence ina
breach there undet, except as may be specifically agreed in writing

§13.5 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS

§ 4351 Tests, inspections and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract .
Documents and by applicable laws, statates, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or lawful orders of public
authorities Linless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, mspections and
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, o with the appropriate public
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect
timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such
procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of (1} tests, inspections or approvals that do not become requirements unfil
after bids are received or negetiations concluded, and (2) tests, inspections or approvals where building codes or
applicable laws or regulations prohibit the Owner from delegating ther cost to the Contractor

§13.5.2 if the Architect, Owner or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require
additional testing, inspection or approval not included under Section 13.5.1, the Architect will, upen writlen
authorization frot the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, nspection
or approval by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of
when and where Lests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such
costs, except as provided in Section 13.3.3, shall be af the Owner’s expense.

§ 13.5.3 If such procedures for testing, imspection or approval under Sections 13.5.1 angd 13.5.2 reveal failure of the
porticns of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs mads necessary

IR Docament ABOL™ - B007. Copyright & 191i, 1915, 1916, 1925, 1837, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1666, 19706, 1976, 1587, 1997 and 2007 oy the
American fnstitute of mrehicscts. ALY righte reserved. JARNING: ¥his ATA’ Docuvmont is protected by U.§. Copyright iaw and Internatiohnl

1 ses, ined tion or diskribution of this ATA® Decumsnt, or any portien of it, may reswlt in severe civil 2nd eriminal 42
ponaltios, mnd will he prosccwted to the manimm extent possible under the law. Yhis draft was produced by AIA soffwaze ab 14:15310 on
G1/18/2068 under Order Mo, lG00313724 1 which expires on £/17/2008, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

1362 187GEE3)



by such failure including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses
shall be at the Contracter’s expense.

§13.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection or approval shall, aniess otherwise reguired by the Contract
Dacuments, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered 1o the Architect.

§13.5,5 If the Architect is to observe Lests, inspections or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the
Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing,

§ 13.5.6 Tests or mspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Docoments shall be made promptly to aveid
unreasonable delay in the Work

§ 13,6 INTEREST

Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at such rate
as the parties may agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at
the place where the Project is located _Ng interest shall agcrug on amounts held in reteption,

SALLTRE-LIITE-ON-GLARE )
The-Ouner-and-Contraster-shail-commence-sll-claims-end-canses-of aetionwhethertn-eontracttort-broa ferf
warrshty-or-othenviseragainst-the-stherarising-out of-or-related-to-the- Gt in-aceerdance-with-the-requitements
e%e‘—ﬁﬁﬂi_éwm%m T el Ioatad se tly P . TATESTI S A P | itzad dava Prephala doaar
thod-selectod-in-the-Apreement-within-the-time-period speeifiad-by-applivable-laws

ARTICLE 14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
§ 14.1 TERMINATION BY THE CONTRACTOR
§ 14.1.4 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days
through no act or fault of the Contractor or a Subcostractor, Sub-subcontractor or their agents or employees or any
other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under direct or indirec! contract with the Confractor, for
any of the following reasons:
Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to
be stopped,
2 Anact of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requires all Work to be
stopped,
3 Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has rot notified the Contractor of
the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not
made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated i the Contract Documents; or

§ 14.1.3 If one of the reasens described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1 2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’
Written notice to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work

§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of - it consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor or a
Subgontractor or their agents or employees or any other persons performing portions of the Work under contract
with the Contractor because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfifl the Owner’s obligations under the Contract
Documenis with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional
days’ written notice to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided
in Section 14.1.3.

BIA Dommment RA201™ - 2007, Copyright & 1811, 1915, 19818, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 19E3, 1966, 297G, 1876, ES87, 1997 and 2007 by the
Americas Institute of Architecis. ALL rights resarved. WRRNENG: Thiz ATA" Dogumant is protecied ky U.5. Cepyright vaw and Intecnational

mreation. Unauthorined reproduction or Gistribution of thiz AIA® Docwment, or any portion of it, may rasule in severe ciwil and criuinal
)

ponalties, and wili be p tod to the imun extenc possiblo wnder the law. This draft wasz produced by AIR foftware at 24:35:1
Q1FiB/Z000 undes Order Kn.i000318794_1 viich expires on E/17/2008, and is not for ressls.
User HNotes:

on

(3923870803)

43



§ 14.2 TERMINATION BY THE GWNER FOR CAUSE

: Formattedrz AIA Agree:ﬁént Body Text

)

bt {Formatted: ALA Body Text Indented, Justified J

R { Formatted: AIA Body Text Indented, Justified }
- { Formatted: ALA Body Text Hanging j

- { Formatted: Font: Bold
) P’ormatteﬂ: ALA Body Text Hanging, Indent:

Left: .49, Hanging: 0.01" }
T ‘[Formatted: ALA Body Text Hanging J

Indent: Left; 049", Hanging: 0.01"
o { Formatted;: ALA Body Text Hanging, Justified

" T 1 Formatited: Justified, Indent; Leff: 07, First
line: 0”

b ‘[ Formatted: AIA Bedy Text Hanging, Justified,

 Formatted: ATA Agreement Body Text

B4 AN it gl
Gl A By :

1 s s e R T, ot f i SRRy, o f e

suticient-etns SH-H-S TS U - Ae e

ad e ined I e L S PR 28 TR PP PN Sy |
Le-aE-n RIS ST e Rehiee AeRnIng

frerp:

PUTTY IS Rt I Y PR
S HEET BB PEE

£ 4T
HE-GTRS- ST

el

oo AL, £
e ArOESEEETGR-0I

frbgedn—and R [ Formatbed: AlA Agreement Body Text J

o L O L R R N 5 el S s b et s
IHTHEHER-SG U RTER IS AT - Ereaf ¢ i AtFaeter

¥ e s B T s e - T e

T Aoeepl-asapnment-eforbeantiaet Srd it

3 Tirials flan 3 el b e densan il

s Baissii-tne Pt hates eat-pen
P PR S VIR R A I TS DO | i

& sAtERete - The-varer Sha - Heedis it iR S

ik Doctemnt REOLM - 2007, Copysight © %41, 1945, 1$1B, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1988, 1961, 1963, 1664, 1870, 1576, 1887, 1897 and 2007 by Ihe
Serinan Tnatituce of Rrebirests. ALl rights zesetved. WARMING: This BIA' Doowmsni is mroteected by U.3. Uopyright Law sud Inbesnaticsal
Prastis:. Una nad tianm ox distri jon of this 5IA° Documant, or nny pertion of it, may =zesult in sevors civil apd eriminal 44
pennlyies, and will be pxosecuted to the meximwn extent possible under the law. This drsft wes produced by AIA seftware ar 14:15:10 on
01/18/2008 under Grder No.10600334%84 i which expires on 8/37/2008, and is met for zesale.

User Hotes! {3%21870803)



§14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14 2.1, the Contractor shail
not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 14.3 SUSPENSION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt tiie Wark in
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine,

§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by
suspension, delay or interruption as deseribed in Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include

profit. No adjustment shall be made to the extent
A that performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause

for which the Contractor is responsible; or
2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract,

§ 14.4 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE
§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and withoul cause.

§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the

Contractor shall
A cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;
2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and prescrvanon (}l"the Work;

and
3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of tennination stated in the
notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into o further subcontracts

and purchase orders

§44.43 ln case of such lermmauun for lhe szzez § convenience, the (,omraclor shal! be ezmtled to recefve payment
farWerk e executed : BrEs b ‘ TN

ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 151 CLAIMS

§ 15.1.1 DEFINITION

A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties Qeekmg, as a matter of right, payment of money, or other
relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term “Claim” also includes other disputes and malters in
question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of of relating to the Contract. The responsibility to
substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim, .

§ 15.1.2 NOTICE OF CLAIMS
Claims by either the @wwr Contractor must be initiated by written notice to the Owner--othesparly and to the
Initial Decision Maker, ] - with a copy sent (6 the Architect, if the Architect Is not serving as the Initial Decision

A18 Document AZ0OL™ - 2007. Copyright @ 1911, 1935, 1§18, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, X961, 1943, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1297 and 2007 by The
A1l zights reserved. WARNING: This ATA Docuwmnt is protected by U.S. Copyright Lew and Intexmational
Tonanzherized reproduction ox distribution of this AT2" Dooument, ox auy perbien of i, may =mesult in savere eivil and eriminal
penalties, and will be prosscuted o the mamimtm axtent pessible uader the law. Thiz draft was prcd‘zced Gy A3IA software at 14:15:1% on

hrerican Inztitute of Rrchitects.
Hreabies.

01/18/20606 under Order He.lH06314724 31 which expires on B/17/2008, and iz nob for resals.
Uy Notes:

1322Z1870863)

Fofma&ed: Jus_tified

45



Maker. Claims by either-pasty the Contractor must be initiated within 21 days afier occurrence of the event giving
rise 1o such Claim or within 21 days after the Coniragior steiment first recognizes the condition giving rise to the
Claim, whichever is later.

§ 15.1.3 CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE

Pending final reselution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article
14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue fo make
payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Architect will prepare Change Orders and issue
Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decisions of the Initial Decision Maker

§ 15.1.4 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COST

1f the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contraet Sum, writien notice as provided herein shall
be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency
endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4

§ 15.1.5 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME
§ 15.1.5.1 If the Contractor wishes (0 make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as provided
herein shall be given, The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of contsnd-ot-probable offect of delay on

progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Clamm s necessary._1or s oy s Ty A ddiienal
Tim, do =m e el et et canitahle extenston ol e s oavrronted, soeh esivision shoell T e Cog v sale

§ 95.1.5.2 If adverse weather conditions ar¢ the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shal il be
documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnomnal for the peried of time, could not have
been reasonably anticipated and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction

5% Lor aih Cluips S Additiosnd e, the Cemintor shudlstppest such Cliin I the zame munne vs

5151
il e for Uligney Onders

sh-other-for consequentiahd ses-arsing-outoforrelatingte

A dam imonered | fa? £ 1 v 1 EAPYP Fit ;.
: ages-nenrred-by-th serfor-rental expenses-forlosses-ofuseinsemes prefily- o 1
business-and-repuiptionand-for lass-efmanagement or employes-productivity-or-of the seeviessaf
sueh-persensrand
] | tpmay o Bnnr ddn o e P’ i q £ LIV o0, £
damages-neurred by-the-Contrretorfor -prin ipat-off nseg-inehuding-the-compensation-of
toned-th } ; g—bﬁs&ﬂ&sﬂﬁé&p&%ﬁiﬁﬂ—ﬁﬁé—@@%ﬁ&-&%ﬁwﬁl
raonmel red-there, for-tossesof franeings
&Wﬁ%ﬁk&m&m&m&%&;@%&m@eﬂe
Fhis-rutaebwaiver-is-eppheablerwithout-bmtat at suentiah damages-dus-te-sithes party s-termination
WWMMMWW&M@W%WWWWM
§ 15.2 INITIAL BECISION

§ 15.2.1 Claims by the Coniracior, excluding those arising under Sections 10.3, 104, 11 3.6, and 11 310, shall be
referred to the Initial Decision Maker for initial decision. The Archileet will serve as the Initial Decision Maker,
unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Except for those Claims exeluded by this Section 152.1, an initial
decision shall be required as a condition precedent tosmad arbitration or Hiemion, as the casy gy be. of any
Contrecior Claim arising prior to the date final payment is due, unless 30 days have passed afier the Claim has been
referred to the Initial Decision Maker with no decision having been rendered. Unless the Initial Decision Maker and

all affected parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between the Contractor and persons or
entities other than the Owner.

§15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or
mare of the foilowing actions: (1) request additional supposting data from the claimant or a respense with suppormm
data from the other party, (2) reject the Claim in whele or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise,
or {5} advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker
lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the

AYA Document AZDI™ - 2007 Copyright © 1311, 1915, 1318, 1925, 1937, 1953, 1958, 1961, 1963, 196, 1970, 1976, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
Ferican Institure of Architects. ALL rights reserved. VRRMING: This 512’ Decumsnt in protectsd by U.£. Copyright Law and International
Treaties. Unautherized reproduction or distribwtien ef this atA’ Decumsnt, or any pontien of it, way wesult in sewere eivil and criminal 46
penalties, and will be prosecuted to the masimum axtent peszible undex the law.
CL/15/7008 under Drder No, 1600314784 i which expizes on B/I17/2008, and is not Ior resale.
Uzer Notes:

This draft was produced By ALA software &b 14:15:10 an

{3821874803)



Initial Decision Maker's sole discretfon, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the
Clam.

§15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek
information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial
Decision Maker in rendering a decision The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of
such persons at the Owner’s expense.

§15.2.4 If the Tnitiat Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional
supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of such request, and shall either {1) provide 2
response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting
data will be furnished or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be fumnished. Upon
receipt of the response or supportimg data, if any, the Inittal Decision Maker will either rgject or approve the Claim

in whole or 1n part.

§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Clamm, or indicating that
the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resotve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be tn wrifing; {2} state the
reasons therefor, and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initiaf Decision
Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final add binding
on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to bindmg
dispute resolution. ; ;

BB ALt s s file L e £ tmidind dlpsaisi N hieeitothetermsof Seetionts a e
LABLE Hither parbemas-fHetor medionen-of ancinitiol-decisien-atany-Hine-sublectto-the-fermviof Secten-1526-1-
E4E 28 Lithe s WWWMMMWTQW%W-%HMQ&W
$ilo o e adint: PEAE T A W £ piatiiol doniaton L L Ax-u.nvué" smncde mereloth Lo ik,
lo-formedintion-within-60-daysefthenitiel-deeision—tHsucha made and-the parsrreeshangth
demand falls-to-file-forvaedsation "Y&m%%@%&r%&%%—%%m&%mﬁgwww
baedses o canfrats A pitdn '3 dlao semfind o .
binding-dispute resslutionp dingruith-reopeet-te-the-intital-decision:

§ 15.2.7 in the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if
any, of the nature and amount of the Claim, If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner
may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

§15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in
accordance with applicable law to comply with the Tien notice or filing deadlines,

““" 4 ’“‘a:“ -disputes-or-athermatiorsin-controversy oribing sut-of errelated-tothe-Cendract exespi those
T s :: . s nll 2 5 i g sy b, el
%W@W&M&G&@ﬁﬁ@%&%ﬁﬁémm be-subjesi-to-mediatior s-oendibenps 4
e-bindmedispuie-reselution:
. o ey 3 I e ot ey 55k, ) 3 o Jetion e eyt Py
$5.3:3- 1 he-pash uh!! ndepvoria-sesolve-thae-Cletms-by-w d..mu.. uwh, wiless-the parties-mutualh Ay
I dee o e 1 b 4 . & et 5 A, Ty . gk gt 5
theraiser-shall-beadminiatered uy theArnerenn-hrbiration-Association-inaceordence-with-s-Construghien

Industr-Mediation-Pro et-ea-the-date-ofthe- emWM@e;am%ﬁ@f«mﬁém%ﬂ—%ha%}%@«m&é&éﬁ
writing-delivered-to-the-otherpery-te-the Contractand filed with-the-persen-or Méﬁ%m&ﬁ%@?mg«ih@—ﬁmém

Tk NS ) aadLa g, T SWER PPN V) 1 CANTRTEN 1Y s, Traky Lok, NP R eL
The request-may-be-made-conovrrently-with-the-filing-ef binding-disputer rpreceedinga-bul-in-auch-event
inti |  buimeld i dingatohi
mediatienshall-pr d-iir-advance-of-binding-disputevesolution-proceedingswhich-shat-b ﬁﬂwé@mémg
dints ) GO e Peos the Jda 45ty st o ] rod b £,
maediation-for-a-pered-of60-daysfrem-the-date-of filingunlessstayed-tore peried-by-agreemént-ofth
perties-or-eourt-order I an-arbizationis-staved-pursuant-to-this-Seatien15-3-2 thn SRS ERE "x. neth ‘“33 proceed

te-the-seleetion-ofthe-arbitrator(s) mmewewmm;m‘;ﬁmweémgs
%WMyMWMWMWMWWWM%M4M
i

plase-where-the-Preject-is-loeateduntossanothert i rratua agr ad ot Arprecrronisreashed-in
medintion shall be-enforecable-assetiloment-agresments v any-court-heving-furisdietion-ther oF:

§15.4.1 -
e ¢, Suretv,

ALR Document RZDI™ - 200%. copyright © 1911, 1315, 1918, 182%, 3§37, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1966, 1970, 1976, 1987,
pmerican Institute of Architects, ALl rights ressarved. :

Treaties.
pebaltiss, and wilk be prosecuted te the munimmmn oxtent poszible under the law.
01/18/2008 unde:r order No.1500314724 1 which expires op 8/17/Z0DE, and iz net for resale.
User Fotes:

1957 and 2007 by ¥he

WARNENG: Thin BIAT Dooumant is protocted ky U.5. Copyright Low and Interoationzl

Shauthorized reproduction or distribution of this ATA® Doeumsnt, ox any portion of it, may reanlt in severe oivil and criminal
%his draft wes produced by AIA software at 14:15:20 on

{3521BTOEO

47



{ Formatted: Font: {Default) Times New Reman }

- ‘[ Formattad: Font: {Default) Times New Roman }

- - ‘[ Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman }

baranf. Lorot sy Yorod b 1 Aintiom abnll b . 4 Jostomcd s PRITEPEN oY i Ea, 5 a3 lar g
subject-to; but notreselved-byrmediation shull-be-subjectte-arbitration which; unless-the-partesmuliany agres

TN E TS o0 | ?n A s o TS B a3 A ylaabenyil A, 1ot | 3 ragba afe (O N

hepwise-shall be-adwinistered-by-the-hmeriean-fabitration-Asseciation-in-sceerdanes-with-ie-Constmeben
lﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%&%ﬁ@&%&%&ﬂ%ﬁg@m}w&@m&m%{mﬁmﬁmm

delivered-to-the-otherparly-to-the-Cantract-and-filed-with-the-person orentityadministering-the-arbitretion—The
ﬁﬁﬁyﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@&m@%&@ﬁ&ﬂé&%&ﬂaﬁf&%mﬁ%&%ﬁﬁw&eﬁm&é Fall-Cledns-thendarowa-to thel-poriy-on

3 i Tat: o ) l« =, Aad
hich-arbitration-is-permiied-4 randed
545444 4 4 & fprarbitmbion-ahatlb ) Ligpkh it tha diin-aba-raonestSar
& sl R R RS- FOT- R O TR O - Grn- DR ae - oot e FEUF R R e T e;.u i A
2 N bapst. v doalanll ae T o i o a A s ptifiees e ) I 1% A 2k A
F n-but-in-ne-eventshalt-it-be-made afier-the-date-when-the-mstituton-et-legal-or oqiuiale Procecemps basen

aﬂ«%h&%ﬁ&&ﬁ%é—h&bﬂﬁ ieable-staty Limitetions—Forsiatsie-efhmitations puposesreesiprat
PREPOIES; i
e n-g d-forasbimatienty mwwwmwmmmmmmmm

I . tipdal o wL P F

1
legalorequitall ¥ ; based-on-th e
&) T 13

%&%%M@@Mwbmeﬁﬁbﬁmw Ji‘.aii be-finok-and-udement-may-be-entored-upan-H-n

Elﬁ PRERY wlianhlad ! A 1
B FeERee-Witi-ap PHCaDIS- W - BRY-COuFra VT OGSO TRer

IR Document R201™ - 2007. Copyright © 1911, 1915, 1918, 1825, 1937, 1951, 1968, 1961, 1863, 1966, 1870, 187§, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
hmerican Inskitute of Architects. ALl rights reserved. WRRNING: 'this RYA" Docwmant is pretected by .5, Copyright Law rrd ihteppational
Preatics. Unzuthorized reproduction or distributien of this MIA® Docwment, vr any porijon of it, may result in savere civil and crimimal 48
penaktizs, and will be presecuied to the maninue: extent posgible under the law. This draft was produeced by RIR software at 14:15:10 on
01/16/2008 undsr Ordsr ©o.lB003L57%4 1 which expires on $/17/2004. and is not for resaie.

User Notes: {3521870803)



B 4K 430 £ 1n, 1 o ndcen Soidr " tonminatent =t} dedad 1 stn:
89543 The foregoing opreoment-to-arbitrate and-othor agreemenis to-BrotBle s i At iien PRRoR-OF s,
Aasl 2 i 3. i A, i 111 sfrandl Ee 1 4. elinainie oz e ane e
duly-sonsented-te-by-partier-to-therpreersant-shall- be-speerfently-entoreeabie-uhaer OPPHERNS 1V AR f-00UuR
having-jurisdiction-thereod:
59544 CONSEEIBATION ORLOIHDER
r-pariy-st-ia-sote diseretien; may-consolidaie srarbibiation onducted-under-thig-Agreement-with-any
P shaad bt o anedty cdmed £k FARYS Joystecr £, 3 ¥ 3. o b pebitents
wrta-whieh-itis o party-provided thet-Uthe-arbitration-agreement-governing-tae-oiner Gronransn
tvn £ Liddats FRANES! dnitentiaonn to by il ooy ik fnaral ooy - 1oy 4] . Frapt
permits-conselidetion (2 the-erbitrations-to-be-censolidoten-suostenhany hvel mamer-gusstiensetaw-erfack

by o
and-Gi 1 he arbitrations-empley meterially similar procsdural-ruler andrnethods-for seleetingarbitrator(a):

B4R 4 A Eaad smatre o e ooda A4 £y Y O P! T Yo fads, ik sallsr i FEYP A
538 44t Bither partyatita-sole diseration-may inchide by joinder persons of entiins SUBRERRAN TIVEIVEEHR
¥ et o 1 PO e b 1o pEa e i Beodlin o o S R S PRI )

mimeh-guesteneilew-or fact-whese presence-ig-required-Hcomplotereteis4 sded-inarbiration;

vt dond £l 19 ’ rondnd e dae soa e iy I, I ioindoes £ d e : iy a7y
providod-that-the pariy-soushito-be joined-consente-in-writing to-sueh-joinder LoNSERt-to aroitanon tRvering 1
gt - " {EeN 1) + 14 %e 1.t Fat damntr, fpenyr alas A 1, (R £ 1 5 £s,
additional persor-orentity-shat-netconshitly Heent-to-arbiration-ef anv-claima-diopute-or other maler- 1-Gueston
ot b ool den e 243 o
net-deseribed-rthe-writtenconagnt

AE & AR T £k A Dot ntoe 4.4, o o 1T o Jons: { 3 2 andor
&4 The-Ovanerend-Contractorgrant-lo-any-persen-or-entity Fade-o-party-to-ait- aFb Hahoir SORGUOH UNEoT
thin Congs 1 3 da sl | Ty | r colidosia i :h{rf"rl el P=t LA P PR S N 8 PER TR RS-
this-Seetion-t hether by-toinder-or-conselidation; thesame vightsof-joinder and-consoleaHER LN LWHEE &R

TTh Documamt A201% - 2007. Copyzight © 1911, 1918, 1918, 1925, 1837, 1551, 1958, 1943, 1963, 1968, 3870, 176, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The
imerican Instituis of Architects., A1l rights reserved. RRENING: Yhis RTR’ Documeut is protocted by U.8. Copyright Law and Internstional

T tien. Unamthosiged meproduction ok dlstsibution of this AIA® Document, or any pextion of it, may rosult in sevens civil and criminel 49
pemalties, ond will be preseouted to the menimm extent pessible wnder the law. Ihis diaft was produced by AIA softwsre at 39:15:18 on
B1/18/2008 under Order Vo, 1080314784 3 which capires on 8/17/2008, epd is not for resaie.

User Rotes:

13%22B7GEE3)



Qak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue e Oak Purk, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Lauren Smith, Director of Human Resources

DATE: February 15, 2011

Cc: Stephen isoye, Superintendent

RE: Student Hire Process - Summary of the hiring procedures for student workers
BACKGROUND

A review of the hiring process for student workers has been completed. Below please find a summary of the
standardized process for hiring student workers.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
Student Workers Hiring Procedures

-Paid positions

1. Fach hiring supervisor must complete a personnel requisition form.

a. The form must include the rational for hiring and the adverse impact should the
position not be filled, an account number (activity fund), number of hours/days to be
worked, the number of employees required, and a brief description of the duties.

2. Student worker positions may be posted in the department area, will be posted in the
student bulletin, and will be available on-line.
3. Human Resources will provide an on-line internal application for each position.
a. Students must complete an on-line internal application.
i. Computers for completing the on-line application are available in the Library
and in Human Resources.
4. On-line applications will be available for hiring supervisors to review.
The hiring supervisors will review applicants, interview, and make recommendations to
Human Resources for hiring.
6. Human Resources will handie the hiring process of each student.

a. This includes, but not limited to, required paperwork and background checks.

7. The hiring supervisor must notify Human Resources when the student has completed his or
her assignment.
RECOMMENDATIONS

The above information has been provided as information only. No action needed.

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-5500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue e Oak Park, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Cheryl L. Witham

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Instructional Materials Recommendation
BACKGROUND

A committee was convened out of a concern about inefficiencies in the current instructional material
purchase model as well as the imminent loss of State Loan funds for textbooks. The objectives of the
committee were to discuss and debate the topic, o collect relevant data, to initiate discussions within
divisions, and to analyze alternative methods of distributing instructional materials for all students in
an equitable and cost efficient manner.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

See attached.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

To accept the recommendation presented by the committee in the attached report, Bookstore Support
and Distribution of Instructional Materials at the February regular Board of Education meeting.

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-3300 FAX: (708)434-3910



Report on Bookstore Support and
Distribution of Instructional Materials

Commitiee Origin and Gosl

Historically the State of lllinois has provided funding to school districts for the purchase of textbooks. This
funding provided a significant subsidy to the cost of textbooks for families. Recently the State discontinued this
subsidy. In addition, the bookstore software system is antiquated and needs to be replaced for a cost of
approximately $70,000. These two events will significantly increase the purchase price of instructional
materials for families next year and we are very concerned about that reality in these economic times. The
Board policy indicates that the bookstore should be self suffiecent, and therefore, these increased costs will be
passed along to families. The purpose of the Board policy is to ensure that instructional materials are not
limited by cost containment and the instructional rigor can continue long term.

A committee was convened out of a concern about inefficiencies in the current instructional material purchase
model as well as the imminent loss of State Loan funds for textbooks. The objectives of the committee were to
discuss and debate the topic, to collect relevant data, to initiate discussions within divisions, and to analyze
alternative methods of distributing instructional materials. The committee’s goal was to maintain the District's
ability to provide high gquality instructional materials for all students in an equitable and cost efficient manner.

Committee Composition

Committee members included two division heads, two faculty members, the Principal, two members from the
Office of Curriculum and instruction, one parent, the Chief Financial Officer, the Chief Information Officer and
the bookstore manager. The committee met five times over the past 2 months; the topic has been discussed
twice at DLT and twice at IC; and several conversations were held at division meetings. The committee weighed
the advantages and disadvantages of two alternatives for instructional materials: to make the investment
necessary to support the current purchase model; or to fransition to a fee-based model for these materials. A
survey of other high schools was conducted and there was a site visit to Glenbard High School District 87, where
the decision has been made to transition from a purchase system to a fee-based system.

Current Realities of OPRFHS s Tustructional Material Purchase Model

With the current texthook purchase program families pay an average of $350.00 annually for textbooks and
materials. Recently, two significant changes have occurred to the way in which the District supports the current
model. First, the current purchase model and the average cost to families have been substantially subsidized by
funds made available by the State of lllinois Textbook Loan Program. In 2009, this revenue was eliminated and
the District can no longer expect these funds to offset the cost of instructional materials. In addition, the
software program used by staff for bookstore operations is outdated and no longer serves the needs of the
District. The cost of replacing the hardware and software with a fully functional program would be
approximately $70,000. These two significant events will increase the cost of materials for families as early as
the 2011-2012 school year. Other challenges with the current model include some waste caused by book usage
for a single year, weak controls of escalating costs, and the automatic 10% sales tax passed along to families.

Page 1 of6



Over the past three years, the administration has considered moving to a fee structured program but continued
to table the discussion due to other pressing matters. We feel that now is time for making a long term decision.

Gulding Principles
The following principles were considered when the committee discussed a more sustainable bookstore and
instructional material fee modei:
e Continue to provide necessary materials to sustain a high quality and comprehensive curriculum;
s Develop a stronger cost consciousness;
e Maintain affordability for all families;
e Establish a rotation schedule for the purchase of new materials;
e Incorporate appropriate use of technology;
e Sustain a fair and equitable process that does not limit student access to rigorous courses due to the
higher costs of instructional materials;
¢ Build in green initiatives;
s Assemble a defined budgeting process approved by the Board of Education.

Dats and Survey Results

Most high school districts in the NWPA use a fee model. Glenbard High School District 87 and Lyons Township
High School are the most recent examples of transition to a fee based model. The chart below summarizes the
information gathered from NWPA comparison districts.

Downers Grove Textbooks only 5215 R Kits and class labfee
District 211 Textbook s only o - \ $160 ~ Kits and consumabies -
| District 214 ~ Textbooks and Kits - $375 - -
Elmhurst - Purchase model W Students purchaseail  Class lab fees
e - _ materials _ _
Evanston Textbooks only 585 $15 technology fee
$15 general fee

$85 supplemental
materials fee

Glenbard High Schools Textbook only 5125 Consumables, kits and
AAAAA B lab fees
Lake Park N Textbook and consumables §295
LyonsTownship Texthooks oniy ’ 875 h A Consumables and kits
Naperville o ~ Textbooks only ' 581 Consumables, kits and
e lab fees
New Trier Outsourced to Follett Students purchase all
" - materials
-~ Niles T Textbook and consumables  $450 first child, $300 each Lab fee
e _add’l child |
|Stevenson  Textbookand consumables 5185 Lab fees

*IITS include supplies used in the classroom such as art materials. Consumuables include workbooks and paperbacks.

Page 2 of 6



During the current school year, the average student at OPRFHS paid $350 for materials purchased in the book
store. Some paid as high as $800, and others paid a smaller amount if they happened to have classes with a
State Loan Book. Due to the elimination of the State textbook subsidy, if we continue the current purchase
model, next year students would need to pay at least $100 more on average for each textbook that was
previously subsidized with State textbook funds. Due to the limitations of the current software system we
cannot generate specific costs by student, program or graduation class.

o

instrupctong! Considerations
¢ The committee discussed the use of materials in the classroom and the need to maintain access to high
quality materials that support the work of teachers. The topic of annotation in textbooks was discussed
on several occasions and alternative strategies were considered. Annotation in paperback books could
continue under either model.
e The committee also discussed encouraging student access to courses that have traditionally had the
highest materials costs in order to mitigate those costs as a {imiting factor in enroliment.

Technology Considerations

e The committee also discussed the use of technology for instructional materials and the rapid changes
occurring in this arena. Providing these materials in an electronic format will allow us to stay current
and to take advantage of multi-media enhancements which are not available in hardcopy materials.

s Standardization of materials will allow us to work closely with publishers and gain leverage on the
purchase and adoption of electronic textbooks and other instructional materials.

e As we move further into utilizing technology in the classroom (either through 1:1 computing or student
supplied technology) we will be providing electronic textbooks to load on these devices. With the
district having control over the textbooks, this will be greatly simplified.

e Annotation is a skill which is highly valued. Delivering electronic materials wil facilitate the annotation
process.

Btanning Considerations

e A decision would need to be made in February 2011 in order to adequately prepare either model for the
2011-2012 school year.

e In either model, the staff will need to plan and adjust systems and procedures accordingly. Also, a
communication plan is necessary to inform families of procedures and costs.

e |f the District moves to a fee model, the District would need to purchase all books in the first year to be
ready for the beginning of the school year. The District could run a campaign to buy back as many used
books as possible.

e  With the continuation of a purchase program, most families will see increased costs assuming the
maintenance of the current materials selection, rotation, and distribution model.

¢ The fee model requires a new materials rotation schedule and materials distribution method. The Office
of Curriculum and Instruction would have an increased role in budget monitoring and materials
approval.

Page 3 0f6



Cpst Considerations

e In a purchase model, the amount of outstanding monies still owed to the District is significant. These
outstanding obligations pose a hardship for families and a challenge to the District’s budget process.

s Introduction of a standard instructional materials fee based on average cost would mean that,
compared to costs in the current school year, some students would pay a higher amount and others
would pay less. The students who normally take elective course with expensive textbooks and materials
would pay less than they do currently, while students who generally do not take these classes would pay
more than they have paid with the State Loan funding system. A standard instructional materials fee
model may create opportunities for students to take a class based on interest rather than affordability,
especially given the projected increases in overall costs to families due to the elimination of the State
textbook subsidy in coming years.

e The District would need to closely monitor the impact on the educational fund. If fees do not keep up
with the costs for instructional materials a new cost center will be created in the Educational fund,
which will negatively impact the annual amounts available for education. In that case, instructional
materiais would be a target during cost containment efforts to reduce deficit spending , thereby eroding
the educational program over time.

Next Steps or Recommendations

The committee reviewed three possible fee structures based on a five year rotation model; 1) a fee that would
cover textbooks only; other supplies, consumables and kits would be purchased for an additional costs 2} a fee
for text books and consumables but not kits and 3} an all-inclusive fee.

The committee recommends moving to an instructional materials fee for all students. The fee will cover the cost
of books and materials over a five year cycle. This fee would be calculated annually using a formula based on
averaging the cost of a five year purchase plan of materials, assuming those materials would be in continuous
use for at least five years. This method would moderate any fee increases year by year and would avoid the
need for a large increase in one particular school year. Students qualifying for free funch would not pay a fee
{these students do not currently pay for their books under the purchase system}. Students who are registered,
but do not actugily attend school on the GPRF premises would also be expempt.

The five year rolling fee would cover all costs to run the bookstore including salaries, benefits, supplies and
operational expenditures. It would also cover all books planned for purchase in the five year period. The all
inclusive instructional materials fee would cover textbooks, paperback books, and other consumables and kits
{i.e. supplies for Art Foundations). The fee would not include PE uniforms or calculators. Total costs would be
divided by the number of students expected to pay the fee in the five year time frame. A spreadsheet of a five
year rolling calculation is attached along with the three options. In the 2011-2012 school year the all inclusive
instructional materials fee would be $340.00 per student.

fnstrortioned Considerotions
e The consistent fee for all students covering all instructional materials will encourage students to select
classes based on interest rather than affordability. The model may eliminate the cost of materials as a
barrier for financially disadvantaged students who want to participate in specific programs.

Paged of 6



The formula model will protect instructional materials from cost cutting measures and assure long term
guality of program materials.

The instructional materials fee model encourages the use of technology in the classroom and will permit
just -in -time distribution of kits and consumables directly to the classroom. These two changes will
enhance instructional time by insuring all students have the necessary materials in the classroom at the
appropriate time.

Technaoloive! Conslderutions

The model encourages creative approaches to addressing green initiatives and incorporating
technology. The savings garnered from not printing can be captured and passed on to our students’
families.

Publishers have also indicated to us a willingness to customize textbooks for us, This will allow us to
purchase only the materials we need and to distribute them electronically, saving the cost of printing

Blgnming Considerotions

The District would carefully review and select materials with the guiding principles in mind. An annual
budget and fee proposal would be presented to the Board of Education for approval in January or
February of each year.

The model builds in a scheduled review of materials. Currently, we review materials on an as needed
basis.

fost Considergtions

An instructional materials fee model will be more cost effective overall than a purchase model.
Presently, the District must collect a 10% sales tax on the sale of all textbooks, kits and consumables.
The ten percent tax-- approximately $80,000 of the current costs--would not be required with an
instructionat materials fee,

There will be no need to replace the current software for a cost of $70,000 because the District already
owns a rental system software used in the Library.

The model incorporates a cost containment approach by encouraging annual reviews, projections,
averaging, and more accountability for the fee structure and budgeting.

The rising costs of materials in the current purchase program will futher exacerbate the barrier to higher
priced courses and widen the access gap to rigorous courses. We believe an equitable and more
affordable instructional materials fee will encourage course selection based on interest.

An instructional materials fee provide a managed and predictable cost for families and would not
fluctuate randomly by student and year.

Page 5 of 6



Proposed Timeline

Internal committee researches options and makes a

] recommendatlon to the DLT.

é}ljanuary 2011 he recommendation -

February2011 _ Board o Education consideration and vote

Spring 2011 Instructlonal materlais needs assessment and

juiy 011 . s , - e ventory -

; Summer 2011 ” h Purchase instructioinal materials for next school year
Summer 2011 Set up and preparation of instructional materials

' _ ~ distributioin

'~ August 2011 Distribtuon of instructional materials and collection of
Fall 2011 oo Debriefand assessment

- November 2010 - January

Page6of6



p3 jepads uoning Uj s} Yoog apnNjoui - [O0YIG JBUUNG
S}004 I0) SIoUlj[f JO 83815 ol Sulwos § oN
SJ0JBINSIED 40 SULIOIUN T4 apPNioU] JoU seo(]
{s1oysjoog W aseysind 10} ajqejieae ag pinom syooq/salddns eilxa) s1y g SHoogHIoM ‘syoeqiaded sapnjou|

3sy Aiddnspjooq | 1-010Z W0 SISPI0 ) ooy Uo Paseq - $H00qixal mau jje Buiseyaing

SHOOBIXIL ATNO SIANTONI ~ 00°STZS = 994 [eIuay paysading |

SLDI ATNO SIANTDX3 ~ 00°SZES = 924 [RIuay paisaddng _

53507 4A § j230)

SIDN/Ad /S SaA g

Slonaunssy

89'022$ = SLE'CL / £65°L56°CS = 08E'P99°LE - £26'G1L9'VS

0022€$ = GLE'CL 7 §9L'90EVS = B0Z'60CS - £46'G19'V$

€9BLEPINT S

8£'807'60€

9E'10680T°T S

05'692°9vC S

ONIHLAYIAI STANTONI - 00°0PES = 924 jeIudY paisaiins | 0E'6ES $ =GLE'CL / £OL'BESVS
SLEET sih g - sjuspnyg jejo

SL9°7
Sit SIBAIRAA SS9
0ST'e suapng |ejot

0%°ZOT'SES'Y § LP'09L'vI8 ¢ 89'8£L'698 $ v /OT'ZTL $ 26'PSP008 S TOTVO'IVET S
%G1 @ Buipuaiy
Zr9zL'oy  § 8SSEQ9F S STSSESF S 86¥R9YF S TOVIOYY S jeuonessdo
%G © Buipuai ).
4658787 $ TTO6EG9ZT S TUTTIS9ST S L8VPEVPT § OV60L°ZET S sjjouog @ solvieg
AUNIGB{IEAR JA 151 104 § ~Z 4A WY} $g BuiLieldo o SIS00 [BUDIIDDE [€U8I0d, .,
%4z @ Buipuan g Buiddiys %¢ apapuy,
S 06TE6VY S LIGPE'E9 § LOPOST9 § S9967'09 § 0097885 S + 018 SHM
68'G98°CET S E€T98T/TZ S OT'SY9'TCT S €T6EZ9TT S 00996017 S sSyvequaded
P8STLTS S 8PPSY0S S 88'€rTer S OFECO8r S 007S89Y S *SHOOGHIOAM
00'099'GET S O0QO0'E€ZE'€TZ § O00LTS/Z. § 00998981 $§ 0009978y $ Sj00U3xa L
00°000'697 § 51803 ‘ppe dn-ueis
Git 1B0A Tt dea) PN EENN [£:21E0N T# 1ea)

51507 {4iAll) @34 Jel121BIA PUE UCIIINJISU| JUBPNILS Jod Palewilsy



Sampling of Typical Student Costs at Multiple Levels

Student ID 140065 (Freshman taking all basic/transitional classes wfno electives)

Course##  Course Description 2010-31 Elimination of St Bks
321 World History 1 & 2B 5 7850 $ 78.50
203 Concepts in Algebra 1 & 2

In class set {does not incl. TI-84+ @105.00} in ¢ctass - no cost ?
112 Essentials of English 1 & 2
Porrie - 4 novels S 37.20 S 37.20
117 Elements of Reading 1 & 2 - bks provided in class - no cost ?
505 Physical Science 1 & 2 S 100.00 $ 100.00
! total $ 21576 $ 215.70
Student ID 140005 (Freshman taking all college prep w/no electives)

Course#t Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks
461 Spanish1 &2 S 51.05 S 51.05
323 World History 1 & 2

World History Patterns of Interactions state loan- no cost $ 84.75

211 Algebra 1 & 2
Algebrgo 1 {does not incl. Ti-Nspire @135.00) state loan-no cost S 77.00

113 English1 &2
Elements of Literature state loan-no cost $ 83.50
Young - 4 novels S 4350 $ 43,50

513 Biology L & 2
Biology state loan-no cost $ 100.00
E total $ 94.55 $ 439.80

Student ID 140038 (Freshman taking all honors w/no electives)

Courseft  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of Si Bks
4151  French 3 & 4A S 11440 S 114.40
2151 Advanced Algebra F1-2A

Alg & Trig (does not incl. Ti-84+ @105.00) state loan-no cost $ 81.00
1151 English 1 & 24
Elements of Literature state loan-no cost $ 83.50
Gargiulo - 6 novels S 65.00 S 65.00
3251 World Mistory 1 &2A S 134.65 S 134.65
5151  Biology 1A ) 100.45 § 100.45
total $ 414.50 $ 579.00 |




Sampling of Typical Student Costs at Multiple Levels

Student ID 130899 {Sophomore taking all Basic/Transitional)
Courseff  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks
122 English Literature 1 & 2{RC)
McNary - 4 novels S 33.10 S 33.10
509 Biological Science 1 & 2
Biology {Foundations Ed. ) state loan-no cost $ 100.00
2835 Coricepts in Algebra3 & 4
In class set- bandouts? {does not incl. TI-84+ @105.00) in class - no cost ?
461 Spanish 1 &2 S 51.05 S 51.05
9201 Drivers Education S 5585 S 55.95
3561 Social Problems handouts? ?
6512  Art Foundations $ 5566 S 55.66
total $ 195.76 S 295.76
Student I 130573 {Sophomore taking all College Prep and electives)

Course#f Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks
6511  Art Foundations S 5566 S 55.66
6612  Beginning Wheelthrowing S 1490 S 14.90

223 Plane Geometry 1 & 2
Geometry (McDougal Little) state loan-no cost $ 100.00
485 Spanish 7& 8A S 136.75 S 136.75
575 Chemistry 1 & 2 g 102.65 § 102.65
144 English Literature 1 &2
Literature Apps to Fiction, Drama, Poetry state loan-no cost $ 63.50
Porrie - 5 noveis S 27.7% S 27.75
3591 intro Psychology 5 128.25 § 128.25
7052  Clothing Construction & Design ) 9.10 S 8.10
| total $ 475.06 $ 638.56
Student ID 130461 (Sophomere taking all College Prep and electives)
Coursed Course Deseription 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks
223 Plane Geometry 1 & 2
Geometry (McDougal Little) state loan-no cost $ 100.00
323 World History 1 & 2
World History Patterns of Interactions state loan- no cost 5 84.75
477 Spanish 5 &6 $ 4080 S 40.80
144 English Literature 1 & 2A
- Dorame - 5 novels S 27.75 S 27.75
513 Biology 1 & 2
Biology state loan-no cost S 100.00
6331 Computer Applications S - S .
9202  Drivers Education S 55.95 S 55.95
L total $ 124,50 $ 409.25




Student ID 130590 {Sophomore taking all Honors w/ no electives)

Courselt  Course Description 2010-13 Elimination of SL Bks
421 French 5 & 64 S 13995 S 135,95
577 Chemistry 1 & 24

Modern Chemistry state loan-no cost S 100.00
225 Plane Geometry 1 & 2A S 43.25 S 43.25
136 English Literature 1 & 24
Lee, B - 6 novels S 52.00 S 52.00
325 World History 1 & 24 S 13465 S 134.65
9202 Drivers Ed S 55.95 S 55.95
total $ 425.80 $ 525.80 |




Student ID 121674 Junior taking College Prep and electives)

Coursef  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks
a7 Spanish3 &4 S 3395 S 33.95
5021 Health ED IS S 79.30 S 79.30
7032 Foods & Nutrition [SL Purchased Class Set) state loan-ne cost ?
332 AmHistory 1 & 2

American Nation state ioan-no cost $ 29.00
573 ChemCom

Chemistry in the Community state loan-no cost $ 100.00
223 Plane Geometry

Geometry (McDougal Little) state loan-no cost $ 100.00
1331 Amlitl

Stovall - 6 novels S 55.00 § 55.00

{ total $ 168.25 $ 457.25

Student 1D 121250 {Junior taking College Prep & Honors & Elective}

Courseff  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks
448 Chinese 5A-64 S 8095 § 80.95
133R American Lit 1 & 2 REI

Tsilimigras - 4 novels $ 3465 S 34.65
207 Concepts in Geometry 1 &2

Geometry Mathematics in Context state loan-no cost $ 72.50
333 Am History 1 & 2

American Nation state loan-no cost S 89.00
575 Chemistry 1 & 2 ) 10490 S 104.90
6021 Consumer Education J/S S 60.00 S 60.00
925 PSAE Tutoring S 3500 § 35.00

| total $ 31550 § 477.00

Student ID 121603 (Junior taking College Prep & Honors & Elective)

Course#  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks

333 Am History1 & 2

American Nation state loan-no cost $ 89.00
233 Advanced Algebra 1 & 2

Algebra 2 - Apps/Eq/Graphs state loan-no cost § 81.00
423 French7 & 8 S 95.20 S 95.20
128 Am lt 1-2A/8P _‘

Walter - 8 novels S 64.45 S 64.45
575 Chemistry 1& 2 S 104.90 S 104.99
6322  Computer Appiications S - S

total S 26455 S 4£34.55




Sampling of Typical Student Costs at Multipl

Student ID 121746 (Junior taking Honors + electives)

Course#  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of S Bks
949 Mewscene 1 & 2 S S -
548 AP Biology 1 & 2 S 208.35 § 208.35

3681  Philosophy S 86.35 S 86.35
3692 AP Government S 93.30 S 93.30
425 French 7-8A ) 104.25 § 104.25
242 Calculus Concepts 1-2A S 27.20 S 27.20
Calculus: Single Variable state loan-no cost S 104.25

129 Am lit 1-2A/AP
Heidkamp - 9 novels S 84.20 84.20
total % 503.65 & 707.50

Student D 121062 {Junior taking Miscellaneous)

Course# Course Description 20310-11 Elimination of SL Bks

1701 Literature - Novels to Fiim

Myers - 4 Novels S 41.30 41.3
5752 Chemistry 2 S 116.40 § 116.40
6341 Srnall Business Management class sets/handouts ?
1772 Literature - One Author - Shakespeare S 4500 § 45.00
332 Am History 1. & 2 '

American Nation state loan-no cost & 89.00
231 Functionsand Trig1 & 2

Algebra 2 - Concepts & Skills state foan-no cost S 95.00

Trigonometry state loan-no cost § 103.75
517 Anatormny & Physiology 1 &2 S 133.25 S 133.25
133 Amliti1 &2 S 48.10 S 48.10

Noble - 6 novels

total § 384.05 $§ 671.80




Sampling of Typical Student Costs at Multiple

Student 1D 116309 - Senior taking Miscellaneous
Courset  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks

231 Functions and Trig 1 & 2

Algebra 2 - Concepts & Skills state loan-no cost S 95.00

Trigonometry state foan-no cost $ 103.75
6401  Sports & Entertainment Mkig S 46.00 S 46.00
3582  iniro to Psychology g 128.25 S 128.25
1751  Literature - Sports & Literature (Handouts?) S . ?
6512  Art Foundations $ 55.66 S 55.66
3751  History of Chicago S 599 S 5.99
1532  Journat Writing S 30.00 S 30.00
€042  Applied Keyboarding S - S -
483 Spanish7 &8 S 15.85 S 15.85

rotal $ 28175 § 480.50
Student ID 116495 - Senior taking majority College Prep & Electives
Course  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of S Bks

7151 Parenting

St - Parenting: Rewards & Responsibilities state loan-no cost $ 51.00
1472  Contempory Literature 5 47,15 S 47.15
3751  History of Chicago S 599 S 5.99
4692  Spanish 4A s 3395 S 33.95
233 Advanced Algebra 1 & 2

Algebra 2 - Apps/Eq/Graphs state foan-no cost 5 81.00
556 Earth Science 1 & 2

Farth Comm 5 Unit Edition state loan-no cost & 90.00
i541  African American Literature S 3350 § 33.50
3772  Criminal & Civii Law (Handouts?) S - ?
3332  AmHistory 2

American Nation state loan-no cost S 89.00

total $ 12059 S 431,58




vpical Student Costs at Multiple Levels

Student ID 116514- Senior taking Mix College Prep/AP's/Electives

Course#t  Course Description 2010-31 Elimination of St Bks
245 College AlgebraTrig1 & 2
Algebra & Trig: Graphs & Models state loan-no cost $ 132.50
637 AP Economics 1 8 2 S 133.35 § 133.35
487 AP Spanish 1 & 2 S 123.60 § 123.60
145 AP College English 1 & 2
All - 7 novels S 62.80 S 62.80
3691 AP Government S 93.30 S 93.30
3682 Phiiosophy S 86.35 S 86.35
6041  Applied Kevboarding S - S -
5022  Health Ed JS S 79.30 $ 79.30
1642  Humanities $ 12.40 § 12.40
[ total $ 591.10 $ 723.60
Student ID 116309 - Senior taking Al AP's +
Courseft  Course Description 20310-11 Elimination of SL Bks
589 AP Physics 1 & 2
St - University Physics state loan-no cost S 144.50
145 AP College English 1 & 2
All - 7 novels S 62.80 § 62.80
588 AP Chemistry 1 & 2 S 180.50 S 180.50
2631 AP Calculus BC 1
St - Calcuius - Thomas/Finney state loan-no cost 139.25
2552  Advanced Topics in Computer Science 24 S - ) -
3651 AP Government
Challenge of Democracy S 93.30 S 93.30
325 World History 1 & 2A
Traditions and Encounters S 13465 S 134.65

total $ 40845 $ 755.00




Student 1D 130590 {Sophomore SPED)
Coursefi  Course Pescription 2010-11 Elimination of St Bks
650281  Consumer Ed class sets ?
20781  Concepts in Geometry
Geometry Concepts and Skills state loan-no cost $ 75.25
11871 Reading class sets ?
1092 Broadeasting class sets ?
12381  English Literature 1 class sets ?
55481  Environmental Science 1
Holt Environmental Science S 94.85 S 94.85
99981  Social Seminar no bhooks no books
{ total $ 94.85 $ 170.10
Student ID 140128 (Freshman SPED)
Course#t  Course Pescription 2010-11 Elimination of St Bks
11271  Essentials of English
Elements of Literature state loan-no cost $ 83.50
1 novel s 745 § 7.45
11671  Elements of Reading
books provided & read in classroom in class - no cost ?
20371  Concepts in Algebra 1
hooks provided & read in classroom in class - no cost ?
32171  World History 1B
AGS World History S 5400 S 54.00
7881 Woodworking & Home Remodeling in class - no cost ?
{ total $ 61.45 § 144.95
Student I 121009 {Junior SPED)
Coursef  Course Description 2010-11 Elimination of SL Bks
92071 Drivers Ed S 5595 § 55.85
50171  Health Education S 79.30 S 79.30
60271  Consumer Ed J/S - book provided in class? in class - no cost ?
20771  Conceptis in Geometry 1 & 2
Geometry Mathematics in Context state loan-no cost $ 72.50
6531  Digital Imaging S 2295 S 22.95
13371 Americaniitl
Booth - txtbk, wkbk & 2 novels 5 105.85 S 105.85
55472  Envircnmental Science 2 S 94.85 $ 94.85
7882 Woodwk & Hm Remodeling in class - no cost v
60572  Applied Keyboarding S - S
total $ 358.90 S 431.40




Sampling of Typical Student Costs at Multiple Levels

Student ID 116667 (Senior SPED]

Course#t
92071
20981

14781
49971
931
6612
33382

Course Pescription 2010-11 Elimination of SL Blks
Drivers Ed S 5595 S 55.95
Concents in Algebra 3-4 s 79.30 S 79.30
Algebra 1 (Holt)
Contemp. Lit& Comp 1 &2 in class - no cost ?
World Languages & Cultures in class - no cost ?
Acting Workshop in class - no cost ?
Beginning Wheelthrowing S 14.90 14.90
American History 2 in class - no cost ?
total § 150.15 § 150.15




Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

261 North Scoville Avenue o Ouk Purk, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Tim Keeley

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Office Supplies Contract Renewal
BACKGROUND

On July 1, 2008, the District signed a one-year contract with Quill Corporation, the lowest
responsible bidder from the 2008 office supplies bid. The bid contract allows for up to three one-year
extensions. '

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Quill Corporation has agreed to extend the District’s 2008-2009 contract pricing and to continue to
offer free shipping on all orders. A competitive bid would most likely yield a price increase. More
importantly, Quill is the only firm in the past two bid processes that offers free next-day shipping
with no minimum order amount, allowing for a more responsible “just-in-time” supply inventory.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

1t is my recommendation that the contract with Quill be extended for the final allowable one-year
term, from July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012,

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-3500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



QUILL PAGE Bl

Bl/26/2811 1Z:48 8478764838

100 Schelier Road
Lincolnghire, IL 60069
Phone: 1-B00-634-4 809
Fax, 1-800.789.2(16
www.Quill.com

Besl experfence in office products

January 26, 2011
Tim Keeley Fax No.: 708-434-3910
Oak Park River Forest School District 200 Page 1 of 3

Purchasing Department
201 . Seoville Avenue
Qak Park, IL 60302

Quill Bid Number: 10-8468
Custemer Bid Info  Office Supply Bid Reonewal
Aceount Number: 2527263

Dear Tim Keeley,

Thank you for your recent bid request renewal, We appreciate your interest in Quill and are pleased to extend
special pricing on the enclosed bid. Please note that the bid prices and free shipping are good through

February 28, 2012,

In addition, fer items not on your enclosed list, we're pleased to offer your organization: an additional 10%
column discount* to cur already discounted prices in the catalog which are up fo §0% off list. This extra

savings is good through February 28, 2012,

Below arc a few guidelines that we ask for you to follow to ensure the proper pricing and handling of your
purchase orders:

0 Please use the Quill bid number above, Quill item numbers and prices that are referenced on your
bid when placing purchase orders for easy and accurate processing. Orders will ship and invoice
the same day, if orders must involce and/er ship on or after a certain date this must be indicated

clearly on your purchase order

Please fax or email your tax exempt form to tax.exempi@quill.com or fax # 800-499-8805

2 Quill offers easy online ordering with visibility to your special item pricing as well as your extra
discount, www.Quill.com

Thank you once again for choosing Quill. We ook forward to working with you in the future.

Sincerely,
Quill’s Bid Department

Tne 10% discount daes notapply to office machines (priners. coplers, fax machines, vending machineg, ¢ie). iechnology products,
computer hardware and sollware, or any fiem {0 Quill's Special Qrder Cotalog. Furnitare is also exciuded from this offer, but we wilj,
however, pay alt of the shipping charges related to standard taiigate delivery when you purchase furniturs from our full-line cetalog.

L]

Installation or sct up not included.
= (Certain coupons, saies or promotions may net be used with this offer,



PAGE 82

BUILL

B4787048348

148

12

B1/26/2011

ZiL ebey pygwny

o puTE ense- 8 | Xsi=vazi | %8 Jeg ﬁ.L EXT ‘A1) H3ONIS 13518 65 0001z ¢
%
vhz pusg skt OOF | X81=VvEzl | g fpi- 1 SO UGS ;_mm,mmwxmo 00z074 be
0l bri | Z0v=vazi | va lor 1 OHOANVS! MATI] WILRSTHSIH INTSSY Ginor Sitvzl fr
boe PUBLIG N0 isp" 08 Ixat=v3o000s| xa e L STUYLS vy w%u%_ﬂom CrSTY] I
: N i i , PRYEey m
£az i s wofzat=vaz Vzg s ) auodNvel wovig 28vHT AN o SRLO0YE &
o7 5Lt Zi va 61 [ QHOINYS HISVHT Oaxg T
oot o za oot L MOV IS N 391440 3 »%%wwwm ST TS
- . WO o
0ot oL el A 03y ‘N3d 301540 Eﬁﬁmmm& @ e
a0t e | zot=x81 | za boy s amg N3 390440 3 Qmﬁww,ﬁ o BT
cae 086 ZL Z0 086 - 01 QHOINVSI ¥ov 8 MUV TIHVHE H3dNS I
107 6a ZL | 1Si=v3a® | 1S et b QUOINYS| A1SSY|MdR-INL] SEVHT-13m SIAY SiA 82091] gy
707 SE'L et i St=wvav | is i L T OdcaNvs NI SHIPIVIN SSVHT 1M b2oat P
157 o e w3 log- ) Sia] I i AN DD 1NO-T LA CO0I0M Bl
397 g oLz 9 | zai=xat | z0 hiz b IOV N3d INIOD WA TIHD) FEH G
857 BUEIE IR0 32 ¢ | 20i=x81 | 2g i i E N3d JNIGd WAIGSA TIND| CaL052 i
oz plsig e 9 [ 201 =x81 | za ie } ERS N3d INIOd WAIGSN 11D EET) ot
50T pueig pnnlos Dzt | za Jog ] Z# SNONBd ANONOT S35 2zl &
. . , TYNOILYNHS N ERTY T
ozs e vl Y3 et . ALYWIDI0 J90IM "TTLLON HANZLSION e I
o e V3 i L e DOV HISNIASIOHA 3avL GOl B
0z v 7t X8 Jor 7 VIOAVHO) SHHM|  XTYHD 1SNA-1INY VIOATS ZGb106 g
e zr va 56 ¥ BTN LS INTO (NSNVINY I 5100 g
_ , o o SLHSAE YOO N
) P vips b ALHM ONTLE P A vissy ¥
- i Y IVIS ]
nog suesg Wnles 9t v3 e g Hovg IRLLS TIN4 dNZ o ovessL ¢
£0T OLOZ/ V2059072 T pe. vy [ize 0 SONVIO V1Y BYANT VD TV §402-0L62 S1GLNG z
ica 08 CER D Qv FSvH UYONT WD 219 Gocia P
3 2 A
aBed gIoN _ MMM mwww AUCT Weniwen| esougilin AR 10109 vondinsag Hu2y| gouyy
_

{1807 000 'UopM D8'SLE J 0R'SLL § ‘jerog
{35071 ¢ "woM OF ) OF :sway) ej0)

CLOZilE 8eQ uoheydiy Bojzes

CHOZI/E =ieq uoneiidug wey)

WY OOZL ) uady pig
QLOEIZZI eieg usd pig

002 O'S LSTHOL HIAN MHYd WO

‘o4 ssucdsay pig ng

yioq adA] pig
9BZEFEYROL geusY IprjUcy
AT YL dueN yreion
ZLRSZ/0L  gesudieug

S ANS 201440 apig
63p5-01

‘owrey uepezefin

Jeweysnn

#P1g Ny

a7 o dy afie gjawmn



PaGE B3

GLITLL

B478764638

12:48

B1/26/2011

ziz afieg poquny

75z phad e ey NS SEZAXHIL T IS SavL B0 zaosa] op
) ) XORME
I =
sev puRIg NG 6L | X8i=va: | xa lips ALt B8 T XL S e 9gsoiz]  ee
- N ‘ HIOONS ]
. pueig panlso e B | XE0t=Md i | Mg e R b ortd s
, " ) HIGOWS .
vhz PUBIE IDIGS | Thol X8O =N L | Md lsgl AYINDTN 'Sal Mae I T
i B ) 5 ;
B0z 555 7 { z0r=v3zi | za lseg MW 3 ¢ “0v4 oL A3 ToAD ozsiozl oo
: - dlLSHD
oz pUESsS ADIR7 G z 70 ers MEEEOL s Teva A ecism] e
Lz PURIE NGB G zZL z0 laeg ania dif SH oviigr e
' HI¥HVI ISVYI ANA TING
o7 pueig nplesg 7 za lass cay L SHO VT
i UV ISVAT AN THND
. : 4L SHD
107 puesg Dl © s 7a lars PO iy 35w e e 5L ze
: ) ) ZI%.8
i =
06y pueig Inolog oL v | xeisvaosz | xs oo LN NI NI T T R 9zzi630] g
a7 PUBIR FIODIBL 2 8l | zZQr=vazy | 20 1§07 MTITA|  EXE SALON WOLS<935 66 aarged T or
; o : ; X ,
9z puRIg NG jry L 8¢ | zai=v3 ?1 70 MTIRA 4 *SALON YOS wzBEs Bz
602 7' Zi fzai=vaz | 20 lere avemy| 3L . SL33HS eviel sz
- TOOL X4 SOVE HOLYRDS
50z 22z ¥2 | zat=vzzr | zq ooz QY] MM SH3HS geeizl 4z
- , - 001 SXE GOV HOLYESS
vos PUTIg nO[5s £ s Xt -vaoor | %5 e YHENA] LNOEH HLT HAaI0 T 0 50 vl Tar

2% AR v srmnae



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenne e Oak Park, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Tim Keeley, Transportation Coordinator

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Executive Summary for Special Education Transportation RFP 2011-2014
BACKGROUND

On February 1, 2011, a Request for Proposals was published for Special Education Transportation.
The current contract with Grand Prairie Transit expires at the conclusion of this school year and all
contract extensions have been exhausted.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Proposals were received from five firms, All-Ways, First Student, Grand Prairie, 1llinois Central and
Lakeview Bus Lines. A summary of the costing results can be found below.

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 3-Year
Vendor Total Cost Total Cost ~ Total Cost Cost
llinis Central - /$ 707,653.54 S 72889438 $ 750,74554  $2,187,293.46
Lakeview S 836,438.00 $ 836,438.00 § 857,444.00 $ 2,530,320.00
Grand Prairie S 847,412.56 S 868,597.59 $ 8594,657.95 S 2,610,668.10
First Student S 896,833.82 S 919,257.63 $ 942,234.06 5 2,758,325.51
All-Town S 903,811.41 S 928,651.52 § 954,191.44 S 2,786,654.37

A check of references (Chicago Public Schools, Oswego District 308 and Forest Ridge District 142)
netted positive feedback. The referenced school districts indicated that lllinois Central was a reliable
provider, offering excellent safety, on-time service and timely accommodation of any scheduling
deviations.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)
Affirm the low-bid of Illinois Central at the February 15 Finance Committee Meeting. A contract,

incorporating District 200 policy as well as the Illinois Central Bid parameters will be sought for
future Board approval.

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfls.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-3500 FAX: (708) 434-3%10



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scaville Avenue » Guak Park, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Tim Keeley Transportation Coordinator

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Executive Summary for Field Trip/Extracurricular Transportation Services Bid
BACKGROUND

On February 1, 2011, bids were solicited for Field Trip/Extracurricular Transportation Services. The
current contract with R&D Bus Company is set to expire at the conclusion of this school year.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Proposals were received from six firms, All-Ways, First Student, Grand Prairie, Illinois Central and
Lakeview Bus Lines. Vendors were asked to provide a full tariff schedule as well as pricing for six
commonly-travelled OPRFHS trips as determined by their proposed tariff schedule.

A summary of the costing results can be found below.

Of the six vendors, Hlinois Central is the only one to offer a flat rate ($36.00) per hour on all trips.
The tariff schedules offered by the remaining five vendors included numerous charges and fees based
on mileage, trip duration, conflict with curriculum routes and weekend fees, to name a few. Taking
these two factors into account, it is clear that [llinois Central is the low bidder.

R&D All-Ways Grand Prairie iilmm s Ce rai First Student Lakeview

|

Lindberg Park 135.00 139.00 309.00 275.63  175.00

Downers North ~ 320.00 225.00 363.00 287.81  185.00

Volo Bog 650.00 435.00 531.00 447.86  265.00

Lyons Twp. 215.00 225.00 363.00 - 287.81  185.00

Museum of S&I  265.00 315.00 531.00 - 447.86  265.00

Starved Rock 750.00 685.00 411.00 412.86  265.00

Total 2,335.00  2,024.00 2,508.00 -~ 2,159.83 1,340.00

TEL: (708} 383-0700 WEB: www.optflis.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-5500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue & Oak Park, IL 60302-2296

A check of references (Chicago Public Schools, Oswego District 308 and Forest Ridge District 142)
netted positive feedback. The reference school districts indicated that Illinois Central was a reliable
provider, offering excellent safety, on-time service and timely accommodation of any scheduling
deviations.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)
Affirm the low-bid of Tllinois Central at the February 15 Finance Committee Meeting. A contract,

incorporating District 200 policy as well as the Illinois Central Bid parameters will be sought for
future Board approval.

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhis.org TTY/TDD: (708} 524-3500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



Ouak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue o Oak Park, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Cheryl L. Witham

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Student Fees for Fiscal Year 2011 - 2012
BACKGROUND

Each year the administration reviews the student fees.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Last year the athletic Pay to Play fee was increase by $5.00, and all other fees remained the same.

Freshman : 00 $85.00
Sophomore $245.00 $245.00 £245.00
Juniors $60.00 $60.00 $60.00
Seniors $95.00 $95.00 $95.00
Pay to Play $50.00 $55.00 $55.00

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

To approve no increase in the student registration fees for the 2011 -~ 2012 School Year.

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708 524-5500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



Oak Park and River Forest High School

District 200
261 North Scoville Avenue e Oak Park, IL. 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Cheryl L. Witham, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Finance Advisory Commiitee Update

BACKGROUND

The Board of Education has requested a monthly report of activities of the FAC in order to enhance
communication and transparency.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS
During the month of January 2011 the following activities occurred:

e The Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) met once. The topic of discussion was the
educational and communication plans.

e The communication sub-committee met once to discuss the educational and communication
recommendations from FAC.

e The Instructional Quality Review Commiltee met to review the EACII program as a piiot test
of the system and to create the template for future reports to QRC.

e The Board of Education approved the ALT structure as recommended by FAC.

RECOMMENDATIONS

None at this time,

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-5500
FAX: (708) 434-3910



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 Norih Scoville Avenue ¢ Oak Park, 11 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Cheryl Witham

DATE: February 15,2011

RE: Student Achievement Initiatives for FY 2012 Budget
BACKGROUND

This is an opportunity for the Board of Education to discuss and prioritize Student Achievement
Initiatives for the FY 2012 budget. We have included an updated table of student achievement
imitiatives currently in place.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

Board Discussion of 2012 budget for student initiatives.

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WER: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-3500 FAX: (708)434-3910



THOT/T /L

1roddug

VJOIM S01008
IOV ‘59811100
IMUIPEIE

2100 Ui SUONDR]
$8000ns ‘sutened

‘2491 doxg 9891100 oy
J& [NJSSI2NS 2 01 F2PIO Ul

YSYSUG [}
daag 98ay100) 10 s[piys Burdogeaop
gliA S1UOpNIS 181838 0) ureIdoid

ourdiosip 3BSOY 'S woddns omwrapror 10 porrod woddns [RUOTIOMLISUL PUR 1WILAOLIID
DMIRPRIY | PUR 22URPUINY 1170 0z eLI d a0 Surmnbal uatysalg F0/80 orrapray JepoyRs doxd a3a10)
VdbDM.
521008 1DV

TIOTORI] $$200MS ‘voddns jo seaf [ruomppR “epoyag wolorg w
noddng | ‘suoped Supie: WSUM “d R O] MU pluom paredionied oym siuapms axowoydos
JIWAPROY 2SIN0D SIOUOYH | HIA T0 0z aerd d | oym sarowoydos paynuapy co/eo | o] pourad woddng 1aoddng sejoyag
TVSd HAIIS PUR
moddng DYl UO SPIRPUEIS SUIDOW yerd ‘Surpeal iseaie 1020gns 4V Sd
OTUSPRIY 521005 TVSd AL 70 ov H 'V 10U JO YSII-TE SIUapNIg YO/TO ur daxd ysa ], Supiony, 9e)S el
"28MOY
"SUIBXD 20URIND dexd 3591 L¥S JOo 1DV u® Ui [[O1U 0]
2da[[02 e 0] TuIpaeu pur SION [ UBOLIDWIY URIHJY 28emoou
woddng SAU0DS 2891100 puone 03 Suruwe|d Apeuosyad 01 s10{asunod £q 100 Uy
OWUDPRIY | 159] PIZIPIRDUES S TR Pl M Y sIoTUnl UBROLIOUIY UBDLISY 0/TT JudmjoIusy 35100y daid 189,
e e dn
‘19427 B dn 2aowe oF fenuajod Suraow MO[{E 0] DSINOD YL TIUENS
poddng 1B (1 3] PIIBNSUOWIIP PABY B 9y 01 sjuepnis 10j Ayunuoddp
JMUAPEIY 00648 112 Aangp | oym sarowoydos/uauysany $8/90 weidory diy-doig e Pumng

VdOM WIIA
Sa1008 1V pueg g (€007 | (e0URDSASISUZAPEIA) [263] S10UCY
“TOTIORY $S20018 I2puexaly (I Ul POPPR | U3 OUY SULAOW YIIM USTUT|SI] ISISse
poddng | ‘suzoyyed Junye) ATM N jenuatod | 20uRI0g) 0} |[ey Apmis paamonns/posiatadng
OIUAPEIY ISI00D SIOUOE] AL190 | 09 xouddy OeL] " | [PA9] SIOUCY YA UDUIYSAL] 10/20 AV TOHDS 1eloayg
$28.1N00 urd
woddng OIUIOPEIE (vd) Fuipraat] 7| "20URp0s 0 ‘uyRw ‘gsHEuy Ul Gpig 01 "wre ¢:7 woLy wado rejuad
DEPERIY | Ul POLIED SOpRIN TII 1 1 009 xoxddy iy d ! djoy enxo Sumpsau sjuapmiy 16/2 1 Suuoin ur-dox(] wiexSod g Sulrom

WIRIS0k] (jenuue) . .
Joaday, STUILUSSISS Y (penuae) paajoau] ajqisuodsayy STET NS RRAT pajeniuf JANBNIE]RIT0L ]
1800) SIUIPIIS PN TN o ey

AYVININGS JATLVILINI / IWVIDOUd INHWAHIHOV INAUNLS




P10T/T1/L

[

VJOIAN (S98.n00 IOT25UR0d THAO

OIIRpTOR uw pur seotarg Qo & drigsusod, JO

2100 Ul SUOHILL} AQ pRIBUIPIOE)) “SIUAPMS PLFOuep!

ssa00ns ‘suianed ‘weifosd soorares poddns 5210 pue weiSord suonooulo)

awpdrosip HOSUyOr 3 | 06( PUB L6(1 AQ paljizuspe 6 01 Q ) UI UYL FUILIOOUL pue

yoddng jusieg PUE 22URPUINY 0008 09 eid d syuared pue s1u2pnIg $0/00 | swaied 10} WEISoL] ABpLIY JAWILING
VJDM ‘Sesmo

JNUDPEIE "SIOUDEIY YIRIA PUR USi[Bug Q0TC/L6U

2100 11 SUCIOELY spuny Ag] $O8SP]0 TYENRI-O) SIS

ssaoons ‘swiened 121U BLNL )60 Pue ‘L6 21208 PUR DIRISpEOE Ho siseydua

DALROTO] asurdostp | i pred VOSSO Y ‘00z ol Aq parpnuspe A uRtysaly Sunuoosul o] weiiord

WIN{ADLLNDY puR 20UBPUNY 000728 P aeig d HRULESAL) SUILLOIU] CO/O0 | HOINSURI IDWIHRG SUONINNG) § 01 8
VdDM $251M00

JIUDPEOE SJUAPNIS UBRDLIDUIY

2100 Ul SUOIIORL] UBOLIJ Y JOUJO ISISSE PUE IO O}

$5000ns ‘surened SIUIPNIS UROLISW Y UBDLLLY [NISS200n18

aupdrosip saope 1Y) weasoxd Suuojme

IB[NOLLIND)-0)) PUE QoURPUINY 000's% 0¢ I2PUBXQ[Y (] | SMIOPNIS UROLISWY URDLLIY IR0 V SAR[OYDS Y VIA/SIB[ODS BIY ],

Su01s$230K]

‘sTeRoIssajoid SNOLIRA JO S9ATRINOSAIA0I URILISILY

URDLISUIY UBOLIY UBDHY {IIM 9SFOALOD PUR WO Teay

11115800005 01 amsodxo 01 fienuoddo ue Supracad sjuoprys

sIeAq A LHOI] 1jouaq pinom UZDLIAUIY-URDLITY 0] @0UI2JU00

IBNoLIN)-07) 00ccS St U082 (I OM SIUDPTIS PILFIUIP] 10/20 Aevp-1{BY V AB(] [BUOISS3J0L] Mov[g

SIS

spunj J UOHROTENTIWGD puk SUIPeal 19)5[0Y

DATIRNITY] DM 1, WIOIf AIBNDOI D) garowoydos pue 01 papumut poddns Surpeatpgsisug

WIN{AOLLIR) LI 0 3 HER S Rt i Ty HOWISI] PSP | L] 00/80 | Surgoroe)y Loerdr/duiio)n) no Jng

“ded
JUAUDADHOR DY) 2JRUII[D

0} SUOJJ? JU2PNIS ABNIUL N SOATIN TUSLEARIYOY JUSPIIS

pue sjuepms AJIoui Suoue Axourpy e Aq parosuods sjuapns

[BAOIS [ | so101 difsioped] swnsse uayy URDLIDIY UROLIY JOJ 90UIIDJUOD Y

IE[NOLLIND)-00) TLINLES ¢ wpuexery (q PUE ‘PUIIE STUSPMIS A2 ¥ LO/50 | SOUIATHO)) JURPIIS [enuny NVSIV

WRTHol] . o (Jenuue) . o
Joadfy SIUALSSASS Y {jenuiiv) DIATOALY apqiseodsay SIUDPNIS TSI PO aanenmpjueasory
1507) SIAPIG LIS : L ooe(g




11011/

VJDM “S2J008
159 paziplupur)s

UM 1O SUNNIIND
pue ‘wonisodurod JurpuersLopun
“Bupeal vo snoO0J ® Yim sxown{ pue

paeng

FANETIU [UIRISO0.E]

QALJETIEG] ‘3283E]D ysijSug wegoD (g srotunf so10t0ydos JO DSIN0D [OOLIF JOUIINS
HINRpADIIIND Ui SapeID) 006'7% 0z apeiy J ¢ pue sasowoydos patjiuspy 90/90 V USHEUG Ul WNRGIBL Jowmng
YDA 5251000
JIUIDPEIE
BA0D UL SROTIORI] JUAWSADW]OE JMUDPEIE JUIPNIS
ssa00ns ‘susaned 10 poddns pue juswaajoaut Jusred
aurdrosip SN0 N woddns 01 paudisse wonisod sy [juy
SODIAIOG JUOPNIY puE 2oUrpunYy ALI01 000 TR (] SIUApNIS [V $0/20 Vv HONTS0,J J0JBUIPI0C)) (peann)
VADAL “$951002
JTuSpRDe SOSSBID SIS Ul SJIUN Injeian|
aMIdO[2A(] | 210D Ul SUOIIORL yor[q dopaasp pue uononusut Anood
[EUOISSJOL] | ssadons ‘suioned uyey d yoddns 01 pousisse norsod sur oy
‘PATIREILO] aurpdosp U0 (I W UOTHS0J 19do[oAXN] WIRNILLIN
LmnoLIn)) PUE 0OUBPUINY J1d 0] 000°z CIEAR SJERpPTIS |1V +0/20 2IMBINT] ORI DIOAN Usodg
"SATITATIOR POSEQ-ASOIOULDA] Hlim
VDM "$21008 suoneiodxs aanorrRuL Surpiaoid
1§23} POZIPIEPUE]S "S2I00S 1S9t LENTNOLEMD B $2SH IR} SIO4R{NIjeD
IanenIOY ‘T-1 BIGRBIY poZIpIEpUR]S AQ PRLyIULpPT axrds Ny sesn eyl yyew 2peis- 6
LIN[AOLLITY) UL SOpPRID FJI390 051 Rarg STUDPMNIS YIBUI UBIYSOLY 90/80 UT S2INUTUE PAPUIIXT Hoo[g BAGa3|V
saurplosy
spuny $3010T $EYOED) SuowE UonoNnsul
12pLL "SOE3OIRI)S Koerai] aoueyue 01 Juawdo[aasp JJuis
juomdooaaq] woxy pred AIBNOIN ) | SSTHD) Ul pauren) Uaaq QAR (sa18a1e§ pous( JUIPNIS YInoa)
[BUOISSAJOL] K000°cg ad d OUM SIAIEI JO SupPNIS £0/90 aswapuadopuy Sunear)) SSI1YD
ILI2DU0D 2$N8D “GOTIUDAIIUL JO] HOURPUILILIODNT
20U [ | eourumzojrad 1o sourpuane sspornems woaqosd juapuys Jo siskjeue
doysig 1 “101ARYRq SuLSueyD 107 ssoooxd juowssasse wea [ (SSd)
S21AI2S TLPPIIG VN asnoy N | 30 swoned osoyMm SIUOPMIS FO/R0 | PPOIN trea ], sa01a1ag poddng pdng
WIdod g 1 (Jenuun) :
joadig SIDLISSISS Y {lenuue) paAjOAL] sfqistiodsay

1507y

SIHAPMIS

HES

SIOPNIG 1OTIN

2y




110T/11/C

“orordde seonoexd 199q LW/ TON
ue SIS}, "SIUDPNIS [BNPIALPUL

107 weagord Surpear v aquosaxd
pue asoudeip ‘ssasse 01 AZO[oUYd)

VDA HEWINAN 'V 1rB-SY-JO-27838 M uoisuayasduwiod
uoneInpy ‘§0I003 Tulpeal Swgsg D “SIIPNIS pue Aouonyy Surpeas ur sded
[eradg [2A2] 2pell) 0000V 09 UEW[PH "1 pd [eroadg payynuapy LO/80 ssouppe 01 weisold v qery Juipeay
YJDM SIS0
JIUISpRIE
QIO L SUOTIIRAY wreaSoxd (17 ou) uryitm suuawaorjd
$5000Ns ‘surdyyed japLm sndures JJO puE SJUIPIIUT I0IARYDG
wonRInpg surjdiostp yoouuarg "I, aonpaz 0} peudisse raquiatu A)Noe]
[e1adsg puE 2JUBPUINY AII 0T 071 B {BE] "1, syuepns (g LO/R0 | 2wl [N} 1STHOIIUDAIIU] J01ABYDdY
“SISDLLO 20INOSIL
jo0y0s pue Hoddns Aumuaod
M UOTIRIOQR][OD UL S[[TYS SUlA]os
“wiajqosd pur SUL{RUI-UOISTIOP POOE
apean T JIRIS 100Y0S $OIOLIOLT (IDWI[[IIXSL [BUOCTIBIRPS]
SO0IATOS JHApMIS 0SS 9 doystg ¢ AQ PSIIRFOI SIUIPNIS QBN CO/80 Youay] 03 payu() SAEIA) ATUNIN
"SI9JIJ0 90INOSAT
[ooyas pue poddns Arunuruiod
i UOTIBICGRIIOD UL S[[IYS Suia]os
-tefqoxd pue FunjPU-UOISIIAP POOT
1S [ooyas T0/G0 S0 (DUI[PFIXG] FeUonEINDPH
S2DIATRS 1URPNIS 005°c$ o1 doysig 1 | Aq parIefal S1U3pnIs SR 10j Suryordy] sapewig) W WA
VADM 591005
1DV 'sasInod
JIpRYE
2JO2 UI SUOTIORIY Sugpear ur Ajjeuoney
ss200ns ‘surayed {(vdy) arnonrad | 0¢ 21 M01q [ooyas g2 03 UonisueD
2A0ENIUY aurdiosip AId 01 Surasiyor pue g-1 ysisug 3 ISISSE O 107081 B Yiim porad
WNNOLLENY) PUE 20URPUANTY LI 80 0% BIAR: I | UL P2fjOIud USUIYSoL] 00/R0 roddns L 1eddng Advasprg




Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue o Oak Park, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education

FROM: Cheryl L. Witham

DATE: February 15, 2011

RE: Approval of PTAB Resolution
BACKGROUND

The adminisiration is asking the Board of Education to consider this resolution giving the
administration, in conjunction with our law firm Franczek, Radelet P.C. authority to file a Request to
Intervene in Appeal Proceedings for the re-assessment of property within our District.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

These PTAB requests have a negative effect on our property tax collection in subsequent years and
the revenue cannot be recaptured. This request is necessary because the Districl must intervene
within 30 days of notice. This is often too short a time period to bring the issue before the Board of

Education.

This resolution must be approved by the Board of Education on an annual basis.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

This resolution will be presented to the Board of Education for approval at the Regular Board of
Fducation meeting on February 24, 2011,

TEL: (708) 383-G700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-5500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



Resolution Authorizing Intervention
in Proceedings before the
State of Illinois Property Tax Appeal Board

Whereas, an owner or manager of a parcel or parcels of real property located within the
boundaries of the State of lllinois has the right to file an appeal challenging the assessed value of
the parcel or parcels of real property with the State of Illinois Property Tax Appeal Board
("PTAB”); and

Whereas, a reduction in the assessed value of a parcel or parcels granted by the PTAB
will lead to the issuance of a real estate tax refund from the Board of Education of Oak Park &
River Forest High School District No. 200 {(“Board™), and

Whereas, a taxing district has the right to intervene in proceedings before the PTAB in
order to protect the taxing district’s revenue interest in the assessed value of a parcel or parcels;
and

Whereas, the time period during which a taxing district may intervene is 60 days after
the taxing district’s receipt, from the Cook County Board of Review, of notice of the filing of an
appeal by an owner or manager of a parcel or parcels of real property; and

Whereas, the Board has determined that it is necessary, desirable, advantageous, and in
the public interest to defend the Board’s real property tax base by intervening in PTAB appeals
filed on parcels within the boundaries of the Board.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Education of
Oak Park & River Forest High School District No. 200, Cook County, Iilinois, as follows:

1. The Board finds that all of the recitals contained above are true and correct, and that the
same are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

!\_)

The Board hereby authorizes Franczek Radelet P.C., as its legal representative, to: a) file
a Request to Intervene in Appeal Proceedings in all 2011 assessment-year appeals filed
at the PTAB for which the Board receives notice from the Cook County Board of
Review, and b) represent the Board’s interests in those proceedings.

3. All motions and resolutions or parts thercof in conflict with the provisions of this

Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed.

4, If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Resolution shall be held invalid, the
invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the other

sections, paragraphs, ciauses, or provisions of this Resolution.

5. This Resolution shall be in force and effect upon its adoption.

4258031



After a full and complete discussion thereof, Member moved that the
foregoing Resolution be adopted and Member seconded the motion. The
President directed the Secretary to call the roll for a vote upon the motion to adopt this
Resolution. Upon a roll call vote taken, the Board of Education voted as follows:

AYES:

NAYS:

Abstaining:

PRESENT:

Absent from Meeting:

The President declared the motion carried and the Resolution duly adopted.

Dated: By:

President, Board of Education

ATTEST

Secretary, Board of Education

425865.1



Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue o Oak Park, IL 60302-2296

TO: Board of Education
FROM: Cheryl Witham
DATE: February 15, 2011
RE: Financial Reports
BACKGROUND

It is a requirement that the Board of Education accepts and approves the monthly Financial Reports.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Attached are the Financial Reports for January, 2011.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

The January, 2011 Financial Reports, will be presented to the Board of Education for approval at the
February 24", Board of Education meeting.

TEL: (708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (708) 524-5500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



)

OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 200

Monthly Financial Statements

January 2011

Education Fand

Receipts

Property Taxes
Other Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Scurces

Expenditures

General Instruction
Special Education
Adull Education
Vocational Programs
Interscholastic Programs
Summer School
Drivers Education
Other instructional
Support Srvs. - Pupil
Support Srvs. - Admin.

(hher Sources/(Uses)
Transfers ¥, Other Funds
Transfers o Other Funds

Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Balance
Ending Balance

1. State aid budget was significantly reduced for fiscal 2011 due to uncertainty of the state actually paying Districts.

Fiscal to Date

Audited Januaary 31
2009-2018 2018
47,315,686 23,780,982
3,617,642 1,881,710
2,834,759 1,734,729
2607278 1,490,079
56,373,363 28,887,500
19,915,270 8,740,326
5,555,934 2,432,751
20,282 4,000
335,859 191,959
1,963,819 961,916
287451 164,877
75147 327,289
2,801,472 1,264,845
6,607,062 3,083,843
4,625,192 2,439,252
42 873,488 19,633,052
1,139,202 .
£1,600,000% -
139,202 -
13,641,079 9,254,448
52,572,102 52,572,162
66,213,181 61,826,550

Original Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
Yo 2010-2011 2611 %
50.3% 43,378,031 20,011,147 46.1%
52.0% 2,036,844 2,176,936 106.6%
61.2% 1,535,232 1,917,409 124.9%
§1.2% 1,199,587 509,543 42.5%
31.2% 48,149,694 24,609,035 51.1%
435% 21,480,792 9,466,101 44.1%
44.1% 5,109,106 2,251,245 44.1%
25.6% 20,539 - 0.0%
57.2% 378,059 219,032 57.9%
49.0% 2,189,182 1,031,114 47.1%
57.4% 313,566 155,526 49.6%
43.2% 765,563 327,587 42.8%
45.1% 3,006,379 1,044,657 34.7%
46.7% 6,754,759 3,045,359 45.1%
52.7% 4,663,602 2,374,615 50.9%
45.8% 44,681,547 19,915,236 44.6%
0.0% - - N/A
0.0% - - N/A
0.0% - -
3,468,147 4,693,799
66,213,181 66,213,181
69,681,328 70,906,980

The majority of the actual collections relates to the prior year grants and claims that the state was late in paying to Districts.

2. District started the EAC program this school year and has reduced our out placed special education students and thus

lowered the anount it pays for tuition.

Boord Report Japuary 201 1 Monthly Finarcials



OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 206

Monthly Financial Statements
January 2011

Bookstore Fund

Fiscal to Diate

Audited January 31
2669-2010 2010
Receipts
Qiher Local Sources 812,920 622,495
812,920 622,495
Expenditures
Suppert Srvs, - Other 809,034 695,457
809,034 695 457
Change in Fund Balance 3,886 (72,962
Begianing Balance 695,840 695,840
Ending Balance 699,726 622,878

Cafeteria Fund

Fiscal to Date

Audited January 31
2009-2010 2010
Receipts
Other Local Sources 2,030,684 1,117,851
State Sources 7,644 6,649
Federal Sources 193,456 83,936
2,231,784 1,208,436
Expenditures
Suppott Srvs. - Admin. 2,168,698 1,003,762
2,168,698 1,003,762
Change in Fund Batance 63 086 204,674
Beginning Balance 274,282 274,282
Ending Balance 337,368 478,556

Board Report January 2071 Monthly Financials

Original Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
% 2010-2011 2011
76.6% 850,003 104,423
76.6% 850,003 704,423
86.0% 850,003 754,305
86.0% 850,003 754,305
- (49,882
699,726 699,726
659,726 649,844
Original Fiscal te Date
Budget January 31
Yo 2010-2011 2011
55.0% 2,021,070 1,080,893
87.0% 13,987 6,141
43.4% 185,828 98,895
54.1% 2,220,885 1,185,928
463% 2,219,788 1,019,004
463% 2219788 1,010,004
1,657 175,928
337,368 337,368
338,465 513,293

Y

82.9%
82.9%

88.7%
88.7%

Ya

53.5%
43.9%
53.2%
53.4%

45.5%
45.5%



OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 200

Menthiy Financial Statemeats

Januaary 2011

Operations and Maintenance Fund

Receipts
Property Taxes
Other Local Sources

Expenditures
Support Srvs. - Admin.

Other Sources/{Uses}
Transfers
Transfers

Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Balance
Ending Balance

Fiscal to Date

Audited January 31
2009-2010 2010
6,136,075 2,884,314
2,297 496 873,242
8,433,571 3,757,556
8,823475 3,756,326
8,823 475 3,756,326
1,035,354 1,000,000
1,035,354 1,000,000
645,450 1,001,230
9,044,358 0,044,358
9,689,808 10,045,588

i, Transfer to Capital Projects fund per the budget.

Life Safetv Fund

Receipts
Property Taxes
Other Local Sources

Expenditures
Support Srvs. - Business

Other Sources/{(Uses)
Transfers

Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Balance
Ending Balance

Fiscal to Date

Audited January 31
28092010 2010

1,883,021 632,198
3,697 513
1,886,718 632,711
1,474,581 904,409
1,474,581 904,409
{618,263} {618,263)
(618,263} (618,263)
(206,126) (889,961)
355,137 355,137
149,011 (534,824)

Original Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
Yo 2010-2011 2011
47.0% 5,990,710 2,735,706
38.0% 962,216 981,799
44.6% 6,952,926 3,717,505
42.6% 5,368,583 2,658,748
42.6% _ 53068,583 2,658,748
96.6% 26,210 -
N/A (1,610,000} (1,610,000)
96.6% (1,583,790} (1,610,000)
553 (551,243}
9,689,808 9,689,808
9,690,361 9,138,563
Original Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
¥ 2010-2011 2011
336%  2,090611 1,044,045
13.9% 301,670 73
33.5%  2,392,28% 1,044,118
61.3% 1,701,822 1,641,980
61.3% 1,701,822 1,641,980
100.0% {614,263) -
(614,263) -
76,196 (597.862)
149,011 149,011
225,207 (448,851}

Ve

45.7%
102.0%

53.5%

49.5%
49.5%

0.6%
100.0% 1

100.7%

Yo

49.9% |
0.0%
43.6%

86.5%
96.5%

0.0%

1. Life Safety levy was increased for the 2009 levy compared to the 2008 levy and therefore the increase in collections in

the current year.

Board Report January 2011 Montkly Fiaancials



OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 2006

Monthly Financial Statements

January 2011

Bond and Interest Fund

Receipts
Property Taxes
Other Local Sources

Expenditures
Debt Service

Cther Sonrces/{Uses)
Principal on Bonds Soid
Premium on Bonds Sold
Payment to Escrow
Transfers

Teansfers

Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Balance
Ending Balance

Transportation Fund

Receipts

Property Taxes
Oiher Local Sources
State Sources

Expenditures
Support Srvs, - Business

Other Sources/{Uses}
Other source

Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Balance
Ending Balance

Figcal to Date

Audited January 31
2049-2010 2010
3,052,560 1,553,706
35,354 25,461
3,087,854 1,579,197
4,787,112 4,431,631
4,787,112 4,431,631
10,810,000 10,810,060
801,085 801,095
(11,468,408) (11,468,408)
618,263 618,263
(35,354) -
725,596 760,956
(973,662) (2,091 ,484)
2,468,889 2,468,880
1,495,227 377,405
Fiseal to Date
Audited January 31
2009-2014 2010
938,197 460,654
435,423 30,834
850,067 592,479
1,833,687 1,083,967
1,417,211 651,859
1417211 651,859
31,000 -
31,000 -
447476 432,108
2,114,846 2,114,846
2,562,322 2,546,954

Original Fiseal to Date
Budget Jannary 31
% 2019-2011 2011 Yo
50.9% 2,868,619 1,354,486 47.2%
72.1% 26,210 3,772 14.4%
51.4% 2,894,826 1,358,258 46.9%
52.6% 3,500,790 3,142,653 89.8%
92.6%  3,500,79C 3,142,653 8%.8%
100.0% - - N/A
100.0% - - N/A
100.0% - - N/A
100.0% 614,263 - 0.0%
0.0% (26,210} - 0.0%
104.9% 588,053 - 0.0%
{17,908) {1,784,395)
1,465,227 1,495,227
1,477 319 (289,168)
Original Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
Yo 2010-2011 2011 Yo
49.1% 842,131 401,334 47.7%
67.9% 22,616 7,505 34.1%
69.7% 645,379 425,846 66,0%
59.1% 1,508,526 834,685 55.3%
46.0% 1,375,537 645,744 46.9%
46.6% 1,375,537 645,744 46.9%
0.0% - - N/A
133,589 188,941
2,562,322 2,562,322
2,696,311 2,751,263

1. Property tax bills were not sent out until mid November and collections are siill behind last year. Several large

distributions have been received in January.

Board Report Jwuary 2071 Monthly Finencials



OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 260

Menthly Financial Statements
January 2011

Illinois Municipal Retirement/Social Security Fund

Fiscal to Date

Audited January 31
2009-2010 2010

Receipts
Property Taxes 2,362,524 1,134,543
Other Local Sources 106,550 18,282

2,469,074 1,152,825
Expenditures
General Instruction 336,245 148,174
Special Education 190,309 80,106
Vocational Programs 26,486 13,949
[nterscholastic Programs 109,477 52,887
Summer School 9,143 5,364
Drivers Education 5,560 2,463
Other Instructional 1,241 536
Support Srvs. - Pupil 336,130 151,871
Suppors Srvs. - Admin, 824,926 447,194

1,839,437 962,544
Change in Fund Batance 629,637 250,281
Beginning Balance 1,323,641 1,323 641
Ending Balance 1,953,278 1,573,922

Capital Projects Fund

Fiscal to Date
Audited January 31
2009-2010 2010
Receipts
Other Local Scurces - -

Expenditures
Support Srvs. - Business - -

Other Sources/(Uses)
Transfers - -

Change in Fund Balance - -

Beginning Balance - -

Ending Balance . -

Criginal Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
% 2010-2011 2011 %
48.0% 2,314,608 1,032,644 44 6%
17.2% 79,730 3,546 7.0%
46.7% 2,394,338 1,638,190 43.4%
44.1% 414,743 174,965 42.2%
42.1% 224,800 88,376 39.3%
52.8% 25,273 9,825 38.9%
48.3% 121,161 56,742 46.8%
58.7% 9,844 5,477 35.6%
44.3% $,239 2,928 31.7%
43.2% 1,232 534 43.3%
452% 393,359 169,265 43.0%
54.2% 894,271 460,943 51.3%
49.1% 2,087,924 969,059 46.2%
296,414 69,131
1,953,278 1,953,278
2,249,692 2,022,409
Original Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
Yo 2010-2011 2011 Yo
N/A 300,000 327 0.2%
N/A 300,000 527 0.2%
N/A 1,910,000 1,430,248 74.9%
N/A 1,910,000 1,430,248 74.9%
NiA 1,610,000 1,616,000 100.9%
1,610,000 1,614,000
- 180,279
- 180,279

Y. Transfer from O&M fund to establish the Capital Projects fund per the budget.

Board Repart Janiuary 2011 Monthly Financials



OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 200
Monthly Financial Statements

January 2011

Working Cash Fund

Receipts
Property Taxes
Other Local Sources

Expenditures
Transfers

ther Sources/{Uses)
Principal on Bonds Sold
Transfers

Change in Fund Balance

Beginning Balance
Ending Balance

Tort Immunity IF'end

Fiscal to Dhate

Audited January 31
2009-2010 2018
1,091,083 535,987
129,470 88,392
1,220,553 624,379
1,060,000 1,000,000
{1,000,000) (3,000,000}
1,220,553 624,379
5,300,950 5,300,950
6,521,503 5,925,329

Receipts
Property Taxes
Other Local Sources

Expenditures
Support Srvs. - Admin,

Change in Fund Balance

Beginaing Balance
Ending Balance

Fiscal to Date

Audited January 31
2609-2010 2010
1,263,583 632,689
38,162 23,653
1,301,745 656,342
869,427 706,790
869,427 706,790
432,318 (50,448)
1,917,776 1,817,776
2,350,094 1,867,328

Board Repot January 2011 Monthly Financials

Original Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
Ye 2016-2011 2011 %o
49.1% 1,045,305 527,572 50.5%
68.3% 69,485 22,132 31.9%
51.2% 1,114,790 348,704 49.3%
N/A - - N/A
N/A - - N/A
160.0% “ - NFA
100.0% - - N/A
1,114,790 549,704
6,521,503 6,521,503
7,636,293 7,071,207
Original Fiseal to Date
Budgei January 31
o 2010-2011 2011 Y
50.1% 1,104,552 527,033 47.7%
62.0% 20,076 5,966 29.7%
50.4% 1,124,628 533,001 47.4%
81.3% 1,121,112 714,235 63.7%
81.3% 1,121,112 714,235 63.7%
3,516 (181,234)
2,350,094 2,350,094
2,353,610 2,168,800




OAK PARK AND RIVER FOREST HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 200

Monthly Financial Statements

January 2011

Dental Self Insurance Fund

Tiscal to Date

Audited January 31
2009-2010 2016

Receipts

Insurance Premiums 409,548 197,102
Other Local Sources 3,680 2,509
: 413,228 199,611
Expenditures

Staff Services 407,364 186,947
Change in Fund Balance 5,864 12,664
Beginning Balance 143,399 143,399
Ending Balance 148,263 156,063

Medical Self Insurance Fund

Fiscal fo Dute

Audited January 31
20062018 2010
Receipts
Insurance Premivms 4,732,751 2,567,088
Other Local Sources 532,274 35,277
4,785,025 2,602,365
Expenditures
Staff Services 4541907 1,863,575
Change in Fund Balance 243,118 738,790
Bepginniag Balance 1,594,968 1,594,968
Ending Balance 1,838,086 2,333,758

Self-Insurance Workers' Comp Fund

Audited
26092010
Receips
Insurance Premiums -
Other Local Sousces -
Transfers -

Fiseal to Date
January 31
2016

Expenditures
Staff Services -

Change in Fund Balance -

Beginning Balance 15,857

15,857

Ending Balance 15,857

15,857

Board Report Japuary 2011 Monthly Financiais

Original Fiscat to Date
Budget Janunary 31
Y% 2010-2811 2011 Yo
48.1% 452,853 195,014 43.1%
68.2% 2,000 511 25.6%
48.3% 454,853 165,525 43.0%
45.9% 452,833 204,409 45.1%
2,000 (8,884)
149,263 149,263
151,263 140,379
Oxiginal Fiscal te Date
Budget January 31
% 2018-2011 2011 Yo
54.2% 53,577,698 3,311,567 59.4%
67.5% 20,000 9,501 47.5%
54.4% 5,597,698 3,321,068 58.3%
41.0% 5,577,698 2,393,629 42.9%
20,009 927,439
1,838,086 1,838,086
1,858,086 2,765,525
Ovriginal Fiscal to Date
Budget January 31
Ya 2010-2811 21 %
N/A - - N/A
N/A - - N/A
N/A - - N/A
N/A - - N/A
15,857 15,857
15,857 13,857




Oak Park and River Forest High School
District 200

201 North Scoville Avenue e OQak Park, IL 603022290

TO: Board of Education
FROM: Cheryl Witham
DATE: February 15, 2011
RE: Treasurer’s Reports
BACKGROUND

It is a requirement that the Board of Education accepts and approves the monthly Treasurer’s
Reports.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS

Attached is the Treasurer Report for January, 201 1.

RECOMMENDATIONS (OR FUTURE DIRECTIONS)

The January 2011 Treasurer’s Report will be presented to the Board of Education for approval at the
February 24", Board of Education meeting

TEL: {708) 383-0700 WEB: www.oprfhs.org TTY/TDD: (7083 524-5500 FAX: (708) 434-3910



i abey

UOIBOYSSRIDA AZBuLIE|4/Odd
saNypUBUdxs JO UOHEIHISSEDOY
-suor0ebieyD 210100 JO UONEIISSEIODY

syoegebieyd asinios poo) JO LOLEDISSEIaY

TEES8] SlusWSNIpE Jo AlERiung

%00 00k 90'621°18.'56 $ - $ (55°¥16°809°F) $ 0L12ZB'6ZL L L6 LZ1L'099°26 3 spund jiv - (=0
%R0 {15 1e1°coy) - - ZL'E59'pET {o'pal'L69) Ayajeg g uonusaald i
%E90 15755 200 {Zrshe'vh (91-0zz'10) 02 L6F'E0L S6TTIGLG spung Apanay - |eto ]
%PZ 0 198RS EET - (1.68218) GLsaLls ST YLLEVE sueg AUNUILISD
%6570 06 FO6'e/E (ZFspe'p) (¥ 086'G) 0L'Zee'zs 19'806° 168 YAl - sel
%e00 70 268'GL - - - P IGE5L SBURINSL a5 G0 D  SIONI0MN
AT 92°/18'860'C ¥6°Z6ZLY (6200215t} 2y L0s 60°¢ZZ'650°¢ SoURINSUL J]98 (2D]PaM
%LEG 8.°015'501 9.996°LE {zL152'28) ob4z $0'99L'%91 I3uUBINSU| J9G [EIUSQ
%9ZE 7088181 (syszl's) (£6°1£5°5Y) £T'RI9'9EE £6'60¥°960°Z Apumuwag pog
%8¢, 05°990°v90'L - - PLIS6 L1 9e'6L0'9Y6'S ysed Bupjiop
%610 85°9/2°08L - {og-zsy'LEtL) 7§62 99°LEL LLE UOIPNASUOD R NG
%01 IT6L9'0L0E ¥5 08 {Le'ser'esl) sZ'vao‘sze 62°006'FE6'L PUNd $8 2 NS
%ZV'E 80°0.8'0Z8°C ooy (947166 VEL) 29781168 QL ERYerE'Y pun4 uopepodsues |
YZE 0 {z1'Ler'o0g) - (oo'see’y) £6°560'00¢ (50°261°509) pund jsaiapy g puoyd
%0E°6 ay'125'016'a {z1 862'05G} (30°'769'20¥} S¥°199'09. L8°Z06'209'8 ecueuauiE 7 Buipiing ‘suolriadQ
%0LEL WSsLL'rLo0L (597081 "251) {aLgai'L12's) 99°L08°LLLG 95°650°L06°L9 pun. uolieanpy - |BJ0 L
% LE'0 59°C08°Z6E (20085°1) {zo96.'a¥) Z6 L1109 CCZLERe BUOYS 00g
%050 S\ ZB'TRY {6v'0.8'8) {(18988'9Z1) £9°T60°892 $0°985' 068 B2IMIDG POSH
%G6ZTZL LO'08B'8E2'69 (108l LFR) {/§180°0c0'c) LB OBE'6FF'S PLLGE L9229 ucpesnpy
[€36F FLVERD Eariuses ol Fjuswesngsig ESEIESEHN) L1010 Spung
jo o, saur|eg sed sjuawisnipy ysen ysen anueleg ysen
Buipuy Bujuado

06

¥8
¥8

£8

28

i

08

oL

09

05

or

ot

02

Sl

¥l
ol

LLOZ 'Lg Adenuer
poday siainseal}

00Z 110810 100495 UBIH 159407 IBAIY R HiBd HeD



QCak Park & River Forest High School District 200

Cash and Investments
January 31, 2011

Account Treasurer's Y% of
Balance Control Total

[Harris Bank Comingled Account {treas ofc.)

Statement CTTO 126,015.84

Less: Cutstanding Checks -

Pius: Deposits in Transit -

Adjusted 126,015.94 126,015.94 0.13%
[Harris 1ISDLAF Account (Liquid & Max} |

Statement Balance 95,815,846,98

Less: Outstanding Checks (568,158.64)

Plus: Deposits in Transit 109,637.37

Adiusted 95,357,225,71 99.56%
|Community Bank Student Activity Account

Statement Balance 265,929.74

Less: Qutstanding Checks (32,387.07)

Plus: Deposiis in Transit 47.00

Adjusted 233,589.67 0.24%
[Community Bank Imprest Account |

Statement Balance 18,5387

Less: Qutstanding Checks {1,640.43)

Plus: Deposits in Transit -

Adjusted 16,897.74 0.02%
[Petty Cash 7,400.00 0.01%
[Workers Compensation Escrow 40,000.00 0.04%
[i"rota; Cash and Investments $ 95,781,129.06 § 126,015.94  100.00%]

Note: Petty cash number includes $2,000 that is in the Athietic Imprest account maintained by the Athletic Department.

Page 2



YA
%8970
%540 - %00
EEYY

Z

Ay
%3y 0
%090 - %HST0
SHIUOW
48

FAUA
%6170
%0570 - %020
ICETY
1

¢ abiey

SL0L°0
%E00
%060 - %S0
SREG
174

Y00
WIN
Y%GT 0 - wBh0
sXeg
o8l

WM

ViN
Y510 - %000

ELY=Tq]

114

[T ATBifag 10 SBYUOIeliio]u] ajey 15919iu] sAnRIRdWo )

%08°301
%98'0Z
%0070
%8G Y
%90°9
%815
A
%Sl
%BLG
nr0G

oL
%
YRMO 1015

%007001
%9802
%0070
LSS
%9¥ €L
fejol
0%
yuo Joud

%00°003
Yobt'C
%000
%L9'G
%SvEL
BT
%959l
%GT
[S1ETN
0%
Yiuop olig

WIN
ViN

%510 - %00°C

EXEg
[13]

%600
00

FRESBIE KOG L

ViN
VIN

%0170 - %000

[ .CT¢]
1]

$SBI7) XEPY
sSB[D pInbry
3PN j958Y pIABTy

AINSESL ] JUBLILIBACD
Aously JusuuBADD
Bisles

K{iifo3g 30 odA ]

BaoU PIX|S

"OLLD 1BULI0} BUL JO B31SNI] SUL LM POISDALE SDUNJ 10) UMOLY JOU S 158191l 0 8l l Ut

%0000
FAY
%000
%801
%lS¥
Tt Y
%¥e el
SRS
%65
%00'S

L
19 %

%00°001
%8T'S
%HEQET
Sl ¥
WwBLLR
JeloL
*D J\G

%00°001
%ELD
ThER'TE
%Ol
Y%BL L9
%ERE
B0l
YZE L
[L2CX8
0 %

26'298'1P6'56

L'S0L 680G
A Reieg: IR
L¥BOE0LE Y
O0'GY0'LES'TY
00°005'€65° 21
Q0000'00L'E
00000'00Y Y
LO'GRZ'6BL' Y

LiLeiie
ERILTY
JUBLLESBALE

ZHCOR 1656

L S0L'B90'S
0000000612
¥O'8R8'6T6'E
LY69BTISY
FLILEAD
arep
EDUGSOALY

£6'298'1¥6'56

¥ESL0'9ZL
00'000'006°L2
P'BER'BERE
21698'ZP0GO
84'986'50.°2
26215696
LL685192')
[RNERSN,
aniep
JSLUISBALY

%800
%Ho0'0
%670
%SZ 0
%Se0
%150
%850
%840
YebZ 0

« #1EY
1sa191u)
afieiany

%800
%270
%EVQ
b A s
« 91y
FEENE T
abetany

% L2°0
E %]
Wbt 0
%510
B0
WEO0
» OFeY
psakal|
aberany

SIUBLIISBALL (210)
PUBLLBPR LD SIMep
+ sie9h 7

+ 1BBA L

SWuou Z1-04
SYWIOW §-/
SUIUOLE G-y
SYUOW £

SUIUOW Z

Juow |

56y ATIEW At

st Ay SIUBLLSaAU} 1Y 1BI0 |
1B Asuop
SBLGS WB )

SHNUNDSS JUBILLIBAGE)

500
BTAL USSR K

wonnnsyy Ag sjusLISeAl] |y [B10],

NN OLLD - siiek
seuag una ] - 4y10S] Sep
SBNUNDaS 1A09) - JYIISE SWEH
500 - AY1as|

vas - 4¢10S!

PR B - A0S

AN pinbiy - 40S) sluey
Tgnmnsu) et Ay

1102 ‘L€ Aentep
SIUBUISBAU| JO JINPBYDLS
002 301851 tooyog ybiH 152104 JaA1 7 HEd HBO





